
           

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT

January 26, 2021 
9:30 A.M.

           

The Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas will meet in regular session
in the Commissioners Courtroom, 710 Main Street, in Georgetown, Texas to
consider the following items:

  

 

1. Review and approval of minutes.   

 

2. Hear County Auditor concerning invoices, bills, Quick Check Report, wire transfers and electronic
payments submitted for payment and take appropriate action including, but not limited to approval for
payment provided said items are found by the County Auditor to be legal obligations of the county.

  

 

3. Public Comment Period. The Commissioners Court will conduct a Public Comment Period to allow
members of the public to address the Court regarding matters pertaining to or affecting Williamson
County but that do not appear as an Agenda Item on a meeting’s Agenda.  During such Public
Comment Period, speakers shall be limited to a maximum of two (2) minutes to make his/her remarks
and the maximum overall discussion time allowed for the Public Comment Period, regardless of the
number of members of the public wishing to address the Court during such period, shall be limited to
ten (10) minutes.  Speaking time, to the extent possible, will be evenly allocated among speakers
should more than five (5) speakers desire to speak during the Public Comment Period.  Please note
that the members of the Court may not comment at the meeting about matters that are not on the
agenda.

  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes non-controversial and routine items that the Court may act on with one
single vote. The Judge or a Commissioner may pull any item from the consent agenda in order that
the court discuss and act upon it individually as part of the Regular Agenda.
( Items 4 – 14 )

  

 

4. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving property tax refunds over
$2,500.00 thru 01/20/2021 for the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

 

5. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes,
position titles changes, position grade changes and any corresponding line item
transfers.

 

6. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action authorizing the use of 321 Ed Schmidt
Blvd., Suite 100, Hutto, Texas as a Public Polling Place for the purpose of a Special
Election for the City of Hutto during the period from February 16, 2021 to March 8,
2021.

 

7. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a Master Service
Agreement for Evidence Testing for the Sheriff's Office with Bode Cellmark Forensics,
Inc, d/b/a Bode Technology, and ratifying Purchase Order #176527.

 



8. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the service contract
between Williamson County and Premier Tower Services LLC to provide the setup
for ROHN SSV tower in the not-to-exceed amount of $8,500.00, and authorizing
execution of the contract. Funding source is P315.

 

9. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Professional Services Agreement
between Williamson County and K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC to provide Design and Engineering
Services for the Williamson County Georgetown Annex Water Softener Remodel in the amount of
$3,100.00.

 

10. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Professional Services Agreement
between Williamson County and K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC to provide Design and Engineering
Services for the Williamson County CHD Lobby and Janitor Remodel (P535) in the amount of $2,100.00.

 

11. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Professional Services Agreement
between Williamson County and K&W Engineering Solutions to provide Design and Engineering
Services for the Williamson County JJC Remote Restroom (P528) in the amount of $4,400.00.

 

12. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Professional Services Agreement
between Williamson County and K&W Engineering Solutions to provide Design and Engineering
Services for the Williamson County CJC Pretrial Services Remodel (P545) in the amount of $2,600.00.

 

13. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a service contract between
Williamson County and Danne Cranor d/b/a Lott Fence to provide installation of a new
fence at the Williamson County Auction Yard in the not-to-exceed amount of
$20,761.08 and authorizing execution of the agreement. Funding Source is P538.

 

14. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an Interlocal Agreement with Aqua
Utilities Inc. regarding reimbursement for water line relocations associated with the
County’s roadway and drainage improvements of the South San Gabriel Ranches
subdivision.

 

REGULAR AGENDA   

 

15. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Vaccination Administration
Agreement for Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) Vaccinations between Williamson
County and Curative Medical Associates Inc.; and exempting the procurement of such
services from the competitive bidding requirements pursuant to Texas Local
Government Code Discretionary Exemption 262.024(a)(2) - an item necessary to
preserve the health and safety of the residents of Williamson County.

 

16. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on funding matters relating to
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act to include, but not be
limited to hearing an update on the Wilco Forward grant program, setting budget
priorities in relation to remaining CARES Act funds and possible future funding and
allocation plans in relation to CARES Act funds.

  

 

17. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an approval for Juvenile Services to



17. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an approval for Juvenile Services to
apply for a grant through the Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) to
provide contract services to youths.

 

18. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Resolution authorizing the District
Attorney to submit an application to the Office of the Governor, Public Safety Office (PSO) for a Violence
Against Women Justice and Training Program, FY2022 Project, committing to provide all applicable
matching funds, designating the District Attorney as the official authorized to apply for the grant, and
designating the Williamson County Judge, with approval of the Williamson County Commissioner’s
Court, as the official authorized to accept, reject, alter, or terminate the grant, and providing assurance
that, in the event of loss or misuse of grant funds Williamson County will return all funds to PSO.

 

19. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Resolution to request legislation for
the establishment of a new District Court and a new County Court at Law for
Williamson County, Texas.

 

20. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency
and a grave necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget
amendment to acknowledge additional revenues for Park Donations.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.367403 Park Donations $1,923.00

 

21. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency
and a grave necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget
amendment to acknowledge additional expenditures for Park Donations.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0510.003670 Use of Donations $1,923.00

 

22. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving position classifications for
Salary Study Cycle 4A.

 

23. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action, as recommended by the Benefits
Committee to re-appoint Terron Evertson, County Engineer of the Road and Bridge
Department, new appointments for both James Carmona, Assistant Chief of the
Sheriff's Office, and Mike Knipstein, Director of Emergency Medical Services to serve
as a voting member on the Williamson County Benefits Committee.

 

24. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reclassification of vacant Animal
Control Spec. Pcn#1239.001100 to Animal Control Supervisor proposed Grade B.26
and allow funding for reclassification from positions in Departments 560.001100 and
570.001100.

 

25. Receive updates on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues.



25. Receive updates on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues.
 

26. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the allocation of $11.15
(6.15M from General Fund budget and $5M from the Road & Bridge Budget) for the
Transportation Corridor Program and the planning of the Ronald Reagan Corridor. The
funds will be allocated into the following projects; $8.15M to P457 (LTP ROW),
$600K to P385 (FM 2243 to SH 29), $600K to P386 (FM 3405 to RM 2338), $800K to
P387 (RM 2338 to SH 195) and $1M being allocated to P388 (SH 195 to IH 35).

 

27. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an Interlocal Agreement with the City
of Georgetown Regarding the City/County Participation in the Design, Construction
and Maintenance of Ronald Reagan Blvd. Intersection Improvements.

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION
"The Commissioners Court for Williamson County reserves the right to
adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting
to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas
Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultations with Attorney), 551.072
(Deliberations regarding Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts
and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations regarding
Security Devices) and 551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic
Development Negotiations)." 

  

 

28. Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec.
551.072 Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in
negotiations with third person.)
A.    Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
   Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of
property owned by third parties
    a)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop. 
    b)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 176 at RM 2243
    c)    Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 278
    d)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
    e)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for Seward Junction SE and SW Loop. 
    f)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for SH 29 @ DB Wood.
    g)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 366. 
    h)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for N. Mays.
    i)     Discuss Somerset Road Districts No. 3 & 4 reimbursements for acquisition &
construction of Reagan Blvd.
    j)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 111.
    k)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for Corridor H
    l)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for future SH 29 corridor. 
    m)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for the expansion of Ronald Reagan at
IH 35.
    n)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor C.
    o)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor F.
    p)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor D.
    q)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for SE Loop/Corridor A. 
    r)     Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Reagan extension.



    s)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for the Brushy Creek Trail Project. 
    t)     Discuss the acquisition of real property in conjunction with WCCF for potential
parkland/bird habitat.
    u)    Discuss the acquisition of drainage/detention easements for real property North
of WMCO Juvenile Detention Center
    v)    Discuss the acquisition of the MKT Right of Way
    B.    Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
   Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property
owned by the County
    a)    Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and
interests.
    b)    Potential governmental uses for 8th Street downtown parking lot 
    c)    Discuss possible uses of property owned by Williamson County on Main St.
between 3rd and 4th Streets. (formerly occupied by WCCHD)
    d)    Discuss property usage at Longhorn Junction
    e)    Discuss the sale of excess ROW at San Gabriel Parkway and Mel Mathis Ave. 
    f)     Discuss county owned property located at Ed Schmidt Boulevard Hutto, Texas
C.    Consider intervention in lawsuit regarding de-listing of Bone Cave harvestman. 
D.    Discuss the possible placement of agricultural-related monuments at the
Williamson County Exposition Center with the participation of third parties.
E.    Discuss the Williamson County Reimbursement Agreement for Construction of
San Gabriel Blvd. and New Hope Road with the City of Leander and TIRZ #1

 

29. Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas
Government Code, Section 551.087:
    a)    Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
    b)    Wolf Lakes
    c)    Flint Hill Resources-Taylor Fuel Storage Terminal on CR 366
    d)    Project Deliver
    e)    Project Advantage
    f)     Project Cedar
    g)    Project Expansion
    h)    Project Arcos
    i)     Project Woods
    j)     Project Co-Op
    k)    Project Liberty
    l)     Project Long Haul
    m)   Project Bon Jovi
    n)    Project Crystal
    o)    Project Link
    p)    Project Winston

 

30. Discuss pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other confidential
attorney-client legal matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec.
551.071 consultation with attorney.), including the following:

a)  Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the
County
b)  Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;
c)  Employee/personnel related matters
d)  Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters

  



d)  Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters
related to county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body within the attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.
e)  Civil Action No. 1:18-CV-49, Troy Mansfield v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
f) Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In
the District Court of Williamson County, Texas.
g)  Civil Action No. 1:17-cv-01114-LY, Elizabeth Saucedo and Tettus Davis v.
Jonathon Hodgkiss, In The United States District Court for the Western District of
Texas, Austin Division.
h)  Cause No. 1:18-CV-0198; Officer Mary Teague v. Williamson County, Travis
County and City of Giddings, In the United States District Court for the Western
District of Texas, Austin Division
i)  D-1-GN-19-005511; Brian Johns v. Williamson County, Texas; In the 53rd Judicial
District Court of Travis County, Texas
j)  Civil Action No. 1:19-CV-1163; Amanda McCoy v. Williamson County, Texas et
al., In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas Austin
Division.
k) Claim of Regina Wright.
l) Cause No. 19-0406-C368; Anthony Garcia and Victoria Garcia et al. v. Stephen
Wade Freeman et al. v. Wayne Finch et al.; In the 368th District Court of Williamson
County, Texas.
m) Case: 1:20-CV-255-LY; Jay Kreper v. Williamson County et al.; In the United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
n) Case Number 1:20-cv-01068-LY; Javier Ambler, Sr., et al. v. Williamson County, Texas, ,
In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
o) Case 1:20-cv-00927-LY; Heather Vargas v. Williamson County, Texas; In The
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
p) Case No. 1:20-CV-00842; SonWest Co. v. J. TERRON EVERSTON, in his official
capacity as Williamson County Engineer, et al.;   In the United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
q)  Civil Action No. 1:20-cv-836; Elizabeth Firey v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
r) Legal matters relating to Bailey Park Subdivision, Jarrell, Texas.
s) Potential legal claims, demands and/or litigation against The Travelers Indemnity
Company (Travelers).
t) Claim of the Estate of Okey Floyd Jones, Sr.
u) Claim, of Ramsey Mitchell.
v) Cause No. 20-1151-C395; Sarah Ackman v. Williamson County; In the 395th
District Court of Williamson County Texas.
w) Legal matters pertaining to TENEX Software Solutions, Inc.

 

31. Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties,
discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors, employees
and/or positions, including but not limited to conducting deliberation and discussion
pertaining to annual reviews of department heads and appointed officials (Executive
Session as per Tex. Gov. Code Section 551.074 – Personnel Matters).

  

 

REGULAR AGENDA (continued)   

 



 

32. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Resolution to adopt and support the
Texas Opioid Abatement Fund Council and Settlement Allocation Term Sheet.

 

33. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning economic development.   

 

34. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning real estate.   

 

35. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on pending or contemplated litigation,
settlement matters and other legal matters, including the following:

a)  Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the
County
b)  Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;
c)  Employee/personnel related matters
d)  Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters
related to county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body within the attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.
e)  Civil Action No. 1:18-CV-49, Troy Mansfield v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
f) Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In
the District Court of Williamson County, Texas.
g)  Civil Action No. 1:17-cv-01114-LY, Elizabeth Saucedo and Tettus Davis v.
Jonathon Hodgkiss, In The United States District Court for the Western District of
Texas, Austin Division.
h)  Cause No. 1:18-CV-0198; Officer Mary Teague v. Williamson County, Travis
County and City of Giddings, In the United States District Court for the Western
District of Texas, Austin Division
i)  D-1-GN-19-005511; Brian Johns v. Williamson County, Texas; In the 53rd Judicial
District Court of Travis County, Texas
j)  Civil Action No. 1:19-CV-1163; Amanda McCoy v. Williamson County, Texas et
al., In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas Austin
Division.
k) Claim of Regina Wright.
l) Cause No. 19-0406-C368; Anthony Garcia and Victoria Garcia et al. v. Stephen
Wade Freeman et al. v. Wayne Finch et al.; In the 368th District Court of Williamson
County, Texas.
m) Case: 1:20-CV-255-LY; Jay Kreper v. Williamson County et al.; In the United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
n) Case Number 1:20-cv-01068-LY; Javier Ambler, Sr., et al. v. Williamson County, Texas, ,
In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
o) Case 1:20-cv-00927-LY; Heather Vargas v. Williamson County, Texas; In The
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
p) Case No. 1:20-CV-00842; SonWest Co. v. J. TERRON EVERSTON, in his official
capacity as Williamson County Engineer, et al.;   In the United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
q)  Civil Action No. 1:20-cv-836; Elizabeth Firey v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
r) Legal matters relating to Bailey Park Subdivision, Jarrell, Texas.

  



s) Potential legal claims, demands and/or litigation against The Travelers Indemnity
Company (Travelers).
t) Claim of the Estate of Okey Floyd Jones, Sr.
u) Claim, of Ramsey Mitchell.
v) Cause No. 20-1151-C395; Sarah Ackman v. Williamson County; In the 395th
District Court of Williamson County Texas.
w) Legal matters pertaining to TENEX Software Solutions, Inc.

 

36. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation,
reassignment, duties, discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors or
employees, including but not limited to any necessary action pertaining to conducting annual reviews
of department heads and appointed officials.

  

 

37. Comments from Commissioners.   

 

_________________________
Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge

This notice of meeting was posted in the locked box located on the south side of the Williamson
County Courthouse, a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 22nd day
of January, 2021 at 5:00 PM and remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the
scheduled time of said meeting.



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 4.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Property Tax Refunds – Over 2500 – Thru 01/20/2021
Submitted For: Larry Gaddes  Submitted By: Renee Clark, County Tax

Assessor Collector
Department: County Tax Assessor Collector
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving property tax refunds over
$2,500.00 thru 01/20/2021 for the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
011321-012021 Refunds Over 2500 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 10:59 AM
Form Started By: Renee Clark Started On: 01/21/2021 10:45 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 



Larry Gaddes PCAC, C T A 
Tax Assessor/Collector 

904 South Main  Street 

Georgetown, Texas 78626 

Motor Vehicle Telephone: 512.943.1602 

Property Tax Telephone: 512.943.1603 

www.wi l co . o rg / t a x    
 
 

1801 E. Old Settler’s Blvd., Ste  115

Round Rock, Texas 78664 

Telephone:  512.244.8644 

350 Discovery Blvd., Ste. 101 

Cedar Park,  Texas 78613 

Telephone:  512.260.4290 

412 Vance St., Ste. 1

Taylor, Texas 76574 

Telephone:  512.352.4140

Annex Locations: Main  Office  and Mailing Address:  

Date: January 20, 2021 

To: Members of the Commissioners Court 

From: Larry Gaddes PCAC, CTA 

Subject: Property Tax Refunds 

In accordance with Section 31.11 of the Property Tax Code, the court needs 

to approve all refunds in excess of $2,500.00. We are presenting the 

attached list which includes these property tax refunds for your approval. 

Please contact me at (512) 943-1954, if you have any questions. 

Thank you. 



 7:54 AM

 01/21/21  Property Tax

 Account QuickReport
 As of January 20, 2021

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount

Refunds Payable - Taxpayers

Check 01/15/2021 77569 CORELOGIC R012393 - Erroneous payment -10,498.43

Check 01/15/2021 77580 JOHNNY JONES R477632 - Overpayment -4,170.67

Check 01/20/2021 77665 CHRISTI GIBSON R369051 - Overpayment -2,640.71

Total Refunds Payable - Taxpayers -17,309.81

TOTAL -17,309.81

 Page 1 of 1



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 5.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Compensation Items
Submitted By: Kayla Marek, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes, position
titles changes, position grade changes and any corresponding line item transfers.

Background
See attached documentation for details.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Position Changes 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Human Resources (Originator) Rebecca Clemons 01/20/2021 04:25 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 08:23 AM
Form Started By: Kayla Marek Started On: 01/20/2021 04:17 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 



Department 

Number and 

Name PCN EE ID

Current 

Annual 

Salary

*New 

Annual 

Salary

Current 

Position 

Budget 

Amount

*New Position 

Budget 

Amount

Reduction to 

Position 

Budget

Increase to 

Position 

Budget Change notes

Earliest 

Oracle 

Effective 

Date

560 Sheriff's 

Office 1266 N/A N/A N/A $68,975.86 $55,840.85 $13,135.01 N/A

Reallocation of position budget to 

facilitate hire as allowed by policy. 

Surplus salary moving to PCN 1370. 2/5/2021

560 Sheriff's 

Office 1370 N/A N/A N/A $59,979.83 $73,114.84 N/A $13,135.01

Reallocation of position budget to 

facilitate hire as allowed by policy. 

Surplus salary moving from PCN 1266. 2/5/2021

560 Sheriff's 

Office 1264 N/A N/A N/A $73,856.36 $72,724.85 $1,131.51 N/A

Reallocation of position budget to 

facilitate step increase. Surplus salary 

moving to PCN 1340. 2/5/2021

560 Sheriff's 

Office 1340 N/A N/A N/A $56,584.23 $57,715.74 N/A $1,131.51

Reallocation of position budget to 

facilitate step increase. Surplus salary 

moving from PCN 1264. 2/5/2021

590 Building 

Maintenance 0227 vacant N/A N/A $51,837.50 $48,590.18 $3,247.32 N/A

Reallocation of position budget to 

facilitate external new hire. Surplus 

salary moving to PCN 1920. 2/5/2021

590 Building 

Maintenance 1920 vacant N/A N/A $32,473.21 $35,720.53 N/A $3,247.32

Reallocation of position budget to 

facilitate external new hire. Surplus 

salary moving from PCN 0227. 2/5/2021

*Amount may vary slightly due to Oracle rounding



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 6.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Hutto Polling Place
Submitted For: Bill Gravell  Submitted By: Hal Hawes, County

Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action authorizing the use of 321 Ed Schmidt Blvd.,
Suite 100, Hutto, Texas as a Public Polling Place for the purpose of a Special Election for the
City of Hutto during the period from February 16, 2021 to March 8, 2021.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/20/2021 03:57 PM
Form Started By: Hal Hawes Started On: 01/20/2021 09:43 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/20/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 7.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

MSA Bode Technology for SO
Submitted By: Kerstin Hancock, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a Master Service Agreement for
Evidence Testing for the Sheriff's Office with Bode Cellmark Forensics, Inc, d/b/a Bode
Technology, and ratifying Purchase Order #176527.

Background
This Master Service Agreement will enable the Sheriff's Office to utilize Bode Technology if
needed. Bode is a special lab that does testing beyond what the DPS facility is equipped to do
and the only lab in the country approved by DPS. There is no dollar amount listed as this will be
addressed with each individual quote/Purchase Order issued. The Sheriff's Office is limited
to spending budgeted amounts each fiscal year. Funding Source: 01.0100.0560.004100.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Addendum and quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 01/21/2021 09:45 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 09:46 AM
Form Started By: Kerstin Hancock Started On: 01/20/2021 10:10 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 



1  

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 

 

 
COUNTY ADDENDUM FOR  
   SERVICES CONTRACT 

(Evidence Testing for Sheriff’s Office) 
(Bode Cellmark Forensics, Inc.  

d/b/a Bode Technology)  
 

Important Notice: County Purchase Orders and Contracts constitute expenditures 
of public funds, and all vendors are hereby placed on notice that such procurement 
is subject to the extent authorized by Texas law, including but not limited to Tex. 
Const. art. XI, § 7, the Texas Government Code, the Texas Local Government Code, 
the Texas Transportation Code, the Texas Health & Safety Code, and Opinions of 
the Texas Attorney General relevant to local governmental entities. 

 
THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between Williamson County, 

Texas (hereinafter “CUSTOMER” or “The County”), a political subdivision of the State 
of Texas, acting herein by and through its governing body, and Bode Cellmark 
Forensics, Inc. d/b/a Bode Technology (hereinafter "BODE"). Customer agrees to 
engage BODE as an independent contractor, to assist in providing certain operational 
services pursuant to the following terms, conditions, and restrictions: 

 
I. 

 
Incorporated Documents: This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement 

between the parties and may not be modified or amended other than by a written 
instrument executed by both parties. Documents expressly incorporated (as if copied in 
full) into this Agreement include the following: 

 
A. BODE Terms and Conditions on BODE website;  
B. Bode Quote #1020-056; and 
C. This Williamson County Addendum; 

 
II. 

 
No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity or Powers: Nothing in the contract relevant 

to this addendum will be deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers 

of Customer, the Williamson County Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County 
Judge. 

  



2  

 
 

III. 
 

Compliance with All Laws: BODE agrees and will comply with any and all 
local, state or federal requirements with respect to the services rendered. 

 
IV. 

 
Good Faith: BODE agrees to act in good faith in the performance of the contract 

relevant to this addendum. 
 

V. 
 

Payment: Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of 
the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the 
later of (1) the date The County receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the 
performance of the service under the contract is completed; or (3) the date the 
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest 
charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by The County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that shall 
accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of The County’s fiscal year 
in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street 
Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a 
Saturday or Sunday. 

 
VI. 

 
Termination for Convenience: This agreement may be terminated at any time at 

the option of either party, without future or prospective liability for performance upon 
giving thirty (30) days written notice thereof. In the event of termination, The County 
will only be liable for its pro rata share of services rendered and goods actually received. 

 

VII. 
 

Right to Audit: BODE agrees that Customer or its duly authorized 
representatives shall, until the expiration of one (1) year after final payment under this 
Contract, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, 
documents, papers and records of BODE which are directly pertinent to the services to 
be performed under this Contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts, and transcriptions. BODE agrees that Customer shall have access during 
normal working hours to all necessary BODE facilities and shall be provided adequate 
and appropriate workspace in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions 



3  

of this section. Customer shall give BODE thirty (30) days advanced written notice  of 
intended audits. In no circumstances will BODE be required to create or maintain 
documents not kept in the ordinary course of BODE’s business operations, nor will 
BODE be required to disclose any information, including but not limited to product cost 
data, which it considers confidential or proprietary. 

 
VIII. 

 
Mediation: The parties agree to use mediation for dispute resolution prior to and 

formal legal action being taken on the contracts relevant to this contract. 
 

IX. 
 

Texas Law Applicable to Indemnification: All indemnifications or limitations of 
liability or statutes of limitations shall be to the extent authorized under Texas law and shall 
follow Texas law without modifying the County’s rights. 
 

X. 
 

County Judge or Presiding Officer Authorized to Sign Contract: The 
presiding officer of Customer’s governing body who is authorized to execute this 
instrument by order duly recorded may execute this addendum on behalf of Customer. 

 
WITNESS the signatures of all parties in duplicate originals to be effective as of 

the date of the last party’s execution below. 
 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY: BODE: 
 
 
 
 

Authorized Signature Authorized Signature 
Date:  , 2020 Date:  , 2020 12/29



Bode Technology
10430 Furnace Rd. Ste 107

Lorton, VA 22079
Phone: 866-263-3443

Fax: 703-646-9742
bode.service@bodetech.com

www.bodetech.com

 CUSTOMIZED PRODUCT AND SERVICES - QUOTATION

 To
 Customer Name: Rex Miller

Detective
Williamson County Sheriff's Office
508 South Rock St.
Georgetown, TX 78626
512-943-5204
rex.miller@wilco.org

 Date: 10/28/2020 Quote#: 1020-056 Re: CCX1916-0140_Ref. Hair_Tissue Client Case #:
   99-03-00323
Quotation Specifications
Quote Expires: 12/28/2020  
Payment term is: NET30
All Terms and Conditions for this quotation can be found on Bode's website here.

The cost of all materials used for laboratory analyses are to be borne by Bode Technology. 
Sample analysis will be performed following Bode Technology's validated protocols.
Bode Technology will be paid for each sample tested as long as failure to produce a DNA result is not due to an error or omission on part of the
laboratory.
Samples will not be consumed without permission from the authorized point of contact.
For cases received and accessioned by Bode Technology with no testing performed, a case handling fee of $325/case will apply.

Quoted Turnaround Time is 16 weeks
Expedited services may be available.  Please contact the Technical Services Representative if interested in an expedited service.

Qty Product Description Unit Extended
 or Services Provided Price Price

2 mtDNA Evidence Item:  Unmounted Hair and most "other" Reference Samples (Hair & Tissue) $3,295.00 $6,590.00

The unit price applies to each sample that is processed.

Comments:     
    

Grand Total: $ $6,590.00
 

Optional - Testimony and Discoveries
Deposition/ Expert Witness Testimony $325/Hour
Unit price is per analyst/technician (per hour or per day) that is called to testify and does not include
travel expenses.

$2,000/Day

Discovery Packet
Standard packet (includes: complete casefile, electropherograms, lab notes, chain of custody, reporting
analyst CV and proficiency testing history, and accreditation certificates.) 
     Standard turnaround time: 2-4 weeks $0.00
     Rush turnaround time: less than 2 weeks $250.00
NOTE: additional discoverable materials may be available upon request.  There may be additional fees

depending on the additional materials requested.

Quote Generated By:  Joan Gulliksen joan.gulliksen@bodetech.com (703) 646-9850

https://www.bodetech.com/sites/bodecellmark/files/Terms and Conditions.pdf


   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 8.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Premier Tower Service
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the service contract between
Williamson County and Premier Tower Services LLC to provide the setup for ROHN SSV tower
in the not-to-exceed amount of $8,500.00, and authorizing execution of the contract. Funding
source is P315.

Background
This agreement is for Premier Tower Services LLC to include the concrete, structure, and
installation of wireless radio equipment that would benefit the set up of multiple radios that can
be installed with easy mounting for the River Ranch Project. Three (3) quotes were obtained by
the department. Department point of contact is Richard Semple.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Contract and Quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 01/21/2021 10:08 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 10:25 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 01/20/2021 03:34 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 



1 

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§ 

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON §

SERVICES CONTRACT 
 FOR 

TOWER CONSTRUCTION 
(Premier Tower Services LLC) 

Important Notice: County Purchase Orders and Contracts constitute expenditures 
of public funds, and all vendors are hereby placed on notice that any quotes, 
invoices or any other forms that seek to unilaterally impose contractual or 
quasicontractual terms are subject to the extent authorized by Texas law, including 
but not limited to Tex. Const. art. XI, § 7, the Texas Government Code, the Texas 
Local Government Code, the Texas Transportation Code, the Texas Health & Safety 
Code, and Opinions of the Texas Attorney General relevant to local governmental 
entities. 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between Williamson County, 
Texas (hereinafter “The County”), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting 
herein by and through its governing body, and Premier Tower Services LLC (hereinafter 
“Service Provider”), with principal offices in 1005 Laurel Oak Cir, Marble Falls, TX 
78654 (ph. 512-270-8055).  The County agrees to engage Service Provider as an 
independent contractor, to assist in providing certain operational goods and services 
pursuant to the following terms, conditions, and restrictions: 

I. 

No Agency Relationship:  It is understood and agreed that service Provider shall 
not in any sense be considered a partner or joint venturer with The County, nor shall 
Service Provider hold himself out as an agent or official representative of The County 
unless expressly authorized to do so by a majority of the Williamson County 
Commissioners Court.  Service Provider shall be considered an independent contractor for 
the purpose of this agreement and shall in no manner incur any expense or liability on 
behalf of The County other than what may be expressly allowed under this agreement.  



2  

 
II. 

 
No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity or Powers:  Nothing in this agreement will be 

deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers of The County, the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County Judge. 

 
III. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION - EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS:  TO THE FULLEST 

EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH 
COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE 
COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS 
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND SHALL ASSUME ENTIRE RESPONSIBILITY AND 
LIABILITY (OTHER THAN AS A RESULT OF INDEMNITEES’ GROSS NEGLIGENCE) FOR ANY 
CLAIM OR ACTION BASED ON OR ARISING OUT OF THE PERSONAL INJURY, OR DEATH, OF ANY 
EMPLOYEE OF THE SERVICE PROVIDER, OR OF ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, OR OF ANY OTHER 
ENTITY FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, WHICH OCCURRED OR WAS ALLEGED TO 
HAVE OCCURRED ON THE  WORK SITE OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THE 
WORK.  SERVICE PROVIDER HEREBY INDEMNIFIES THE INDEMNITEES EVEN TO THE EXTENT 
THAT SUCH PERSONAL INJURY WAS CAUSED OR ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY THE 
SOLE, COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF THE STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY 
INDEMNIFIED PARTY.  THIS INDEMNIFICATION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO DAMAGES, 
COMPENSATION, OR BENEFITS PAYABLE UNDER INSURANCE POLICIES, WORKERS 
COMPENSATION ACTS, DISABILITY BENEFITS ACTS, OR OTHER EMPLOYEES BENEFIT ACTS. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION - OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS:  TO THE 

FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH 
COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE 
COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS 
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) FROM AND AGAINST CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LOSSES AND 
EXPENSES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ATTORNEYS’ FEES, ARISING OUT OF OR ALLEGED 
TO BE RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE WORK DESCRIBED 
HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE, ACTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS OF 
SERVICE PROVIDER OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, ANYONE EMPLOYED BY THEM OR ANYONE 
FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR NOT SUCH CLAIM, 
DAMAGE, LOSS OR EXPENSE IS CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY A PARTY INDEMNIFIED 
HEREUNDER. 



3 

IV. 

No Assignment:  Service Provider may not assign this contract. 

V. 

Consideration and Compensation:  Service Provider will be compensated based 
on the attached Proposal/Quote (Option 1), which is attached and incorporated herein as 
if copied in full.  The not-to-exceed amount under this agreement is $8,500.00, unless 
amended by a change order and approved by the Williamson County Commissioners 
Court.    

Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the 
Texas Government Code.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the 
later of (1) the date The County receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date 
the performance of the service under the contract is completed; or (3) the date the 
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  Interest 
charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by The County in accordance with 
Texas Government Code Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that 
shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of The County’s 
fiscal year in which the payment becomes due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 
shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the 
Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not 
fall on a Saturday or Sunday.    

VI. 

Compliance with All Laws:  Service Provider agrees and will comply with any 
and all local, state or federal requirements with respect to the services rendered.  

VII. 

Insurance:  Service Provider shall provide and maintain, until the services covered 
in this Contract is completed and accepted by The County, the minimum insurance 
coverage in the minimum amounts as described below.  Coverage shall be written on an 
occurrence basis by companies authorized and admitted to do business in the State of 
Texas and rated A- or better by A.M. Best Company or otherwise acceptable to The 
County and name The County as an additional insured.   

Type of Coverage Limits of Liability 

a. Worker's Compensation Statutory 

b. Employer's Liability



4 

Bodily Injury by Accident $500,000 Ea. Accident 
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Ea. Employee 
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Policy Limit 

c. Comprehensive general liability including completed operations
and contractual liability insurance for bodily injury, death, or property damages
in the following amounts:

COVERAGE  PER PERSON PER OCCURRENCE 

Comprehensive   
General Liability $  500,000 $  500,000 
(including premises, 
 completed operations 
 and contractual)  

Aggregate policy limits: $1,000,000 

Service Provider, as an independent contractor, meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Worker’s Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, 
Section 406.141, and must provide its employees, agents and sub-subcontractors worker’s 
compensation coverage. Contactor shall not be entitled to worker’s compensation coverage 
or any other type of insurance coverage held by The County. 

Upon execution of this Contract, Service Provider shall provide The County with 
insurance certificates evidencing compliance with the insurance requirements of this 
Contract. 

VIII. 

Entire Contract & Incorporated Documents:  This Contract constitutes the entire 
Contract between the parties and may not be modified or amended other than by a written 
instrument executed by both parties.  Documents expressly incorporated (as if copied in 
full) into this Contract include the following: 

1) This contract;

2) Proposal/Quote (Option 1); and

3) Any required insurance certificates for this project.

IX.



5 

Good Faith:  Service Provider agrees to act in good faith in the performance of this 
agreement. 

X. 

Confidentiality:  Service Provider expressly agrees that he or she will not use any 
incidental confidential information that may be obtained while working in a governmental 
setting for his or her own benefit, and agrees that he or she will not enter any unauthorized 
areas or access confidential information and he or she will not disclose any information to 
unauthorized third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all 
times. 

XI. 

Termination:  This agreement may be terminated at any time at the option of either 
party, without future or prospective liability for performance upon giving thirty (30) days 
written notice thereof.  In the event of termination, The County will only be liable for its 
pro rata share of services rendered and goods actually received. 

XII. 

Mediation:  The parties agree to use mediation for dispute resolution prior to and 
formal legal action being taken on this Contract. 

XIII. 

Venue and Applicable Law:  Venue of this contract shall be Williamson County, 
Texas, and the laws of the State of Texas shall govern all terms and conditions. 

XIV. 

Effective Date and Term:  This contract shall be in full force and effect when 
signed by all parties and shall continue for a reasonable time period for the specific project 
and shall terminate upon project completion or when terminated pursuant to paragraph XI 
above. 



6  

XI. 
 

 Severability:  In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement 
shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision in this 
agreement and this agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable provision had never been contained in it. 

 
XVI. 

 
 Right to Audit:  Service Provider agrees that The County or its duly authorized 
representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this 
Agreement, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, 
documents, papers and records of Service Provider which are directly pertinent to the 
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, 
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  Service Provider agrees that The County shall 
have access during normal working hours to all necessary Service Provider facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate workspace in order to conduct audits in 
compliance with the provisions of this section.  The County shall give Service Provider 
reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 
 

XVII. 
 

 County Judge or Presiding Officer Authorized to Sign Contract:  The presiding 
officer of The County’s governing body who is authorized to execute this instrument by 
order duly recorded may execute this contract on behalf of The County. 
 
 

WITNESS that this Contract shall be effective as of the date of the last party’s 
execution below. 

 
 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY: SERVICE PROVIDER: 
 
 
             
Authorized Signature    Authorized Signature 
 
             
Printed Name      Printed Name 
 
Date:            , 2021   Date:            , 2021

Bryan G. Walker

January              21



7 

Exhibit “A” Proposal/Quote (Option 1) 



Option 1: This is the ROHN SSV. The benefit of this setup is that multiple radio can be installed 
with easy mounting. This is the most stable option and would handle wind loading exceptionally 
well. The wider base and reduced top section is perfect for windy days and greatly improves 
stability compared to other monopole units. The shipping estimates are 4-8 weeks from 
delivery.  

Total cost for tower construction: $8500  

This includes concrete, structure, and the installation of wireless radio equipment (1 full day 
dedicated to equipment installation). Additionally, a climbing cable would be installed. 

Type Self-support 

Tower series RSL 

Actual tower height 40' 

Maximum wind speed (no ice) 100 MPH 3 second gusts with 49sqft of antenna space 

Depth 4’4’’ 

Width 2’ 9’’ 

Height 40’ 

Concrete Dimensions 10.3CU Yds  

 

  

This is the size that would be utilized. Plenty of space for smaller WISP antennas, and 
extensions can be added at the top to create a triangular mounting location (like a small cell 
phone boom array). 

 

Option 2:  Monopole: This option is more aesthetic but requires the renting of a small 
crane/hoist for installation. The easiest option is a direct imbed (please see separate document) 



The top will consist of a triangular platform to allow for the installation of equipment. These 
generally have lower wind ratings, due to the increased solid surface area. Additionally, the 
servicing on these items may require renting of cherry pickers to allow for access to the 
equipment. The costs on this project reflects the total amount for all installation, and one full 
day of equipment installation is included with this purchase. A climbing cable and step bolts 
would be installed. Shipping Estimates are 12 weeks out for these items(very high demand) 

Direct embed: $13000 

Model Rohn Direct Embed  
Height 40ft 
Hole Depth 12’hole with 2.5 ft diameter opening 
Max Wind Rating 85mph 3 second gusts with 49sqft of antenna 

space. 
 

 

Finished project would look something like this, however a 
triangular boom for antenna mounting would be installed.  

 

Please feel free to contact with any questions: 

 

Bryan G. Walker 

General Manager  

Premier Tower Services LLC 

bwalker@premiertwoerservices.com 

512-270-8055 

mailto:bwalker@premiertwoerservices.com


   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 9.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Georgetown Annex Water Softener Remodel - K&W Professional Service Agreement
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Professional Services Agreement between
Williamson County and K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC to provide Design and Engineering Services for the
Williamson County Georgetown Annex Water Softener Remodel in the amount of $3,100.00.

Background
This agreement is to provide mechanical, electrical and plumbing engineering for a remodel in existing building to
provide plumbing connections, lighting and HVAC to convert a rated under-stair storage space to a utility closet for
a whole building water softening system.  This project will be funded under 4509.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Georgetown Annex Water Softener Remodel - K&W Professional Service Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 01/20/2021 02:43 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/20/2021 04:00 PM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 01/20/2021 01:05 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/20/2021 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 1 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN & ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

PROJECT: Georgetown Annex Water Softener Room Build-out (“Project”) 
 
ARCHITECT/  
ENGINEER:  K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC (“A/E”) 
   Amber Kurkowski, CEO / Co-Owner 

650 Shell Stone Trail 
Georgetown, TX 78628 

 
COUNTY’S DESIGNATED 
REPRESENTATIVE:  Williamson County Facilities Department 

Attn:  Director of Facilities  
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN AND ENGINEERING SERVICES (“Agreement”) is made 
and entered into effective as of the latest date of the signatories indicated at the conclusion of this 
document and all attachments (the "Effective Date"), by and between Williamson County, a body 
corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas (“County”) and A/E. 
 

R E C I T A L S 
 
WHEREAS, V.T.C.A., Government Code §2254.002(2)(A)(vii) under Subchapter A entitled 
“Professional Services Procurement Act” provides for the procurement by counties of services of 
professional architects and engineers; and 
 
WHEREAS, County intends to remodel small areas within the Williamson County Justice 
Center to provide office spaces for a new department; and 
 
WHEREAS, County desires that A/E perform certain professional services in connection with the 
Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, A/E represents that it is qualified and desires to perform such services; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, County and A/E, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
herein contained, do mutually agree as follows: 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 2 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

 
 

ARTICLE 1 
SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

 
A/E agrees to perform professional services in connection with the Project as stated herein, and 
for having rendered such services, County agrees to pay to A/E compensation as stated in the 
articles to follow. 

 
 

ARTICLE 2 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE PROJECT DOCUMENTS 

 
2.1 Contract Documents.   
Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, any exhibits attached hereto (which exhibits are 
hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement) and all fully executed Supplemental 
Agreements which are subsequently issued.  These form the entire Agreement, and all are as fully 
a part of this Agreement as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. 
 
2.2 Existing Information.   
County shall provide A/E with all existing plans, maps, studies, reports, field notes, statistics, 
computations, and other data in its possession relative to existing facilities and to this particular 
Project at no cost to A/E; however, any and all such information shall remain the property of 
County and shall be returned, if the County so instructs A/E. 
 
2.3 Project Documents.  
In addition to any other pertinent and necessary Project documents, the following documents 
shall be used in the development of the Project: 

 
 2.3.1 

Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) of the Architectural Barriers Act, Article 9102, Texas 
Civil Statutes, Effective March 15, 2012, including latest revisions 
 

 2.3.2 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
 

 2.3.3 
Williamson County Facilities Building Code Adoption List, 2020 edition as updated 
 

 2.3.4 
Williamson County Consultant Design Submittal Guidelines, 2020 edition as updated 

 
 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 3 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

ARTICLE 3 
NON-COLLUSION; DEBARMENT; AND FINANCIAL INTEREST PROHIBITED 

 
3.1 Non-collusion.   
A/E warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or persons, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for A/E, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid 
or agreed to pay any company or subconsultant any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, 
gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
Agreement. Flor breach or violation of this warranty, County reserves and shall have the right to 
annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion and at its sole election, to deduct from 
the agreement price or compensation, or to otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee. 
 
3.2 Debarment Certification.  
A/E must sign the Debarment Certification enclosed herewith as Exhibit E. 

 
3.3 Financial Interest Prohibited.   
A/E covenants and represents that A/E, its officers, employees, agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors will have no financial interest, direct or indirect, in the purchase or sale of any 
product, materials, or equipment that will be recommended or required for the construction of 
the Project. 
 
 

ARTICLE 4 
CHARACTER AND SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
4.1 
In consideration of the compensation herein provided, A/E shall perform professional design and 
engineering services for the Project, which are acceptable to County, based on standard 
architectural and engineering practices and the scope of work described on the Exhibits attached 
to this Agreement.  A/E shall also serve as County's professional architect and engineer in those 
phases of the Project to which this Agreement applies and will consult with and give advice to 
County during the performance of A/E's services. 

 
4.3 
A/E shall perform the following Basic Scope of Services (sometimes referred to herein as the 
“Basic Scope of Services”, “Basic Services” or the “Scope of Services”): 

 
4.3.1 
The Basic Scope of Services shall generally consist of all elements of work, meetings, 
materials, and equipment required for the development of the Project in accordance with 
the requirements, policies, and general practices of Williamson County.  

 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 4 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

4.3.2 
As part of the Basic Services, A/E shall submit its work products to County for review as 
requested by County. 

 
4.3.3 
The detailed Basic Services for the Project is set forth herein as Exhibit A to this 
Agreement, which is expressly incorporated and made a part hereof. 

 
 

ARTICLE 5 
TIME FOR PERFOMANCE 

 
5.1 Commencement. 
A/E shall not commence work until A/E has been thoroughly briefed on the scope of the Project 
and has been notified in writing to proceed, as evidenced by a Notice to Proceed. 
 
5.2 Duration. 
A/E agrees to complete the Basic Services within the time period set forth in Exhibit C.  The time 
limits set out therein may, for good cause, be extended, in writing, by County as the Project 
proceeds.  
 
 

ARTICLE 6 
COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES 

 
6.1  Basic Fee.   
For and in consideration of the Basic Services rendered by A/E, County shall pay to  A/E up to 
Three Thousand One Hundred Dollars ($ 3,100) hereinafter called the "Basic Fee", plus the 
amount payable under Article 7 (Additional Services and Charges). 
 
The Basic Fee is based upon all estimated labor costs required in the performance of all items and 
phases of the Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A.  Compensation for Basic Services will be paid 
by County by monthly invoices of percentage completion.  County will only be obligated to pay 
A/E for the performance of items and phases of the Basic Services actually rendered and incurred, 
which may be less than the above stated Basic Fee. 
 
6.2  Expenses.   
A/E shall be reimbursed for actual non-labor and subcontract expenses incurred in the 
performance of the services under this Agreement in accordance with the Williamson County 
Vendor Reimbursement Policy set forth under Exhibit D.  Invoices requesting reimbursement for 
costs and expenditures related to the Project (reimbursables) must be accompanied by copies of 
the provider’s invoice and must strictly comply with the Williamson County Vendor 
Reimbursement Policy.  The copies of the provider’s invoice must evidence the actual costs billed 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 5 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

to A/E without markup.  Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and 
Additional Services and must not exceed Three Hundred Ten Dollars ($ 310). 
 

 
ARTICLE 7 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES AND CHARGES 
 

For the performance of services not specifically described as Basic Services under Article 4 above 
(sometimes referred to herein as “Additional Services”), County shall pay and A/E shall receive, 
under a negotiated, written supplemental agreement, Additional Services compensation based 
upon the method and rates set forth in Exhibit B. 
 
A/E shall not, however, be compensated for work made necessary by A/E’s negligent errors or 
omissions.  In the event of any dispute over the classification of A/E’s services as Basic or 
Additional Services under this Agreement, the decision of County shall be final and binding on 
A/E. 

 
It is expressly understood and agreed that A/E shall not furnish any Additional Services without 
the prior written authorization of County.  County shall have no obligation to pay for such 
Additional Services which have been rendered without prior written authorization of County as 
hereinabove required.  Furthermore, in no event will County be obligated to compensate A/E for 
any Additional Services and charges in an amount more than Seven Hundred Seventy-Five 
Dollars ($ 775). 
 
 

ARTICLE 8 
TIME OF PAYMENT; PAYMENT AND INTEREST; AND RIGHT TO AUDIT 

 
8.1  Time of Payment.   
During the performance of the services provided for in this Agreement, monthly payments shall 
be made based upon that portion of the services which has been completed.   
 
On or about the last day of each calendar month during the performance of the services to be 
provided under this Agreement, A/E shall submit to County working documents in any stage of 
completion to demonstrate incremental progress of Basic Services and the compensation which 
is due for percentage completion of Basic Services.  For amounts payable under Article 7 which 
have not been previously billed or paid, A/E shall submit a sworn statement to County, along 
with time sheets detailing hours worked, receipts detailing expenses incurred and other support 
documentation, in a form acceptable to the Williamson County Auditor, setting forth the  services 
provided for by this Agreement which were completed during such calendar month plus the 
amounts payable under Article 7 which have not been previously billed or paid.  In the event the 
statement includes charges based upon hourly billing rates for services or any other rates based 
upon the amount of time worked by an individual or individuals in performing services, whether 
the charges are being billed directly to the County or whether they are the basis of invoices from 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 6 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

subcontractors for which A/E seeks reimbursement from the County, the charges shall be 
accompanied by an affidavit signed by an officer or principal of A/E certifying that the work was 
performed, it was authorized by the County and that all information contained in the invoice that 
is being submitted is true and correct.   
 
The County shall review the documentation and shall pay each statement as set forth in this 
Article 8, however, the approval or payment of any statement shall not be considered evidence 
of performance by A/E to the point indicated by such statement or of receipt or acceptance by 
County of the services covered by such statement.  Final payment does not relieve A/E of the 
responsibility of correcting any errors or omissions resulting from A/E’s negligence. 
 
Upon submittal of the initial invoice, A/E shall provide the County Auditor with an Internal 
Revenue Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is 
complete in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations. 
 
8.2  Prompt Payment Policy.   
In accordance with Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A., Texas Government Code, payment to A/E will be 
made within thirty (30) days of the day on which the performance of services was complete, or 
within thirty (30) days of the day on which the County Auditor receives a correct invoice for 
services, whichever is later.  A/E may charge a late fee (fee shall not be greater than that which is 
permitted by Texas law) for payments not made in accordance with this prompt payment policy; 
however, this policy does not apply in the event: 

 
8.2.1 
There is a bona fide dispute between County and A/E concerning the supplies, materials, 
or equipment delivered or the services performed that causes the payment to be late; or 

 
8.2.2 
There is a bona fide dispute between A/E and a subcontractor/ subconsultant or between 
a subcontractor/ subconsultant and its supplier concerning supplies, materials, or 
equipment delivered or the Basic Services performed which causes the payment to be late; 
or 

 
8.2.3 
The invoice is not submitted to Williamson County in strict accordance with instructions, 
if any, on the purchase order, or this Agreement or other such contractual agreement. 

 
The County Auditor shall document to A/E the issues related to disputed invoices within ten (10) 
calendar days of receipt of such invoice.  Any non-disputed invoices shall be considered correct 
and payable per the terms of Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A. 

 
 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 7 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

ARTICLE 9 
PROJECT TEAM 

 
County’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Agreement is as follows: 
 

Williamson County Facilities Department 
Attn:  Director of Facilities  
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
County shall have the right, from time to time, to change the County’s Designated Representative 
by giving A/E written notice thereof.  With respect to any action, decision, or determination which 
is to be taken or made by County under this Agreement, the County’s Designated Representative 
may take such action or make such decision or determination or shall notify A/E in writing of an 
individual responsible for, and capable of, taking such action, decision, or determination, and 
shall forward any communications and documentation to such individual for response or action.  
Actions, decisions or determinations by County’s Designated Representative on behalf of County 
shall be done in his or her reasonable business judgment unless express standards or parameters 
therefor are included in this Agreement, in which case, actions taken by County’s Designated 
Representative shall be in accordance with such express standards or parameters.  Any consent, 
approval, decision, or determination hereunder by County’s Designated Representative shall be 
binding on County; provided, however, County’s Designated Representative shall not have any 
right to modify, amend, or terminate this Agreement or executed Supplemental Agreement.  
County’s Designated Representative shall not have any authority to execute a Supplemental 
Agreement unless otherwise granted such authority by the Williamson County Commissioners 
Court.   
 
 A/E’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Agreement is as follows: 
 

K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC 
  Amber Kurkowski, CEO / Co-Owner 

650 Shell Stone Trail 
Georgetown, TX 78628 

 
A/E shall have the right, from time to time, to change A/E’s Designated Representative by giving 
County written notice thereof.  With respect to any action, decision, or determination which is 
to be taken or made by A/E under this Agreement, A/E’s Designated Representative may take 
such action or make such decision or determination, or shall notify County in writing of an 
individual responsible for and capable of taking such action, decision, or determination and shall 
forward any communications and documentation to such individual for response or action.  
Actions, decisions, or determinations by A/E’s Designated Representative on behalf of A/E shall 
be done in his or her reasonable business judgment unless express standards or parameters 
therefor are included in this Agreement, in which case, actions taken by A/E’s Designated 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 8 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

Representative shall be in accordance with such express standards or parameters.  Any consent, 
approval, decision, or determination hereunder by A/E’s Designated Representative shall be 
binding on A/E.  A/E’s Designated Representative shall have the right to modify, amend, and 
execute Supplemental Agreements on behalf of A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 10 
NOTICE 

 
Any notice required to be given under the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be duly served when it shall have been deposited, enclosed in a wrapper with the proper 
postage prepaid thereon, and duly registered or certified, return receipt requested, in a United 
States Post Office, addressed to County or A/E at the following addresses.  If mailed, any notice 
or communication shall be deemed to be received three (3) days after the date of deposit in the 
United States Mail.  Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, all notices shall be delivered 
to the following addresses: 
 
County: Williamson County Judge 

710 Main Street, Suite 101 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
With copy to:  Williamson County Facilities Department 

Attn: Director of Facilities 
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626  

 
and to:  Office of General Counsel 

Williamson County 
710 Main Street, Suite 102 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 
A/E:  K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC 

650 Shell Stone Trail 
Georgetown, TX 78628 

 
Attention: Amber Kurkowski 

    CEO / Co-Owner 
  
Either party may designate a different address by giving the other party ten (10) days written 
notice. 

 
 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 9 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

ARTICLE 11 
PROGRESS EVALUATION 

 
A/E shall, from time to time during the progress of the Basic Services, confer with County at 
County’s election.  A/E shall prepare and present such information as may be pertinent and 
necessary, or as may be reasonably requested by County, in order for County to evaluate features 
of the Basic Services.  At the request of County or A/E, conferences shall be provided at A/E's 
office, the offices of County, or at other locations designated by County.  When requested by 
County, such conferences shall also include evaluation of the Basic Services.  County may, from 
time to time, require A/E to appear and provide information to the Williamson County 
Commissioners Court. 
 
Should County determine that the progress in Basic Services does not satisfy the terms of the 
Agreement then County shall review same with A/E to determine corrective action required. 
 
A/E shall promptly advise County in writing of events which have or may have a significant 
impact upon the progress of the Basic Services, including but not limited to the following: 
 
11.1 
Problems, delays, adverse conditions which may materially affect the ability to meet the 
objectives of the Agreement or preclude the attainment of Project Basic Services by established 
time periods; and such disclosure shall be accompanied by statement of actions taken or 
contemplated, and County assistance needed to resolve the situation, if any; and 

 
11.2 
Favorable developments or events which enable meeting goals sooner than anticipated in 
relation to the Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 12 
CHANGES IN COMPLETED BASIC SERVICES 

 
If County deems it necessary to request changes to previously satisfactorily completed Basic 
Services or parts thereof which involve changes to the original Basic Services or character of Basic 
Services under this Agreement, then A/E shall make such revisions as requested and as directed 
by County.  Such revisions shall be considered as Additional Services and paid for as specified 
under Article 7.  A/E shall make revisions to Basic Services authorized hereunder as are 
necessary to correct errors appearing therein, when required to do so by County.  No additional 
compensation shall be due for such Basic Services. 

 
 

ARTICLE 13 
REVIEW PROCESS AND REVISIONS TO A/E WORK PRODUCT 

 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 10 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

13.1 Review Process.  
A/E's Work Product will be reviewed by County under its applicable technical requirements and 
procedures, as follows: 
   

13.1.1 Submittal.   
Reports, plans, surveys, field notes, original drawings, computer tapes, graphic files, 
tracings, calculations, analyses, reports, specifications, data, sketches and/or schematics 
prepared by A/E and supporting documents (collectively referred to hereinabove and 
hereinafter as the "A/E Work Product(s)"), shall be submitted by A/E on or before the dates 
specified for completion, as set out in the Production Schedule set forth in Exhibit C. 

 
13.1.2 Completion.   
Reports, plans, specifications, and supporting documents shall be submitted by A/E on or 
before the dates specified in Exhibit C.  Upon receipt of same, the submission shall be 
checked for completion. "Completion" or “Complete” shall be defined as all of the 
required items, as set out in Exhibit A have been included in compliance with the 
requirements of this Agreement.  The completeness of any Basic Services submitted to 
County shall be determined by County within thirty (30) days of such submittal and 
County shall notify A/E in writing within such thirty (30) day period if such Basic Services 
have been found to be incomplete.  If the submission is Complete, County will notify A/E 
and County’s technical review process will begin. 

 
If the submission is not Complete, County will notify A/E, who shall perform such 
professional services as are required to complete the Basic Services and resubmit it to 
County. This process shall be repeated until a submission is Complete. 
 

13.1.3 Acceptance.   
County will review the completed Basic Services for compliance with this Agreement.  If 
necessary, the completed Basic Services will be returned to A/E, who shall perform any 
required Basic Services and resubmit to County. This process shall be repeated until the 
Basic Services are Accepted. "Acceptance" or “Accepted” shall mean that in County’s 
reasonable opinion, substantial compliance with the requirements of this Agreement has 
been achieved. 

 
13.1.4 Final Approval.   
After Acceptance, A/E shall perform any required modifications, changes, alterations, 
corrections, redesigns, and additional work necessary to receive Final Approval by 
County.  "Final Approval" in this sense shall mean formal recognition that the Basic 
Services have been fully carried out. 

 
13.2  Revision to A/E Work Product.   
A/E shall make, without expense to County, such revisions to A/E Work Product as may be 
required to correct negligent errors or omissions so A/E Work Product meets the needs of County, 
but after the approval of A/E Work Product any revisions, additions, or other modifications made 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 11 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

at County's request which involve extra services and expenses to A/E shall entitle A/E to 
additional compensation for such extra services and expenses; provided, however, A/E hereby 
agrees to perform any necessary corrections to A/E Work Products which are found to be in 
negligent error or omission as a result of A/E’s development of A/E Work Product, at any time, 
without additional compensation.  If it is necessary, due to such error or omission by A/E, to 
revise any A/E Work Product in order to make the Project constructible, A/E shall do so without 
additional compensation.  In the event of any dispute over the classification of A/E’s Work 
Products as Complete, Accepted, or Approved under this Agreement, the decision of County 
shall be final and binding on A/E, subject to any civil remedy or determination otherwise 
available to the parties and deemed appropriate by the parties. 
 
13.3  Days.   
All references to a “day” in this Agreement shall mean a calendar day unless otherwise specified. 
 
13.4  County’s Reliance on A/E.   
A/E’s duties as set forth herein shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any 
review, evaluation, or approval by County nor shall A/E be released from any liability by 
reason of such review, evaluation or approval by County, it being understood that County, at 
all times, is ultimately relying upon A/E’s skill, ability, and knowledge in performing the Basic 
Services required hereunder. 

 
 

ARTICLE 14 
SUSPENSION 

 
Should County desire to suspend the Basic Services, but not to terminate this Agreement, then 
such suspension may be effected by County giving A/E thirty (30) calendar days’ verbal 
notification followed by written confirmation to that effect.  Such thirty (30)-day notice may be 
waived in writing by agreement and signature of both parties.  The Basic Services may be 
reinstated and resumed in full force and effect within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice 
from County to resume the Basic Services.  Such sixty (60)-day notice may be waived in writing 
by agreement and signature of both parties.  If this Agreement is suspended for more than thirty 
(30) days, A/E shall have the option of terminating this Agreement and, in the event, A/E shall be 
compensated for all Basic Services performed and reimbursable expenses incurred, provided 
such Basic Services and reimbursable expenses have been previously authorized and approved 
by County, to the effective date of suspension. 
 
County assumes no liability for Basic Services performed or costs incurred prior to the date 
authorized by County for A/E to begin Basic Services, and/or during periods when Basic Services 
are suspended, and/or subsequent to the completion date. 
 
 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 12 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

ARTICLE 15 
VIOLATION OF CONTRACT TERMS/ BREACH OF CONTRACT 

 
Violation of contract terms or breach of contract by A/E shall be grounds for termination of this 
Agreement, and any increased costs arising from A/E’s default, breach of contract, or violation of 
contract terms shall be paid by A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 16 
TERMINATION 

 
This Agreement may be terminated as set forth below. 
 
16.1 
By mutual agreement and consent, in writing, of both parties. 

 
16.2 
By County, by notice in writing to A/E, as a consequence of failure by A/E to perform the Basic 
Services set forth herein in a satisfactory manner. 

 
16.3 
By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations as set forth herein. 

 
16.4 
By County, for reasons of its own and not subject to the mutual consent of A/E, upon not less than 
thirty (30) days written notice to A/E. 

 
16.5 
By satisfactory completion of all Basic Services and obligations described herein. 
 
Should County terminate this Agreement as herein provided, no fees other than fees due and 
payable at the time of termination plus reimbursable expenses incurred shall thereafter be paid 
to A/E.  In determining the value of the Basic Services performed by A/E prior to termination, 
County shall be the sole judge.  Compensation for Basic Services at termination will be based on 
a percentage of the Basic Services completed at that time.  Should County terminate this 
Agreement under Section 16.4 above, then the amount charged during the thirty (30)-day notice 
period shall not exceed the amount charged during the preceding thirty (30) days. 
 
If A/E defaults in the performance of this Agreement or if County terminates this Agreement for 
fault on the part of A/E, then County shall give consideration to the actual costs incurred by A/E 
in performing the Basic Services to the date of default, the amount of Basic Services required 
which was satisfactorily completed to date of default, the value of the Basic Services which are 
usable to County, the cost to County of employing another firm to complete the Basic Services 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 13 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

required and the time required to do so, and other factors which affect the value to County of the 
Basic Services performed at the time of default. 
 
The termination of this Agreement and payment of an amount in settlement as prescribed above 
shall extinguish all rights, duties, and obligations of County under this Agreement. If the 
termination of this Agreement is due to the failure of A/E to fulfill its contractual obligations, then 
County may take over the Project and prosecute the Basic Services to completion.  In such case, 
A/E shall be liable to County for any additional and reasonable costs incurred by County. 
 
A/E shall be responsible for the settlement of all contractual and administrative issues arising out 
of any procurements made by A/E in support of the Basic Services under this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 17 
USE OF DOCUMENTS 

 
All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, and data or programs stored 
electronically, (hereinafter referred to as “A/E Work Products”) prepared by A/E and its 
subcontractors/ subconsultants are related exclusively to the services described in this Agreement 
and are intended to be used with respect to this Project.  However, it is expressly understood and 
agreed by and between the parties hereto that all of A/E’s designs under this Agreement 
(including but not limited to tracings, drawings, estimates, specifications, investigations, studies 
and other documents, completed or partially completed), shall be the property of County to be 
thereafter used in any lawful manner as County elects.  Any such subsequent use made of 
documents by County shall be at County’s sole risk and without liability to A/E. 

 
By execution of this Agreement and in confirmation of the fee for services to be paid under this 
Agreement, A/E hereby conveys, transfers, and assigns to County all rights under the Federal 
Copyright Act of 1976 (or any successor copyright statute), as amended, all common law 
copyrights and all other intellectual property rights acknowledged by law in the Project Designs 
and Work Product developed under this Agreement.  Copies may be retained by A/E.  A/E shall 
be liable to County for any loss or damage to any such documents while they are in the possession 
of or while being worked upon by A/E or anyone connected with A/E, including agents, 
employees, Engineers or subcontractors/ subconsultants.  All documents so lost or damaged shall 
be replaced or restored by A/E without cost to County. 
 
Upon execution of this Agreement, A/E grants to County permission to reproduce A/E’s work 
and documents for purposes of constructing, using, and maintaining the Project, provided that 
County will comply with its obligations, including prompt payment of all sums when due, under 
this Agreement. A/E shall obtain similar permission from A/E’s subcontractors/ subconsultants 
consistent with this Agreement.  If and upon the date A/E is adjudged in default of this 
Agreement, County is permitted to authorize other similarly credentialed design professionals to 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 14 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

reproduce and, where permitted by law, to make changes, corrections, or additions to the work 
and documents for the purposes of completing, using, and maintaining the Project. 

 
County shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge, or otherwise transfer any permission 
granted herein to another party without the prior written consent of A/E.  However, County shall 
be permitted to authorize the contractor, subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers to 
reproduce applicable portions of A/E Work Products appropriate to and for use in the execution 
of the Work.  Submission or distribution of A/E Work Products to meet official regulatory 
requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is permitted.  Any 
unauthorized use of A/E Work Products shall be at County's sole risk and without liability to A/E 
and its subconsultants. 

 
Prior to A/E providing to County any A/E Work Products in electronic form or County providing 
to A/E any electronic data for incorporation into A/E Work Products, County and A/E shall, by 
separate written agreement, set forth the specific conditions governing the format of such A/E 
Work Products or electronic data, including any special limitations not otherwise provided in this 
Agreement.  Any electronic files are provided by A/E for the convenience of County and use of 
them is at County’s sole risk.  In the case of any defects in electronic files or any discrepancies 
between them and any hardcopy of the same documents prepared by A/E, the hardcopy shall 
prevail.  Only printed copies of documents conveyed by A/E shall be relied upon.   

 
A/E shall have no liability for changes made to the drawings by other consultants subsequent to 
the completion of the Project.  Any such change shall be sealed by A/E making that change and 
shall be appropriately marked to reflect what was changed or modified. 
 
 

ARTICLE 18 
PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIAL 

 
A/E shall furnish and maintain, at its own expense, quarters for the performance of all Basic 
Services, and adequate and sufficient personnel and equipment to perform the Basic Services as 
required.  All employees of A/E shall have such knowledge and experience as will enable them 
to perform the duties assigned to them.  Any employee of A/E who, in the reasonable opinion of 
County, is incompetent or whose conduct becomes detrimental to the Basic Services shall 
immediately be removed from association with the Project when so instructed by County.  A/E 
certifies that it presently has adequate qualified personnel in its employment for performance of 
the Basic Services required under this Agreement, or will obtain such personnel from sources 
other than County.  A/E may not change the Project Manager without prior written consent of 
County. 
 
 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 15 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

ARTICLE 19 
SUBCONTRACTING 

 
A/E shall not assign, subcontract, or transfer any portion of the Basic Services under this 
Agreement without prior written approval from County.  All subcontracts shall include the 
provisions required in this Agreement.  No subcontract shall relieve A/E of any responsibilities 
under this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 20 
MODIFICATIONS 

 
This instrument contains the entire Agreement between the parties relating to the right herein 
granted and obligations herein assumed.  Any oral or written representations or modifications 
concerning this instrument shall be of no force and effect excepting a subsequent written 
modification signed by both parties hereto. 
 
 

ARTICLE 21 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

 
21.1  Compliance.   
A/E shall render the services hereunder in accordance with generally accepted standards 
applicable thereto and shall use that degree of care and skill commensurate with the architecture 
and engineering professions, and in recognition of such standards, A/E shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations, and 
the orders and decrees of any court, or administrative bodies or tribunals in any manner affecting 
the performance of this Agreement, including, without limitation, minimum/ maximum salary 
and wage statutes and regulations, and licensing laws and regulations.  A/E shall furnish County 
with satisfactory proof of its compliance. 
 
A/E shall further obtain all permits and licenses required in the performance of the Basic Services 
contracted for herein. 

 
21.2  Taxes.   
A/E shall pay all taxes, if any, required by law arising by virtue of the Basic Services performed 
hereunder.  County is qualified for exemption pursuant to the provisions of Section 151.309 of 
the Texas Limited Sales, Excise, and Use Tax Act. 
 
 

ARTICLE 22 
INDEMNIFICATION 

 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 16 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

A/E AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY 
HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, 
LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONABLE 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM A 
NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION, NEGLIGENCE, OR INTENTIONAL TORT COMMITTED BY A/E, A/E’S 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY UNDER CONTRACT WITH A/E INCLUDING, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, A/E’S SUBCONSULTANTS, OR ANY OTHER ENTITY OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES 
CONTROL.   
 
A/E FURTHER AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, 
LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONABLE 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM A/E’S 
FAILURE TO PAY A/E’S EMPLOYEES, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, IN 
CONNECTION WITH ANY OF THE WORK PERFORMED OR TO BE PERFORMED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 
BY A/E.   
 
A/E FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, 
LOSSES, PENALTIES, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY 
OR RESULTS FROM THE INFRINGEMENT OF ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF 
ANY PLANS, DESIGN, DRAWINGS, OR SPECIFICATIONS FURNISHED BY A/E IN THE PERFORMANCE OF 
THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
THE LIMITS OF INSURANCE REQUIRED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
SHALL NOT LIMIT A/E’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS ARTICLE 22.  THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS ARTICLE 22 SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT AND/OR 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS OR THE SUSPENSION OF THE WORK HEREUNDER.  TO THE EXTENT THAT ANY 
LIABILITIES, PENALTIES, DEMANDS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES ARE 
CAUSED IN PART BY THE ACTS OF COUNTY OR THIRD PARTIES FOR WHOM A/E IS NOT LEGALLY 
LIABLE, A/E’S OBLIGATIONS SHALL BE IN PROPORTION TO A/E’S FAULT.  THE OBLIGATIONS HEREIN 
SHALL ALSO EXTEND TO ANY ACTIONS BY COUNTY TO ENFORCE THIS INDEMNITY OBLIGATION. 
 
IN THE EVENT THAT CONTRACTORS INITIATE LITIGATION AGAINST COUNTY IN WHICH CONTRACTOR 
ALLEGES DAMAGES AS A RESULT OF ANY ACTS, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS OF A/E OR ANY OF ITS 
EMPLOYEES OR ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY A/E, 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DEFECTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS IN THE CONSTRUCTION 
DOCUMENTS OR IN THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE AGREEMENT BY A/E OR ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES 
OR ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY A/E, AND/OR 
INADEQUATE SERVICES PURSUANT TO THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE-ADMINISTRATION OF THE 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AS DEFINED AND REQUIRED BY THIS AGREEMENT, AGREEMENT 
EXHIBITS AND THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, THEN COUNTY SHALL HAVE THE 
RIGHT TO JOIN A/E AT COUNTY’S COST.  A/E SHALL ALSO HOLD COUNTY HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 17 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

COUNTY TO THE EXTENT THAT A/E, ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, 
SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES CONTROL, 
CAUSED SUCH DAMAGES TO CONTRACTOR, INCLUDING ANY AND ALL COSTS AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES 
INCURRED BY COUNTY IN CONNECTION WITH THE DEFENSE OF ANY CLAIMS WHERE A/E, ITS 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES 
OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES CONTROL, ARE ADJUDICATED AT FAULT. 
 
 

ARTICLE 23 
PROFESSIONAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
A/E shall be responsible for the accuracy of its Professional Services and shall promptly make 
necessary revisions or corrections to its Work Product resulting from errors, omissions, or 
negligent acts, and same shall be done without compensation.  County shall determine A/E’s 
responsibilities for all questions arising from design errors and/or omissions, subject to the 
dispute resolution provisions of Article 31.  A/E shall not be relieved of responsibility for 
subsequent correction of any such errors or omissions in its work product, or for clarification of 
any ambiguities until after the construction phase of the Project has been completed. 
 
 

ARTICLE 24 
PROFESSIONAL’S SEAL 

 
The responsible architect and engineer shall sign, seal, and date all appropriate submissions to 
County in accordance with Texas laws and the rules of the State Boards of Registration for 
Professionals. 

 
 

ARTICLE 25 
INSURANCE 

 
A/E shall comply with the following insurance requirements, at all times, during this Agreement: 
 
25.1  Coverage Limits.   
A/E, at A/E’s sole cost, shall purchase and maintain, during the entire term while this Agreement 
is in effect, the following insurance: 

 
 25.1.1 

Worker's Compensation in accordance with statutory requirements. 
 

 25.1.2 
Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined minimum Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate. 

 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 18 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

 25.1.3 
Automobile Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with 
combined minimum limits for Bodily Injury and Property Damage limits of $500,000 per 
occurrence and $1,000,000 in the aggregate. 

 
 25.1.4 

Professional Liability Errors and Omissions Insurance in the amount of $2,000,000 per 
claim. 

 
25.2 Additional Insureds; Waiver of Subrogation.   
County, its directors, officers and employees shall be added as additional insureds under policies 
listed under (2) and (3) above, and on those policies where County, its directors, officers and 
employees are additional insureds, such insurance shall be primary; and, any insurance 
maintained by County shall be excess and not contribute with it.  Such policies shall also include 
waivers of subrogation in favor of County. 
 
25.3 Premiums and Deductible.   
A/E shall be responsible for payment of premiums for all insurance coverages required under this 
Article 25.  A/E further agrees that for each claim, suit, or action made against insurance provided 
hereunder, with respect to all matters for which A/E is responsible hereunder, A/E shall be solely 
responsible for all deductibles and self-insured retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured 
retentions over $50,000 in A/E’s insurance must be declared and approved in writing by County 
in advance. 
 
25.4 Commencement of Work.   
A/E shall not commence any work under this Agreement until it has obtained all required 
insurance and such insurance has been approved by County.  As further set out below, A/E shall 
not allow any subcontractor/ subconsultant(s) to commence work to be performed in connection 
with this Agreement until all required insurance has been obtained and approved; and, such 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Approval of the insurance by County shall not 
relieve or decrease the liability of A/E hereunder. 
 
25.5 Insurance Company Rating.   
Required insurance must be written by a company approved to do business in the State or Texas 
with a financial standing of at least an A-rating, as reflected in Best’s insurance ratings or by a 
similar rating system recognized within the insurance industry at the time the policy is issued. 

 
25.6 Certification of Coverage.   
A/E shall furnish County with a certification of coverage issued by the insurer.  A/E shall not 
cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance to lapse.  In addition to any other 
notification requires set forth hereunder, A/E shall also notify County, within twenty-four (24) 
hours of receipt, of any notices of expiration, cancellation, non-renewal, or material change in 
coverage it receives from its insurer. 

 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 19 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

25.7 No Arbitration.   
It is the intention of County and agreed to and hereby acknowledged by A/E, that no provision 
of this Agreement shall be construed to require County to submit to mandatory arbitration in the 
settlement of any claim, cause of action or dispute, except as specifically required in direct 
connection with an insurance claim or threat of claim under an insurance policy required 
hereunder or as may be required by law or a court of law with jurisdiction over the provisions of 
this Agreement. 

 
25.8 Subcontractor/ Subconsultant’s Insurance.   
Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of A/E, A/E shall require each 
subcontractor/ subconsultant performing work under this Agreement (to the extent a 
subcontractor/ subconsultant is allowed by County) to maintain during the term of this 
Agreement, at the subcontractor/ subconsultant’s own expense, the same stipulated minimum 
insurance required in this Article 25 above, including the required provisions and additional 
policy conditions as shown below in this Article 25. 

 
A/E shall obtain and monitor the certificates of insurance from each subcontractor/ subconsultant 
in order to assure compliance with the insurance requirements.  A/E must retain the certificates 
of insurance for the duration of this Agreement and shall have the responsibility of enforcing 
these insurance requirements among its subcontractor/ subconsultants.  County shall be entitled, 
upon request and without expense, to receive copies of these certificates of insurance. 

 
25.9 Insurance Policy Endorsements.   
Each insurance policy shall include the following conditions by endorsement to the policy: 
 
 25.9.1 

County shall be notified thirty (30) days prior to the expiration, cancellation, nonrenewal 
or any material change in coverage, and such notice thereof shall be given to County by 
certified mail to: 

 
Williamson County Purchasing 
100 Wilco Way 
Suite P101 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 25.10.1 

The policy clause “Other Insurance” shall not apply to any insurance coverage currently 
held by County, to any such future coverage, or to County’s Self-Insured Retentions of 
whatever nature. 

 
25.10 Cost of Insurance.   
The cost of all insurance required herein to be secured and maintained by A/E shall be borne 
solely by A/E, with certificates of insurance evidencing such minimum coverage in force to be 
filed with County.  Such certificates of insurance are evidenced as Exhibit F. 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 20 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

 
 

ARTICLE 26 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their 
successors, lawful assigns, and legal representatives.  A/E may not assign, sublet, or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement, in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise, without 
obtaining the prior written consent of County. 

 
 

ARTICLE 27 
SEVERABILITY 

 
In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason 
be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, then such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

 
 

ARTICLE 28 
PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED 

 
This Agreement constitutes the sole agreement of the parties hereto and supersedes any prior 
understandings or written or oral agreements between the parties respecting the subject matter 
defined herein.  This Agreement may only be amended or supplemented by mutual agreement 
of the parties hereto in writing. 

 
 

ARTICLE 29 
A/E’S ACCOUNTING RECORDS 

 
A/E agrees to maintain, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, 
detailed records identifying each individual performing services, the date or dates the services 
were performed, the applicable hourly rates, the total amount billed for each individual, and the 
total amount billed for all persons, records of reimbursable costs and expenses of other providers 
and provide such other details as may be requested by the County Auditor for verification 
purposes.  A/E agrees that County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the expiration 
of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, have access to and the right to 
examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers, and records of A/E which are 
directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of 
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  A/E further agrees that County shall 
have access during normal working hours to all necessary A/E facilities and shall be provided 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 21 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

adequate and appropriate workspace in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this Article 29.  County shall give A/E reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 
 

 
ARTICLE 30 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
30.1 Time is of the Essence.   
A/E understands and agrees that time is of the essence and that any failure of A/E to complete 
the Basic Services within the agreed Production Schedule set out in Exhibit C may constitute a 
material breach of this Agreement.  A/E shall be fully responsible for its delays or for failures to 
use its reasonable efforts in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and A/E’s standard of 
performance as defined herein.  Where damage is caused to County due to A/E’s negligent failure 
to perform, County may accordingly withhold, to the extent of such damage, A/E’s payments 
hereunder without waiver of any of County’s additional legal rights or remedies. 
 
30.2 Force Majeure.   
Neither County nor A/E shall be deemed in violation of this Agreement if prevented from 
performing any of their obligations hereunder by reasons for which they are not responsible or 
circumstances beyond their control.  However, notice of such impediment or delay in 
performance must be timely given, and all reasonable efforts undertaken to mitigate its effects. 

 
30.3 Enforcement and Venue.   
This Agreement shall be enforceable in Georgetown, Williamson County, Texas, and if legal 
action is necessary by either party with respect to the enforcement of any or all of the terms or 
conditions herein, exclusive venue for same shall lie in Williamson County, Texas.  This 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and court decisions 
of the State of Texas excluding, however, its choice of law rules. 

 
30.4 Standard of Performance.   
The standard of care for all professional architecture, engineering, consulting and related services 
performed or furnished by A/E and its employees under this Agreement will be the care and skill 
ordinarily used by members of A/E’s profession, practicing under the same or similar 
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. 

 
30.5 Opinion of Probable Cost.   
Any opinions of probable Project cost or probable construction cost provided by A/E are made 
on the basis of information available to A/E and on the basis of A/E’s experience and qualifications 
and represents its judgment as an experienced and qualified professional.  However, since A/E 
has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or 
over the contractor(s’) methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market 
conditions, A/E does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual Project or construction cost will 
not vary from opinions of probable cost A/E prepares. 

 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 22 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

30.6 Opinions and Determinations.   
Where the terms of this Agreement provide for action to be based upon opinion, judgment, 
approval, review, or determination of either party hereto, such terms are not intended to be and 
shall never be construed as permitting such opinion, judgment, approval, review, or 
determination to be arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable. 

 
30.7 Reports of Accidents.   
Within twenty-four (24) hours after A/E becomes aware of the occurrence of any accident or other 
event which results in, or might result in, injury to the person or property of any third person 
(other than an employee of A/E), whether or not it results from, or involves, any action or failure 
to act by A/E or any employee or agent of A/E and which arises in any manner from the 
performance of this Agreement, A/E shall send a written report of such accident or other event to 
County, setting forth a full and concise statement of the facts pertaining thereto.  A/E shall also 
immediately send to County a copy of any summons, subpoena, notice, or other documents 
served upon A/E, its agents, employees, or representatives, or received by it or them, in 
connection with any matter before any court arising in any manner from A/E’s performance of 
work under this Agreement. 

 
30.8 Gender, Number, and Headings.   
Words of any gender used in this Agreement shall be held and construed to include any other 
gender, and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural, unless the context 
otherwise requires.  The headings and section numbers are for convenience only and shall not be 
considered in interpreting or construing this Agreement. 

 
30.9 Construction.  
Each party hereto acknowledges that it and its counsel have reviewed this Agreement and that 
the normal rules of construction are not applicable and there will be no presumption that any 
ambiguities will be resolved against the drafting party in the interpretation of this Agreement. 
 
30.10 Independent Contractor Relationship.   
Both parties hereto, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an individual capacity and 
not as agents, employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The employees or 
agents of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other 
party for any purposes whatsoever. 

 
30.11 No Waiver of Immunities.   
Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive, modify, or amend any legal defense 
available at law or in equity to County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to 
create any legal rights or claim on behalf of any third party.  County does not waive, modify, or 
alter, to any extent whatsoever, the availability of the defense of governmental immunity under 
the laws of the State of Texas and of the United States. 

 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 23 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

30.12 Texas Public Information Act.   
To the extent, if any, that any provision in this Agreement is in conflict with Texas Government 
Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no force or 
effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that County, its officers and employees 
may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard 
to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that County’s officers 
and employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any 
party hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data 
furnished to County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the 
Attorney General of the State of Texas. 

 
30.13 Governing Terms and Conditions.   
If there is an irreconcilable conflict between the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 
or any Supplemental Agreement and the terms and conditions set forth in any Exhibit, Appendix 
to this Agreement, the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement or any Supplemental 
Agreement shall control over the terms and conditions set forth in any Exhibit, Appendix to this 
Agreement. 

 
30.14 Appropriation of Funds by County.   
County believes it has sufficient funds currently available and authorized for expenditure to 
finance the costs of this Agreement. A/E understands and agrees that County’s payment of 
amounts under this Agreement is contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to continue to make payments under this Agreement. It is further understood and 
agreed by A/E that County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at the end of any 
County fiscal year if the governing body of County does not appropriate sufficient funds as 
determined by County’s budget for the fiscal year in question.  County may affect such 
termination by giving written notice of termination to A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 31 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 
Except as otherwise specifically set forth herein, County and A/E shall work together in good 
faith to resolve any controversy, dispute, or claim between them which arises out of or relates to 
this Agreement, whether stated in tort, contract, statute, claim for benefits, bad faith, professional 
liability or otherwise ("Claim").  If the parties are unable to resolve the Claim within thirty (30) 
days following the date in which one party sent written notice of the Claim to the other party, 
and if a party wishes to pursue the Claim, such Claim shall be addressed through non-binding 
mediation.  A single mediator engaged in the practice of law, who is knowledgeable about subject 
matter of this Agreement, shall be selected by agreement of the parties and serve as the mediator.  
Any mediation under this Agreement shall be conducted in Williamson County, Texas.  The 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 24 of 25    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

mediator’s fees shall be borne equally between the parties.  Such non-binding mediation is a 
condition precedent to seeking redress in a court of competent jurisdiction, but this provision 
shall not preclude either party from filing a lawsuit in a court of competent jurisdiction prior to 
completing a mediation, if necessary to preserve the statute of limitations, in which case such 
lawsuit shall be stayed pending completion of the mediation process contemplated herein.  This 
provision shall survive the termination of the Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 32 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT 

 
The parties to this Agreement agree that during the performance of the services under this 
Agreement they will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 
of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The parties to this Agreement will take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such action shall 
include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.  

 
 

ARTICLE 33 
MERGER 

 
The Parties agree that this Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions of the 
understanding of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  All prior negotiations, 
discussions, correspondence and preliminary understandings between the parties and others 
relating hereto are superseded by this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 34 
PUBLIC CONTACT 

 
Contact with the news media, citizens of Williamson County or governmental agencies shall be 
the responsibility of County.  Under no circumstances shall A/E release any material or 
information developed in the performance of its services hereunder without the express written 
permission of County. 
 
 

ARTICLE 35 
A/E’s REPRESENTATIONS 

 
A/E represents that it is financially solvent, able to pay its debts as they become due, and 
possesses sufficient working capital to complete the services and perform its obligation under 





1/14/2021  
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 
 

 

Exhibit A  Page 1 of 6    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              4509 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 

BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 

THE FOLLOWING SCOPE OF SERVICES IS INTENDED TO BE CONSISTENT WITH THE 
AGREEMENT.  TO THE EXTENT THIS SCOPE OF SERVICES IS INCONSISTENT WITH THE 
AGREEMENT, THE AGREEMENT WILL SUPERSEDE THE SCOPE OF SERVICES AND WILL 
BE CONTROLLING. 

In consideration of the Basic Fee provided in the Agreement, A/E shall perform the following 
Basic Services, based on standard architectural and engineering practices: 

These services may include, but are not limited to structural, mechanical, plumbing, electrical, 
construction administration, and specialized studies and analysis. 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Design Criteria.  A/E shall prepare all work in accordance with the latest version of applicable 
County’s procedures, specifications, manuals, guidelines, standard drawings, and standard 
specifications. A/E shall prepare each PS&E package in a form suitable for letting through 
County’s construction contract bidding and awarding process. 

Right-of-Entry and Coordination.  A/E shall notify County and secure permission to enter 
private property to perform any surveying, environmental, engineering or geotechnical activities 
needed off County property.  In pursuance of County’s policy with the general public, A/E shall 
not commit acts which would result in damages to private property, and A/E shall make every 
effort to comply with the wishes and address the concerns of affected private property owners.  
A/E shall contact each property owner prior to any entry onto the owner’s property and shall 
request concurrence from County prior to each entry. 

A/E shall notify County and coordinate with adjacent A/Es on all controls at project interfaces.  

A/E shall prepare each exhibit necessary for approval by each utility, and other governmental or 
regulatory agency in compliance with the applicable format and guidelines required by each 
entity and as approved by County. A/E shall notify County in writing prior to beginning any 
work on any outside agency’s exhibit. 

Progress Reporting.  A/E shall submit monthly (at a minimum) a progress status e-mail to 
County’s Project Manager (PM) regardless of whether A/E is invoicing for that month. 

A/E shall prepare and maintain a design and estimated construction schedule in a format 
acceptable to County during project phases prior to the Construction Administration Phase.  A/E 



1/14/2021  
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 
 

 

Exhibit A  Page 2 of 6    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              4509 
 

 

shall schedule milestone submittals per Exhibit C – Production Schedule.  Contractor shall prepare 
and maintain a construction schedule in Gantt chart format during the project Construction 
Administration Phase through the Close-out Phase.   

Within 30 days of completion of construction of the project, A/E shall deliver all electronic files in 
formats acceptable to County. 

Final payment is contingent upon County’s receipt and confirmation by County’s PM that the 
electronic files run and are formatted in accordance with the Agreement and all review comments 
are addressed. 

A/E shall prepare a letter of transmittal to accompany each document submittal to County. At a 
minimum, the letter of transmittal must include County’s project name, Agreement and Work 
Authorization numbers, as well as facility name and address. 

Coordination.  A/E shall coordinate issues through County’s PM.  County will communicate 
resolution of issues and provide A/E direction through County’s PM. 

Level of Effort.  A/E shall base the level of effort at each phase on the prior work developed in 
earlier phases without unnecessary repetition or re-study. 

Quality Assurance (QA) and Quality Control (QC).  A/E shall provide peer review at all levels.  
For each deliverable, A/E shall maintain evidence of their internal review and mark-up of that 
deliverable as preparation for submittal.  When internal mark-ups are requested by County in 
advance, County, at its sole discretion, may reject the deliverable should A/E fail to provide the 
evidence of quality control.  A/E shall clearly label each document submitted for quality assurance 
as an internal mark-up document. 

A/E shall perform QA and QC on all subconsultant products (when applicable to the project) 
prior to delivery to County.  If, during the course of reviewing a submittal, it becomes apparent 
to County that the submittal contains unreasonable errors, omissions, or inconsistencies, County 
may cease its review and immediately return the submittal for appropriate action by A/E. 

A submittal returned to A/E for this reason is not a submittal for purposes of the submission 
schedule.  Rejected submittals shall not impact overall deadline of the Project nor the review 
period allotted to County officials.  A/E shall provide an updated schedule showing interim 
submission date changes to make-up for any lost time.  A/E shall not submit an invoice until 
County accepts the submittal as complete. 

Organization of Plan Sheets.  The PS&E package shall be complete and organized in a manner 
that is suitable for the bidding and awarding of a construction contract. 



1/14/2021  
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 
 

 

Exhibit A  Page 3 of 6    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              4509 
 

 

Naming of Electronic Project Files and Organization of Design Project Folders.  A/E shall use 
succinct and understandable file names including project name, file content, date created (i.e. 
“Project Name_SD PLANS_year.month.day”).  A/E shall maintain files in an organized folder 
structure that is readily understandable to outside users to facilitate communication and 
minimize complications in project close-out. 

SCOPE OF WORK:         

Williamson County Georgetown Annex Building 
100 Wilco Way 
Georgetown, TX 78626 
Funding = 4509 
 

Provide Mechanical, Electrical, and Plumbing Engineering for a remodel in an existing building 
to provide plumbing connections, lighting, and HVAC to convert a rated under-stair storage 
space to a utility closet for a whole-building water softening system. 

 

Design services shall be conducted in phases as outlined herein.  Phases may be combined to 
expedite design process when defined in Exhibit C – Production Schedule.  Individual phases or 
groups of phases shall be authorized herein or by fully executed Supplemental Agreement. 

Phase I - SCHEMATIC DESIGN – Program, Plans, Outline Specifications and Estimate 

Upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed, A/E shall accomplish the following: 

A. Investigate site/facility and verify known existing or available utility locations. 

B. International Building Code (IBC), ASHRAE 90.1, ASHRAE 62.1, International 



1/14/2021  
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 
 

 

Exhibit A  Page 4 of 6    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              4509 
 

 

Mechanical Code (IMC), National Electric Code (NEC), International Energy 
Conservation Code (IECC), and any other applicable codes and ordinances. 

C. Advise County of any changes, additions, or corrections to the preliminary 
program, plans, specifications, and budget. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase II - DESIGN DEVELOPMENT - Plans, Specifications and Estimate 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 

A. Consult freely with County concerning the principal phases of the work and 
immediately advise County of any unusual requirements or features not apparent 
during execution of the Schematic Design Phase. 

B. Develop plans and specifications, which indicate materials, construction methods 
and buildings systems. These building systems may include (but are not limited 
to) structural, mechanical, plumbing, and electrical. 

C. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase III - CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS - Plans, Specifications, and Estimate 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 

A. Prepare complete plans, specifications, and engineering calculations (without 
professional seals) setting forth in detail the work required for the structural, 
mechanical, plumbing, and electrical work. 

B. Consult freely with County concerning the principal phases of the work 
immediately advise County of any unusual requirements or features not apparent 
during execution of the Schematic Design and Design Development Phases.   

C. Complete the PS&E for the entire Project and its component parts. The Project 
detailed cost estimate shall not exceed the project construction budget as approved 
in writing by County. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase IV – REGULATORY REVIEW AND PERMITS - Plans, Specifications, and Permits: 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 



1/14/2021  
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 
 

 

Exhibit A  Page 5 of 6    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              4509 
 

 

A. Participate in any Pre-submittal Meetings required by local jurisdiction prior to 
Permit application submittal. 

B. Receive and respond to permitting comments by the local jurisdiction having 
review authority. 

C. Revise plans and specifications as necessary to conform to permitting, 
accessibility, and budget requirements without additional charge to County. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase V – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT BIDDING, AWARD, AND EXECUTION 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 

A. Participate in a Pre-bid Meeting, answer RFI’s from Contractors and suppliers, and 
prepare addenda items as required.  

B. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase VI - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION - Project Observation and Inspection: 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall perform the following work: 

A. Review and submit copies of each shop drawing and submittal of materials and 
equipment to County. 

B. Conduct site visits with personnel technically qualified by education and 
experience to competently observe relevant aspects of construction. Make 
necessary observations to determine if workmanship and quality of materials 
generally conform to the plans and specifications, and that provisions of the 
contract are complied with. 

C. Reject work performed by Contractor which does not meet the requirements of the 
Construction Documents; and, order removal and replacement of such work. 

D. Accompany County on Substantial Completion Inspection with appropriate staff 
and affiliates.  Prepare a punch list of items needing correction.  After Contractor 
has performed the required corrections, notify County in writing that the contract 
has been performed in general conformance with the plans and specifications and 
is ready for Final Inspection. 

E. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 



1/14/2021  
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 
 

 

Exhibit A  Page 6 of 6    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              4509 
 

 

 

Phase VII – PROJECT CLOSE-OUT – Final Inspection and Document Review: 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall perform the following work: 

A. Accompany County on Final Inspection to determine if construction has been 
completed in general accordance with the Contract Documents.  

B. Review warranties, guarantees, bonds, equipment operating instructions, and 
similar deliverables to verify receipt, and general conformance to requirements of 
the Contract. 

C. Upon completion of construction and prior to the request for final payment, make 
changes in the original REVIT model or CAD files of the Project to show changes 
made and noted by Contractor of the work and final location of the mechanical 
service lines and outlets including outside utilities.  Develop project Record 
Construction Drawings and Specifications. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 



1/14/2021
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm

3,100$           100%

2,500$           81%

600$              19%

2 300$              / visit

Principal Engineer $150 /hr

The rate adjustment will be determined by multiplying the Initial Base Rates by a 
fraction, the numerator of which is the index number for most recently released index 
before each annual anniversary date of the Agreement and the denominator of which is  
the index number for thefirst month of the Agreement (the index number for the month 
in which the Agreement was originally executed).  If the products are greater than the 

FEE SCHEDULE

Phases I-VII - SCHEMATIC DESIGN through CLOSE-OUT

This schedule indicates fees by Phase of the Basic Fee:

EXHIBIT B

Individual hourly rate schedule:

Site Visits - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION

 never be less than the Initial Base Rates.

CPI Rate Adjustments:  Rates shall remain firm for the first year of the Agreement and 
such rates shall be deemed the “Initial Base Rates”.  A/E must request rate adjustments, 
in writing, at least thirty (30) days prior to each annual anniversary date of the 
Agreement and any rate changes will take effect on the first day following the prior 
year.  If A/E fails to request a CPI rate adjustment, as set forth herein, the adjustment 
will be effective thirty (30) days after County receives A/E’s written request.  No 
retroactive rate adjustments will be allowed.  All rate  adjustments and modifications 

Price adjustments will be made in accordance with changes in the U.S. Department of 
Labor Consumer Price Index (CPI-U) for All Urban Consumers, All Items, South Region 
(Base 1982-84 = 100).

shall be set forth in a written fully executed amendment.

Initial Base Rates, County will pay the greater amounts as the rates during the 
successive year until the next rate adjustment.  Rates for each successive year will 

Exhibit B
Form rev. 12/2020 Page 1 of 1

 0509-2021-1080-01
4509



1/14/2021
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm

Agreement Execution Date 01/26/21

60% Plans, Specifications and Estimate deliverables 03/12/21

County written authorization to proceed to next phase 03/19/21

Complete Plans, Specifications and Estimate deliverables 05/03/21

County written authorization to proceed to next phase 05/10/21

Williamson County Concurrent Review

County advertises project for Bid 05/24/21

Contract Award 06/23/21

Contractor Notice to Proceed 06/30/21

Construction Substantial Completion 12/29/21

Phase I+II - DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

Phase III - CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

Phase V - BIDDING, AWARD, AND EXECUTION

Phase VI - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION	

Phase IV - N/A

Standard end-of-phase review periods for County shall be (5) business days minimum.  

The above time limits may, for good cause, be extended, in writing, by County as the 
Project proceeds.

The schedule below indicates various project milestones and target dates.

PRODUCTION SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT C

A/E agrees to complete the professional design services called for in Exhibit A of

date of this Agreement.
this Agreement within Four Hundred Fifty-Six (456) calendar days from the

Exhibit C
Form rev. 12/2020 Page 1 of 2

 0509-2021-1080-01
4509



1/14/2021
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm

Record Documents deliverables 01/28/22

Agreement Termination Date 04/27/22

Phase VII - PROJECT CLOSE-OUT

Exhibit C
Form rev. 12/2020 Page 2 of 2

 0509-2021-1080-01
4509



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 1 of 7        0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             4509 

EXHIBIT D 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY VENDOR REIMBURSEMENT POLICY 

The purpose of this Williamson County Vendor Reimbursement Policy (“Policy”) is to provide 
clear guidelines to vendors on Williamson County’s expectations and requirements regarding 
allowable reimbursable expenditures and required backup. The Policy will also minimize 
conflicts related to invoice payments and define non-reimbursable items. This Policy is 
considered a guideline and is not a contract. 

This Policy may be altered, deleted, or amended at any time and without prior notice to vendors, 
by action of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. Unenforceable provisions of this 
Policy, as imposed by applicable law, regulations, or judicial decisions, shall be deemed to be 
deleted. Any revisions to this Policy will be distributed to all current vendors doing business with 
County. 

1. Invoices and Affidavits 

1.1 Invoices must adequately describe the goods or services provided to County and 
include all required backup (i.e. reimbursable expenses, mileage log, timesheets, 
receipts detailing expenses incurred etc.) that is in a form acceptable to the Williamson 
County Auditor. Invoices that do not adequately describe the goods or services 
provided to County or contain backup that is not satisfactory to the Williamson 
County Auditor will be returned to vendor for revisions and the provision above 
relating to invoice errors resolved in favor of County shall control as to the required 
actions of vendor and when such invoice must be paid by County. 

1.2 In the event an invoice includes charges based upon hourly billing rates for services 
or any other rates based upon the amount of time worked by an individual or 
individuals in performing services, whether the charges are being billed directly to 
County or whether they are the basis of invoices from subcontractors for which the 
vendor seeks reimbursement from County, the charges shall be accompanied by an 
affidavit signed by an officer or principal of the vendor certifying that the work was 
performed, it was authorized by County and that all information contained in the 
invoice that is being submitted is true and correct. 

1.3 Upon County’s request, vendor must submit all bills paid affidavits wherein vendor 
must swear and affirm that vendor has paid each of its subcontractors, laborers, 
suppliers and material in full for all labor and materials provided to vendor for or in 
connection with services and work performed for County and, further, vendor must 
swear and affirm that vendor is not aware of any unpaid bills, claims, demands, or 
causes of action by any of its subcontractors, laborers, suppliers, or material for or in 
connection with the furnishing of labor or materials, or both, for services and work 
performed for County. 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 2 of 7        0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             4509 

2. Travel Reimbursement 

2.1 County will only cover costs associated with travel on vendors outside a 50-mile 
radius from Williamson County, Texas. 

2.2 County will only cover costs associated with travel as documented work for County. 
If a vendor is also doing business for another client, the travel costs must be split in 
proportion to the amount of work actually performed for County and the other client. 
The only allowable travel expense will be for the specific days worked for Williamson 
County. 

2.3 No advance payments will be made to vendor for travel expenditures. The travel 
expenditure may only be reimbursed after the expenditure/trip has already occurred 
and vendor has provided the Williamson County Auditor with all necessary and 
required backup. 

2.4 Vendors must submit all travel reimbursement requests on each employee in full. 
Specifically, a travel reimbursement request must include all related travel 
reimbursement expenses relating to a particular trip for which vendor seeks 
reimbursement. Partial travel reimbursement requests will not be accepted (i.e. 
vendor shall not submit hotel and mileage one month then the next month submit 
rental car and airfare). If the travel reimbursement appears incomplete, the invoice 
will be sent back to the vendor to be submitted when all information is ready to submit 
in full. 

2.5 Reimbursement for transportation costs will be at the most reasonable means of 
transportation (i.e.: airline costs will be reimbursed for coach rate, rental car costs will 
only be reimbursed if rental car travel was most reasonable means of travel as 
compared to travel by air). 

2.6 County will not be responsible for, nor will County reimburse additional charges due 
to personal preference or personal convenience of individual traveling. 

2.7 County will not reimburse airfare costs if airfare costs were higher than costs of 
mileage reimbursement. 

2.8 Additional expenses associated with travel that is extended to save costs (i.e. Saturday 
night stay) may be reimbursed if costs of airfare would be less than the cost of 
additional expenses (lodging, meals, car rental, mileage) if the trip had not been 
extended.  Documentation satisfactory to the Williamson County Auditor will be 
required to justify expenditure. 

2.9 County will only reimburse travel expense to necessary personnel of the vendor (i.e. 
no spouse, friends, or family members). 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 3 of 7        0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             4509 

2.10 Except as otherwise set forth herein, a vendor must provide a paid receipt for all 
expenses. If a receipt cannot be obtained, a written sworn statement of the expense 
from the vendor may be substituted for the receipt. 

2.11 Sales tax for meals and hotel stays are the only sales taxes that will be reimbursed. 
Sales tax on goods purchased will not be reimbursed. A sales tax exemption form is 
available from the Williamson County Auditor’s Office upon request. 

2.12 County will not pay for any late charges on reimbursable items. It is the responsibility 
of the vendor to pay the invoice first and seek reimbursement from County. 

3. Meals 

3.1 Meal reimbursements are limited to a maximum of $50.00 per day on overnight travel. 
On day travel (travel that does not require an overnight stay), meal reimbursements 
are limited to a maximum of $20.00 per day. The travel must be outside the Williamson 
County, Texas line by a 50-mile radius. 

3.2 Receipts are required on meal reimbursement amounts up to the maximum per day 
amount stated for overnight or day travel. If receipts are not presented, the vendor 
can request per diem (per diem limits refer to 3.2). However, a vendor cannot combine 
per diem and meal receipts. Only one method shall be allowed. 

3.3 Meals are reimbursable only for vendors who do not have the necessary personnel 
located within a 50-mile radius of Williamson County, Texas that are capable of 
carrying the vendor’s obligations to County. Meals will not be reimbursed to vendors 
who are located within a 50-mile radius of Williamson County, Texas. 

3.4 County will not reimburse for alcoholic beverages. 

3.5 Tips are reimbursable but must be reasonable to limitation of meal allowance 

3.6 No meals purchased for entertainment purposes will be allowed. 

3.7 Meal reimbursement must be substantiated with a hotel receipt. 

4. Lodging 

4.1 Hotel accommodations require an itemized hotel folio as a receipt. The lodging receipt 
shall include name of the motel/hotel, number of occupant(s), goods or services for 
each individual charge (room rental, food, tax, etc.) and the name of the occupant(s). 
Credit card receipts or any other form of receipt are not acceptable. 

4.2 Vendors will be reimbursed for a single room rate charge plus any applicable tax. If a 
single room is not available, the vendor must provide documentation to prove that a 
single room was not available in order to justify the expense over and above the single 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 4 of 7        0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             4509 

room rate. A vendor may also be required to provide additional documentation if a 
particular room rate appears to be excessive. 

4.3 Personal telephone charges, whether local or long distance, will not be reimbursed. 

5. Airfare 

5.1 County will only reimburse up to a coach price fare for air travel. 

5.2 County will exclude any additional charges due to personal preference or personal 
convenience of the individual traveling (i.e. early bird check in, seat preference 
charges, airline upgrades, etc. will not be an allowable reimbursement) 

5.3 Air travel expenses must be supported with receipt copy of an airline ticket or an 
itinerary with actual ticket price paid. If tickets are purchased through a website, 
vendor must submit a copy of the webpage showing the ticket price if no paper ticket 
was issued. 

5.4 Cancellation and/or change flight fees may be reimbursed by County but vendor must 
provide the Williamson County Auditor with documentation in writing from a 
County department head providing authorization for the change. 

5.5 County will not reimburse vendor for tickets purchased with frequent flyer miles. 

6. Car Rental 

6.1 Vendors that must travel may rent a car at their destination when it is less expensive 
than other transportation such as taxis, airport shuttles or public transportation such 
as buses or subways. 

6.2 Cars rented must be economy or mid-size. Luxury vehicle rentals will not be 
reimbursed. Any rental costs over and above the cost of a mid-size rental will be 
adjusted. 

6.3 Vendors will be reimbursed for rental cars if the rental car cost would have been less 
than the mileage reimbursement cost (based on the distance from vendor’s point of 
origin to Williamson County, Texas) had the vendor driven vendor’s car. 

6.4 Vendors must return a car rental with appropriate fuel levels as required by rental 
agreement to avoid the car rental company from adding fuel charges. 

6.5 Rental agreement and credit card receipt must be provided to County as back up for 
the request for reimbursement. 

6.6 Insurance purchased when renting vehicle may also be reimbursed. 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 5 of 7        0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             4509 

6.7 Car Rental optional extras such as GPS, roadside assistance, and administrative fees 
on Tolls will not be reimbursed. 

7. Personal Car Usage 

7.1 Personal vehicle usage will be reimbursed in an amount equal to the standard mileage 
rate allowed by the IRS. 

7.2 Per code of Federal Regulations, Title 26, Subtitle A, Chapter 1, Subchapter B, Part 
IX, Section 274(d), all expense reimbursement requests must include the following: 

7.2.1 Date 

7.2.2 Destination 

7.2.3 Purpose 

7.2.4 Name of traveler(s) 

7.2.5 Correspondence that verifies business purpose of the expense 

7.3 The mileage for a personal vehicle must document the date, location of travel to/from, 
number of miles traveled and purpose of trip. 

7.4 Mileage will be reimbursed on the basis of the most commonly used route. 

7.5 Reimbursement for mileage shall not exceed the cost of a round trip coach airfare. 

7.6 Reimbursement for mileage shall be prohibited between place of residence and usual 
place of work. 

7.7 Mileage shall be calculated from employee’s regular place of work or their residence, 
whichever is the shorter distance when traveling to a meeting or traveling to 
Williamson County, Texas for vendors who are located outside of Williamson County, 
Texas by at least a 50-mile radius. 

7.8 When more than one person travels in same vehicle, only one person may claim 
mileage reimbursement. 

7.9 Tolls, if reasonable, are reimbursable. Receipts are required for reimbursement.  If a 
receipt is not obtainable, then written documentation of expense must be submitted 
for reimbursement (administrative fees on Tolls will not be reimbursed). 

7.10 Parking fees, if reasonable are reimbursable for meetings and hotel stays. For vendors 
who contract with a third party for visitor parking at vendor’s place of business, 
Williamson County will not reimburse a vendor based on a percentage of its 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 6 of 7        0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             4509 

contracted visitor parking fees. Rather, Williamson County will reimburse Vendor for 
visitor parking on an individual basis for each time a visitor uses Vendor’s visitor 
parking. Receipts are required for reimbursement. If a receipt is not obtainable, then 
written documentation of expense must be submitted for reimbursement. 

7.11 Operating and maintenance expenses as well as other personal expenses, such as 
parking tickets, traffic violations, and car repairs and collision damage are not 
reimbursable. 

8. Other Expenses 

8.1 Taxi fare, bus tickets, conference registrations, parking, etc. must have a proper 
original receipt. 

9. Repayment of Non-reimbursable Expenses 

Vendors must, upon demand, immediately repay County for all inappropriately reimbursed 
expenses whenever an audit or subsequent review of any expense reimbursement 
documentation finds that such expense was reimbursed contrary to these guidelines and this 
Policy. Williamson County reserves the right to retain any amounts that are due or that 
become due to a vendor in order to collect any inappropriately reimbursed expenses that a 
vendor was paid. 

10. Non-Reimbursable Expenses 

In addition to the non-reimbursable items set forth above in this Policy, the following is a non-
exhaustive list of expenses that will not be reimbursed by Williamson County: 

10.1 Alcoholic beverages/tobacco products 

10.2 Personal phone calls 

10.3 Laundry service 

10.4 Valet service (excludes hotel valet) 

10.5 Movie rentals 

10.6 Damage to personal items 

10.7 Flowers/plants 

10.8 Greeting cards 

10.9 Fines and/or penalties 

10.10 Entertainment, personal clothing, personal sundries, and service 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 7 of 7        0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             4509 

10.11 Transportation/mileage to places of entertainment or similar personal activities 

10.12 Upgrades to airfare, hotel and/or car rental 

10.13 Airport parking above the most affordable rate available 

10.14 Excessive weight baggage fees or cost associated with more than two airline bags 

10.15 Auto repairs 

10.16 Babysitter fees, kennel costs, pet, or house-sitting fees 

10.17 Saunas, massages, or exercise facilities 

10.18 Credit card delinquency fees or service fees 

10.19 Doctor bills, prescription and other medical services 

10.20 Hand tools 

10.21 Safety Equipment (hard hats, safety vests, etc.) 

10.22 Office Supplies 

10.23 Lifetime memberships to any association 

10.24 Donations to other entities 

10.25 Any items that could be construed as campaigning 

10.26 Community outreach items exceeding $2 per item 

10.27 Technology Fees 

10.28 Sales tax on goods purchased 

Any other expenses which Williamson County deems, in its sole discretion, to be inappropriate 
or unnecessary expenditures. 



1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Exhibit E – Debarment Certification Page 1 of 2    0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

EXHIBIT E 

DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

STATE OF TEXAS    § 
      § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON   § 
 
1. I, the undersigned, being duly sworn or under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United 

States and the State of Texas, certifies that A/E and its principals: 

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible 
or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or 
agency: 

b. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had 
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense 
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public* 
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity* with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
Paragraph 1(b) of this certification; 

d. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or 
more public transactions* terminated for cause or default; and 

e. Have not been disciplined or issued a formal reprimand by any State agency for 
professional accreditation within the past three years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





1/14/2021   
Gtown Annex Water Softener Rm 

Exhibit F – Certificates of Insurance Page 1 of 1       0509-2021-1080-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              4509 

EXHIBIT F 

CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE 

A/E and Subconsultant Certificates of Insurance attached: 

 

 

 

 

 



01/14/2021

Whorton Insurance Services
11200 Jollyville Rd.

Austin TX 78759-4813

Noe Moreno CIC,CLCS,ACSR
(512) 338-1191 (512) 338-1196

NoeM@whortonins.com

Charles A. Witt, DBA: K & W Engineering Solutions LLC
650 Shell Stone Trail

Georgetown TX 78628

Kinsale Insurance Company 38920

CL20121624592

A
Professional Liability

0100103511-1 12/16/2020 12/16/2021 LIMIT 2,000,000

The policy includes a notice of cancellation endorsement providing for 30 days’ advance notice if the policy is cancelled by the company other than for
nonpayment of premium, or 10 days’ notice if the policy is canceled for nonpayment of premium.

Williamson County Purchasing
100 Wilco Way
Suite P101
Georgetown TX 78626

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE
BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED
ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

1/14/2021

(512) 343-0280 6394 (512) 343-0352

30104

K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC
650 Shell Stone Trail
Georgetown, TX 78628

29394
22945

A 2,000,000

65SBAAF9WLY 4/3/2020 4/3/2021 1,000,000

10,000

2,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

1,000,000B

BA420000015586 4/4/2020 4/4/2021

1,000,000A
65SBAAF9WLY 4/3/2020 4/3/2021 1,000,000

C
0002046207 3/31/2020 3/31/2021 1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

The General Liability Policy includes a blanket automatic additional insured with a waiver of subrogation on a primary non contributory basis when required 
by written contract or agreement. 30 day notice of cancellation applies.

Williamson Country Purchasing
100 Wilco Way
Suite P101
Georgetown, TX 78626

CHARWIT-01 KFARRELL

AssuredPartners of TX, LLC DBA Capitol City Insurance
8030 N Mopac
Austin, TX 78759

Kimberly Farrell

kimberly.farrell@assuredpartners.com

Hartford Underwriters Insurance Co.
Mercury County Mutual Insurance Company
Texas Mutual Insurance Company

X

X
X

X

X
X
X

X X



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 10 18 Page 1 of 3
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED BY CONTRACT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Except as otherwise stated in this endorsement, the terms and conditions of the Policy apply.

A. The following is added to Section C. WHO IS AN INSURED:

Additional Insureds When Required By Written Contract, Written Agreement Or Permit

The person(s) or organization(s) identified in Paragraphs a. through f. below are additional insureds when you have
agreed, in a written contract or written agreement, or when required by a written permit issued by a state or
governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision that such person or organization be added as an
additional insured on your Coverage Part, provided the injury or damage occurs subsequent to the execution of the
contract or agreement, or the issuance of the permit.

A person or organization is an additional insured under this provision only for that period of time required by the
contract, agreement or permit.

However, no such person or organization is an additional insured under this provision if such person or organization is
included as an additional insured by any other endorsement issued by us and made a part of this Coverage Part.

The insurance afforded to such additional insured will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract,
agreement, or permit to provide for such additional insured.

The insurance afforded to such additional insured only applies to the extent permitted by law.

The limits of insurance that apply to additional insureds are described in Section D. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL
EXPENSES LIMITS OF INSURANCE. How this insurance applies when other insurance is available to an additional
insured is described in the Other Insurance Condition in Section E. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES
GENERAL CONDITIONS.

a. Vendors

Any person(s) or organization(s) (referred to below as vendor), but only with respect to "bodily injury" or "property
damage" arising out of "your products" which are distributed or sold in the regular course of the vendor's business
and only if this Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the
"products-completed operations hazard".

(1) The insurance afforded to the vendor is subject to the following additional exclusions:

This insurance does not apply to:

(a) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which the vendor is obligated to pay damages by reason of the
assumption of liability in a contract or agreement. This exclusion does not apply to liability for damages
that the vendor would have in the absence of the contract or agreement;

(b) Any express warranty unauthorized by you;

(c) Any physical or chemical change in the product made intentionally by the vendor;

(d) Repackaging, except when unpacked solely for the purpose of inspection, demonstration, testing, or the
substitution of parts under instructions from the manufacturer, and then repackaged in the original
container;

(e) Any failure to make such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to make
or normally undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the distribution or sale
of the products;

(f) Demonstration, installation, servicing or repair operations, except such operations performed at the
vendor's premises in connection with the sale of the product;

(g) Products which, after distribution or sale by you, have been labeled or relabeled or used as a container,
part or ingredient of any other thing or substance by or for the vendor; or



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 10 18 Page 2 of 3
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(h) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the sole negligence of the vendor for its own acts or
omissions or those of its employees or anyone else acting on its behalf. However, this exclusion does not
apply to:

(i) The exceptions contained in Paragraphs (d) or (f); or

(ii) Such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to make or normally
undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the distribution or sale of the
products.

(2) This insurance does not apply to any insured person or organization from whom you have acquired such
products, or any ingredient, part or container, entering into, accompanying or containing such products.

b. Lessors Of Equipment

(1) Any person or organization from whom you lease equipment; but only with respect to their liability for "bodily
injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your
maintenance, operation or use of equipment leased to you by such person or organization.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to any
"occurrence" which takes place after you cease to lease that equipment.

c. Lessors Of Land Or Premises

(1) Any person or organization from whom you lease land or premises, but only with respect to liability arising out
of the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of the land or premises leased to you.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to:

(a) Any "occurrence" which takes place after you cease to lease that land or be a tenant in that premises; or

(b) Structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of such person
or organization.

d. Architects, Engineers Or Surveyors

(1) Any architect, engineer, or surveyor, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or
"personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or
omissions of those acting on your behalf:

(a) In connection with your premises; or

(b) In the performance of your ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusion applies:

(a) This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury"
arising out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional services, including:

(i) The preparing, approving, or failure to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports,
surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or

(ii) Supervisory, surveying, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

This exclusion applies even if the claims allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring,
employment, training or monitoring of others by an insured, if the “bodily injury”, “property damage”, or
“personal and advertising injury” arises out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional
service.

(b) This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products-
completed operations hazard”.

e. State Or Governmental Agency Or Subdivision Or Political Subdivision Issuing Permit

(1) Any state or governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision, but only with respect to operations
performed by you or on your behalf for which the state or governmental agency or subdivision or political
subdivision has issued a permit.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to:

(a) "Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of operations performed
for the federal government, state or municipality; or



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 10 18 Page 3 of 3
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(b) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products-completed operations hazard".

f. Any Other Party

(1) Any other person or organization who is not in one of the categories or classes listed above in Paragraphs a.
through e. above, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and
advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those
acting on your behalf:

(a) In the performance of your ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf;

(b) In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you; or

(c) In connection with "your work" and included within the "products-completed operations hazard", but only
if:

(i) The written contract, written agreement or permit requires you to provide such coverage to such
additional insured; and

(ii) This Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the
"products-completed operations hazard".

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusion applies:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising
out of the rendering of, or the failure to render, any professional architectural, engineering or surveying
services, including:

(a) The preparing, approving, or failure to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports,
surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or

(b) Supervisory, surveying, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

This exclusion applies even if the claims allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring,
employment, training or monitoring of others by an insured, if the “bodily injury”, “property damage”, or
“personal and advertising injury” arises out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional service
described in Paragraphs f.(2)(a) or f.(2)(b) above.



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 18 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

If any of the other insurance does not permit contribution by equal shares, we will contribute by limits. Under
this method, each insurer’s share is based on the ratio of its applicable limit of insurance to the total
applicable limits of insurance of all insurers.

7. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us

a. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery

If the insured has rights to recover all or part of any payment, including Supplementary Payments, we have
made under this Coverage Part, those rights are transferred to us. The insured must do nothing after loss to
impair them. At our request, the insured will bring "suit" or transfer those rights to us and help us enforce
them. This condition does not apply to Medical Expenses Coverage.

b. Waiver Of Rights Of Recovery (Waiver Of Subrogation)

If the insured has waived any rights of recovery against any person or organization for all or part of any
payment, including Supplementary Payments, we have made under this Coverage Part, we also waive that
right, provided the insured waived their rights of recovery against such person or organization in a contract,
agreement or permit that was executed prior to the injury or damage.

F. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES DEFINITIONS

1. "Advertisement" means a notice that is broadcast or published to the general public or specific market segments
about your goods, products or services for the purpose of attracting customers or supporters. For the purpose of
this definition:

a. Notices that are published include material placed on the Internet or on similar electronic means of
communication; and

b. Regarding web sites, only that part of a web site that is about your goods, products or services for the
purpose of attracting customers or supporters is considered an advertisement.

2. "Advertising idea" means any idea for an "advertisement".

3. "Asbestos hazard" means an exposure or threat of exposure to the actual or alleged properties of asbestos and
includes the mere presence of asbestos in any form.

4. "Auto" means:

a. A land motor vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer designed for travel on public roads, including any attached
machinery or equipment; or

b. Any other land vehicle that is subject to a compulsory or financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle
insurance or motor vehicle registration law where it is licensed or principally garaged.

However, "auto" does not include "mobile equipment".

5. "Bodily injury" means physical:

a. Injury;

b. Sickness; or

c. Disease

sustained by a person and, if arising out of the above, mental anguish or death at any time.

6. "Coverage territory" means:

a. The United States of America (including its territories and possessions), Puerto Rico and Canada;

b. International waters or airspace, but only if the injury or damage occurs in the course of travel or
transportation between any places included in a. above;

c. All other parts of the world if the injury or damage arises out of:

(1) Goods or products made or sold by you in the territory described in a. above;

(2) The activities of a person whose home is in the territory described in a. above, but is away for a short time
on your business; or



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 17 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(2) Premises Rented To You

That is fire, lightning or explosion insurance for premises rented to you or temporarily occupied by you
with permission of the owner;

(3) Tenant Liability

That is insurance purchased by you to cover your liability as a tenant for "property damage" to premises
rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner;

(4) Aircraft, Auto Or Watercraft

If the loss arises out of the maintenance or use of aircraft, "autos" or watercraft to the extent not subject to
Exclusion g. of Section B. Exclusions.

(5) Property Damage To Borrowed Equipment Or Use Of Elevators

If the loss arises out of "property damage" to borrowed equipment or the use of elevators to the extent not
subject to Exclusion k. of Section B. Exclusions.

(6) When You Are Added As An Additional Insured To Other Insurance

That is other insurance available to you covering liability for damages arising out of the premises or
operations, or products and completed operations, for which you have been added as an additional
insured by that insurance; or

(7) When You Add Others As An Additional Insured To This Insurance

That is other insurance available to an additional insured.

However, the following provisions apply to other insurance available to any person or organization who is
an additional insured under this Coverage Part:

(a) Primary Insurance When Required By Contract

This insurance is primary if you have agreed in a written contract, written agreement or permit that
this insurance be primary. If other insurance is also primary, we will share with all that other insurance
by the method described in c. below.

(b) Primary And Non-Contributory To Other Insurance When Required By Contract

If you have agreed in a written contract, written agreement or permit that this insurance is primary and
non-contributory with the additional insured's own insurance, this insurance is primary and we will not
seek contribution from that other insurance.

Paragraphs (a) and (b) do not apply to other insurance to which the additional insured has been added as
an additional insured.

When this insurance is excess, we will have no duty under this Coverage Part to defend the insured against
any "suit" if any other insurer has a duty to defend the insured against that "suit". If no other insurer defends,
we will undertake to do so, but we will be entitled to the insured's rights against all those other insurers.

When this insurance is excess over other insurance, we will pay only our share of the amount of the loss, if
any, that exceeds the sum of:

(1) The total amount that all such other insurance would pay for the loss in the absence of this insurance;
and

(2) The total of all deductible and self-insured amounts under all that other insurance.

We will share the remaining loss, if any, with any other insurance that is not described in this Excess
Insurance provision and was not bought specifically to apply in excess of the Limits of Insurance shown in
the Declarations of this Coverage Part.

c. Method Of Sharing

If all the other insurance permits contribution by equal shares, we will follow this method also. Under this
approach, each insurer contributes equal amounts until it has paid its applicable limit of insurance or none of
the loss remains, whichever comes first.



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 10.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

WWCHD Lobby and Janitor Remodel (P535)- K&W Professional Service Agreement
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Professional Services Agreement between
Williamson County and K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC to provide Design and Engineering Services for the
Williamson County CHD Lobby and Janitor Remodel (P535) in the amount of $2,100.00.

Background
This agreement is to provide electrical, mechanical, and plumbing engineering for a remodel in existing building to
renovate existing reception areas on the ground floor and create a new Janitor’s Closet on the upper floor.  This
project will be funded under P535.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
WWCHD Lobby and Janitor Remodel (P535P K&W PSA 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 01/20/2021 03:00 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/20/2021 04:01 PM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 01/20/2021 01:09 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/20/2021 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 1 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN & ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

PROJECT: CHD + WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel (“Project”) 
 
ARCHITECT/  
ENGINEER:  K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC (“A/E”) 
   Amber Kurkowski, CEO / Co-Owner 

650 Shell Stone Trail 
Georgetown, TX 78628 

 
COUNTY’S DESIGNATED 
REPRESENTATIVE:  Williamson County Facilities Department 

Attn:  Director of Facilities  
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN AND ENGINEERING SERVICES (“Agreement”) is made 
and entered into effective as of the latest date of the signatories indicated at the conclusion of this 
document and all attachments (the "Effective Date"), by and between Williamson County, a body 
corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas (“County”) and A/E. 
 

R E C I T A L S 
 
WHEREAS, V.T.C.A., Government Code §2254.002(2)(A)(vii) under Subchapter A entitled 
“Professional Services Procurement Act” provides for the procurement by counties of services of 
professional architects and engineers; and 
 
WHEREAS, County intends to remodel small areas within the Williamson County Justice 
Center to provide office spaces for a new department; and 
 
WHEREAS, County desires that A/E perform certain professional services in connection with the 
Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, A/E represents that it is qualified and desires to perform such services; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, County and A/E, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
herein contained, do mutually agree as follows: 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 2 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

 
 

ARTICLE 1 
SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

 
A/E agrees to perform professional services in connection with the Project as stated herein, and 
for having rendered such services, County agrees to pay to A/E compensation as stated in the 
articles to follow. 

 
 

ARTICLE 2 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE PROJECT DOCUMENTS 

 
2.1 Contract Documents.   
Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, any exhibits attached hereto (which exhibits are 
hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement) and all fully executed Supplemental 
Agreements which are subsequently issued.  These form the entire Agreement, and all are as fully 
a part of this Agreement as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. 
 
2.2 Existing Information.   
County shall provide A/E with all existing plans, maps, studies, reports, field notes, statistics, 
computations, and other data in its possession relative to existing facilities and to this particular 
Project at no cost to A/E; however, any and all such information shall remain the property of 
County and shall be returned, if the County so instructs A/E. 
 
2.3 Project Documents.  
In addition to any other pertinent and necessary Project documents, the following documents 
shall be used in the development of the Project: 

 
 2.3.1 

Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) of the Architectural Barriers Act, Article 9102, Texas 
Civil Statutes, Effective March 15, 2012, including latest revisions 
 

 2.3.2 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
 

 2.3.3 
Williamson County Facilities Building Code Adoption List, 2020 edition as updated 
 

 2.3.4 
Williamson County Consultant Design Submittal Guidelines, 2020 edition as updated 

 
 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 3 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

ARTICLE 3 
NON-COLLUSION; DEBARMENT; AND FINANCIAL INTEREST PROHIBITED 

 
3.1 Non-collusion.   
A/E warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or persons, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for A/E, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid 
or agreed to pay any company or subconsultant any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, 
gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
Agreement. Flor breach or violation of this warranty, County reserves and shall have the right to 
annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion and at its sole election, to deduct from 
the agreement price or compensation, or to otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee. 
 
3.2 Debarment Certification.  
A/E must sign the Debarment Certification enclosed herewith as Exhibit E. 

 
3.3 Financial Interest Prohibited.   
A/E covenants and represents that A/E, its officers, employees, agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors will have no financial interest, direct or indirect, in the purchase or sale of any 
product, materials, or equipment that will be recommended or required for the construction of 
the Project. 
 
 

ARTICLE 4 
CHARACTER AND SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
4.1 
In consideration of the compensation herein provided, A/E shall perform professional design and 
engineering services for the Project, which are acceptable to County, based on standard 
architectural and engineering practices and the scope of work described on the Exhibits attached 
to this Agreement.  A/E shall also serve as County's professional architect and engineer in those 
phases of the Project to which this Agreement applies and will consult with and give advice to 
County during the performance of A/E's services. 

 
4.3 
A/E shall perform the following Basic Scope of Services (sometimes referred to herein as the 
“Basic Scope of Services”, “Basic Services” or the “Scope of Services”): 

 
4.3.1 
The Basic Scope of Services shall generally consist of all elements of work, meetings, 
materials, and equipment required for the development of the Project in accordance with 
the requirements, policies, and general practices of Williamson County.  

 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 4 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

4.3.2 
As part of the Basic Services, A/E shall submit its work products to County for review as 
requested by County. 

 
4.3.3 
The detailed Basic Services for the Project is set forth herein as Exhibit A to this 
Agreement, which is expressly incorporated and made a part hereof. 

 
 

ARTICLE 5 
TIME FOR PERFOMANCE 

 
5.1 Commencement. 
A/E shall not commence work until A/E has been thoroughly briefed on the scope of the Project 
and has been notified in writing to proceed, as evidenced by a Notice to Proceed. 
 
5.2 Duration. 
A/E agrees to complete the Basic Services within the time period set forth in Exhibit C.  The time 
limits set out therein may, for good cause, be extended, in writing, by County as the Project 
proceeds.  
 
 

ARTICLE 6 
COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES 

 
6.1  Basic Fee.   
For and in consideration of the Basic Services rendered by A/E, County shall pay to  A/E up to 
Two Thousand One Hundred Dollars ($ 2,100) hereinafter called the "Basic Fee", plus the 
amount payable under Article 7 (Additional Services and Charges). 
 
The Basic Fee is based upon all estimated labor costs required in the performance of all items and 
phases of the Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A.  Compensation for Basic Services will be paid 
by County by monthly invoices of percentage completion.  County will only be obligated to pay 
A/E for the performance of items and phases of the Basic Services actually rendered and incurred, 
which may be less than the above stated Basic Fee. 
 
6.2  Expenses.   
A/E shall be reimbursed for actual non-labor and subcontract expenses incurred in the 
performance of the services under this Agreement in accordance with the Williamson County 
Vendor Reimbursement Policy set forth under Exhibit D.  Invoices requesting reimbursement for 
costs and expenditures related to the Project (reimbursables) must be accompanied by copies of 
the provider’s invoice and must strictly comply with the Williamson County Vendor 
Reimbursement Policy.  The copies of the provider’s invoice must evidence the actual costs billed 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 5 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

to A/E without markup.  Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and 
Additional Services and must not exceed One Hundred Five Dollars ($ 105). 
 

 
ARTICLE 7 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES AND CHARGES 
 

For the performance of services not specifically described as Basic Services under Article 4 above 
(sometimes referred to herein as “Additional Services”), County shall pay and A/E shall receive, 
under a negotiated, written supplemental agreement, Additional Services compensation based 
upon the method and rates set forth in Exhibit B. 
 
A/E shall not, however, be compensated for work made necessary by A/E’s negligent errors or 
omissions.  In the event of any dispute over the classification of A/E’s services as Basic or 
Additional Services under this Agreement, the decision of County shall be final and binding on 
A/E. 

 
It is expressly understood and agreed that A/E shall not furnish any Additional Services without 
the prior written authorization of County.  County shall have no obligation to pay for such 
Additional Services which have been rendered without prior written authorization of County as 
hereinabove required.  Furthermore, in no event will County be obligated to compensate A/E for 
any Additional Services and charges in an amount more than Five Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars 
($ 525). 
 
 

ARTICLE 8 
TIME OF PAYMENT; PAYMENT AND INTEREST; AND RIGHT TO AUDIT 

 
8.1  Time of Payment.   
During the performance of the services provided for in this Agreement, monthly payments shall 
be made based upon that portion of the services which has been completed.   
 
On or about the last day of each calendar month during the performance of the services to be 
provided under this Agreement, A/E shall submit to County working documents in any stage of 
completion to demonstrate incremental progress of Basic Services and the compensation which 
is due for percentage completion of Basic Services.  For amounts payable under Article 7 which 
have not been previously billed or paid, A/E shall submit a sworn statement to County, along 
with time sheets detailing hours worked, receipts detailing expenses incurred and other support 
documentation, in a form acceptable to the Williamson County Auditor, setting forth the  services 
provided for by this Agreement which were completed during such calendar month plus the 
amounts payable under Article 7 which have not been previously billed or paid.  In the event the 
statement includes charges based upon hourly billing rates for services or any other rates based 
upon the amount of time worked by an individual or individuals in performing services, whether 
the charges are being billed directly to the County or whether they are the basis of invoices from 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 6 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

subcontractors for which A/E seeks reimbursement from the County, the charges shall be 
accompanied by an affidavit signed by an officer or principal of A/E certifying that the work was 
performed, it was authorized by the County and that all information contained in the invoice that 
is being submitted is true and correct.   
 
The County shall review the documentation and shall pay each statement as set forth in this 
Article 8, however, the approval or payment of any statement shall not be considered evidence 
of performance by A/E to the point indicated by such statement or of receipt or acceptance by 
County of the services covered by such statement.  Final payment does not relieve A/E of the 
responsibility of correcting any errors or omissions resulting from A/E’s negligence. 
 
Upon submittal of the initial invoice, A/E shall provide the County Auditor with an Internal 
Revenue Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is 
complete in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations. 
 
8.2  Prompt Payment Policy.   
In accordance with Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A., Texas Government Code, payment to A/E will be 
made within thirty (30) days of the day on which the performance of services was complete, or 
within thirty (30) days of the day on which the County Auditor receives a correct invoice for 
services, whichever is later.  A/E may charge a late fee (fee shall not be greater than that which is 
permitted by Texas law) for payments not made in accordance with this prompt payment policy; 
however, this policy does not apply in the event: 

 
8.2.1 
There is a bona fide dispute between County and A/E concerning the supplies, materials, 
or equipment delivered or the services performed that causes the payment to be late; or 

 
8.2.2 
There is a bona fide dispute between A/E and a subcontractor/ subconsultant or between 
a subcontractor/ subconsultant and its supplier concerning supplies, materials, or 
equipment delivered or the Basic Services performed which causes the payment to be late; 
or 

 
8.2.3 
The invoice is not submitted to Williamson County in strict accordance with instructions, 
if any, on the purchase order, or this Agreement or other such contractual agreement. 

 
The County Auditor shall document to A/E the issues related to disputed invoices within ten (10) 
calendar days of receipt of such invoice.  Any non-disputed invoices shall be considered correct 
and payable per the terms of Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A. 

 
 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 7 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

ARTICLE 9 
PROJECT TEAM 

 
County’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Agreement is as follows: 
 

Williamson County Facilities Department 
Attn:  Director of Facilities  
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
County shall have the right, from time to time, to change the County’s Designated Representative 
by giving A/E written notice thereof.  With respect to any action, decision, or determination which 
is to be taken or made by County under this Agreement, the County’s Designated Representative 
may take such action or make such decision or determination or shall notify A/E in writing of an 
individual responsible for, and capable of, taking such action, decision, or determination, and 
shall forward any communications and documentation to such individual for response or action.  
Actions, decisions or determinations by County’s Designated Representative on behalf of County 
shall be done in his or her reasonable business judgment unless express standards or parameters 
therefor are included in this Agreement, in which case, actions taken by County’s Designated 
Representative shall be in accordance with such express standards or parameters.  Any consent, 
approval, decision, or determination hereunder by County’s Designated Representative shall be 
binding on County; provided, however, County’s Designated Representative shall not have any 
right to modify, amend, or terminate this Agreement or executed Supplemental Agreement.  
County’s Designated Representative shall not have any authority to execute a Supplemental 
Agreement unless otherwise granted such authority by the Williamson County Commissioners 
Court.   
 
 A/E’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Agreement is as follows: 
 

K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC 
  Amber Kurkowski, CEO / Co-Owner 

650 Shell Stone Trail 
Georgetown, TX 78628 

 
A/E shall have the right, from time to time, to change A/E’s Designated Representative by giving 
County written notice thereof.  With respect to any action, decision, or determination which is 
to be taken or made by A/E under this Agreement, A/E’s Designated Representative may take 
such action or make such decision or determination, or shall notify County in writing of an 
individual responsible for and capable of taking such action, decision, or determination and shall 
forward any communications and documentation to such individual for response or action.  
Actions, decisions, or determinations by A/E’s Designated Representative on behalf of A/E shall 
be done in his or her reasonable business judgment unless express standards or parameters 
therefor are included in this Agreement, in which case, actions taken by A/E’s Designated 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 8 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

Representative shall be in accordance with such express standards or parameters.  Any consent, 
approval, decision, or determination hereunder by A/E’s Designated Representative shall be 
binding on A/E.  A/E’s Designated Representative shall have the right to modify, amend, and 
execute Supplemental Agreements on behalf of A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 10 
NOTICE 

 
Any notice required to be given under the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be duly served when it shall have been deposited, enclosed in a wrapper with the proper 
postage prepaid thereon, and duly registered or certified, return receipt requested, in a United 
States Post Office, addressed to County or A/E at the following addresses.  If mailed, any notice 
or communication shall be deemed to be received three (3) days after the date of deposit in the 
United States Mail.  Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, all notices shall be delivered 
to the following addresses: 
 
County: Williamson County Judge 

710 Main Street, Suite 101 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
With copy to:  Williamson County Facilities Department 

Attn: Director of Facilities 
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626  

 
and to:  Office of General Counsel 

Williamson County 
710 Main Street, Suite 102 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 
A/E:  K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC 

650 Shell Stone Trail 
Georgetown, TX 78628 

 
Attention: Amber Kurkowski 

    CEO / Co-Owner 
  
Either party may designate a different address by giving the other party ten (10) days written 
notice. 

 
 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 9 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

ARTICLE 11 
PROGRESS EVALUATION 

 
A/E shall, from time to time during the progress of the Basic Services, confer with County at 
County’s election.  A/E shall prepare and present such information as may be pertinent and 
necessary, or as may be reasonably requested by County, in order for County to evaluate features 
of the Basic Services.  At the request of County or A/E, conferences shall be provided at A/E's 
office, the offices of County, or at other locations designated by County.  When requested by 
County, such conferences shall also include evaluation of the Basic Services.  County may, from 
time to time, require A/E to appear and provide information to the Williamson County 
Commissioners Court. 
 
Should County determine that the progress in Basic Services does not satisfy the terms of the 
Agreement then County shall review same with A/E to determine corrective action required. 
 
A/E shall promptly advise County in writing of events which have or may have a significant 
impact upon the progress of the Basic Services, including but not limited to the following: 
 
11.1 
Problems, delays, adverse conditions which may materially affect the ability to meet the 
objectives of the Agreement or preclude the attainment of Project Basic Services by established 
time periods; and such disclosure shall be accompanied by statement of actions taken or 
contemplated, and County assistance needed to resolve the situation, if any; and 

 
11.2 
Favorable developments or events which enable meeting goals sooner than anticipated in 
relation to the Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 12 
CHANGES IN COMPLETED BASIC SERVICES 

 
If County deems it necessary to request changes to previously satisfactorily completed Basic 
Services or parts thereof which involve changes to the original Basic Services or character of Basic 
Services under this Agreement, then A/E shall make such revisions as requested and as directed 
by County.  Such revisions shall be considered as Additional Services and paid for as specified 
under Article 7.  A/E shall make revisions to Basic Services authorized hereunder as are 
necessary to correct errors appearing therein, when required to do so by County.  No additional 
compensation shall be due for such Basic Services. 

 
 

ARTICLE 13 
REVIEW PROCESS AND REVISIONS TO A/E WORK PRODUCT 

 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 10 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

13.1 Review Process.  
A/E's Work Product will be reviewed by County under its applicable technical requirements and 
procedures, as follows: 
   

13.1.1 Submittal.   
Reports, plans, surveys, field notes, original drawings, computer tapes, graphic files, 
tracings, calculations, analyses, reports, specifications, data, sketches and/or schematics 
prepared by A/E and supporting documents (collectively referred to hereinabove and 
hereinafter as the "A/E Work Product(s)"), shall be submitted by A/E on or before the dates 
specified for completion, as set out in the Production Schedule set forth in Exhibit C. 

 
13.1.2 Completion.   
Reports, plans, specifications, and supporting documents shall be submitted by A/E on or 
before the dates specified in Exhibit C.  Upon receipt of same, the submission shall be 
checked for completion. "Completion" or “Complete” shall be defined as all of the 
required items, as set out in Exhibit A have been included in compliance with the 
requirements of this Agreement.  The completeness of any Basic Services submitted to 
County shall be determined by County within thirty (30) days of such submittal and 
County shall notify A/E in writing within such thirty (30) day period if such Basic Services 
have been found to be incomplete.  If the submission is Complete, County will notify A/E 
and County’s technical review process will begin. 

 
If the submission is not Complete, County will notify A/E, who shall perform such 
professional services as are required to complete the Basic Services and resubmit it to 
County. This process shall be repeated until a submission is Complete. 
 

13.1.3 Acceptance.   
County will review the completed Basic Services for compliance with this Agreement.  If 
necessary, the completed Basic Services will be returned to A/E, who shall perform any 
required Basic Services and resubmit to County. This process shall be repeated until the 
Basic Services are Accepted. "Acceptance" or “Accepted” shall mean that in County’s 
reasonable opinion, substantial compliance with the requirements of this Agreement has 
been achieved. 

 
13.1.4 Final Approval.   
After Acceptance, A/E shall perform any required modifications, changes, alterations, 
corrections, redesigns, and additional work necessary to receive Final Approval by 
County.  "Final Approval" in this sense shall mean formal recognition that the Basic 
Services have been fully carried out. 

 
13.2  Revision to A/E Work Product.   
A/E shall make, without expense to County, such revisions to A/E Work Product as may be 
required to correct negligent errors or omissions so A/E Work Product meets the needs of County, 
but after the approval of A/E Work Product any revisions, additions, or other modifications made 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 11 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

at County's request which involve extra services and expenses to A/E shall entitle A/E to 
additional compensation for such extra services and expenses; provided, however, A/E hereby 
agrees to perform any necessary corrections to A/E Work Products which are found to be in 
negligent error or omission as a result of A/E’s development of A/E Work Product, at any time, 
without additional compensation.  If it is necessary, due to such error or omission by A/E, to 
revise any A/E Work Product in order to make the Project constructible, A/E shall do so without 
additional compensation.  In the event of any dispute over the classification of A/E’s Work 
Products as Complete, Accepted, or Approved under this Agreement, the decision of County 
shall be final and binding on A/E, subject to any civil remedy or determination otherwise 
available to the parties and deemed appropriate by the parties. 
 
13.3  Days.   
All references to a “day” in this Agreement shall mean a calendar day unless otherwise specified. 
 
13.4  County’s Reliance on A/E.   
A/E’s duties as set forth herein shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any 
review, evaluation, or approval by County nor shall A/E be released from any liability by 
reason of such review, evaluation or approval by County, it being understood that County, at 
all times, is ultimately relying upon A/E’s skill, ability, and knowledge in performing the Basic 
Services required hereunder. 

 
 

ARTICLE 14 
SUSPENSION 

 
Should County desire to suspend the Basic Services, but not to terminate this Agreement, then 
such suspension may be effected by County giving A/E thirty (30) calendar days’ verbal 
notification followed by written confirmation to that effect.  Such thirty (30)-day notice may be 
waived in writing by agreement and signature of both parties.  The Basic Services may be 
reinstated and resumed in full force and effect within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice 
from County to resume the Basic Services.  Such sixty (60)-day notice may be waived in writing 
by agreement and signature of both parties.  If this Agreement is suspended for more than thirty 
(30) days, A/E shall have the option of terminating this Agreement and, in the event, A/E shall be 
compensated for all Basic Services performed and reimbursable expenses incurred, provided 
such Basic Services and reimbursable expenses have been previously authorized and approved 
by County, to the effective date of suspension. 
 
County assumes no liability for Basic Services performed or costs incurred prior to the date 
authorized by County for A/E to begin Basic Services, and/or during periods when Basic Services 
are suspended, and/or subsequent to the completion date. 
 
 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 12 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

ARTICLE 15 
VIOLATION OF CONTRACT TERMS/ BREACH OF CONTRACT 

 
Violation of contract terms or breach of contract by A/E shall be grounds for termination of this 
Agreement, and any increased costs arising from A/E’s default, breach of contract, or violation of 
contract terms shall be paid by A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 16 
TERMINATION 

 
This Agreement may be terminated as set forth below. 
 
16.1 
By mutual agreement and consent, in writing, of both parties. 

 
16.2 
By County, by notice in writing to A/E, as a consequence of failure by A/E to perform the Basic 
Services set forth herein in a satisfactory manner. 

 
16.3 
By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations as set forth herein. 

 
16.4 
By County, for reasons of its own and not subject to the mutual consent of A/E, upon not less than 
thirty (30) days written notice to A/E. 

 
16.5 
By satisfactory completion of all Basic Services and obligations described herein. 
 
Should County terminate this Agreement as herein provided, no fees other than fees due and 
payable at the time of termination plus reimbursable expenses incurred shall thereafter be paid 
to A/E.  In determining the value of the Basic Services performed by A/E prior to termination, 
County shall be the sole judge.  Compensation for Basic Services at termination will be based on 
a percentage of the Basic Services completed at that time.  Should County terminate this 
Agreement under Section 16.4 above, then the amount charged during the thirty (30)-day notice 
period shall not exceed the amount charged during the preceding thirty (30) days. 
 
If A/E defaults in the performance of this Agreement or if County terminates this Agreement for 
fault on the part of A/E, then County shall give consideration to the actual costs incurred by A/E 
in performing the Basic Services to the date of default, the amount of Basic Services required 
which was satisfactorily completed to date of default, the value of the Basic Services which are 
usable to County, the cost to County of employing another firm to complete the Basic Services 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 13 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

required and the time required to do so, and other factors which affect the value to County of the 
Basic Services performed at the time of default. 
 
The termination of this Agreement and payment of an amount in settlement as prescribed above 
shall extinguish all rights, duties, and obligations of County under this Agreement. If the 
termination of this Agreement is due to the failure of A/E to fulfill its contractual obligations, then 
County may take over the Project and prosecute the Basic Services to completion.  In such case, 
A/E shall be liable to County for any additional and reasonable costs incurred by County. 
 
A/E shall be responsible for the settlement of all contractual and administrative issues arising out 
of any procurements made by A/E in support of the Basic Services under this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 17 
USE OF DOCUMENTS 

 
All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, and data or programs stored 
electronically, (hereinafter referred to as “A/E Work Products”) prepared by A/E and its 
subcontractors/ subconsultants are related exclusively to the services described in this Agreement 
and are intended to be used with respect to this Project.  However, it is expressly understood and 
agreed by and between the parties hereto that all of A/E’s designs under this Agreement 
(including but not limited to tracings, drawings, estimates, specifications, investigations, studies 
and other documents, completed or partially completed), shall be the property of County to be 
thereafter used in any lawful manner as County elects.  Any such subsequent use made of 
documents by County shall be at County’s sole risk and without liability to A/E. 

 
By execution of this Agreement and in confirmation of the fee for services to be paid under this 
Agreement, A/E hereby conveys, transfers, and assigns to County all rights under the Federal 
Copyright Act of 1976 (or any successor copyright statute), as amended, all common law 
copyrights and all other intellectual property rights acknowledged by law in the Project Designs 
and Work Product developed under this Agreement.  Copies may be retained by A/E.  A/E shall 
be liable to County for any loss or damage to any such documents while they are in the possession 
of or while being worked upon by A/E or anyone connected with A/E, including agents, 
employees, Engineers or subcontractors/ subconsultants.  All documents so lost or damaged shall 
be replaced or restored by A/E without cost to County. 
 
Upon execution of this Agreement, A/E grants to County permission to reproduce A/E’s work 
and documents for purposes of constructing, using, and maintaining the Project, provided that 
County will comply with its obligations, including prompt payment of all sums when due, under 
this Agreement. A/E shall obtain similar permission from A/E’s subcontractors/ subconsultants 
consistent with this Agreement.  If and upon the date A/E is adjudged in default of this 
Agreement, County is permitted to authorize other similarly credentialed design professionals to 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 14 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

reproduce and, where permitted by law, to make changes, corrections, or additions to the work 
and documents for the purposes of completing, using, and maintaining the Project. 

 
County shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge, or otherwise transfer any permission 
granted herein to another party without the prior written consent of A/E.  However, County shall 
be permitted to authorize the contractor, subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers to 
reproduce applicable portions of A/E Work Products appropriate to and for use in the execution 
of the Work.  Submission or distribution of A/E Work Products to meet official regulatory 
requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is permitted.  Any 
unauthorized use of A/E Work Products shall be at County's sole risk and without liability to A/E 
and its subconsultants. 

 
Prior to A/E providing to County any A/E Work Products in electronic form or County providing 
to A/E any electronic data for incorporation into A/E Work Products, County and A/E shall, by 
separate written agreement, set forth the specific conditions governing the format of such A/E 
Work Products or electronic data, including any special limitations not otherwise provided in this 
Agreement.  Any electronic files are provided by A/E for the convenience of County and use of 
them is at County’s sole risk.  In the case of any defects in electronic files or any discrepancies 
between them and any hardcopy of the same documents prepared by A/E, the hardcopy shall 
prevail.  Only printed copies of documents conveyed by A/E shall be relied upon.   

 
A/E shall have no liability for changes made to the drawings by other consultants subsequent to 
the completion of the Project.  Any such change shall be sealed by A/E making that change and 
shall be appropriately marked to reflect what was changed or modified. 
 
 

ARTICLE 18 
PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIAL 

 
A/E shall furnish and maintain, at its own expense, quarters for the performance of all Basic 
Services, and adequate and sufficient personnel and equipment to perform the Basic Services as 
required.  All employees of A/E shall have such knowledge and experience as will enable them 
to perform the duties assigned to them.  Any employee of A/E who, in the reasonable opinion of 
County, is incompetent or whose conduct becomes detrimental to the Basic Services shall 
immediately be removed from association with the Project when so instructed by County.  A/E 
certifies that it presently has adequate qualified personnel in its employment for performance of 
the Basic Services required under this Agreement, or will obtain such personnel from sources 
other than County.  A/E may not change the Project Manager without prior written consent of 
County. 
 
 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 15 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

ARTICLE 19 
SUBCONTRACTING 

 
A/E shall not assign, subcontract, or transfer any portion of the Basic Services under this 
Agreement without prior written approval from County.  All subcontracts shall include the 
provisions required in this Agreement.  No subcontract shall relieve A/E of any responsibilities 
under this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 20 
MODIFICATIONS 

 
This instrument contains the entire Agreement between the parties relating to the right herein 
granted and obligations herein assumed.  Any oral or written representations or modifications 
concerning this instrument shall be of no force and effect excepting a subsequent written 
modification signed by both parties hereto. 
 
 

ARTICLE 21 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

 
21.1  Compliance.   
A/E shall render the services hereunder in accordance with generally accepted standards 
applicable thereto and shall use that degree of care and skill commensurate with the architecture 
and engineering professions, and in recognition of such standards, A/E shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations, and 
the orders and decrees of any court, or administrative bodies or tribunals in any manner affecting 
the performance of this Agreement, including, without limitation, minimum/ maximum salary 
and wage statutes and regulations, and licensing laws and regulations.  A/E shall furnish County 
with satisfactory proof of its compliance. 
 
A/E shall further obtain all permits and licenses required in the performance of the Basic Services 
contracted for herein. 

 
21.2  Taxes.   
A/E shall pay all taxes, if any, required by law arising by virtue of the Basic Services performed 
hereunder.  County is qualified for exemption pursuant to the provisions of Section 151.309 of 
the Texas Limited Sales, Excise, and Use Tax Act. 
 
 

ARTICLE 22 
INDEMNIFICATION 

 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 16 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

A/E AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY 
HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, 
LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONABLE 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM A 
NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION, NEGLIGENCE, OR INTENTIONAL TORT COMMITTED BY A/E, A/E’S 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY UNDER CONTRACT WITH A/E INCLUDING, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, A/E’S SUBCONSULTANTS, OR ANY OTHER ENTITY OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES 
CONTROL.   
 
A/E FURTHER AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, 
LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONABLE 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM A/E’S 
FAILURE TO PAY A/E’S EMPLOYEES, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, IN 
CONNECTION WITH ANY OF THE WORK PERFORMED OR TO BE PERFORMED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 
BY A/E.   
 
A/E FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, 
LOSSES, PENALTIES, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY 
OR RESULTS FROM THE INFRINGEMENT OF ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF 
ANY PLANS, DESIGN, DRAWINGS, OR SPECIFICATIONS FURNISHED BY A/E IN THE PERFORMANCE OF 
THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
THE LIMITS OF INSURANCE REQUIRED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
SHALL NOT LIMIT A/E’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS ARTICLE 22.  THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS ARTICLE 22 SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT AND/OR 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS OR THE SUSPENSION OF THE WORK HEREUNDER.  TO THE EXTENT THAT ANY 
LIABILITIES, PENALTIES, DEMANDS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES ARE 
CAUSED IN PART BY THE ACTS OF COUNTY OR THIRD PARTIES FOR WHOM A/E IS NOT LEGALLY 
LIABLE, A/E’S OBLIGATIONS SHALL BE IN PROPORTION TO A/E’S FAULT.  THE OBLIGATIONS HEREIN 
SHALL ALSO EXTEND TO ANY ACTIONS BY COUNTY TO ENFORCE THIS INDEMNITY OBLIGATION. 
 
IN THE EVENT THAT CONTRACTORS INITIATE LITIGATION AGAINST COUNTY IN WHICH CONTRACTOR 
ALLEGES DAMAGES AS A RESULT OF ANY ACTS, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS OF A/E OR ANY OF ITS 
EMPLOYEES OR ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY A/E, 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DEFECTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS IN THE CONSTRUCTION 
DOCUMENTS OR IN THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE AGREEMENT BY A/E OR ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES 
OR ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY A/E, AND/OR 
INADEQUATE SERVICES PURSUANT TO THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE-ADMINISTRATION OF THE 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AS DEFINED AND REQUIRED BY THIS AGREEMENT, AGREEMENT 
EXHIBITS AND THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, THEN COUNTY SHALL HAVE THE 
RIGHT TO JOIN A/E AT COUNTY’S COST.  A/E SHALL ALSO HOLD COUNTY HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 17 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

COUNTY TO THE EXTENT THAT A/E, ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, 
SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES CONTROL, 
CAUSED SUCH DAMAGES TO CONTRACTOR, INCLUDING ANY AND ALL COSTS AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES 
INCURRED BY COUNTY IN CONNECTION WITH THE DEFENSE OF ANY CLAIMS WHERE A/E, ITS 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES 
OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES CONTROL, ARE ADJUDICATED AT FAULT. 
 
 

ARTICLE 23 
PROFESSIONAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
A/E shall be responsible for the accuracy of its Professional Services and shall promptly make 
necessary revisions or corrections to its Work Product resulting from errors, omissions, or 
negligent acts, and same shall be done without compensation.  County shall determine A/E’s 
responsibilities for all questions arising from design errors and/or omissions, subject to the 
dispute resolution provisions of Article 31.  A/E shall not be relieved of responsibility for 
subsequent correction of any such errors or omissions in its work product, or for clarification of 
any ambiguities until after the construction phase of the Project has been completed. 
 
 

ARTICLE 24 
PROFESSIONAL’S SEAL 

 
The responsible architect and engineer shall sign, seal, and date all appropriate submissions to 
County in accordance with Texas laws and the rules of the State Boards of Registration for 
Professionals. 

 
 

ARTICLE 25 
INSURANCE 

 
A/E shall comply with the following insurance requirements, at all times, during this Agreement: 
 
25.1  Coverage Limits.   
A/E, at A/E’s sole cost, shall purchase and maintain, during the entire term while this Agreement 
is in effect, the following insurance: 

 
 25.1.1 

Worker's Compensation in accordance with statutory requirements. 
 

 25.1.2 
Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined minimum Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate. 

 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 18 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

 25.1.3 
Automobile Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with 
combined minimum limits for Bodily Injury and Property Damage limits of $500,000 per 
occurrence and $1,000,000 in the aggregate. 

 
 25.1.4 

Professional Liability Errors and Omissions Insurance in the amount of $2,000,000 per 
claim. 

 
25.2 Additional Insureds; Waiver of Subrogation.   
County, its directors, officers and employees shall be added as additional insureds under policies 
listed under (2) and (3) above, and on those policies where County, its directors, officers and 
employees are additional insureds, such insurance shall be primary; and, any insurance 
maintained by County shall be excess and not contribute with it.  Such policies shall also include 
waivers of subrogation in favor of County. 
 
25.3 Premiums and Deductible.   
A/E shall be responsible for payment of premiums for all insurance coverages required under this 
Article 25.  A/E further agrees that for each claim, suit, or action made against insurance provided 
hereunder, with respect to all matters for which A/E is responsible hereunder, A/E shall be solely 
responsible for all deductibles and self-insured retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured 
retentions over $50,000 in A/E’s insurance must be declared and approved in writing by County 
in advance. 
 
25.4 Commencement of Work.   
A/E shall not commence any work under this Agreement until it has obtained all required 
insurance and such insurance has been approved by County.  As further set out below, A/E shall 
not allow any subcontractor/ subconsultant(s) to commence work to be performed in connection 
with this Agreement until all required insurance has been obtained and approved; and, such 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Approval of the insurance by County shall not 
relieve or decrease the liability of A/E hereunder. 
 
25.5 Insurance Company Rating.   
Required insurance must be written by a company approved to do business in the State or Texas 
with a financial standing of at least an A-rating, as reflected in Best’s insurance ratings or by a 
similar rating system recognized within the insurance industry at the time the policy is issued. 

 
25.6 Certification of Coverage.   
A/E shall furnish County with a certification of coverage issued by the insurer.  A/E shall not 
cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance to lapse.  In addition to any other 
notification requires set forth hereunder, A/E shall also notify County, within twenty-four (24) 
hours of receipt, of any notices of expiration, cancellation, non-renewal, or material change in 
coverage it receives from its insurer. 

 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 19 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

25.7 No Arbitration.   
It is the intention of County and agreed to and hereby acknowledged by A/E, that no provision 
of this Agreement shall be construed to require County to submit to mandatory arbitration in the 
settlement of any claim, cause of action or dispute, except as specifically required in direct 
connection with an insurance claim or threat of claim under an insurance policy required 
hereunder or as may be required by law or a court of law with jurisdiction over the provisions of 
this Agreement. 

 
25.8 Subcontractor/ Subconsultant’s Insurance.   
Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of A/E, A/E shall require each 
subcontractor/ subconsultant performing work under this Agreement (to the extent a 
subcontractor/ subconsultant is allowed by County) to maintain during the term of this 
Agreement, at the subcontractor/ subconsultant’s own expense, the same stipulated minimum 
insurance required in this Article 25 above, including the required provisions and additional 
policy conditions as shown below in this Article 25. 

 
A/E shall obtain and monitor the certificates of insurance from each subcontractor/ subconsultant 
in order to assure compliance with the insurance requirements.  A/E must retain the certificates 
of insurance for the duration of this Agreement and shall have the responsibility of enforcing 
these insurance requirements among its subcontractor/ subconsultants.  County shall be entitled, 
upon request and without expense, to receive copies of these certificates of insurance. 

 
25.9 Insurance Policy Endorsements.   
Each insurance policy shall include the following conditions by endorsement to the policy: 
 
 25.9.1 

County shall be notified thirty (30) days prior to the expiration, cancellation, nonrenewal 
or any material change in coverage, and such notice thereof shall be given to County by 
certified mail to: 

 
Williamson County Purchasing 
100 Wilco Way 
Suite P101 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 25.10.1 

The policy clause “Other Insurance” shall not apply to any insurance coverage currently 
held by County, to any such future coverage, or to County’s Self-Insured Retentions of 
whatever nature. 

 
25.10 Cost of Insurance.   
The cost of all insurance required herein to be secured and maintained by A/E shall be borne 
solely by A/E, with certificates of insurance evidencing such minimum coverage in force to be 
filed with County.  Such certificates of insurance are evidenced as Exhibit F. 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 20 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

 
 

ARTICLE 26 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their 
successors, lawful assigns, and legal representatives.  A/E may not assign, sublet, or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement, in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise, without 
obtaining the prior written consent of County. 

 
 

ARTICLE 27 
SEVERABILITY 

 
In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason 
be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, then such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

 
 

ARTICLE 28 
PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED 

 
This Agreement constitutes the sole agreement of the parties hereto and supersedes any prior 
understandings or written or oral agreements between the parties respecting the subject matter 
defined herein.  This Agreement may only be amended or supplemented by mutual agreement 
of the parties hereto in writing. 

 
 

ARTICLE 29 
A/E’S ACCOUNTING RECORDS 

 
A/E agrees to maintain, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, 
detailed records identifying each individual performing services, the date or dates the services 
were performed, the applicable hourly rates, the total amount billed for each individual, and the 
total amount billed for all persons, records of reimbursable costs and expenses of other providers 
and provide such other details as may be requested by the County Auditor for verification 
purposes.  A/E agrees that County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the expiration 
of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, have access to and the right to 
examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers, and records of A/E which are 
directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of 
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  A/E further agrees that County shall 
have access during normal working hours to all necessary A/E facilities and shall be provided 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 21 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

adequate and appropriate workspace in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this Article 29.  County shall give A/E reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 
 

 
ARTICLE 30 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
30.1 Time is of the Essence.   
A/E understands and agrees that time is of the essence and that any failure of A/E to complete 
the Basic Services within the agreed Production Schedule set out in Exhibit C may constitute a 
material breach of this Agreement.  A/E shall be fully responsible for its delays or for failures to 
use its reasonable efforts in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and A/E’s standard of 
performance as defined herein.  Where damage is caused to County due to A/E’s negligent failure 
to perform, County may accordingly withhold, to the extent of such damage, A/E’s payments 
hereunder without waiver of any of County’s additional legal rights or remedies. 
 
30.2 Force Majeure.   
Neither County nor A/E shall be deemed in violation of this Agreement if prevented from 
performing any of their obligations hereunder by reasons for which they are not responsible or 
circumstances beyond their control.  However, notice of such impediment or delay in 
performance must be timely given, and all reasonable efforts undertaken to mitigate its effects. 

 
30.3 Enforcement and Venue.   
This Agreement shall be enforceable in Georgetown, Williamson County, Texas, and if legal 
action is necessary by either party with respect to the enforcement of any or all of the terms or 
conditions herein, exclusive venue for same shall lie in Williamson County, Texas.  This 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and court decisions 
of the State of Texas excluding, however, its choice of law rules. 

 
30.4 Standard of Performance.   
The standard of care for all professional architecture, engineering, consulting and related services 
performed or furnished by A/E and its employees under this Agreement will be the care and skill 
ordinarily used by members of A/E’s profession, practicing under the same or similar 
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. 

 
30.5 Opinion of Probable Cost.   
Any opinions of probable Project cost or probable construction cost provided by A/E are made 
on the basis of information available to A/E and on the basis of A/E’s experience and qualifications 
and represents its judgment as an experienced and qualified professional.  However, since A/E 
has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or 
over the contractor(s’) methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market 
conditions, A/E does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual Project or construction cost will 
not vary from opinions of probable cost A/E prepares. 

 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 22 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

30.6 Opinions and Determinations.   
Where the terms of this Agreement provide for action to be based upon opinion, judgment, 
approval, review, or determination of either party hereto, such terms are not intended to be and 
shall never be construed as permitting such opinion, judgment, approval, review, or 
determination to be arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable. 

 
30.7 Reports of Accidents.   
Within twenty-four (24) hours after A/E becomes aware of the occurrence of any accident or other 
event which results in, or might result in, injury to the person or property of any third person 
(other than an employee of A/E), whether or not it results from, or involves, any action or failure 
to act by A/E or any employee or agent of A/E and which arises in any manner from the 
performance of this Agreement, A/E shall send a written report of such accident or other event to 
County, setting forth a full and concise statement of the facts pertaining thereto.  A/E shall also 
immediately send to County a copy of any summons, subpoena, notice, or other documents 
served upon A/E, its agents, employees, or representatives, or received by it or them, in 
connection with any matter before any court arising in any manner from A/E’s performance of 
work under this Agreement. 

 
30.8 Gender, Number, and Headings.   
Words of any gender used in this Agreement shall be held and construed to include any other 
gender, and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural, unless the context 
otherwise requires.  The headings and section numbers are for convenience only and shall not be 
considered in interpreting or construing this Agreement. 

 
30.9 Construction.  
Each party hereto acknowledges that it and its counsel have reviewed this Agreement and that 
the normal rules of construction are not applicable and there will be no presumption that any 
ambiguities will be resolved against the drafting party in the interpretation of this Agreement. 
 
30.10 Independent Contractor Relationship.   
Both parties hereto, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an individual capacity and 
not as agents, employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The employees or 
agents of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other 
party for any purposes whatsoever. 

 
30.11 No Waiver of Immunities.   
Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive, modify, or amend any legal defense 
available at law or in equity to County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to 
create any legal rights or claim on behalf of any third party.  County does not waive, modify, or 
alter, to any extent whatsoever, the availability of the defense of governmental immunity under 
the laws of the State of Texas and of the United States. 

 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 23 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

30.12 Texas Public Information Act.   
To the extent, if any, that any provision in this Agreement is in conflict with Texas Government 
Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no force or 
effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that County, its officers and employees 
may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard 
to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that County’s officers 
and employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any 
party hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data 
furnished to County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the 
Attorney General of the State of Texas. 

 
30.13 Governing Terms and Conditions.   
If there is an irreconcilable conflict between the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 
or any Supplemental Agreement and the terms and conditions set forth in any Exhibit, Appendix 
to this Agreement, the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement or any Supplemental 
Agreement shall control over the terms and conditions set forth in any Exhibit, Appendix to this 
Agreement. 

 
30.14 Appropriation of Funds by County.   
County believes it has sufficient funds currently available and authorized for expenditure to 
finance the costs of this Agreement. A/E understands and agrees that County’s payment of 
amounts under this Agreement is contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to continue to make payments under this Agreement. It is further understood and 
agreed by A/E that County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at the end of any 
County fiscal year if the governing body of County does not appropriate sufficient funds as 
determined by County’s budget for the fiscal year in question.  County may affect such 
termination by giving written notice of termination to A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 31 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 
Except as otherwise specifically set forth herein, County and A/E shall work together in good 
faith to resolve any controversy, dispute, or claim between them which arises out of or relates to 
this Agreement, whether stated in tort, contract, statute, claim for benefits, bad faith, professional 
liability or otherwise ("Claim").  If the parties are unable to resolve the Claim within thirty (30) 
days following the date in which one party sent written notice of the Claim to the other party, 
and if a party wishes to pursue the Claim, such Claim shall be addressed through non-binding 
mediation.  A single mediator engaged in the practice of law, who is knowledgeable about subject 
matter of this Agreement, shall be selected by agreement of the parties and serve as the mediator.  
Any mediation under this Agreement shall be conducted in Williamson County, Texas.  The 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 24 of 25    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

mediator’s fees shall be borne equally between the parties.  Such non-binding mediation is a 
condition precedent to seeking redress in a court of competent jurisdiction, but this provision 
shall not preclude either party from filing a lawsuit in a court of competent jurisdiction prior to 
completing a mediation, if necessary to preserve the statute of limitations, in which case such 
lawsuit shall be stayed pending completion of the mediation process contemplated herein.  This 
provision shall survive the termination of the Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 32 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT 

 
The parties to this Agreement agree that during the performance of the services under this 
Agreement they will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 
of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The parties to this Agreement will take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such action shall 
include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.  

 
 

ARTICLE 33 
MERGER 

 
The Parties agree that this Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions of the 
understanding of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  All prior negotiations, 
discussions, correspondence and preliminary understandings between the parties and others 
relating hereto are superseded by this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 34 
PUBLIC CONTACT 

 
Contact with the news media, citizens of Williamson County or governmental agencies shall be 
the responsibility of County.  Under no circumstances shall A/E release any material or 
information developed in the performance of its services hereunder without the express written 
permission of County. 
 
 

ARTICLE 35 
A/E’s REPRESENTATIONS 

 
A/E represents that it is financially solvent, able to pay its debts as they become due, and 
possesses sufficient working capital to complete the services and perform its obligation under 





1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

 

Exhibit A  Page 1 of 7    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P535 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 

BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 

THE FOLLOWING SCOPE OF SERVICES IS INTENDED TO BE CONSISTENT WITH THE 
AGREEMENT.  TO THE EXTENT THIS SCOPE OF SERVICES IS INCONSISTENT WITH THE 
AGREEMENT, THE AGREEMENT WILL SUPERSEDE THE SCOPE OF SERVICES AND WILL 
BE CONTROLLING. 

In consideration of the Basic Fee provided in the Agreement, A/E shall perform the following 
Basic Services, based on standard architectural and engineering practices: 

These services may include, but are not limited to structural, mechanical, plumbing, electrical, 
construction administration, and specialized studies and analysis. 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Design Criteria.  A/E shall prepare all work in accordance with the latest version of applicable 
County’s procedures, specifications, manuals, guidelines, standard drawings, and standard 
specifications. A/E shall prepare each PS&E package in a form suitable for letting through 
County’s construction contract bidding and awarding process. 

Right-of-Entry and Coordination.  A/E shall notify County and secure permission to enter 
private property to perform any surveying, environmental, engineering or geotechnical activities 
needed off County property.  In pursuance of County’s policy with the general public, A/E shall 
not commit acts which would result in damages to private property, and A/E shall make every 
effort to comply with the wishes and address the concerns of affected private property owners.  
A/E shall contact each property owner prior to any entry onto the owner’s property and shall 
request concurrence from County prior to each entry. 

A/E shall notify County and coordinate with adjacent A/Es on all controls at project interfaces.  

A/E shall prepare each exhibit necessary for approval by each utility, and other governmental or 
regulatory agency in compliance with the applicable format and guidelines required by each 
entity and as approved by County. A/E shall notify County in writing prior to beginning any 
work on any outside agency’s exhibit. 

Progress Reporting.  A/E shall submit monthly (at a minimum) a progress status e-mail to 
County’s Project Manager (PM) regardless of whether A/E is invoicing for that month. 

A/E shall prepare and maintain a design and estimated construction schedule in a format 
acceptable to County during project phases prior to the Construction Administration Phase.  A/E 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

 

Exhibit A  Page 2 of 7    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P535 
 

 

shall schedule milestone submittals per Exhibit C – Production Schedule.  Contractor shall prepare 
and maintain a construction schedule in Gantt chart format during the project Construction 
Administration Phase through the Close-out Phase.   

Within 30 days of completion of construction of the project, A/E shall deliver all electronic files in 
formats acceptable to County. 

Final payment is contingent upon County’s receipt and confirmation by County’s PM that the 
electronic files run and are formatted in accordance with the Agreement and all review comments 
are addressed. 

A/E shall prepare a letter of transmittal to accompany each document submittal to County. At a 
minimum, the letter of transmittal must include County’s project name, Agreement and Work 
Authorization numbers, as well as facility name and address. 

Coordination.  A/E shall coordinate issues through County’s PM.  County will communicate 
resolution of issues and provide A/E direction through County’s PM. 

Level of Effort.  A/E shall base the level of effort at each phase on the prior work developed in 
earlier phases without unnecessary repetition or re-study. 

Quality Assurance (QA) and Quality Control (QC).  A/E shall provide peer review at all levels.  
For each deliverable, A/E shall maintain evidence of their internal review and mark-up of that 
deliverable as preparation for submittal.  When internal mark-ups are requested by County in 
advance, County, at its sole discretion, may reject the deliverable should A/E fail to provide the 
evidence of quality control.  A/E shall clearly label each document submitted for quality assurance 
as an internal mark-up document. 

A/E shall perform QA and QC on all subconsultant products (when applicable to the project) 
prior to delivery to County.  If, during the course of reviewing a submittal, it becomes apparent 
to County that the submittal contains unreasonable errors, omissions, or inconsistencies, County 
may cease its review and immediately return the submittal for appropriate action by A/E. 

A submittal returned to A/E for this reason is not a submittal for purposes of the submission 
schedule.  Rejected submittals shall not impact overall deadline of the Project nor the review 
period allotted to County officials.  A/E shall provide an updated schedule showing interim 
submission date changes to make-up for any lost time.  A/E shall not submit an invoice until 
County accepts the submittal as complete. 

Organization of Plan Sheets.  The PS&E package shall be complete and organized in a manner 
that is suitable for the bidding and awarding of a construction contract. 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

 

Exhibit A  Page 3 of 7    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P535 
 

 

Naming of Electronic Project Files and Organization of Design Project Folders.  A/E shall use 
succinct and understandable file names including project name, file content, date created (i.e. 
“Project Name_SD PLANS_year.month.day”).  A/E shall maintain files in an organized folder 
structure that is readily understandable to outside users to facilitate communication and 
minimize complications in project close-out. 

SCOPE OF WORK:         

Williamson County and Cities Health District 
355 Texas Ave. 
Round Rock, TX 78664 
CCHD & WIC 
P535 
 

Provide Electrical, Mechanical, and Plumbing Engineering for a remodel in an existing building 
to renovate existing reception areas on the ground floor and create a new Janitor’s Closet on the 
upper floor. 

 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

 

Exhibit A  Page 4 of 7    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P535 
 

 

 

Design services shall be conducted in phases as outlined herein.  Phases may be combined to 
expedite design process when defined in Exhibit C – Production Schedule.  Individual phases or 
groups of phases shall be authorized herein or by fully executed Supplemental Agreement. 

Phase I - SCHEMATIC DESIGN – Program, Plans, Outline Specifications and Estimate 

Upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed, A/E shall accomplish the following: 

A. Investigate site/facility and verify known existing or available utility locations. 

B. International Building Code (IBC), ASHRAE 90.1, ASHRAE 62.1, International 
Mechanical Code (IMC), National Electric Code (NEC), International Energy 
Conservation Code (IECC), and any other applicable codes and ordinances. 

C. Advise County of any changes, additions, or corrections to the preliminary 
program, plans, specifications, and budget. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase II - DESIGN DEVELOPMENT - Plans, Specifications and Estimate 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

 

Exhibit A  Page 5 of 7    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P535 
 

 

A. Consult freely with County concerning the principal phases of the work and 
immediately advise County of any unusual requirements or features not apparent 
during execution of the Schematic Design Phase. 

B. Develop plans and specifications, which indicate materials, construction methods 
and buildings systems. These building systems may include (but are not limited 
to) structural, mechanical, plumbing, and electrical. 

C. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase III - CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS - Plans, Specifications, and Estimate 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 

A. Prepare complete plans, specifications, and engineering calculations (without 
professional seals) setting forth in detail the work required for the structural, 
mechanical, plumbing, and electrical work. 

B. Consult freely with County concerning the principal phases of the work 
immediately advise County of any unusual requirements or features not apparent 
during execution of the Schematic Design and Design Development Phases.   

C. Complete the PS&E for the entire Project and its component parts. The Project 
detailed cost estimate shall not exceed the project construction budget as approved 
in writing by County. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase IV – REGULATORY REVIEW AND PERMITS - Plans, Specifications, and Permits: 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 

A. Participate in any Pre-submittal Meetings required by local jurisdiction prior to 
Permit application submittal. 

B. Receive and respond to permitting comments by the local jurisdiction having 
review authority. 

C. Revise plans and specifications as necessary to conform to permitting, 
accessibility, and budget requirements without additional charge to County. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

 

Exhibit A  Page 6 of 7    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P535 
 

 

Phase V – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT BIDDING, AWARD, AND EXECUTION 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 

A. Participate in a Pre-bid Meeting, answer RFI’s from Contractors and suppliers, and 
prepare addenda items as required.  

B. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase VI - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION - Project Observation and Inspection: 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall perform the following work: 

A. Review and submit copies of each shop drawing and submittal of materials and 
equipment to County. 

B. Conduct site visits with personnel technically qualified by education and 
experience to competently observe relevant aspects of construction. Make 
necessary observations to determine if workmanship and quality of materials 
generally conform to the plans and specifications, and that provisions of the 
contract are complied with. 

C. Reject work performed by Contractor which does not meet the requirements of the 
Construction Documents; and, order removal and replacement of such work. 

D. Accompany County on Substantial Completion Inspection with appropriate staff 
and affiliates.  Prepare a punch list of items needing correction.  After Contractor 
has performed the required corrections, notify County in writing that the contract 
has been performed in general conformance with the plans and specifications and 
is ready for Final Inspection. 

E. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase VII – PROJECT CLOSE-OUT – Final Inspection and Document Review: 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall perform the following work: 

A. Accompany County on Final Inspection to determine if construction has been 
completed in general accordance with the Contract Documents.  

B. Review warranties, guarantees, bonds, equipment operating instructions, and 
similar deliverables to verify receipt, and general conformance to requirements of 
the Contract. 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

 

Exhibit A  Page 7 of 7    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P535 
 

 

C. Upon completion of construction and prior to the request for final payment, make 
changes in the original REVIT model or CAD files of the Project to show changes 
made and noted by Contractor of the work and final location of the mechanical 
service lines and outlets including outside utilities.  Develop project Record 
Construction Drawings and Specifications. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 



1/14/2021
CHD+WIC Lobby Janitor Remodel

2,100$           100%

1,500$           71%

600$              29%

2 300$              / visit

Principal Engineer $150 / hr

The rate adjustment will be determined by multiplying the Initial Base Rates by a 
fraction, the numerator of which is the index number for most recently released index 
before each annual anniversary date of the Agreement and the denominator of which is  
the index number for thefirst month of the Agreement (the index number for the month 
in which the Agreement was originally executed).  If the products are greater than the 

FEE SCHEDULE

Phases I-VII - SCHEMATIC DESIGN through CLOSE-OUT

This schedule indicates fees by Phase of the Basic Fee:

EXHIBIT B

Individual hourly rate schedule:

Site Visits - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION

 never be less than the Initial Base Rates.

CPI Rate Adjustments:  Rates shall remain firm for the first year of the Agreement and 
such rates shall be deemed the “Initial Base Rates”.  A/E must request rate adjustments, 
in writing, at least thirty (30) days prior to each annual anniversary date of the 
Agreement and any rate changes will take effect on the first day following the prior 
year.  If A/E fails to request a CPI rate adjustment, as set forth herein, the adjustment 
will be effective thirty (30) days after County receives A/E’s written request.  No 
retroactive rate adjustments will be allowed.  All rate  adjustments and modifications 

Price adjustments will be made in accordance with changes in the U.S. Department of 
Labor Consumer Price Index (CPI-U) for All Urban Consumers, All Items, South Region 
(Base 1982-84 = 100).

shall be set forth in a written fully executed amendment.

Initial Base Rates, County will pay the greater amounts as the rates during the 
successive year until the next rate adjustment.  Rates for each successive year will 

Exhibit B
Form rev. 12/2020 Page 1 of 1

 0509-2021-1073-01
P535



1/14/2021
CHD+WIC Lobby Janitor Remodel

Agreement Execution Date 01/26/21

60% Plans, Specifications and Estimate deliverables 03/26/21

County written authorization to proceed to next phase 04/02/21

Complete Plans, Specifications and Estimate deliverables 05/03/21

County written authorization to proceed to next phase 05/10/21

Sealed Plans and Specifications and Estimate deliverables to County 05/17/21

Plans submittal to TDLR and Permit application submittal to City 05/24/21

Construction Permits received from City 06/23/21

County advertises project for Bid 07/07/21

Contract Award 08/06/21

Contractor Notice to Proceed 08/13/21

Phase I+II - DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

Phase III - CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

Phase V - BIDDING, AWARD, AND EXECUTION

Phase VI - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION	

Phase IV - REGULATORY REVIEW AND PERMITS

PRODUCTION SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT C

A/E agrees to complete the professional design services called for in Exhibit A of

date of this Agreement.
this Agreement within Four Hundred Fifty-Six (456) calendar days from the

Standard end-of-phase review periods for County shall be (5) business days minimum.  

The above time limits may, for good cause, be extended, in writing, by County as the 
Project proceeds.

The schedule below indicates various project milestones and target dates.

Exhibit C
Form rev. 12/2020 Page 1 of 2

 0509-2021-1073-01
P535



1/14/2021
CHD+WIC Lobby Janitor Remodel

Construction Substantial Completion 12/13/21

Record Documents deliverables 01/12/22

Agreement Termination Date 04/27/22

Phase VII - PROJECT CLOSE-OUT

Exhibit C
Form rev. 12/2020 Page 2 of 2

 0509-2021-1073-01
P535



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 1 of 7        0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P535 

EXHIBIT D 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY VENDOR REIMBURSEMENT POLICY 

The purpose of this Williamson County Vendor Reimbursement Policy (“Policy”) is to provide 
clear guidelines to vendors on Williamson County’s expectations and requirements regarding 
allowable reimbursable expenditures and required backup. The Policy will also minimize 
conflicts related to invoice payments and define non-reimbursable items. This Policy is 
considered a guideline and is not a contract. 

This Policy may be altered, deleted, or amended at any time and without prior notice to vendors, 
by action of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. Unenforceable provisions of this 
Policy, as imposed by applicable law, regulations, or judicial decisions, shall be deemed to be 
deleted. Any revisions to this Policy will be distributed to all current vendors doing business with 
County. 

1. Invoices and Affidavits 

1.1 Invoices must adequately describe the goods or services provided to County and 
include all required backup (i.e. reimbursable expenses, mileage log, timesheets, 
receipts detailing expenses incurred etc.) that is in a form acceptable to the Williamson 
County Auditor. Invoices that do not adequately describe the goods or services 
provided to County or contain backup that is not satisfactory to the Williamson 
County Auditor will be returned to vendor for revisions and the provision above 
relating to invoice errors resolved in favor of County shall control as to the required 
actions of vendor and when such invoice must be paid by County. 

1.2 In the event an invoice includes charges based upon hourly billing rates for services 
or any other rates based upon the amount of time worked by an individual or 
individuals in performing services, whether the charges are being billed directly to 
County or whether they are the basis of invoices from subcontractors for which the 
vendor seeks reimbursement from County, the charges shall be accompanied by an 
affidavit signed by an officer or principal of the vendor certifying that the work was 
performed, it was authorized by County and that all information contained in the 
invoice that is being submitted is true and correct. 

1.3 Upon County’s request, vendor must submit all bills paid affidavits wherein vendor 
must swear and affirm that vendor has paid each of its subcontractors, laborers, 
suppliers and material in full for all labor and materials provided to vendor for or in 
connection with services and work performed for County and, further, vendor must 
swear and affirm that vendor is not aware of any unpaid bills, claims, demands, or 
causes of action by any of its subcontractors, laborers, suppliers, or material for or in 
connection with the furnishing of labor or materials, or both, for services and work 
performed for County. 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 2 of 7        0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P535 

2. Travel Reimbursement 

2.1 County will only cover costs associated with travel on vendors outside a 50-mile 
radius from Williamson County, Texas. 

2.2 County will only cover costs associated with travel as documented work for County. 
If a vendor is also doing business for another client, the travel costs must be split in 
proportion to the amount of work actually performed for County and the other client. 
The only allowable travel expense will be for the specific days worked for Williamson 
County. 

2.3 No advance payments will be made to vendor for travel expenditures. The travel 
expenditure may only be reimbursed after the expenditure/trip has already occurred 
and vendor has provided the Williamson County Auditor with all necessary and 
required backup. 

2.4 Vendors must submit all travel reimbursement requests on each employee in full. 
Specifically, a travel reimbursement request must include all related travel 
reimbursement expenses relating to a particular trip for which vendor seeks 
reimbursement. Partial travel reimbursement requests will not be accepted (i.e. 
vendor shall not submit hotel and mileage one month then the next month submit 
rental car and airfare). If the travel reimbursement appears incomplete, the invoice 
will be sent back to the vendor to be submitted when all information is ready to submit 
in full. 

2.5 Reimbursement for transportation costs will be at the most reasonable means of 
transportation (i.e.: airline costs will be reimbursed for coach rate, rental car costs will 
only be reimbursed if rental car travel was most reasonable means of travel as 
compared to travel by air). 

2.6 County will not be responsible for, nor will County reimburse additional charges due 
to personal preference or personal convenience of individual traveling. 

2.7 County will not reimburse airfare costs if airfare costs were higher than costs of 
mileage reimbursement. 

2.8 Additional expenses associated with travel that is extended to save costs (i.e. Saturday 
night stay) may be reimbursed if costs of airfare would be less than the cost of 
additional expenses (lodging, meals, car rental, mileage) if the trip had not been 
extended.  Documentation satisfactory to the Williamson County Auditor will be 
required to justify expenditure. 

2.9 County will only reimburse travel expense to necessary personnel of the vendor (i.e. 
no spouse, friends, or family members). 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 3 of 7        0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P535 

2.10 Except as otherwise set forth herein, a vendor must provide a paid receipt for all 
expenses. If a receipt cannot be obtained, a written sworn statement of the expense 
from the vendor may be substituted for the receipt. 

2.11 Sales tax for meals and hotel stays are the only sales taxes that will be reimbursed. 
Sales tax on goods purchased will not be reimbursed. A sales tax exemption form is 
available from the Williamson County Auditor’s Office upon request. 

2.12 County will not pay for any late charges on reimbursable items. It is the responsibility 
of the vendor to pay the invoice first and seek reimbursement from County. 

3. Meals 

3.1 Meal reimbursements are limited to a maximum of $50.00 per day on overnight travel. 
On day travel (travel that does not require an overnight stay), meal reimbursements 
are limited to a maximum of $20.00 per day. The travel must be outside the Williamson 
County, Texas line by a 50-mile radius. 

3.2 Receipts are required on meal reimbursement amounts up to the maximum per day 
amount stated for overnight or day travel. If receipts are not presented, the vendor 
can request per diem (per diem limits refer to 3.2). However, a vendor cannot combine 
per diem and meal receipts. Only one method shall be allowed. 

3.3 Meals are reimbursable only for vendors who do not have the necessary personnel 
located within a 50-mile radius of Williamson County, Texas that are capable of 
carrying the vendor’s obligations to County. Meals will not be reimbursed to vendors 
who are located within a 50-mile radius of Williamson County, Texas. 

3.4 County will not reimburse for alcoholic beverages. 

3.5 Tips are reimbursable but must be reasonable to limitation of meal allowance 

3.6 No meals purchased for entertainment purposes will be allowed. 

3.7 Meal reimbursement must be substantiated with a hotel receipt. 

4. Lodging 

4.1 Hotel accommodations require an itemized hotel folio as a receipt. The lodging receipt 
shall include name of the motel/hotel, number of occupant(s), goods or services for 
each individual charge (room rental, food, tax, etc.) and the name of the occupant(s). 
Credit card receipts or any other form of receipt are not acceptable. 

4.2 Vendors will be reimbursed for a single room rate charge plus any applicable tax. If a 
single room is not available, the vendor must provide documentation to prove that a 
single room was not available in order to justify the expense over and above the single 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 4 of 7        0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P535 

room rate. A vendor may also be required to provide additional documentation if a 
particular room rate appears to be excessive. 

4.3 Personal telephone charges, whether local or long distance, will not be reimbursed. 

5. Airfare 

5.1 County will only reimburse up to a coach price fare for air travel. 

5.2 County will exclude any additional charges due to personal preference or personal 
convenience of the individual traveling (i.e. early bird check in, seat preference 
charges, airline upgrades, etc. will not be an allowable reimbursement) 

5.3 Air travel expenses must be supported with receipt copy of an airline ticket or an 
itinerary with actual ticket price paid. If tickets are purchased through a website, 
vendor must submit a copy of the webpage showing the ticket price if no paper ticket 
was issued. 

5.4 Cancellation and/or change flight fees may be reimbursed by County but vendor must 
provide the Williamson County Auditor with documentation in writing from a 
County department head providing authorization for the change. 

5.5 County will not reimburse vendor for tickets purchased with frequent flyer miles. 

6. Car Rental 

6.1 Vendors that must travel may rent a car at their destination when it is less expensive 
than other transportation such as taxis, airport shuttles or public transportation such 
as buses or subways. 

6.2 Cars rented must be economy or mid-size. Luxury vehicle rentals will not be 
reimbursed. Any rental costs over and above the cost of a mid-size rental will be 
adjusted. 

6.3 Vendors will be reimbursed for rental cars if the rental car cost would have been less 
than the mileage reimbursement cost (based on the distance from vendor’s point of 
origin to Williamson County, Texas) had the vendor driven vendor’s car. 

6.4 Vendors must return a car rental with appropriate fuel levels as required by rental 
agreement to avoid the car rental company from adding fuel charges. 

6.5 Rental agreement and credit card receipt must be provided to County as back up for 
the request for reimbursement. 

6.6 Insurance purchased when renting vehicle may also be reimbursed. 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 5 of 7        0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P535 

6.7 Car Rental optional extras such as GPS, roadside assistance, and administrative fees 
on Tolls will not be reimbursed. 

7. Personal Car Usage 

7.1 Personal vehicle usage will be reimbursed in an amount equal to the standard mileage 
rate allowed by the IRS. 

7.2 Per code of Federal Regulations, Title 26, Subtitle A, Chapter 1, Subchapter B, Part 
IX, Section 274(d), all expense reimbursement requests must include the following: 

7.2.1 Date 

7.2.2 Destination 

7.2.3 Purpose 

7.2.4 Name of traveler(s) 

7.2.5 Correspondence that verifies business purpose of the expense 

7.3 The mileage for a personal vehicle must document the date, location of travel to/from, 
number of miles traveled and purpose of trip. 

7.4 Mileage will be reimbursed on the basis of the most commonly used route. 

7.5 Reimbursement for mileage shall not exceed the cost of a round trip coach airfare. 

7.6 Reimbursement for mileage shall be prohibited between place of residence and usual 
place of work. 

7.7 Mileage shall be calculated from employee’s regular place of work or their residence, 
whichever is the shorter distance when traveling to a meeting or traveling to 
Williamson County, Texas for vendors who are located outside of Williamson County, 
Texas by at least a 50-mile radius. 

7.8 When more than one person travels in same vehicle, only one person may claim 
mileage reimbursement. 

7.9 Tolls, if reasonable, are reimbursable. Receipts are required for reimbursement.  If a 
receipt is not obtainable, then written documentation of expense must be submitted 
for reimbursement (administrative fees on Tolls will not be reimbursed). 

7.10 Parking fees, if reasonable are reimbursable for meetings and hotel stays. For vendors 
who contract with a third party for visitor parking at vendor’s place of business, 
Williamson County will not reimburse a vendor based on a percentage of its 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 6 of 7        0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P535 

contracted visitor parking fees. Rather, Williamson County will reimburse Vendor for 
visitor parking on an individual basis for each time a visitor uses Vendor’s visitor 
parking. Receipts are required for reimbursement. If a receipt is not obtainable, then 
written documentation of expense must be submitted for reimbursement. 

7.11 Operating and maintenance expenses as well as other personal expenses, such as 
parking tickets, traffic violations, and car repairs and collision damage are not 
reimbursable. 

8. Other Expenses 

8.1 Taxi fare, bus tickets, conference registrations, parking, etc. must have a proper 
original receipt. 

9. Repayment of Non-reimbursable Expenses 

Vendors must, upon demand, immediately repay County for all inappropriately reimbursed 
expenses whenever an audit or subsequent review of any expense reimbursement 
documentation finds that such expense was reimbursed contrary to these guidelines and this 
Policy. Williamson County reserves the right to retain any amounts that are due or that 
become due to a vendor in order to collect any inappropriately reimbursed expenses that a 
vendor was paid. 

10. Non-Reimbursable Expenses 

In addition to the non-reimbursable items set forth above in this Policy, the following is a non-
exhaustive list of expenses that will not be reimbursed by Williamson County: 

10.1 Alcoholic beverages/tobacco products 

10.2 Personal phone calls 

10.3 Laundry service 

10.4 Valet service (excludes hotel valet) 

10.5 Movie rentals 

10.6 Damage to personal items 

10.7 Flowers/plants 

10.8 Greeting cards 

10.9 Fines and/or penalties 

10.10 Entertainment, personal clothing, personal sundries, and service 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 7 of 7        0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P535 

10.11 Transportation/mileage to places of entertainment or similar personal activities 

10.12 Upgrades to airfare, hotel and/or car rental 

10.13 Airport parking above the most affordable rate available 

10.14 Excessive weight baggage fees or cost associated with more than two airline bags 

10.15 Auto repairs 

10.16 Babysitter fees, kennel costs, pet, or house-sitting fees 

10.17 Saunas, massages, or exercise facilities 

10.18 Credit card delinquency fees or service fees 

10.19 Doctor bills, prescription and other medical services 

10.20 Hand tools 

10.21 Safety Equipment (hard hats, safety vests, etc.) 

10.22 Office Supplies 

10.23 Lifetime memberships to any association 

10.24 Donations to other entities 

10.25 Any items that could be construed as campaigning 

10.26 Community outreach items exceeding $2 per item 

10.27 Technology Fees 

10.28 Sales tax on goods purchased 

Any other expenses which Williamson County deems, in its sole discretion, to be inappropriate 
or unnecessary expenditures. 



1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Exhibit E – Debarment Certification Page 1 of 2    0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

EXHIBIT E 

DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

STATE OF TEXAS    § 
      § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON   § 
 
1. I, the undersigned, being duly sworn or under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United 

States and the State of Texas, certifies that A/E and its principals: 

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible 
or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or 
agency: 

b. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had 
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense 
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public* 
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity* with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
Paragraph 1(b) of this certification; 

d. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or 
more public transactions* terminated for cause or default; and 

e. Have not been disciplined or issued a formal reprimand by any State agency for 
professional accreditation within the past three years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





1/14/2021   
CHD+WIC Lobby & Janitor Remodel 

Exhibit F – Certificates of Insurance Page 1 of 1       0509-2021-1073-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P535 

EXHIBIT F 

CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE 

A/E and Subconsultant Certificates of Insurance attached: 

 

 

 

 

 



01/14/2021

Whorton Insurance Services
11200 Jollyville Rd.

Austin TX 78759-4813

Noe Moreno CIC,CLCS,ACSR
(512) 338-1191 (512) 338-1196

NoeM@whortonins.com

Charles A. Witt, DBA: K & W Engineering Solutions LLC
650 Shell Stone Trail

Georgetown TX 78628

Kinsale Insurance Company 38920

CL20121624592

A
Professional Liability

0100103511-1 12/16/2020 12/16/2021 LIMIT 2,000,000

The policy includes a notice of cancellation endorsement providing for 30 days’ advance notice if the policy is cancelled by the company other than for
nonpayment of premium, or 10 days’ notice if the policy is canceled for nonpayment of premium.

Williamson County Purchasing
100 Wilco Way
Suite P101
Georgetown TX 78626

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE
BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED
ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

1/14/2021

(512) 343-0280 6394 (512) 343-0352

30104

K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC
650 Shell Stone Trail
Georgetown, TX 78628

29394
22945

A 2,000,000

65SBAAF9WLY 4/3/2020 4/3/2021 1,000,000

10,000

2,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

1,000,000B

BA420000015586 4/4/2020 4/4/2021

1,000,000A
65SBAAF9WLY 4/3/2020 4/3/2021 1,000,000

C
0002046207 3/31/2020 3/31/2021 1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

The General Liability Policy includes a blanket automatic additional insured with a waiver of subrogation on a primary non contributory basis when required 
by written contract or agreement. 30 day notice of cancellation applies.

Williamson Country Purchasing
100 Wilco Way
Suite P101
Georgetown, TX 78626

CHARWIT-01 KFARRELL

AssuredPartners of TX, LLC DBA Capitol City Insurance
8030 N Mopac
Austin, TX 78759

Kimberly Farrell

kimberly.farrell@assuredpartners.com

Hartford Underwriters Insurance Co.
Mercury County Mutual Insurance Company
Texas Mutual Insurance Company

X

X
X

X

X
X
X

X X



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 10 18 Page 1 of 3
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED BY CONTRACT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Except as otherwise stated in this endorsement, the terms and conditions of the Policy apply.

A. The following is added to Section C. WHO IS AN INSURED:

Additional Insureds When Required By Written Contract, Written Agreement Or Permit

The person(s) or organization(s) identified in Paragraphs a. through f. below are additional insureds when you have
agreed, in a written contract or written agreement, or when required by a written permit issued by a state or
governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision that such person or organization be added as an
additional insured on your Coverage Part, provided the injury or damage occurs subsequent to the execution of the
contract or agreement, or the issuance of the permit.

A person or organization is an additional insured under this provision only for that period of time required by the
contract, agreement or permit.

However, no such person or organization is an additional insured under this provision if such person or organization is
included as an additional insured by any other endorsement issued by us and made a part of this Coverage Part.

The insurance afforded to such additional insured will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract,
agreement, or permit to provide for such additional insured.

The insurance afforded to such additional insured only applies to the extent permitted by law.

The limits of insurance that apply to additional insureds are described in Section D. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL
EXPENSES LIMITS OF INSURANCE. How this insurance applies when other insurance is available to an additional
insured is described in the Other Insurance Condition in Section E. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES
GENERAL CONDITIONS.

a. Vendors

Any person(s) or organization(s) (referred to below as vendor), but only with respect to "bodily injury" or "property
damage" arising out of "your products" which are distributed or sold in the regular course of the vendor's business
and only if this Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the
"products-completed operations hazard".

(1) The insurance afforded to the vendor is subject to the following additional exclusions:

This insurance does not apply to:

(a) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which the vendor is obligated to pay damages by reason of the
assumption of liability in a contract or agreement. This exclusion does not apply to liability for damages
that the vendor would have in the absence of the contract or agreement;

(b) Any express warranty unauthorized by you;

(c) Any physical or chemical change in the product made intentionally by the vendor;

(d) Repackaging, except when unpacked solely for the purpose of inspection, demonstration, testing, or the
substitution of parts under instructions from the manufacturer, and then repackaged in the original
container;

(e) Any failure to make such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to make
or normally undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the distribution or sale
of the products;

(f) Demonstration, installation, servicing or repair operations, except such operations performed at the
vendor's premises in connection with the sale of the product;

(g) Products which, after distribution or sale by you, have been labeled or relabeled or used as a container,
part or ingredient of any other thing or substance by or for the vendor; or



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 10 18 Page 2 of 3
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(h) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the sole negligence of the vendor for its own acts or
omissions or those of its employees or anyone else acting on its behalf. However, this exclusion does not
apply to:

(i) The exceptions contained in Paragraphs (d) or (f); or

(ii) Such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to make or normally
undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the distribution or sale of the
products.

(2) This insurance does not apply to any insured person or organization from whom you have acquired such
products, or any ingredient, part or container, entering into, accompanying or containing such products.

b. Lessors Of Equipment

(1) Any person or organization from whom you lease equipment; but only with respect to their liability for "bodily
injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your
maintenance, operation or use of equipment leased to you by such person or organization.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to any
"occurrence" which takes place after you cease to lease that equipment.

c. Lessors Of Land Or Premises

(1) Any person or organization from whom you lease land or premises, but only with respect to liability arising out
of the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of the land or premises leased to you.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to:

(a) Any "occurrence" which takes place after you cease to lease that land or be a tenant in that premises; or

(b) Structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of such person
or organization.

d. Architects, Engineers Or Surveyors

(1) Any architect, engineer, or surveyor, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or
"personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or
omissions of those acting on your behalf:

(a) In connection with your premises; or

(b) In the performance of your ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusion applies:

(a) This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury"
arising out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional services, including:

(i) The preparing, approving, or failure to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports,
surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or

(ii) Supervisory, surveying, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

This exclusion applies even if the claims allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring,
employment, training or monitoring of others by an insured, if the “bodily injury”, “property damage”, or
“personal and advertising injury” arises out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional
service.

(b) This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products-
completed operations hazard”.

e. State Or Governmental Agency Or Subdivision Or Political Subdivision Issuing Permit

(1) Any state or governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision, but only with respect to operations
performed by you or on your behalf for which the state or governmental agency or subdivision or political
subdivision has issued a permit.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to:

(a) "Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of operations performed
for the federal government, state or municipality; or



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 10 18 Page 3 of 3
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(b) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products-completed operations hazard".

f. Any Other Party

(1) Any other person or organization who is not in one of the categories or classes listed above in Paragraphs a.
through e. above, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and
advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those
acting on your behalf:

(a) In the performance of your ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf;

(b) In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you; or

(c) In connection with "your work" and included within the "products-completed operations hazard", but only
if:

(i) The written contract, written agreement or permit requires you to provide such coverage to such
additional insured; and

(ii) This Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the
"products-completed operations hazard".

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusion applies:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising
out of the rendering of, or the failure to render, any professional architectural, engineering or surveying
services, including:

(a) The preparing, approving, or failure to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports,
surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or

(b) Supervisory, surveying, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

This exclusion applies even if the claims allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring,
employment, training or monitoring of others by an insured, if the “bodily injury”, “property damage”, or
“personal and advertising injury” arises out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional service
described in Paragraphs f.(2)(a) or f.(2)(b) above.



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 18 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

If any of the other insurance does not permit contribution by equal shares, we will contribute by limits. Under
this method, each insurer’s share is based on the ratio of its applicable limit of insurance to the total
applicable limits of insurance of all insurers.

7. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us

a. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery

If the insured has rights to recover all or part of any payment, including Supplementary Payments, we have
made under this Coverage Part, those rights are transferred to us. The insured must do nothing after loss to
impair them. At our request, the insured will bring "suit" or transfer those rights to us and help us enforce
them. This condition does not apply to Medical Expenses Coverage.

b. Waiver Of Rights Of Recovery (Waiver Of Subrogation)

If the insured has waived any rights of recovery against any person or organization for all or part of any
payment, including Supplementary Payments, we have made under this Coverage Part, we also waive that
right, provided the insured waived their rights of recovery against such person or organization in a contract,
agreement or permit that was executed prior to the injury or damage.

F. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES DEFINITIONS

1. "Advertisement" means a notice that is broadcast or published to the general public or specific market segments
about your goods, products or services for the purpose of attracting customers or supporters. For the purpose of
this definition:

a. Notices that are published include material placed on the Internet or on similar electronic means of
communication; and

b. Regarding web sites, only that part of a web site that is about your goods, products or services for the
purpose of attracting customers or supporters is considered an advertisement.

2. "Advertising idea" means any idea for an "advertisement".

3. "Asbestos hazard" means an exposure or threat of exposure to the actual or alleged properties of asbestos and
includes the mere presence of asbestos in any form.

4. "Auto" means:

a. A land motor vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer designed for travel on public roads, including any attached
machinery or equipment; or

b. Any other land vehicle that is subject to a compulsory or financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle
insurance or motor vehicle registration law where it is licensed or principally garaged.

However, "auto" does not include "mobile equipment".

5. "Bodily injury" means physical:

a. Injury;

b. Sickness; or

c. Disease

sustained by a person and, if arising out of the above, mental anguish or death at any time.

6. "Coverage territory" means:

a. The United States of America (including its territories and possessions), Puerto Rico and Canada;

b. International waters or airspace, but only if the injury or damage occurs in the course of travel or
transportation between any places included in a. above;

c. All other parts of the world if the injury or damage arises out of:

(1) Goods or products made or sold by you in the territory described in a. above;

(2) The activities of a person whose home is in the territory described in a. above, but is away for a short time
on your business; or



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 17 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(2) Premises Rented To You

That is fire, lightning or explosion insurance for premises rented to you or temporarily occupied by you
with permission of the owner;

(3) Tenant Liability

That is insurance purchased by you to cover your liability as a tenant for "property damage" to premises
rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner;

(4) Aircraft, Auto Or Watercraft

If the loss arises out of the maintenance or use of aircraft, "autos" or watercraft to the extent not subject to
Exclusion g. of Section B. Exclusions.

(5) Property Damage To Borrowed Equipment Or Use Of Elevators

If the loss arises out of "property damage" to borrowed equipment or the use of elevators to the extent not
subject to Exclusion k. of Section B. Exclusions.

(6) When You Are Added As An Additional Insured To Other Insurance

That is other insurance available to you covering liability for damages arising out of the premises or
operations, or products and completed operations, for which you have been added as an additional
insured by that insurance; or

(7) When You Add Others As An Additional Insured To This Insurance

That is other insurance available to an additional insured.

However, the following provisions apply to other insurance available to any person or organization who is
an additional insured under this Coverage Part:

(a) Primary Insurance When Required By Contract

This insurance is primary if you have agreed in a written contract, written agreement or permit that
this insurance be primary. If other insurance is also primary, we will share with all that other insurance
by the method described in c. below.

(b) Primary And Non-Contributory To Other Insurance When Required By Contract

If you have agreed in a written contract, written agreement or permit that this insurance is primary and
non-contributory with the additional insured's own insurance, this insurance is primary and we will not
seek contribution from that other insurance.

Paragraphs (a) and (b) do not apply to other insurance to which the additional insured has been added as
an additional insured.

When this insurance is excess, we will have no duty under this Coverage Part to defend the insured against
any "suit" if any other insurer has a duty to defend the insured against that "suit". If no other insurer defends,
we will undertake to do so, but we will be entitled to the insured's rights against all those other insurers.

When this insurance is excess over other insurance, we will pay only our share of the amount of the loss, if
any, that exceeds the sum of:

(1) The total amount that all such other insurance would pay for the loss in the absence of this insurance;
and

(2) The total of all deductible and self-insured amounts under all that other insurance.

We will share the remaining loss, if any, with any other insurance that is not described in this Excess
Insurance provision and was not bought specifically to apply in excess of the Limits of Insurance shown in
the Declarations of this Coverage Part.

c. Method Of Sharing

If all the other insurance permits contribution by equal shares, we will follow this method also. Under this
approach, each insurer contributes equal amounts until it has paid its applicable limit of insurance or none of
the loss remains, whichever comes first.



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 11.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Juvenile Justice Center Recreational Shed Restroom Addition (P528) K&W Professional
Service Agreement
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Professional Services Agreement between
Williamson County and K&W Engineering Solutions to provide Design and Engineering Services for the Williamson
County JJC Remote Restroom (P528) in the amount of $4,400.00.

Background
This agreement is to provide structural, mechanical, electrical and plumbing engineering to add (2) Unisex
restrooms, a drinking fountain and covered wash-down area to the northeast corner of the existing Recreation
Shed.  This project will be funded under P528.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
JJC Recreation Shed Restroom Addition (P528) K&W PSA 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 01/20/2021 03:00 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/20/2021 04:02 PM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 01/20/2021 01:13 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/20/2021 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 1 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN & ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

PROJECT: JJC Recreational Shed Restroom Addition (“Project”) 
 
ARCHITECT/  
ENGINEER:  K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC (“A/E”) 
   Amber Kurkowski, CEO / Co-Owner 

650 Shell Stone Trail 
Georgetown, TX 78628 

 
COUNTY’S DESIGNATED 
REPRESENTATIVE:  Williamson County Facilities Department 

Attn:  Director of Facilities  
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN AND ENGINEERING SERVICES (“Agreement”) is made 
and entered into effective as of the latest date of the signatories indicated at the conclusion of this 
document and all attachments (the "Effective Date"), by and between Williamson County, a body 
corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas (“County”) and A/E. 
 

R E C I T A L S 
 
WHEREAS, V.T.C.A., Government Code §2254.002(2)(A)(vii) under Subchapter A entitled 
“Professional Services Procurement Act” provides for the procurement by counties of services of 
professional architects and engineers; and 
 
WHEREAS, County intends to remodel small areas within the Williamson County Justice 
Center to provide office spaces for a new department; and 
 
WHEREAS, County desires that A/E perform certain professional services in connection with the 
Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, A/E represents that it is qualified and desires to perform such services; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, County and A/E, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
herein contained, do mutually agree as follows: 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 2 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

 
 

ARTICLE 1 
SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

 
A/E agrees to perform professional services in connection with the Project as stated herein, and 
for having rendered such services, County agrees to pay to A/E compensation as stated in the 
articles to follow. 

 
 

ARTICLE 2 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE PROJECT DOCUMENTS 

 
2.1 Contract Documents.   
Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, any exhibits attached hereto (which exhibits are 
hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement) and all fully executed Supplemental 
Agreements which are subsequently issued.  These form the entire Agreement, and all are as fully 
a part of this Agreement as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. 
 
2.2 Existing Information.   
County shall provide A/E with all existing plans, maps, studies, reports, field notes, statistics, 
computations, and other data in its possession relative to existing facilities and to this particular 
Project at no cost to A/E; however, any and all such information shall remain the property of 
County and shall be returned, if the County so instructs A/E. 
 
2.3 Project Documents.  
In addition to any other pertinent and necessary Project documents, the following documents 
shall be used in the development of the Project: 

 
 2.3.1 

Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) of the Architectural Barriers Act, Article 9102, Texas 
Civil Statutes, Effective March 15, 2012, including latest revisions 
 

 2.3.2 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
 

 2.3.3 
Williamson County Facilities Building Code Adoption List, 2020 edition as updated 
 

 2.3.4 
Williamson County Consultant Design Submittal Guidelines, 2020 edition as updated 

 
 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 3 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

ARTICLE 3 
NON-COLLUSION; DEBARMENT; AND FINANCIAL INTEREST PROHIBITED 

 
3.1 Non-collusion.   
A/E warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or persons, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for A/E, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid 
or agreed to pay any company or subconsultant any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, 
gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
Agreement. Flor breach or violation of this warranty, County reserves and shall have the right to 
annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion and at its sole election, to deduct from 
the agreement price or compensation, or to otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee. 
 
3.2 Debarment Certification.  
A/E must sign the Debarment Certification enclosed herewith as Exhibit E. 

 
3.3 Financial Interest Prohibited.   
A/E covenants and represents that A/E, its officers, employees, agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors will have no financial interest, direct or indirect, in the purchase or sale of any 
product, materials, or equipment that will be recommended or required for the construction of 
the Project. 
 
 

ARTICLE 4 
CHARACTER AND SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
4.1 
In consideration of the compensation herein provided, A/E shall perform professional design and 
engineering services for the Project, which are acceptable to County, based on standard 
architectural and engineering practices and the scope of work described on the Exhibits attached 
to this Agreement.  A/E shall also serve as County's professional architect and engineer in those 
phases of the Project to which this Agreement applies and will consult with and give advice to 
County during the performance of A/E's services. 

 
4.3 
A/E shall perform the following Basic Scope of Services (sometimes referred to herein as the 
“Basic Scope of Services”, “Basic Services” or the “Scope of Services”): 

 
4.3.1 
The Basic Scope of Services shall generally consist of all elements of work, meetings, 
materials, and equipment required for the development of the Project in accordance with 
the requirements, policies, and general practices of Williamson County.  

 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 4 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

4.3.2 
As part of the Basic Services, A/E shall submit its work products to County for review as 
requested by County. 

 
4.3.3 
The detailed Basic Services for the Project is set forth herein as Exhibit A to this 
Agreement, which is expressly incorporated and made a part hereof. 

 
 

ARTICLE 5 
TIME FOR PERFOMANCE 

 
5.1 Commencement. 
A/E shall not commence work until A/E has been thoroughly briefed on the scope of the Project 
and has been notified in writing to proceed, as evidenced by a Notice to Proceed. 
 
5.2 Duration. 
A/E agrees to complete the Basic Services within the time period set forth in Exhibit C.  The time 
limits set out therein may, for good cause, be extended, in writing, by County as the Project 
proceeds.  
 
 

ARTICLE 6 
COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES 

 
6.1  Basic Fee.   
For and in consideration of the Basic Services rendered by A/E, County shall pay to  A/E up to 
Four Thousand Four Hundred Dollars ($ 4,400) hereinafter called the "Basic Fee", plus the 
amount payable under Article 7 (Additional Services and Charges). 
 
The Basic Fee is based upon all estimated labor costs required in the performance of all items and 
phases of the Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A.  Compensation for Basic Services will be paid 
by County by monthly invoices of percentage completion.  County will only be obligated to pay 
A/E for the performance of items and phases of the Basic Services actually rendered and incurred, 
which may be less than the above stated Basic Fee. 
 
6.2  Expenses.   
A/E shall be reimbursed for actual non-labor and subcontract expenses incurred in the 
performance of the services under this Agreement in accordance with the Williamson County 
Vendor Reimbursement Policy set forth under Exhibit D.  Invoices requesting reimbursement for 
costs and expenditures related to the Project (reimbursables) must be accompanied by copies of 
the provider’s invoice and must strictly comply with the Williamson County Vendor 
Reimbursement Policy.  The copies of the provider’s invoice must evidence the actual costs billed 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 5 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

to A/E without markup.  Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and 
Additional Services and must not exceed Four Hundred Forty Dollars ($ 440). 
 

 
ARTICLE 7 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES AND CHARGES 
 

For the performance of services not specifically described as Basic Services under Article 4 above 
(sometimes referred to herein as “Additional Services”), County shall pay and A/E shall receive, 
under a negotiated, written supplemental agreement, Additional Services compensation based 
upon the method and rates set forth in Exhibit B. 
 
A/E shall not, however, be compensated for work made necessary by A/E’s negligent errors or 
omissions.  In the event of any dispute over the classification of A/E’s services as Basic or 
Additional Services under this Agreement, the decision of County shall be final and binding on 
A/E. 

 
It is expressly understood and agreed that A/E shall not furnish any Additional Services without 
the prior written authorization of County.  County shall have no obligation to pay for such 
Additional Services which have been rendered without prior written authorization of County as 
hereinabove required.  Furthermore, in no event will County be obligated to compensate A/E for 
any Additional Services and charges in an amount more than One Thousand One Hundred 
Dollars ($ 1,100). 
 
 

ARTICLE 8 
TIME OF PAYMENT; PAYMENT AND INTEREST; AND RIGHT TO AUDIT 

 
8.1  Time of Payment.   
During the performance of the services provided for in this Agreement, monthly payments shall 
be made based upon that portion of the services which has been completed.   
 
On or about the last day of each calendar month during the performance of the services to be 
provided under this Agreement, A/E shall submit to County working documents in any stage of 
completion to demonstrate incremental progress of Basic Services and the compensation which 
is due for percentage completion of Basic Services.  For amounts payable under Article 7 which 
have not been previously billed or paid, A/E shall submit a sworn statement to County, along 
with time sheets detailing hours worked, receipts detailing expenses incurred and other support 
documentation, in a form acceptable to the Williamson County Auditor, setting forth the  services 
provided for by this Agreement which were completed during such calendar month plus the 
amounts payable under Article 7 which have not been previously billed or paid.  In the event the 
statement includes charges based upon hourly billing rates for services or any other rates based 
upon the amount of time worked by an individual or individuals in performing services, whether 
the charges are being billed directly to the County or whether they are the basis of invoices from 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 6 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

subcontractors for which A/E seeks reimbursement from the County, the charges shall be 
accompanied by an affidavit signed by an officer or principal of A/E certifying that the work was 
performed, it was authorized by the County and that all information contained in the invoice that 
is being submitted is true and correct.   
 
The County shall review the documentation and shall pay each statement as set forth in this 
Article 8, however, the approval or payment of any statement shall not be considered evidence 
of performance by A/E to the point indicated by such statement or of receipt or acceptance by 
County of the services covered by such statement.  Final payment does not relieve A/E of the 
responsibility of correcting any errors or omissions resulting from A/E’s negligence. 
 
Upon submittal of the initial invoice, A/E shall provide the County Auditor with an Internal 
Revenue Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is 
complete in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations. 
 
8.2  Prompt Payment Policy.   
In accordance with Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A., Texas Government Code, payment to A/E will be 
made within thirty (30) days of the day on which the performance of services was complete, or 
within thirty (30) days of the day on which the County Auditor receives a correct invoice for 
services, whichever is later.  A/E may charge a late fee (fee shall not be greater than that which is 
permitted by Texas law) for payments not made in accordance with this prompt payment policy; 
however, this policy does not apply in the event: 

 
8.2.1 
There is a bona fide dispute between County and A/E concerning the supplies, materials, 
or equipment delivered or the services performed that causes the payment to be late; or 

 
8.2.2 
There is a bona fide dispute between A/E and a subcontractor/ subconsultant or between 
a subcontractor/ subconsultant and its supplier concerning supplies, materials, or 
equipment delivered or the Basic Services performed which causes the payment to be late; 
or 

 
8.2.3 
The invoice is not submitted to Williamson County in strict accordance with instructions, 
if any, on the purchase order, or this Agreement or other such contractual agreement. 

 
The County Auditor shall document to A/E the issues related to disputed invoices within ten (10) 
calendar days of receipt of such invoice.  Any non-disputed invoices shall be considered correct 
and payable per the terms of Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A. 

 
 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 7 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

ARTICLE 9 
PROJECT TEAM 

 
County’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Agreement is as follows: 
 

Williamson County Facilities Department 
Attn:  Director of Facilities  
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
County shall have the right, from time to time, to change the County’s Designated Representative 
by giving A/E written notice thereof.  With respect to any action, decision, or determination which 
is to be taken or made by County under this Agreement, the County’s Designated Representative 
may take such action or make such decision or determination or shall notify A/E in writing of an 
individual responsible for, and capable of, taking such action, decision, or determination, and 
shall forward any communications and documentation to such individual for response or action.  
Actions, decisions or determinations by County’s Designated Representative on behalf of County 
shall be done in his or her reasonable business judgment unless express standards or parameters 
therefor are included in this Agreement, in which case, actions taken by County’s Designated 
Representative shall be in accordance with such express standards or parameters.  Any consent, 
approval, decision, or determination hereunder by County’s Designated Representative shall be 
binding on County; provided, however, County’s Designated Representative shall not have any 
right to modify, amend, or terminate this Agreement or executed Supplemental Agreement.  
County’s Designated Representative shall not have any authority to execute a Supplemental 
Agreement unless otherwise granted such authority by the Williamson County Commissioners 
Court.   
 
 A/E’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Agreement is as follows: 
 

K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC 
  Amber Kurkowski, CEO / Co-Owner 

650 Shell Stone Trail 
Georgetown, TX 78628 

 
A/E shall have the right, from time to time, to change A/E’s Designated Representative by giving 
County written notice thereof.  With respect to any action, decision, or determination which is 
to be taken or made by A/E under this Agreement, A/E’s Designated Representative may take 
such action or make such decision or determination, or shall notify County in writing of an 
individual responsible for and capable of taking such action, decision, or determination and shall 
forward any communications and documentation to such individual for response or action.  
Actions, decisions, or determinations by A/E’s Designated Representative on behalf of A/E shall 
be done in his or her reasonable business judgment unless express standards or parameters 
therefor are included in this Agreement, in which case, actions taken by A/E’s Designated 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 8 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

Representative shall be in accordance with such express standards or parameters.  Any consent, 
approval, decision, or determination hereunder by A/E’s Designated Representative shall be 
binding on A/E.  A/E’s Designated Representative shall have the right to modify, amend, and 
execute Supplemental Agreements on behalf of A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 10 
NOTICE 

 
Any notice required to be given under the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be duly served when it shall have been deposited, enclosed in a wrapper with the proper 
postage prepaid thereon, and duly registered or certified, return receipt requested, in a United 
States Post Office, addressed to County or A/E at the following addresses.  If mailed, any notice 
or communication shall be deemed to be received three (3) days after the date of deposit in the 
United States Mail.  Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, all notices shall be delivered 
to the following addresses: 
 
County: Williamson County Judge 

710 Main Street, Suite 101 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
With copy to:  Williamson County Facilities Department 

Attn: Director of Facilities 
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626  

 
and to:  Office of General Counsel 

Williamson County 
710 Main Street, Suite 102 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 
A/E:  K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC 

650 Shell Stone Trail 
Georgetown, TX 78628 

 
Attention: Amber Kurkowski 

    CEO / Co-Owner 
  
Either party may designate a different address by giving the other party ten (10) days written 
notice. 

 
 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 9 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

ARTICLE 11 
PROGRESS EVALUATION 

 
A/E shall, from time to time during the progress of the Basic Services, confer with County at 
County’s election.  A/E shall prepare and present such information as may be pertinent and 
necessary, or as may be reasonably requested by County, in order for County to evaluate features 
of the Basic Services.  At the request of County or A/E, conferences shall be provided at A/E's 
office, the offices of County, or at other locations designated by County.  When requested by 
County, such conferences shall also include evaluation of the Basic Services.  County may, from 
time to time, require A/E to appear and provide information to the Williamson County 
Commissioners Court. 
 
Should County determine that the progress in Basic Services does not satisfy the terms of the 
Agreement then County shall review same with A/E to determine corrective action required. 
 
A/E shall promptly advise County in writing of events which have or may have a significant 
impact upon the progress of the Basic Services, including but not limited to the following: 
 
11.1 
Problems, delays, adverse conditions which may materially affect the ability to meet the 
objectives of the Agreement or preclude the attainment of Project Basic Services by established 
time periods; and such disclosure shall be accompanied by statement of actions taken or 
contemplated, and County assistance needed to resolve the situation, if any; and 

 
11.2 
Favorable developments or events which enable meeting goals sooner than anticipated in 
relation to the Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 12 
CHANGES IN COMPLETED BASIC SERVICES 

 
If County deems it necessary to request changes to previously satisfactorily completed Basic 
Services or parts thereof which involve changes to the original Basic Services or character of Basic 
Services under this Agreement, then A/E shall make such revisions as requested and as directed 
by County.  Such revisions shall be considered as Additional Services and paid for as specified 
under Article 7.  A/E shall make revisions to Basic Services authorized hereunder as are 
necessary to correct errors appearing therein, when required to do so by County.  No additional 
compensation shall be due for such Basic Services. 

 
 

ARTICLE 13 
REVIEW PROCESS AND REVISIONS TO A/E WORK PRODUCT 

 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 10 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

13.1 Review Process.  
A/E's Work Product will be reviewed by County under its applicable technical requirements and 
procedures, as follows: 
   

13.1.1 Submittal.   
Reports, plans, surveys, field notes, original drawings, computer tapes, graphic files, 
tracings, calculations, analyses, reports, specifications, data, sketches and/or schematics 
prepared by A/E and supporting documents (collectively referred to hereinabove and 
hereinafter as the "A/E Work Product(s)"), shall be submitted by A/E on or before the dates 
specified for completion, as set out in the Production Schedule set forth in Exhibit C. 

 
13.1.2 Completion.   
Reports, plans, specifications, and supporting documents shall be submitted by A/E on or 
before the dates specified in Exhibit C.  Upon receipt of same, the submission shall be 
checked for completion. "Completion" or “Complete” shall be defined as all of the 
required items, as set out in Exhibit A have been included in compliance with the 
requirements of this Agreement.  The completeness of any Basic Services submitted to 
County shall be determined by County within thirty (30) days of such submittal and 
County shall notify A/E in writing within such thirty (30) day period if such Basic Services 
have been found to be incomplete.  If the submission is Complete, County will notify A/E 
and County’s technical review process will begin. 

 
If the submission is not Complete, County will notify A/E, who shall perform such 
professional services as are required to complete the Basic Services and resubmit it to 
County. This process shall be repeated until a submission is Complete. 
 

13.1.3 Acceptance.   
County will review the completed Basic Services for compliance with this Agreement.  If 
necessary, the completed Basic Services will be returned to A/E, who shall perform any 
required Basic Services and resubmit to County. This process shall be repeated until the 
Basic Services are Accepted. "Acceptance" or “Accepted” shall mean that in County’s 
reasonable opinion, substantial compliance with the requirements of this Agreement has 
been achieved. 

 
13.1.4 Final Approval.   
After Acceptance, A/E shall perform any required modifications, changes, alterations, 
corrections, redesigns, and additional work necessary to receive Final Approval by 
County.  "Final Approval" in this sense shall mean formal recognition that the Basic 
Services have been fully carried out. 

 
13.2  Revision to A/E Work Product.   
A/E shall make, without expense to County, such revisions to A/E Work Product as may be 
required to correct negligent errors or omissions so A/E Work Product meets the needs of County, 
but after the approval of A/E Work Product any revisions, additions, or other modifications made 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 11 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

at County's request which involve extra services and expenses to A/E shall entitle A/E to 
additional compensation for such extra services and expenses; provided, however, A/E hereby 
agrees to perform any necessary corrections to A/E Work Products which are found to be in 
negligent error or omission as a result of A/E’s development of A/E Work Product, at any time, 
without additional compensation.  If it is necessary, due to such error or omission by A/E, to 
revise any A/E Work Product in order to make the Project constructible, A/E shall do so without 
additional compensation.  In the event of any dispute over the classification of A/E’s Work 
Products as Complete, Accepted, or Approved under this Agreement, the decision of County 
shall be final and binding on A/E, subject to any civil remedy or determination otherwise 
available to the parties and deemed appropriate by the parties. 
 
13.3  Days.   
All references to a “day” in this Agreement shall mean a calendar day unless otherwise specified. 
 
13.4  County’s Reliance on A/E.   
A/E’s duties as set forth herein shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any 
review, evaluation, or approval by County nor shall A/E be released from any liability by 
reason of such review, evaluation or approval by County, it being understood that County, at 
all times, is ultimately relying upon A/E’s skill, ability, and knowledge in performing the Basic 
Services required hereunder. 

 
 

ARTICLE 14 
SUSPENSION 

 
Should County desire to suspend the Basic Services, but not to terminate this Agreement, then 
such suspension may be effected by County giving A/E thirty (30) calendar days’ verbal 
notification followed by written confirmation to that effect.  Such thirty (30)-day notice may be 
waived in writing by agreement and signature of both parties.  The Basic Services may be 
reinstated and resumed in full force and effect within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice 
from County to resume the Basic Services.  Such sixty (60)-day notice may be waived in writing 
by agreement and signature of both parties.  If this Agreement is suspended for more than thirty 
(30) days, A/E shall have the option of terminating this Agreement and, in the event, A/E shall be 
compensated for all Basic Services performed and reimbursable expenses incurred, provided 
such Basic Services and reimbursable expenses have been previously authorized and approved 
by County, to the effective date of suspension. 
 
County assumes no liability for Basic Services performed or costs incurred prior to the date 
authorized by County for A/E to begin Basic Services, and/or during periods when Basic Services 
are suspended, and/or subsequent to the completion date. 
 
 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 12 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

ARTICLE 15 
VIOLATION OF CONTRACT TERMS/ BREACH OF CONTRACT 

 
Violation of contract terms or breach of contract by A/E shall be grounds for termination of this 
Agreement, and any increased costs arising from A/E’s default, breach of contract, or violation of 
contract terms shall be paid by A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 16 
TERMINATION 

 
This Agreement may be terminated as set forth below. 
 
16.1 
By mutual agreement and consent, in writing, of both parties. 

 
16.2 
By County, by notice in writing to A/E, as a consequence of failure by A/E to perform the Basic 
Services set forth herein in a satisfactory manner. 

 
16.3 
By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations as set forth herein. 

 
16.4 
By County, for reasons of its own and not subject to the mutual consent of A/E, upon not less than 
thirty (30) days written notice to A/E. 

 
16.5 
By satisfactory completion of all Basic Services and obligations described herein. 
 
Should County terminate this Agreement as herein provided, no fees other than fees due and 
payable at the time of termination plus reimbursable expenses incurred shall thereafter be paid 
to A/E.  In determining the value of the Basic Services performed by A/E prior to termination, 
County shall be the sole judge.  Compensation for Basic Services at termination will be based on 
a percentage of the Basic Services completed at that time.  Should County terminate this 
Agreement under Section 16.4 above, then the amount charged during the thirty (30)-day notice 
period shall not exceed the amount charged during the preceding thirty (30) days. 
 
If A/E defaults in the performance of this Agreement or if County terminates this Agreement for 
fault on the part of A/E, then County shall give consideration to the actual costs incurred by A/E 
in performing the Basic Services to the date of default, the amount of Basic Services required 
which was satisfactorily completed to date of default, the value of the Basic Services which are 
usable to County, the cost to County of employing another firm to complete the Basic Services 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 13 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

required and the time required to do so, and other factors which affect the value to County of the 
Basic Services performed at the time of default. 
 
The termination of this Agreement and payment of an amount in settlement as prescribed above 
shall extinguish all rights, duties, and obligations of County under this Agreement. If the 
termination of this Agreement is due to the failure of A/E to fulfill its contractual obligations, then 
County may take over the Project and prosecute the Basic Services to completion.  In such case, 
A/E shall be liable to County for any additional and reasonable costs incurred by County. 
 
A/E shall be responsible for the settlement of all contractual and administrative issues arising out 
of any procurements made by A/E in support of the Basic Services under this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 17 
USE OF DOCUMENTS 

 
All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, and data or programs stored 
electronically, (hereinafter referred to as “A/E Work Products”) prepared by A/E and its 
subcontractors/ subconsultants are related exclusively to the services described in this Agreement 
and are intended to be used with respect to this Project.  However, it is expressly understood and 
agreed by and between the parties hereto that all of A/E’s designs under this Agreement 
(including but not limited to tracings, drawings, estimates, specifications, investigations, studies 
and other documents, completed or partially completed), shall be the property of County to be 
thereafter used in any lawful manner as County elects.  Any such subsequent use made of 
documents by County shall be at County’s sole risk and without liability to A/E. 

 
By execution of this Agreement and in confirmation of the fee for services to be paid under this 
Agreement, A/E hereby conveys, transfers, and assigns to County all rights under the Federal 
Copyright Act of 1976 (or any successor copyright statute), as amended, all common law 
copyrights and all other intellectual property rights acknowledged by law in the Project Designs 
and Work Product developed under this Agreement.  Copies may be retained by A/E.  A/E shall 
be liable to County for any loss or damage to any such documents while they are in the possession 
of or while being worked upon by A/E or anyone connected with A/E, including agents, 
employees, Engineers or subcontractors/ subconsultants.  All documents so lost or damaged shall 
be replaced or restored by A/E without cost to County. 
 
Upon execution of this Agreement, A/E grants to County permission to reproduce A/E’s work 
and documents for purposes of constructing, using, and maintaining the Project, provided that 
County will comply with its obligations, including prompt payment of all sums when due, under 
this Agreement. A/E shall obtain similar permission from A/E’s subcontractors/ subconsultants 
consistent with this Agreement.  If and upon the date A/E is adjudged in default of this 
Agreement, County is permitted to authorize other similarly credentialed design professionals to 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 14 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

reproduce and, where permitted by law, to make changes, corrections, or additions to the work 
and documents for the purposes of completing, using, and maintaining the Project. 

 
County shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge, or otherwise transfer any permission 
granted herein to another party without the prior written consent of A/E.  However, County shall 
be permitted to authorize the contractor, subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers to 
reproduce applicable portions of A/E Work Products appropriate to and for use in the execution 
of the Work.  Submission or distribution of A/E Work Products to meet official regulatory 
requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is permitted.  Any 
unauthorized use of A/E Work Products shall be at County's sole risk and without liability to A/E 
and its subconsultants. 

 
Prior to A/E providing to County any A/E Work Products in electronic form or County providing 
to A/E any electronic data for incorporation into A/E Work Products, County and A/E shall, by 
separate written agreement, set forth the specific conditions governing the format of such A/E 
Work Products or electronic data, including any special limitations not otherwise provided in this 
Agreement.  Any electronic files are provided by A/E for the convenience of County and use of 
them is at County’s sole risk.  In the case of any defects in electronic files or any discrepancies 
between them and any hardcopy of the same documents prepared by A/E, the hardcopy shall 
prevail.  Only printed copies of documents conveyed by A/E shall be relied upon.   

 
A/E shall have no liability for changes made to the drawings by other consultants subsequent to 
the completion of the Project.  Any such change shall be sealed by A/E making that change and 
shall be appropriately marked to reflect what was changed or modified. 
 
 

ARTICLE 18 
PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIAL 

 
A/E shall furnish and maintain, at its own expense, quarters for the performance of all Basic 
Services, and adequate and sufficient personnel and equipment to perform the Basic Services as 
required.  All employees of A/E shall have such knowledge and experience as will enable them 
to perform the duties assigned to them.  Any employee of A/E who, in the reasonable opinion of 
County, is incompetent or whose conduct becomes detrimental to the Basic Services shall 
immediately be removed from association with the Project when so instructed by County.  A/E 
certifies that it presently has adequate qualified personnel in its employment for performance of 
the Basic Services required under this Agreement, or will obtain such personnel from sources 
other than County.  A/E may not change the Project Manager without prior written consent of 
County. 
 
 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 15 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

ARTICLE 19 
SUBCONTRACTING 

 
A/E shall not assign, subcontract, or transfer any portion of the Basic Services under this 
Agreement without prior written approval from County.  All subcontracts shall include the 
provisions required in this Agreement.  No subcontract shall relieve A/E of any responsibilities 
under this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 20 
MODIFICATIONS 

 
This instrument contains the entire Agreement between the parties relating to the right herein 
granted and obligations herein assumed.  Any oral or written representations or modifications 
concerning this instrument shall be of no force and effect excepting a subsequent written 
modification signed by both parties hereto. 
 
 

ARTICLE 21 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

 
21.1  Compliance.   
A/E shall render the services hereunder in accordance with generally accepted standards 
applicable thereto and shall use that degree of care and skill commensurate with the architecture 
and engineering professions, and in recognition of such standards, A/E shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations, and 
the orders and decrees of any court, or administrative bodies or tribunals in any manner affecting 
the performance of this Agreement, including, without limitation, minimum/ maximum salary 
and wage statutes and regulations, and licensing laws and regulations.  A/E shall furnish County 
with satisfactory proof of its compliance. 
 
A/E shall further obtain all permits and licenses required in the performance of the Basic Services 
contracted for herein. 

 
21.2  Taxes.   
A/E shall pay all taxes, if any, required by law arising by virtue of the Basic Services performed 
hereunder.  County is qualified for exemption pursuant to the provisions of Section 151.309 of 
the Texas Limited Sales, Excise, and Use Tax Act. 
 
 

ARTICLE 22 
INDEMNIFICATION 

 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 16 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

A/E AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY 
HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, 
LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONABLE 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM A 
NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION, NEGLIGENCE, OR INTENTIONAL TORT COMMITTED BY A/E, A/E’S 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY UNDER CONTRACT WITH A/E INCLUDING, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, A/E’S SUBCONSULTANTS, OR ANY OTHER ENTITY OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES 
CONTROL.   
 
A/E FURTHER AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, 
LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONABLE 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM A/E’S 
FAILURE TO PAY A/E’S EMPLOYEES, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, IN 
CONNECTION WITH ANY OF THE WORK PERFORMED OR TO BE PERFORMED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 
BY A/E.   
 
A/E FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, 
LOSSES, PENALTIES, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY 
OR RESULTS FROM THE INFRINGEMENT OF ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF 
ANY PLANS, DESIGN, DRAWINGS, OR SPECIFICATIONS FURNISHED BY A/E IN THE PERFORMANCE OF 
THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
THE LIMITS OF INSURANCE REQUIRED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
SHALL NOT LIMIT A/E’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS ARTICLE 22.  THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS ARTICLE 22 SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT AND/OR 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS OR THE SUSPENSION OF THE WORK HEREUNDER.  TO THE EXTENT THAT ANY 
LIABILITIES, PENALTIES, DEMANDS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES ARE 
CAUSED IN PART BY THE ACTS OF COUNTY OR THIRD PARTIES FOR WHOM A/E IS NOT LEGALLY 
LIABLE, A/E’S OBLIGATIONS SHALL BE IN PROPORTION TO A/E’S FAULT.  THE OBLIGATIONS HEREIN 
SHALL ALSO EXTEND TO ANY ACTIONS BY COUNTY TO ENFORCE THIS INDEMNITY OBLIGATION. 
 
IN THE EVENT THAT CONTRACTORS INITIATE LITIGATION AGAINST COUNTY IN WHICH CONTRACTOR 
ALLEGES DAMAGES AS A RESULT OF ANY ACTS, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS OF A/E OR ANY OF ITS 
EMPLOYEES OR ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY A/E, 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DEFECTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS IN THE CONSTRUCTION 
DOCUMENTS OR IN THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE AGREEMENT BY A/E OR ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES 
OR ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY A/E, AND/OR 
INADEQUATE SERVICES PURSUANT TO THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE-ADMINISTRATION OF THE 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AS DEFINED AND REQUIRED BY THIS AGREEMENT, AGREEMENT 
EXHIBITS AND THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, THEN COUNTY SHALL HAVE THE 
RIGHT TO JOIN A/E AT COUNTY’S COST.  A/E SHALL ALSO HOLD COUNTY HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 17 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

COUNTY TO THE EXTENT THAT A/E, ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, 
SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES CONTROL, 
CAUSED SUCH DAMAGES TO CONTRACTOR, INCLUDING ANY AND ALL COSTS AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES 
INCURRED BY COUNTY IN CONNECTION WITH THE DEFENSE OF ANY CLAIMS WHERE A/E, ITS 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES 
OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES CONTROL, ARE ADJUDICATED AT FAULT. 
 
 

ARTICLE 23 
PROFESSIONAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
A/E shall be responsible for the accuracy of its Professional Services and shall promptly make 
necessary revisions or corrections to its Work Product resulting from errors, omissions, or 
negligent acts, and same shall be done without compensation.  County shall determine A/E’s 
responsibilities for all questions arising from design errors and/or omissions, subject to the 
dispute resolution provisions of Article 31.  A/E shall not be relieved of responsibility for 
subsequent correction of any such errors or omissions in its work product, or for clarification of 
any ambiguities until after the construction phase of the Project has been completed. 
 
 

ARTICLE 24 
PROFESSIONAL’S SEAL 

 
The responsible architect and engineer shall sign, seal, and date all appropriate submissions to 
County in accordance with Texas laws and the rules of the State Boards of Registration for 
Professionals. 

 
 

ARTICLE 25 
INSURANCE 

 
A/E shall comply with the following insurance requirements, at all times, during this Agreement: 
 
25.1  Coverage Limits.   
A/E, at A/E’s sole cost, shall purchase and maintain, during the entire term while this Agreement 
is in effect, the following insurance: 

 
 25.1.1 

Worker's Compensation in accordance with statutory requirements. 
 

 25.1.2 
Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined minimum Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate. 

 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 18 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

 25.1.3 
Automobile Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with 
combined minimum limits for Bodily Injury and Property Damage limits of $500,000 per 
occurrence and $1,000,000 in the aggregate. 

 
 25.1.4 

Professional Liability Errors and Omissions Insurance in the amount of $2,000,000 per 
claim. 

 
25.2 Additional Insureds; Waiver of Subrogation.   
County, its directors, officers and employees shall be added as additional insureds under policies 
listed under (2) and (3) above, and on those policies where County, its directors, officers and 
employees are additional insureds, such insurance shall be primary; and, any insurance 
maintained by County shall be excess and not contribute with it.  Such policies shall also include 
waivers of subrogation in favor of County. 
 
25.3 Premiums and Deductible.   
A/E shall be responsible for payment of premiums for all insurance coverages required under this 
Article 25.  A/E further agrees that for each claim, suit, or action made against insurance provided 
hereunder, with respect to all matters for which A/E is responsible hereunder, A/E shall be solely 
responsible for all deductibles and self-insured retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured 
retentions over $50,000 in A/E’s insurance must be declared and approved in writing by County 
in advance. 
 
25.4 Commencement of Work.   
A/E shall not commence any work under this Agreement until it has obtained all required 
insurance and such insurance has been approved by County.  As further set out below, A/E shall 
not allow any subcontractor/ subconsultant(s) to commence work to be performed in connection 
with this Agreement until all required insurance has been obtained and approved; and, such 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Approval of the insurance by County shall not 
relieve or decrease the liability of A/E hereunder. 
 
25.5 Insurance Company Rating.   
Required insurance must be written by a company approved to do business in the State or Texas 
with a financial standing of at least an A-rating, as reflected in Best’s insurance ratings or by a 
similar rating system recognized within the insurance industry at the time the policy is issued. 

 
25.6 Certification of Coverage.   
A/E shall furnish County with a certification of coverage issued by the insurer.  A/E shall not 
cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance to lapse.  In addition to any other 
notification requires set forth hereunder, A/E shall also notify County, within twenty-four (24) 
hours of receipt, of any notices of expiration, cancellation, non-renewal, or material change in 
coverage it receives from its insurer. 

 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 19 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

25.7 No Arbitration.   
It is the intention of County and agreed to and hereby acknowledged by A/E, that no provision 
of this Agreement shall be construed to require County to submit to mandatory arbitration in the 
settlement of any claim, cause of action or dispute, except as specifically required in direct 
connection with an insurance claim or threat of claim under an insurance policy required 
hereunder or as may be required by law or a court of law with jurisdiction over the provisions of 
this Agreement. 

 
25.8 Subcontractor/ Subconsultant’s Insurance.   
Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of A/E, A/E shall require each 
subcontractor/ subconsultant performing work under this Agreement (to the extent a 
subcontractor/ subconsultant is allowed by County) to maintain during the term of this 
Agreement, at the subcontractor/ subconsultant’s own expense, the same stipulated minimum 
insurance required in this Article 25 above, including the required provisions and additional 
policy conditions as shown below in this Article 25. 

 
A/E shall obtain and monitor the certificates of insurance from each subcontractor/ subconsultant 
in order to assure compliance with the insurance requirements.  A/E must retain the certificates 
of insurance for the duration of this Agreement and shall have the responsibility of enforcing 
these insurance requirements among its subcontractor/ subconsultants.  County shall be entitled, 
upon request and without expense, to receive copies of these certificates of insurance. 

 
25.9 Insurance Policy Endorsements.   
Each insurance policy shall include the following conditions by endorsement to the policy: 
 
 25.9.1 

County shall be notified thirty (30) days prior to the expiration, cancellation, nonrenewal 
or any material change in coverage, and such notice thereof shall be given to County by 
certified mail to: 

 
Williamson County Purchasing 
100 Wilco Way 
Suite P101 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 25.10.1 

The policy clause “Other Insurance” shall not apply to any insurance coverage currently 
held by County, to any such future coverage, or to County’s Self-Insured Retentions of 
whatever nature. 

 
25.10 Cost of Insurance.   
The cost of all insurance required herein to be secured and maintained by A/E shall be borne 
solely by A/E, with certificates of insurance evidencing such minimum coverage in force to be 
filed with County.  Such certificates of insurance are evidenced as Exhibit F. 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 20 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

 
 

ARTICLE 26 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their 
successors, lawful assigns, and legal representatives.  A/E may not assign, sublet, or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement, in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise, without 
obtaining the prior written consent of County. 

 
 

ARTICLE 27 
SEVERABILITY 

 
In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason 
be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, then such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

 
 

ARTICLE 28 
PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED 

 
This Agreement constitutes the sole agreement of the parties hereto and supersedes any prior 
understandings or written or oral agreements between the parties respecting the subject matter 
defined herein.  This Agreement may only be amended or supplemented by mutual agreement 
of the parties hereto in writing. 

 
 

ARTICLE 29 
A/E’S ACCOUNTING RECORDS 

 
A/E agrees to maintain, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, 
detailed records identifying each individual performing services, the date or dates the services 
were performed, the applicable hourly rates, the total amount billed for each individual, and the 
total amount billed for all persons, records of reimbursable costs and expenses of other providers 
and provide such other details as may be requested by the County Auditor for verification 
purposes.  A/E agrees that County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the expiration 
of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, have access to and the right to 
examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers, and records of A/E which are 
directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of 
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  A/E further agrees that County shall 
have access during normal working hours to all necessary A/E facilities and shall be provided 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 21 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

adequate and appropriate workspace in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this Article 29.  County shall give A/E reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 
 

 
ARTICLE 30 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
30.1 Time is of the Essence.   
A/E understands and agrees that time is of the essence and that any failure of A/E to complete 
the Basic Services within the agreed Production Schedule set out in Exhibit C may constitute a 
material breach of this Agreement.  A/E shall be fully responsible for its delays or for failures to 
use its reasonable efforts in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and A/E’s standard of 
performance as defined herein.  Where damage is caused to County due to A/E’s negligent failure 
to perform, County may accordingly withhold, to the extent of such damage, A/E’s payments 
hereunder without waiver of any of County’s additional legal rights or remedies. 
 
30.2 Force Majeure.   
Neither County nor A/E shall be deemed in violation of this Agreement if prevented from 
performing any of their obligations hereunder by reasons for which they are not responsible or 
circumstances beyond their control.  However, notice of such impediment or delay in 
performance must be timely given, and all reasonable efforts undertaken to mitigate its effects. 

 
30.3 Enforcement and Venue.   
This Agreement shall be enforceable in Georgetown, Williamson County, Texas, and if legal 
action is necessary by either party with respect to the enforcement of any or all of the terms or 
conditions herein, exclusive venue for same shall lie in Williamson County, Texas.  This 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and court decisions 
of the State of Texas excluding, however, its choice of law rules. 

 
30.4 Standard of Performance.   
The standard of care for all professional architecture, engineering, consulting and related services 
performed or furnished by A/E and its employees under this Agreement will be the care and skill 
ordinarily used by members of A/E’s profession, practicing under the same or similar 
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. 

 
30.5 Opinion of Probable Cost.   
Any opinions of probable Project cost or probable construction cost provided by A/E are made 
on the basis of information available to A/E and on the basis of A/E’s experience and qualifications 
and represents its judgment as an experienced and qualified professional.  However, since A/E 
has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or 
over the contractor(s’) methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market 
conditions, A/E does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual Project or construction cost will 
not vary from opinions of probable cost A/E prepares. 

 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 22 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

30.6 Opinions and Determinations.   
Where the terms of this Agreement provide for action to be based upon opinion, judgment, 
approval, review, or determination of either party hereto, such terms are not intended to be and 
shall never be construed as permitting such opinion, judgment, approval, review, or 
determination to be arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable. 

 
30.7 Reports of Accidents.   
Within twenty-four (24) hours after A/E becomes aware of the occurrence of any accident or other 
event which results in, or might result in, injury to the person or property of any third person 
(other than an employee of A/E), whether or not it results from, or involves, any action or failure 
to act by A/E or any employee or agent of A/E and which arises in any manner from the 
performance of this Agreement, A/E shall send a written report of such accident or other event to 
County, setting forth a full and concise statement of the facts pertaining thereto.  A/E shall also 
immediately send to County a copy of any summons, subpoena, notice, or other documents 
served upon A/E, its agents, employees, or representatives, or received by it or them, in 
connection with any matter before any court arising in any manner from A/E’s performance of 
work under this Agreement. 

 
30.8 Gender, Number, and Headings.   
Words of any gender used in this Agreement shall be held and construed to include any other 
gender, and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural, unless the context 
otherwise requires.  The headings and section numbers are for convenience only and shall not be 
considered in interpreting or construing this Agreement. 

 
30.9 Construction.  
Each party hereto acknowledges that it and its counsel have reviewed this Agreement and that 
the normal rules of construction are not applicable and there will be no presumption that any 
ambiguities will be resolved against the drafting party in the interpretation of this Agreement. 
 
30.10 Independent Contractor Relationship.   
Both parties hereto, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an individual capacity and 
not as agents, employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The employees or 
agents of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other 
party for any purposes whatsoever. 

 
30.11 No Waiver of Immunities.   
Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive, modify, or amend any legal defense 
available at law or in equity to County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to 
create any legal rights or claim on behalf of any third party.  County does not waive, modify, or 
alter, to any extent whatsoever, the availability of the defense of governmental immunity under 
the laws of the State of Texas and of the United States. 

 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 23 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

30.12 Texas Public Information Act.   
To the extent, if any, that any provision in this Agreement is in conflict with Texas Government 
Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no force or 
effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that County, its officers and employees 
may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard 
to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that County’s officers 
and employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any 
party hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data 
furnished to County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the 
Attorney General of the State of Texas. 

 
30.13 Governing Terms and Conditions.   
If there is an irreconcilable conflict between the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 
or any Supplemental Agreement and the terms and conditions set forth in any Exhibit, Appendix 
to this Agreement, the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement or any Supplemental 
Agreement shall control over the terms and conditions set forth in any Exhibit, Appendix to this 
Agreement. 

 
30.14 Appropriation of Funds by County.   
County believes it has sufficient funds currently available and authorized for expenditure to 
finance the costs of this Agreement. A/E understands and agrees that County’s payment of 
amounts under this Agreement is contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to continue to make payments under this Agreement. It is further understood and 
agreed by A/E that County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at the end of any 
County fiscal year if the governing body of County does not appropriate sufficient funds as 
determined by County’s budget for the fiscal year in question.  County may affect such 
termination by giving written notice of termination to A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 31 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 
Except as otherwise specifically set forth herein, County and A/E shall work together in good 
faith to resolve any controversy, dispute, or claim between them which arises out of or relates to 
this Agreement, whether stated in tort, contract, statute, claim for benefits, bad faith, professional 
liability or otherwise ("Claim").  If the parties are unable to resolve the Claim within thirty (30) 
days following the date in which one party sent written notice of the Claim to the other party, 
and if a party wishes to pursue the Claim, such Claim shall be addressed through non-binding 
mediation.  A single mediator engaged in the practice of law, who is knowledgeable about subject 
matter of this Agreement, shall be selected by agreement of the parties and serve as the mediator.  
Any mediation under this Agreement shall be conducted in Williamson County, Texas.  The 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 24 of 25                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

mediator’s fees shall be borne equally between the parties.  Such non-binding mediation is a 
condition precedent to seeking redress in a court of competent jurisdiction, but this provision 
shall not preclude either party from filing a lawsuit in a court of competent jurisdiction prior to 
completing a mediation, if necessary to preserve the statute of limitations, in which case such 
lawsuit shall be stayed pending completion of the mediation process contemplated herein.  This 
provision shall survive the termination of the Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 32 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT 

 
The parties to this Agreement agree that during the performance of the services under this 
Agreement they will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 
of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The parties to this Agreement will take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such action shall 
include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.  

 
 

ARTICLE 33 
MERGER 

 
The Parties agree that this Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions of the 
understanding of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  All prior negotiations, 
discussions, correspondence and preliminary understandings between the parties and others 
relating hereto are superseded by this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 34 
PUBLIC CONTACT 

 
Contact with the news media, citizens of Williamson County or governmental agencies shall be 
the responsibility of County.  Under no circumstances shall A/E release any material or 
information developed in the performance of its services hereunder without the express written 
permission of County. 
 
 

ARTICLE 35 
A/E’s REPRESENTATIONS 

 
A/E represents that it is financially solvent, able to pay its debts as they become due, and 
possesses sufficient working capital to complete the services and perform its obligation under 





1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

 

Exhibit A  Page 1 of 7                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P528 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 

BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 

THE FOLLOWING SCOPE OF SERVICES IS INTENDED TO BE CONSISTENT WITH THE 
AGREEMENT.  TO THE EXTENT THIS SCOPE OF SERVICES IS INCONSISTENT WITH THE 
AGREEMENT, THE AGREEMENT WILL SUPERSEDE THE SCOPE OF SERVICES AND WILL 
BE CONTROLLING. 

In consideration of the Basic Fee provided in the Agreement, A/E shall perform the following 
Basic Services, based on standard architectural and engineering practices: 

These services may include, but are not limited to structural, mechanical, plumbing, electrical, 
construction administration, and specialized studies and analysis. 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Design Criteria.  A/E shall prepare all work in accordance with the latest version of applicable 
County’s procedures, specifications, manuals, guidelines, standard drawings, and standard 
specifications. A/E shall prepare each PS&E package in a form suitable for letting through 
County’s construction contract bidding and awarding process. 

Right-of-Entry and Coordination.  A/E shall notify County and secure permission to enter 
private property to perform any surveying, environmental, engineering or geotechnical activities 
needed off County property.  In pursuance of County’s policy with the general public, A/E shall 
not commit acts which would result in damages to private property, and A/E shall make every 
effort to comply with the wishes and address the concerns of affected private property owners.  
A/E shall contact each property owner prior to any entry onto the owner’s property and shall 
request concurrence from County prior to each entry. 

A/E shall notify County and coordinate with adjacent A/Es on all controls at project interfaces.  

A/E shall prepare each exhibit necessary for approval by each utility, and other governmental or 
regulatory agency in compliance with the applicable format and guidelines required by each 
entity and as approved by County. A/E shall notify County in writing prior to beginning any 
work on any outside agency’s exhibit. 

Progress Reporting.  A/E shall submit monthly (at a minimum) a progress status e-mail to 
County’s Project Manager (PM) regardless of whether A/E is invoicing for that month. 

A/E shall prepare and maintain a design and estimated construction schedule in a format 
acceptable to County during project phases prior to the Construction Administration Phase.  A/E 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

 

Exhibit A  Page 2 of 7                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P528 
 

 

shall schedule milestone submittals per Exhibit C – Production Schedule.  Contractor shall prepare 
and maintain a construction schedule in Gantt chart format during the project Construction 
Administration Phase through the Close-out Phase.   

Within 30 days of completion of construction of the project, A/E shall deliver all electronic files in 
formats acceptable to County. 

Final payment is contingent upon County’s receipt and confirmation by County’s PM that the 
electronic files run and are formatted in accordance with the Agreement and all review comments 
are addressed. 

A/E shall prepare a letter of transmittal to accompany each document submittal to County. At a 
minimum, the letter of transmittal must include County’s project name, Agreement and Work 
Authorization numbers, as well as facility name and address. 

Coordination.  A/E shall coordinate issues through County’s PM.  County will communicate 
resolution of issues and provide A/E direction through County’s PM. 

Level of Effort.  A/E shall base the level of effort at each phase on the prior work developed in 
earlier phases without unnecessary repetition or re-study. 

Quality Assurance (QA) and Quality Control (QC).  A/E shall provide peer review at all levels.  
For each deliverable, A/E shall maintain evidence of their internal review and mark-up of that 
deliverable as preparation for submittal.  When internal mark-ups are requested by County in 
advance, County, at its sole discretion, may reject the deliverable should A/E fail to provide the 
evidence of quality control.  A/E shall clearly label each document submitted for quality assurance 
as an internal mark-up document. 

A/E shall perform QA and QC on all subconsultant products (when applicable to the project) 
prior to delivery to County.  If, during the course of reviewing a submittal, it becomes apparent 
to County that the submittal contains unreasonable errors, omissions, or inconsistencies, County 
may cease its review and immediately return the submittal for appropriate action by A/E. 

A submittal returned to A/E for this reason is not a submittal for purposes of the submission 
schedule.  Rejected submittals shall not impact overall deadline of the Project nor the review 
period allotted to County officials.  A/E shall provide an updated schedule showing interim 
submission date changes to make-up for any lost time.  A/E shall not submit an invoice until 
County accepts the submittal as complete. 

Organization of Plan Sheets.  The PS&E package shall be complete and organized in a manner 
that is suitable for the bidding and awarding of a construction contract. 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

 

Exhibit A  Page 3 of 7                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P528 
 

 

Naming of Electronic Project Files and Organization of Design Project Folders.  A/E shall use 
succinct and understandable file names including project name, file content, date created (i.e. 
“Project Name_SD PLANS_year.month.day”).  A/E shall maintain files in an organized folder 
structure that is readily understandable to outside users to facilitate communication and 
minimize complications in project close-out. 

SCOPE OF WORK:         

Williamson County Juvenile Justice Center (Recreation Shed) 
200 Wilco Way (Northeast Field) 
Georgetown, TX 78626 
P528 
 

Provide Structural, Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing Engineering to add (2) Unisex 
restrooms, a drinking fountain and covered wash-down area to the northeast corner of the 
existing Recreation Shed. 

 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

 

Exhibit A  Page 4 of 7                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P528 
 

 

 

Design services shall be conducted in phases as outlined herein.  Phases may be combined to 
expedite design process when defined in Exhibit C – Production Schedule.  Individual phases or 
groups of phases shall be authorized herein or by fully executed Supplemental Agreement. 

Phase I - SCHEMATIC DESIGN – Program, Plans, Outline Specifications and Estimate 

Upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed, A/E shall accomplish the following: 

A. Investigate site/facility and verify known existing or available utility locations. 

B. International Building Code (IBC), ASHRAE 90.1, ASHRAE 62.1, International 
Mechanical Code (IMC), National Electric Code (NEC), International Energy 
Conservation Code (IECC), and any other applicable codes and ordinances. 

C. Advise County of any changes, additions, or corrections to the preliminary 
program, plans, specifications, and budget. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase II - DESIGN DEVELOPMENT - Plans, Specifications and Estimate 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 

A. Consult freely with County concerning the principal phases of the work and 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

 

Exhibit A  Page 5 of 7                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P528 
 

 

immediately advise County of any unusual requirements or features not apparent 
during execution of the Schematic Design Phase. 

B. Develop plans and specifications, which indicate materials, construction methods 
and buildings systems. These building systems may include (but are not limited 
to) structural, mechanical, plumbing, and electrical. 

C. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase III - CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS - Plans, Specifications, and Estimate 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 

A. Prepare complete plans, specifications, and engineering calculations (without 
professional seals) setting forth in detail the work required for the structural, 
mechanical, plumbing, and electrical work. 

B. Consult freely with County concerning the principal phases of the work 
immediately advise County of any unusual requirements or features not apparent 
during execution of the Schematic Design and Design Development Phases.   

C. Complete the PS&E for the entire Project and its component parts. The Project 
detailed cost estimate shall not exceed the project construction budget as approved 
in writing by County. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase IV – REGULATORY REVIEW AND PERMITS - Plans, Specifications, and Permits: 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 

A. Participate in any Pre-submittal Meetings required by local jurisdiction prior to 
Permit application submittal. 

B. Receive and respond to permitting comments by the local jurisdiction having 
review authority. 

C. Revise plans and specifications as necessary to conform to permitting, 
accessibility, and budget requirements without additional charge to County. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase V – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT BIDDING, AWARD, AND EXECUTION 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

 

Exhibit A  Page 6 of 7                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P528 
 

 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 

A. Participate in a Pre-bid Meeting, answer RFI’s from Contractors and suppliers, and 
prepare addenda items as required.  

B. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase VI - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION - Project Observation and Inspection: 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall perform the following work: 

A. Review and submit copies of each shop drawing and submittal of materials and 
equipment to County. 

B. Conduct site visits with personnel technically qualified by education and 
experience to competently observe relevant aspects of construction. Make 
necessary observations to determine if workmanship and quality of materials 
generally conform to the plans and specifications, and that provisions of the 
contract are complied with. 

C. Reject work performed by Contractor which does not meet the requirements of the 
Construction Documents; and, order removal and replacement of such work. 

D. Accompany County on Substantial Completion Inspection with appropriate staff 
and affiliates.  Prepare a punch list of items needing correction.  After Contractor 
has performed the required corrections, notify County in writing that the contract 
has been performed in general conformance with the plans and specifications and 
is ready for Final Inspection. 

E. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase VII – PROJECT CLOSE-OUT – Final Inspection and Document Review: 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall perform the following work: 

A. Accompany County on Final Inspection to determine if construction has been 
completed in general accordance with the Contract Documents.  

B. Review warranties, guarantees, bonds, equipment operating instructions, and 
similar deliverables to verify receipt, and general conformance to requirements of 
the Contract. 

C. Upon completion of construction and prior to the request for final payment, make 
changes in the original REVIT model or CAD files of the Project to show changes 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

 

Exhibit A  Page 7 of 7                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P528 
 

 

made and noted by Contractor of the work and final location of the mechanical 
service lines and outlets including outside utilities.  Develop project Record 
Construction Drawings and Specifications. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 



1/14/2021
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add

4,400$           100%

3,500$           80%

Structural Engineering 2,000$           
MEP Engineering 1,500$           

900$              20%

3 300$              / visit

Site Visits - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION

 never be less than the Initial Base Rates.

CPI Rate Adjustments:  Rates shall remain firm for the first year of the Agreement and 
such rates shall be deemed the “Initial Base Rates”.  A/E must request rate adjustments, 
in writing, at least thirty (30) days prior to each annual anniversary date of the 
Agreement and any rate changes will take effect on the first day following the prior 
year.  If A/E fails to request a CPI rate adjustment, as set forth herein, the adjustment 
will be effective thirty (30) days after County receives A/E’s written request.  No 
retroactive rate adjustments will be allowed.  All rate  adjustments and modifications 

Price adjustments will be made in accordance with changes in the U.S. Department of 
Labor Consumer Price Index (CPI-U) for All Urban Consumers, All Items, South Region 
(Base 1982-84 = 100).

shall be set forth in a written fully executed amendment.

Initial Base Rates, County will pay the greater amounts as the rates during the 
successive year until the next rate adjustment.  Rates for each successive year will 

FEE SCHEDULE

Phases I-VII - SCHEMATIC DESIGN through CLOSE-OUT

This schedule indicates fees by Phase of the Basic Fee:

EXHIBIT B

The rate adjustment will be determined by multiplying the Initial Base Rates by a 
fraction, the numerator of which is the index number for most recently released index 
before each annual anniversary date of the Agreement and the denominator of which is  
the index number for thefirst month of the Agreement (the index number for the month 
in which the Agreement was originally executed).  If the products are greater than the 

Exhibit B
Form rev. 12/2020 Page 1 of 2

 0509-2021-1045B-01
P528



1/14/2021
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add

Principal Engineer $150 / hr
Individual hourly rate schedule:

Exhibit B
Form rev. 12/2020 Page 2 of 2

 0509-2021-1045B-01
P528



1/14/2021
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add

Agreement Execution Date 01/26/21

60% Plans, Specifications and Estimate deliverables 03/26/21

County written authorization to proceed to next phase 04/02/21

Complete Plans, Specifications and Estimate deliverables 06/01/21

County written authorization to proceed to next phase 06/08/21

Sealed Plans and Specifications and Estimate deliverables to County 06/15/21

Plans submittal to TDLR and Permit application submittal to City 06/22/21

Construction Permits received from City 07/22/21

County advertises project for Bid 08/05/21

Contract Award 09/03/21

Phase I+II - DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

Phase III - CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

Phase V - BIDDING, AWARD, AND EXECUTION

Phase IV - REGULATORY REVIEW AND PERMITS

Standard end-of-phase review periods for County shall be (5) business days minimum.  

The above time limits may, for good cause, be extended, in writing, by County as the 
Project proceeds.

The schedule below indicates various project milestones and target dates.

PRODUCTION SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT C

A/E agrees to complete the professional design services called for in Exhibit A of

date of this Agreement.
this Agreement within Five Hundred Forty Seven (547) calendar days from the

Exhibit C
Form rev. 12/2020 Page 1 of 2

 0509-2021-1045B-01
P528



1/14/2021
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add

Contractor Notice to Proceed 09/03/21

Construction Substantial Completion 03/04/22

Record Documents deliverables 04/04/22

Agreement Termination Date 07/20/22

Phase VI - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION	

Phase VII - PROJECT CLOSE-OUT

Exhibit C
Form rev. 12/2020 Page 2 of 2

 0509-2021-1045B-01
P528



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 1 of 7                     0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P528 

EXHIBIT D 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY VENDOR REIMBURSEMENT POLICY 

The purpose of this Williamson County Vendor Reimbursement Policy (“Policy”) is to provide 
clear guidelines to vendors on Williamson County’s expectations and requirements regarding 
allowable reimbursable expenditures and required backup. The Policy will also minimize 
conflicts related to invoice payments and define non-reimbursable items. This Policy is 
considered a guideline and is not a contract. 

This Policy may be altered, deleted, or amended at any time and without prior notice to vendors, 
by action of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. Unenforceable provisions of this 
Policy, as imposed by applicable law, regulations, or judicial decisions, shall be deemed to be 
deleted. Any revisions to this Policy will be distributed to all current vendors doing business with 
County. 

1. Invoices and Affidavits 

1.1 Invoices must adequately describe the goods or services provided to County and 
include all required backup (i.e. reimbursable expenses, mileage log, timesheets, 
receipts detailing expenses incurred etc.) that is in a form acceptable to the Williamson 
County Auditor. Invoices that do not adequately describe the goods or services 
provided to County or contain backup that is not satisfactory to the Williamson 
County Auditor will be returned to vendor for revisions and the provision above 
relating to invoice errors resolved in favor of County shall control as to the required 
actions of vendor and when such invoice must be paid by County. 

1.2 In the event an invoice includes charges based upon hourly billing rates for services 
or any other rates based upon the amount of time worked by an individual or 
individuals in performing services, whether the charges are being billed directly to 
County or whether they are the basis of invoices from subcontractors for which the 
vendor seeks reimbursement from County, the charges shall be accompanied by an 
affidavit signed by an officer or principal of the vendor certifying that the work was 
performed, it was authorized by County and that all information contained in the 
invoice that is being submitted is true and correct. 

1.3 Upon County’s request, vendor must submit all bills paid affidavits wherein vendor 
must swear and affirm that vendor has paid each of its subcontractors, laborers, 
suppliers and material in full for all labor and materials provided to vendor for or in 
connection with services and work performed for County and, further, vendor must 
swear and affirm that vendor is not aware of any unpaid bills, claims, demands, or 
causes of action by any of its subcontractors, laborers, suppliers, or material for or in 
connection with the furnishing of labor or materials, or both, for services and work 
performed for County. 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 2 of 7                     0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P528 

2. Travel Reimbursement 

2.1 County will only cover costs associated with travel on vendors outside a 50-mile 
radius from Williamson County, Texas. 

2.2 County will only cover costs associated with travel as documented work for County. 
If a vendor is also doing business for another client, the travel costs must be split in 
proportion to the amount of work actually performed for County and the other client. 
The only allowable travel expense will be for the specific days worked for Williamson 
County. 

2.3 No advance payments will be made to vendor for travel expenditures. The travel 
expenditure may only be reimbursed after the expenditure/trip has already occurred 
and vendor has provided the Williamson County Auditor with all necessary and 
required backup. 

2.4 Vendors must submit all travel reimbursement requests on each employee in full. 
Specifically, a travel reimbursement request must include all related travel 
reimbursement expenses relating to a particular trip for which vendor seeks 
reimbursement. Partial travel reimbursement requests will not be accepted (i.e. 
vendor shall not submit hotel and mileage one month then the next month submit 
rental car and airfare). If the travel reimbursement appears incomplete, the invoice 
will be sent back to the vendor to be submitted when all information is ready to submit 
in full. 

2.5 Reimbursement for transportation costs will be at the most reasonable means of 
transportation (i.e.: airline costs will be reimbursed for coach rate, rental car costs will 
only be reimbursed if rental car travel was most reasonable means of travel as 
compared to travel by air). 

2.6 County will not be responsible for, nor will County reimburse additional charges due 
to personal preference or personal convenience of individual traveling. 

2.7 County will not reimburse airfare costs if airfare costs were higher than costs of 
mileage reimbursement. 

2.8 Additional expenses associated with travel that is extended to save costs (i.e. Saturday 
night stay) may be reimbursed if costs of airfare would be less than the cost of 
additional expenses (lodging, meals, car rental, mileage) if the trip had not been 
extended.  Documentation satisfactory to the Williamson County Auditor will be 
required to justify expenditure. 

2.9 County will only reimburse travel expense to necessary personnel of the vendor (i.e. 
no spouse, friends, or family members). 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 3 of 7                     0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P528 

2.10 Except as otherwise set forth herein, a vendor must provide a paid receipt for all 
expenses. If a receipt cannot be obtained, a written sworn statement of the expense 
from the vendor may be substituted for the receipt. 

2.11 Sales tax for meals and hotel stays are the only sales taxes that will be reimbursed. 
Sales tax on goods purchased will not be reimbursed. A sales tax exemption form is 
available from the Williamson County Auditor’s Office upon request. 

2.12 County will not pay for any late charges on reimbursable items. It is the responsibility 
of the vendor to pay the invoice first and seek reimbursement from County. 

3. Meals 

3.1 Meal reimbursements are limited to a maximum of $50.00 per day on overnight travel. 
On day travel (travel that does not require an overnight stay), meal reimbursements 
are limited to a maximum of $20.00 per day. The travel must be outside the Williamson 
County, Texas line by a 50-mile radius. 

3.2 Receipts are required on meal reimbursement amounts up to the maximum per day 
amount stated for overnight or day travel. If receipts are not presented, the vendor 
can request per diem (per diem limits refer to 3.2). However, a vendor cannot combine 
per diem and meal receipts. Only one method shall be allowed. 

3.3 Meals are reimbursable only for vendors who do not have the necessary personnel 
located within a 50-mile radius of Williamson County, Texas that are capable of 
carrying the vendor’s obligations to County. Meals will not be reimbursed to vendors 
who are located within a 50-mile radius of Williamson County, Texas. 

3.4 County will not reimburse for alcoholic beverages. 

3.5 Tips are reimbursable but must be reasonable to limitation of meal allowance 

3.6 No meals purchased for entertainment purposes will be allowed. 

3.7 Meal reimbursement must be substantiated with a hotel receipt. 

4. Lodging 

4.1 Hotel accommodations require an itemized hotel folio as a receipt. The lodging receipt 
shall include name of the motel/hotel, number of occupant(s), goods or services for 
each individual charge (room rental, food, tax, etc.) and the name of the occupant(s). 
Credit card receipts or any other form of receipt are not acceptable. 

4.2 Vendors will be reimbursed for a single room rate charge plus any applicable tax. If a 
single room is not available, the vendor must provide documentation to prove that a 
single room was not available in order to justify the expense over and above the single 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 4 of 7                     0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P528 

room rate. A vendor may also be required to provide additional documentation if a 
particular room rate appears to be excessive. 

4.3 Personal telephone charges, whether local or long distance, will not be reimbursed. 

5. Airfare 

5.1 County will only reimburse up to a coach price fare for air travel. 

5.2 County will exclude any additional charges due to personal preference or personal 
convenience of the individual traveling (i.e. early bird check in, seat preference 
charges, airline upgrades, etc. will not be an allowable reimbursement) 

5.3 Air travel expenses must be supported with receipt copy of an airline ticket or an 
itinerary with actual ticket price paid. If tickets are purchased through a website, 
vendor must submit a copy of the webpage showing the ticket price if no paper ticket 
was issued. 

5.4 Cancellation and/or change flight fees may be reimbursed by County but vendor must 
provide the Williamson County Auditor with documentation in writing from a 
County department head providing authorization for the change. 

5.5 County will not reimburse vendor for tickets purchased with frequent flyer miles. 

6. Car Rental 

6.1 Vendors that must travel may rent a car at their destination when it is less expensive 
than other transportation such as taxis, airport shuttles or public transportation such 
as buses or subways. 

6.2 Cars rented must be economy or mid-size. Luxury vehicle rentals will not be 
reimbursed. Any rental costs over and above the cost of a mid-size rental will be 
adjusted. 

6.3 Vendors will be reimbursed for rental cars if the rental car cost would have been less 
than the mileage reimbursement cost (based on the distance from vendor’s point of 
origin to Williamson County, Texas) had the vendor driven vendor’s car. 

6.4 Vendors must return a car rental with appropriate fuel levels as required by rental 
agreement to avoid the car rental company from adding fuel charges. 

6.5 Rental agreement and credit card receipt must be provided to County as back up for 
the request for reimbursement. 

6.6 Insurance purchased when renting vehicle may also be reimbursed. 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 5 of 7                     0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P528 

6.7 Car Rental optional extras such as GPS, roadside assistance, and administrative fees 
on Tolls will not be reimbursed. 

7. Personal Car Usage 

7.1 Personal vehicle usage will be reimbursed in an amount equal to the standard mileage 
rate allowed by the IRS. 

7.2 Per code of Federal Regulations, Title 26, Subtitle A, Chapter 1, Subchapter B, Part 
IX, Section 274(d), all expense reimbursement requests must include the following: 

7.2.1 Date 

7.2.2 Destination 

7.2.3 Purpose 

7.2.4 Name of traveler(s) 

7.2.5 Correspondence that verifies business purpose of the expense 

7.3 The mileage for a personal vehicle must document the date, location of travel to/from, 
number of miles traveled and purpose of trip. 

7.4 Mileage will be reimbursed on the basis of the most commonly used route. 

7.5 Reimbursement for mileage shall not exceed the cost of a round trip coach airfare. 

7.6 Reimbursement for mileage shall be prohibited between place of residence and usual 
place of work. 

7.7 Mileage shall be calculated from employee’s regular place of work or their residence, 
whichever is the shorter distance when traveling to a meeting or traveling to 
Williamson County, Texas for vendors who are located outside of Williamson County, 
Texas by at least a 50-mile radius. 

7.8 When more than one person travels in same vehicle, only one person may claim 
mileage reimbursement. 

7.9 Tolls, if reasonable, are reimbursable. Receipts are required for reimbursement.  If a 
receipt is not obtainable, then written documentation of expense must be submitted 
for reimbursement (administrative fees on Tolls will not be reimbursed). 

7.10 Parking fees, if reasonable are reimbursable for meetings and hotel stays. For vendors 
who contract with a third party for visitor parking at vendor’s place of business, 
Williamson County will not reimburse a vendor based on a percentage of its 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 6 of 7                     0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P528 

contracted visitor parking fees. Rather, Williamson County will reimburse Vendor for 
visitor parking on an individual basis for each time a visitor uses Vendor’s visitor 
parking. Receipts are required for reimbursement. If a receipt is not obtainable, then 
written documentation of expense must be submitted for reimbursement. 

7.11 Operating and maintenance expenses as well as other personal expenses, such as 
parking tickets, traffic violations, and car repairs and collision damage are not 
reimbursable. 

8. Other Expenses 

8.1 Taxi fare, bus tickets, conference registrations, parking, etc. must have a proper 
original receipt. 

9. Repayment of Non-reimbursable Expenses 

Vendors must, upon demand, immediately repay County for all inappropriately reimbursed 
expenses whenever an audit or subsequent review of any expense reimbursement 
documentation finds that such expense was reimbursed contrary to these guidelines and this 
Policy. Williamson County reserves the right to retain any amounts that are due or that 
become due to a vendor in order to collect any inappropriately reimbursed expenses that a 
vendor was paid. 

10. Non-Reimbursable Expenses 

In addition to the non-reimbursable items set forth above in this Policy, the following is a non-
exhaustive list of expenses that will not be reimbursed by Williamson County: 

10.1 Alcoholic beverages/tobacco products 

10.2 Personal phone calls 

10.3 Laundry service 

10.4 Valet service (excludes hotel valet) 

10.5 Movie rentals 

10.6 Damage to personal items 

10.7 Flowers/plants 

10.8 Greeting cards 

10.9 Fines and/or penalties 

10.10 Entertainment, personal clothing, personal sundries, and service 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 7 of 7                     0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P528 

10.11 Transportation/mileage to places of entertainment or similar personal activities 

10.12 Upgrades to airfare, hotel and/or car rental 

10.13 Airport parking above the most affordable rate available 

10.14 Excessive weight baggage fees or cost associated with more than two airline bags 

10.15 Auto repairs 

10.16 Babysitter fees, kennel costs, pet, or house-sitting fees 

10.17 Saunas, massages, or exercise facilities 

10.18 Credit card delinquency fees or service fees 

10.19 Doctor bills, prescription and other medical services 

10.20 Hand tools 

10.21 Safety Equipment (hard hats, safety vests, etc.) 

10.22 Office Supplies 

10.23 Lifetime memberships to any association 

10.24 Donations to other entities 

10.25 Any items that could be construed as campaigning 

10.26 Community outreach items exceeding $2 per item 

10.27 Technology Fees 

10.28 Sales tax on goods purchased 

Any other expenses which Williamson County deems, in its sole discretion, to be inappropriate 
or unnecessary expenditures. 



1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Exhibit E – Debarment Certification Page 1 of 2                 0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

EXHIBIT E 

DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

STATE OF TEXAS    § 
      § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON   § 
 
1. I, the undersigned, being duly sworn or under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United 

States and the State of Texas, certifies that A/E and its principals: 

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible 
or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or 
agency: 

b. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had 
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense 
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public* 
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity* with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
Paragraph 1(b) of this certification; 

d. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or 
more public transactions* terminated for cause or default; and 

e. Have not been disciplined or issued a formal reprimand by any State agency for 
professional accreditation within the past three years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





1/14/2021   
JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add 

Exhibit F – Certificates of Insurance Page 1 of 1                    0509-2021-1045B-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P528 

EXHIBIT F 

CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE 

A/E and Subconsultant Certificates of Insurance attached: 

 

 

 

 

 



01/14/2021

Whorton Insurance Services
11200 Jollyville Rd.

Austin TX 78759-4813

Noe Moreno CIC,CLCS,ACSR
(512) 338-1191 (512) 338-1196

NoeM@whortonins.com

Charles A. Witt, DBA: K & W Engineering Solutions LLC
650 Shell Stone Trail

Georgetown TX 78628

Kinsale Insurance Company 38920

CL20121624592

A
Professional Liability

0100103511-1 12/16/2020 12/16/2021 LIMIT 2,000,000

The policy includes a notice of cancellation endorsement providing for 30 days’ advance notice if the policy is cancelled by the company other than for
nonpayment of premium, or 10 days’ notice if the policy is canceled for nonpayment of premium.

Williamson County Purchasing
100 Wilco Way
Suite P101
Georgetown TX 78626

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE
BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED
ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

1/14/2021

(512) 343-0280 6394 (512) 343-0352

30104

K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC
650 Shell Stone Trail
Georgetown, TX 78628

29394
22945

A 2,000,000

65SBAAF9WLY 4/3/2020 4/3/2021 1,000,000

10,000

2,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

1,000,000B

BA420000015586 4/4/2020 4/4/2021

1,000,000A
65SBAAF9WLY 4/3/2020 4/3/2021 1,000,000

C
0002046207 3/31/2020 3/31/2021 1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

The General Liability Policy includes a blanket automatic additional insured with a waiver of subrogation on a primary non contributory basis when required 
by written contract or agreement. 30 day notice of cancellation applies.

Williamson Country Purchasing
100 Wilco Way
Suite P101
Georgetown, TX 78626

CHARWIT-01 KFARRELL

AssuredPartners of TX, LLC DBA Capitol City Insurance
8030 N Mopac
Austin, TX 78759

Kimberly Farrell

kimberly.farrell@assuredpartners.com

Hartford Underwriters Insurance Co.
Mercury County Mutual Insurance Company
Texas Mutual Insurance Company

X

X
X

X

X
X
X

X X



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 10 18 Page 1 of 3
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED BY CONTRACT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Except as otherwise stated in this endorsement, the terms and conditions of the Policy apply.

A. The following is added to Section C. WHO IS AN INSURED:

Additional Insureds When Required By Written Contract, Written Agreement Or Permit

The person(s) or organization(s) identified in Paragraphs a. through f. below are additional insureds when you have
agreed, in a written contract or written agreement, or when required by a written permit issued by a state or
governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision that such person or organization be added as an
additional insured on your Coverage Part, provided the injury or damage occurs subsequent to the execution of the
contract or agreement, or the issuance of the permit.

A person or organization is an additional insured under this provision only for that period of time required by the
contract, agreement or permit.

However, no such person or organization is an additional insured under this provision if such person or organization is
included as an additional insured by any other endorsement issued by us and made a part of this Coverage Part.

The insurance afforded to such additional insured will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract,
agreement, or permit to provide for such additional insured.

The insurance afforded to such additional insured only applies to the extent permitted by law.

The limits of insurance that apply to additional insureds are described in Section D. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL
EXPENSES LIMITS OF INSURANCE. How this insurance applies when other insurance is available to an additional
insured is described in the Other Insurance Condition in Section E. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES
GENERAL CONDITIONS.

a. Vendors

Any person(s) or organization(s) (referred to below as vendor), but only with respect to "bodily injury" or "property
damage" arising out of "your products" which are distributed or sold in the regular course of the vendor's business
and only if this Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the
"products-completed operations hazard".

(1) The insurance afforded to the vendor is subject to the following additional exclusions:

This insurance does not apply to:

(a) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which the vendor is obligated to pay damages by reason of the
assumption of liability in a contract or agreement. This exclusion does not apply to liability for damages
that the vendor would have in the absence of the contract or agreement;

(b) Any express warranty unauthorized by you;

(c) Any physical or chemical change in the product made intentionally by the vendor;

(d) Repackaging, except when unpacked solely for the purpose of inspection, demonstration, testing, or the
substitution of parts under instructions from the manufacturer, and then repackaged in the original
container;

(e) Any failure to make such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to make
or normally undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the distribution or sale
of the products;

(f) Demonstration, installation, servicing or repair operations, except such operations performed at the
vendor's premises in connection with the sale of the product;

(g) Products which, after distribution or sale by you, have been labeled or relabeled or used as a container,
part or ingredient of any other thing or substance by or for the vendor; or



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 10 18 Page 2 of 3
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(h) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the sole negligence of the vendor for its own acts or
omissions or those of its employees or anyone else acting on its behalf. However, this exclusion does not
apply to:

(i) The exceptions contained in Paragraphs (d) or (f); or

(ii) Such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to make or normally
undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the distribution or sale of the
products.

(2) This insurance does not apply to any insured person or organization from whom you have acquired such
products, or any ingredient, part or container, entering into, accompanying or containing such products.

b. Lessors Of Equipment

(1) Any person or organization from whom you lease equipment; but only with respect to their liability for "bodily
injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your
maintenance, operation or use of equipment leased to you by such person or organization.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to any
"occurrence" which takes place after you cease to lease that equipment.

c. Lessors Of Land Or Premises

(1) Any person or organization from whom you lease land or premises, but only with respect to liability arising out
of the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of the land or premises leased to you.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to:

(a) Any "occurrence" which takes place after you cease to lease that land or be a tenant in that premises; or

(b) Structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of such person
or organization.

d. Architects, Engineers Or Surveyors

(1) Any architect, engineer, or surveyor, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or
"personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or
omissions of those acting on your behalf:

(a) In connection with your premises; or

(b) In the performance of your ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusion applies:

(a) This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury"
arising out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional services, including:

(i) The preparing, approving, or failure to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports,
surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or

(ii) Supervisory, surveying, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

This exclusion applies even if the claims allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring,
employment, training or monitoring of others by an insured, if the “bodily injury”, “property damage”, or
“personal and advertising injury” arises out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional
service.

(b) This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products-
completed operations hazard”.

e. State Or Governmental Agency Or Subdivision Or Political Subdivision Issuing Permit

(1) Any state or governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision, but only with respect to operations
performed by you or on your behalf for which the state or governmental agency or subdivision or political
subdivision has issued a permit.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to:

(a) "Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of operations performed
for the federal government, state or municipality; or



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 10 18 Page 3 of 3
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(b) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products-completed operations hazard".

f. Any Other Party

(1) Any other person or organization who is not in one of the categories or classes listed above in Paragraphs a.
through e. above, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and
advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those
acting on your behalf:

(a) In the performance of your ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf;

(b) In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you; or

(c) In connection with "your work" and included within the "products-completed operations hazard", but only
if:

(i) The written contract, written agreement or permit requires you to provide such coverage to such
additional insured; and

(ii) This Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the
"products-completed operations hazard".

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusion applies:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising
out of the rendering of, or the failure to render, any professional architectural, engineering or surveying
services, including:

(a) The preparing, approving, or failure to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports,
surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or

(b) Supervisory, surveying, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

This exclusion applies even if the claims allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring,
employment, training or monitoring of others by an insured, if the “bodily injury”, “property damage”, or
“personal and advertising injury” arises out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional service
described in Paragraphs f.(2)(a) or f.(2)(b) above.



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 18 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

If any of the other insurance does not permit contribution by equal shares, we will contribute by limits. Under
this method, each insurer’s share is based on the ratio of its applicable limit of insurance to the total
applicable limits of insurance of all insurers.

7. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us

a. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery

If the insured has rights to recover all or part of any payment, including Supplementary Payments, we have
made under this Coverage Part, those rights are transferred to us. The insured must do nothing after loss to
impair them. At our request, the insured will bring "suit" or transfer those rights to us and help us enforce
them. This condition does not apply to Medical Expenses Coverage.

b. Waiver Of Rights Of Recovery (Waiver Of Subrogation)

If the insured has waived any rights of recovery against any person or organization for all or part of any
payment, including Supplementary Payments, we have made under this Coverage Part, we also waive that
right, provided the insured waived their rights of recovery against such person or organization in a contract,
agreement or permit that was executed prior to the injury or damage.

F. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES DEFINITIONS

1. "Advertisement" means a notice that is broadcast or published to the general public or specific market segments
about your goods, products or services for the purpose of attracting customers or supporters. For the purpose of
this definition:

a. Notices that are published include material placed on the Internet or on similar electronic means of
communication; and

b. Regarding web sites, only that part of a web site that is about your goods, products or services for the
purpose of attracting customers or supporters is considered an advertisement.

2. "Advertising idea" means any idea for an "advertisement".

3. "Asbestos hazard" means an exposure or threat of exposure to the actual or alleged properties of asbestos and
includes the mere presence of asbestos in any form.

4. "Auto" means:

a. A land motor vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer designed for travel on public roads, including any attached
machinery or equipment; or

b. Any other land vehicle that is subject to a compulsory or financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle
insurance or motor vehicle registration law where it is licensed or principally garaged.

However, "auto" does not include "mobile equipment".

5. "Bodily injury" means physical:

a. Injury;

b. Sickness; or

c. Disease

sustained by a person and, if arising out of the above, mental anguish or death at any time.

6. "Coverage territory" means:

a. The United States of America (including its territories and possessions), Puerto Rico and Canada;

b. International waters or airspace, but only if the injury or damage occurs in the course of travel or
transportation between any places included in a. above;

c. All other parts of the world if the injury or damage arises out of:

(1) Goods or products made or sold by you in the territory described in a. above;

(2) The activities of a person whose home is in the territory described in a. above, but is away for a short time
on your business; or



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 17 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(2) Premises Rented To You

That is fire, lightning or explosion insurance for premises rented to you or temporarily occupied by you
with permission of the owner;

(3) Tenant Liability

That is insurance purchased by you to cover your liability as a tenant for "property damage" to premises
rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner;

(4) Aircraft, Auto Or Watercraft

If the loss arises out of the maintenance or use of aircraft, "autos" or watercraft to the extent not subject to
Exclusion g. of Section B. Exclusions.

(5) Property Damage To Borrowed Equipment Or Use Of Elevators

If the loss arises out of "property damage" to borrowed equipment or the use of elevators to the extent not
subject to Exclusion k. of Section B. Exclusions.

(6) When You Are Added As An Additional Insured To Other Insurance

That is other insurance available to you covering liability for damages arising out of the premises or
operations, or products and completed operations, for which you have been added as an additional
insured by that insurance; or

(7) When You Add Others As An Additional Insured To This Insurance

That is other insurance available to an additional insured.

However, the following provisions apply to other insurance available to any person or organization who is
an additional insured under this Coverage Part:

(a) Primary Insurance When Required By Contract

This insurance is primary if you have agreed in a written contract, written agreement or permit that
this insurance be primary. If other insurance is also primary, we will share with all that other insurance
by the method described in c. below.

(b) Primary And Non-Contributory To Other Insurance When Required By Contract

If you have agreed in a written contract, written agreement or permit that this insurance is primary and
non-contributory with the additional insured's own insurance, this insurance is primary and we will not
seek contribution from that other insurance.

Paragraphs (a) and (b) do not apply to other insurance to which the additional insured has been added as
an additional insured.

When this insurance is excess, we will have no duty under this Coverage Part to defend the insured against
any "suit" if any other insurer has a duty to defend the insured against that "suit". If no other insurer defends,
we will undertake to do so, but we will be entitled to the insured's rights against all those other insurers.

When this insurance is excess over other insurance, we will pay only our share of the amount of the loss, if
any, that exceeds the sum of:

(1) The total amount that all such other insurance would pay for the loss in the absence of this insurance;
and

(2) The total of all deductible and self-insured amounts under all that other insurance.

We will share the remaining loss, if any, with any other insurance that is not described in this Excess
Insurance provision and was not bought specifically to apply in excess of the Limits of Insurance shown in
the Declarations of this Coverage Part.

c. Method Of Sharing

If all the other insurance permits contribution by equal shares, we will follow this method also. Under this
approach, each insurer contributes equal amounts until it has paid its applicable limit of insurance or none of
the loss remains, whichever comes first.



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 12.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Williamson County CJC Pretrial Service Remodel (P545) - K&W Professional Service
Agreement
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Professional Services Agreement between
Williamson County and K&W Engineering Solutions to provide Design and Engineering Services for the Williamson
County CJC Pretrial Services Remodel (P545) in the amount of $2,600.00.

Background
This agreement is to provide electrical and mechanical engineering for a remodel in an existing building to create
space for a new department.  This project will be funded under P545

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
CJC Pretrial Service Remodel (P545) K&W PSA 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/20/2021 04:03 PM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 01/20/2021 01:16 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/20/2021 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 1 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN & ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

PROJECT: CJC Pretrial Services Remodels (“Project”) 
 
ARCHITECT/  
ENGINEER:  K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC (“A/E”) 
   Amber Kurkowski, CEO / Co-Owner 

650 Shell Stone Trail 
Georgetown, TX 78628 

 
COUNTY’S DESIGNATED 
REPRESENTATIVE:  Williamson County Facilities Department 

Attn:  Director of Facilities  
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN AND ENGINEERING SERVICES (“Agreement”) is made 
and entered into effective as of the latest date of the signatories indicated at the conclusion of this 
document and all attachments (the "Effective Date"), by and between Williamson County, a body 
corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas (“County”) and A/E. 
 

R E C I T A L S 
 
WHEREAS, V.T.C.A., Government Code §2254.002(2)(A)(vii) under Subchapter A entitled 
“Professional Services Procurement Act” provides for the procurement by counties of services of 
professional architects and engineers; and 
 
WHEREAS, County intends to remodel small areas within the Williamson County Justice 
Center to provide office spaces for a new department; and 
 
WHEREAS, County desires that A/E perform certain professional services in connection with the 
Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, A/E represents that it is qualified and desires to perform such services; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, County and A/E, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
herein contained, do mutually agree as follows: 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 2 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

 
 

ARTICLE 1 
SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

 
A/E agrees to perform professional services in connection with the Project as stated herein, and 
for having rendered such services, County agrees to pay to A/E compensation as stated in the 
articles to follow. 

 
 

ARTICLE 2 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE PROJECT DOCUMENTS 

 
2.1 Contract Documents.   
Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, any exhibits attached hereto (which exhibits are 
hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement) and all fully executed Supplemental 
Agreements which are subsequently issued.  These form the entire Agreement, and all are as fully 
a part of this Agreement as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. 
 
2.2 Existing Information.   
County shall provide A/E with all existing plans, maps, studies, reports, field notes, statistics, 
computations, and other data in its possession relative to existing facilities and to this particular 
Project at no cost to A/E; however, any and all such information shall remain the property of 
County and shall be returned, if the County so instructs A/E. 
 
2.3 Project Documents.  
In addition to any other pertinent and necessary Project documents, the following documents 
shall be used in the development of the Project: 

 
 2.3.1 

Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) of the Architectural Barriers Act, Article 9102, Texas 
Civil Statutes, Effective March 15, 2012, including latest revisions 
 

 2.3.2 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
 

 2.3.3 
Williamson County Facilities Building Code Adoption List, 2020 edition as updated 
 

 2.3.4 
Williamson County Consultant Design Submittal Guidelines, 2020 edition as updated 

 
 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 3 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

ARTICLE 3 
NON-COLLUSION; DEBARMENT; AND FINANCIAL INTEREST PROHIBITED 

 
3.1 Non-collusion.   
A/E warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or persons, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for A/E, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid 
or agreed to pay any company or subconsultant any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, 
gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
Agreement. Flor breach or violation of this warranty, County reserves and shall have the right to 
annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion and at its sole election, to deduct from 
the agreement price or compensation, or to otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee. 
 
3.2 Debarment Certification.  
A/E must sign the Debarment Certification enclosed herewith as Exhibit E. 

 
3.3 Financial Interest Prohibited.   
A/E covenants and represents that A/E, its officers, employees, agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors will have no financial interest, direct or indirect, in the purchase or sale of any 
product, materials, or equipment that will be recommended or required for the construction of 
the Project. 
 
 

ARTICLE 4 
CHARACTER AND SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
4.1 
In consideration of the compensation herein provided, A/E shall perform professional design and 
engineering services for the Project, which are acceptable to County, based on standard 
architectural and engineering practices and the scope of work described on the Exhibits attached 
to this Agreement.  A/E shall also serve as County's professional architect and engineer in those 
phases of the Project to which this Agreement applies and will consult with and give advice to 
County during the performance of A/E's services. 

 
4.3 
A/E shall perform the following Basic Scope of Services (sometimes referred to herein as the 
“Basic Scope of Services”, “Basic Services” or the “Scope of Services”): 

 
4.3.1 
The Basic Scope of Services shall generally consist of all elements of work, meetings, 
materials, and equipment required for the development of the Project in accordance with 
the requirements, policies, and general practices of Williamson County.  

 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 4 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

4.3.2 
As part of the Basic Services, A/E shall submit its work products to County for review as 
requested by County. 

 
4.3.3 
The detailed Basic Services for the Project is set forth herein as Exhibit A to this 
Agreement, which is expressly incorporated and made a part hereof. 

 
 

ARTICLE 5 
TIME FOR PERFOMANCE 

 
5.1 Commencement. 
A/E shall not commence work until A/E has been thoroughly briefed on the scope of the Project 
and has been notified in writing to proceed, as evidenced by a Notice to Proceed. 
 
5.2 Duration. 
A/E agrees to complete the Basic Services within the time period set forth in Exhibit C.  The time 
limits set out therein may, for good cause, be extended, in writing, by County as the Project 
proceeds.  
 
 

ARTICLE 6 
COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES 

 
6.1  Basic Fee.   
For and in consideration of the Basic Services rendered by A/E, County shall pay to  A/E up to 
Two Thousand Six Hundred Dollars ($ 2,600) hereinafter called the "Basic Fee", plus the amount 
payable under Article 7 (Additional Services and Charges). 
 
The Basic Fee is based upon all estimated labor costs required in the performance of all items and 
phases of the Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A.  Compensation for Basic Services will be paid 
by County by monthly invoices of percentage completion.  County will only be obligated to pay 
A/E for the performance of items and phases of the Basic Services actually rendered and incurred, 
which may be less than the above stated Basic Fee. 
 
6.2  Expenses.   
A/E shall be reimbursed for actual non-labor and subcontract expenses incurred in the 
performance of the services under this Agreement in accordance with the Williamson County 
Vendor Reimbursement Policy set forth under Exhibit D.  Invoices requesting reimbursement for 
costs and expenditures related to the Project (reimbursables) must be accompanied by copies of 
the provider’s invoice and must strictly comply with the Williamson County Vendor 
Reimbursement Policy.  The copies of the provider’s invoice must evidence the actual costs billed 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 5 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

to A/E without markup.  Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and 
Additional Services and must not exceed Two Hundred Sixty ($ 260). 
 

 
ARTICLE 7 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES AND CHARGES 
 

For the performance of services not specifically described as Basic Services under Article 4 above 
(sometimes referred to herein as “Additional Services”), County shall pay and A/E shall receive, 
under a negotiated, written supplemental agreement, Additional Services compensation based 
upon the method and rates set forth in Exhibit B. 
 
A/E shall not, however, be compensated for work made necessary by A/E’s negligent errors or 
omissions.  In the event of any dispute over the classification of A/E’s services as Basic or 
Additional Services under this Agreement, the decision of County shall be final and binding on 
A/E. 

 
It is expressly understood and agreed that A/E shall not furnish any Additional Services without 
the prior written authorization of County.  County shall have no obligation to pay for such 
Additional Services which have been rendered without prior written authorization of County as 
hereinabove required.  Furthermore, in no event will County be obligated to compensate A/E for 
any Additional Services and charges in an amount more than Six Hundred Fifty Dollars ($ 650). 
 
 

ARTICLE 8 
TIME OF PAYMENT; PAYMENT AND INTEREST; AND RIGHT TO AUDIT 

 
8.1  Time of Payment.   
During the performance of the services provided for in this Agreement, monthly payments shall 
be made based upon that portion of the services which has been completed.   
 
On or about the last day of each calendar month during the performance of the services to be 
provided under this Agreement, A/E shall submit to County working documents in any stage of 
completion to demonstrate incremental progress of Basic Services and the compensation which 
is due for percentage completion of Basic Services.  For amounts payable under Article 7 which 
have not been previously billed or paid, A/E shall submit a sworn statement to County, along 
with time sheets detailing hours worked, receipts detailing expenses incurred and other support 
documentation, in a form acceptable to the Williamson County Auditor, setting forth the  services 
provided for by this Agreement which were completed during such calendar month plus the 
amounts payable under Article 7 which have not been previously billed or paid.  In the event the 
statement includes charges based upon hourly billing rates for services or any other rates based 
upon the amount of time worked by an individual or individuals in performing services, whether 
the charges are being billed directly to the County or whether they are the basis of invoices from 
subcontractors for which A/E seeks reimbursement from the County, the charges shall be 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 6 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

subcontractors for which A/E seeks reimbursement from the County, the charges shall be 
accompanied by an affidavit signed by an officer or principal of A/E certifying that the work was 
performed, it was authorized by the County and that all information contained in the invoice that 
is being submitted is true and correct.   
 
The County shall review the documentation and shall pay each statement as set forth in this 
Article 8, however, the approval or payment of any statement shall not be considered evidence 
of performance by A/E to the point indicated by such statement or of receipt or acceptance by 
County of the services covered by such statement.  Final payment does not relieve A/E of the 
responsibility of correcting any errors or omissions resulting from A/E’s negligence. 
 
Upon submittal of the initial invoice, A/E shall provide the County Auditor with an Internal 
Revenue Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is 
complete in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations. 
 
8.2  Prompt Payment Policy.   
In accordance with Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A., Texas Government Code, payment to A/E will be 
made within thirty (30) days of the day on which the performance of services was complete, or 
within thirty (30) days of the day on which the County Auditor receives a correct invoice for 
services, whichever is later.  A/E may charge a late fee (fee shall not be greater than that which is 
permitted by Texas law) for payments not made in accordance with this prompt payment policy; 
however, this policy does not apply in the event: 

 
8.2.1 
There is a bona fide dispute between County and A/E concerning the supplies, materials, 
or equipment delivered or the services performed that causes the payment to be late; or 

 
8.2.2 
There is a bona fide dispute between A/E and a subcontractor/ subconsultant or between 
a subcontractor/ subconsultant and its supplier concerning supplies, materials, or 
equipment delivered or the Basic Services performed which causes the payment to be late; 
or 

 
8.2.3 
The invoice is not submitted to Williamson County in strict accordance with instructions, 
if any, on the purchase order, or this Agreement or other such contractual agreement. 

 
The County Auditor shall document to A/E the issues related to disputed invoices within ten (10) 
calendar days of receipt of such invoice.  Any non-disputed invoices shall be considered correct 
and payable per the terms of Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A. 

 
 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 7 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

ARTICLE 9 
PROJECT TEAM 

 
County’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Agreement is as follows: 
 

Williamson County Facilities Department 
Attn:  Director of Facilities  
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
County shall have the right, from time to time, to change the County’s Designated Representative 
by giving A/E written notice thereof.  With respect to any action, decision, or determination which 
is to be taken or made by County under this Agreement, the County’s Designated Representative 
may take such action or make such decision or determination or shall notify A/E in writing of an 
individual responsible for, and capable of, taking such action, decision, or determination, and 
shall forward any communications and documentation to such individual for response or action.  
Actions, decisions or determinations by County’s Designated Representative on behalf of County 
shall be done in his or her reasonable business judgment unless express standards or parameters 
therefor are included in this Agreement, in which case, actions taken by County’s Designated 
Representative shall be in accordance with such express standards or parameters.  Any consent, 
approval, decision, or determination hereunder by County’s Designated Representative shall be 
binding on County; provided, however, County’s Designated Representative shall not have any 
right to modify, amend, or terminate this Agreement or executed Supplemental Agreement.  
County’s Designated Representative shall not have any authority to execute a Supplemental 
Agreement unless otherwise granted such authority by the Williamson County Commissioners 
Court.   
 
 A/E’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Agreement is as follows: 
 

K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC 
  Amber Kurkowski, CEO / Co-Owner 

650 Shell Stone Trail 
Georgetown, TX 78628 

 
A/E shall have the right, from time to time, to change A/E’s Designated Representative by giving 
County written notice thereof.  With respect to any action, decision, or determination which is 
to be taken or made by A/E under this Agreement, A/E’s Designated Representative may take 
such action or make such decision or determination, or shall notify County in writing of an 
individual responsible for and capable of taking such action, decision, or determination and shall 
forward any communications and documentation to such individual for response or action.  
Actions, decisions, or determinations by A/E’s Designated Representative on behalf of A/E shall 
be done in his or her reasonable business judgment unless express standards or parameters 
therefor are included in this Agreement, in which case, actions taken by A/E’s Designated 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 8 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

Representative shall be in accordance with such express standards or parameters.  Any consent, 
approval, decision, or determination hereunder by A/E’s Designated Representative shall be 
binding on A/E.  A/E’s Designated Representative shall have the right to modify, amend, and 
execute Supplemental Agreements on behalf of A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 10 
NOTICE 

 
Any notice required to be given under the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be duly served when it shall have been deposited, enclosed in a wrapper with the proper 
postage prepaid thereon, and duly registered or certified, return receipt requested, in a United 
States Post Office, addressed to County or A/E at the following addresses.  If mailed, any notice 
or communication shall be deemed to be received three (3) days after the date of deposit in the 
United States Mail.  Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, all notices shall be delivered 
to the following addresses: 
 
County: Williamson County Judge 

710 Main Street, Suite 101 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
With copy to:  Williamson County Facilities Department 

Attn: Director of Facilities 
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Texas 78626  

 
and to:  Office of General Counsel 

Williamson County 
710 Main Street, Suite 102 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 
A/E:  K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC 

650 Shell Stone Trail 
Georgetown, TX 78628 

 
Attention: Amber Kurkowski 

    CEO / Co-Owner 
  
Either party may designate a different address by giving the other party ten (10) days written 
notice. 

 
 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 9 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

ARTICLE 11 
PROGRESS EVALUATION 

 
A/E shall, from time to time during the progress of the Basic Services, confer with County at 
County’s election.  A/E shall prepare and present such information as may be pertinent and 
necessary, or as may be reasonably requested by County, in order for County to evaluate features 
of the Basic Services.  At the request of County or A/E, conferences shall be provided at A/E's 
office, the offices of County, or at other locations designated by County.  When requested by 
County, such conferences shall also include evaluation of the Basic Services.  County may, from 
time to time, require A/E to appear and provide information to the Williamson County 
Commissioners Court. 
 
Should County determine that the progress in Basic Services does not satisfy the terms of the 
Agreement then County shall review same with A/E to determine corrective action required. 
 
A/E shall promptly advise County in writing of events which have or may have a significant 
impact upon the progress of the Basic Services, including but not limited to the following: 
 
11.1 
Problems, delays, adverse conditions which may materially affect the ability to meet the 
objectives of the Agreement or preclude the attainment of Project Basic Services by established 
time periods; and such disclosure shall be accompanied by statement of actions taken or 
contemplated, and County assistance needed to resolve the situation, if any; and 

 
11.2 
Favorable developments or events which enable meeting goals sooner than anticipated in 
relation to the Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 12 
CHANGES IN COMPLETED BASIC SERVICES 

 
If County deems it necessary to request changes to previously satisfactorily completed Basic 
Services or parts thereof which involve changes to the original Basic Services or character of Basic 
Services under this Agreement, then A/E shall make such revisions as requested and as directed 
by County.  Such revisions shall be considered as Additional Services and paid for as specified 
under Article 7.  A/E shall make revisions to Basic Services authorized hereunder as are 
necessary to correct errors appearing therein, when required to do so by County.  No additional 
compensation shall be due for such Basic Services. 

 
 

ARTICLE 13 
REVIEW PROCESS AND REVISIONS TO A/E WORK PRODUCT 

 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 10 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

13.1 Review Process.  
A/E's Work Product will be reviewed by County under its applicable technical requirements and 
procedures, as follows: 
   

13.1.1 Submittal.   
Reports, plans, surveys, field notes, original drawings, computer tapes, graphic files, 
tracings, calculations, analyses, reports, specifications, data, sketches and/or schematics 
prepared by A/E and supporting documents (collectively referred to hereinabove and 
hereinafter as the "A/E Work Product(s)"), shall be submitted by A/E on or before the dates 
specified for completion, as set out in the Production Schedule set forth in Exhibit C. 

 
13.1.2 Completion.   
Reports, plans, specifications, and supporting documents shall be submitted by A/E on or 
before the dates specified in Exhibit C.  Upon receipt of same, the submission shall be 
checked for completion. "Completion" or “Complete” shall be defined as all of the 
required items, as set out in Exhibit A have been included in compliance with the 
requirements of this Agreement.  The completeness of any Basic Services submitted to 
County shall be determined by County within thirty (30) days of such submittal and 
County shall notify A/E in writing within such thirty (30) day period if such Basic Services 
have been found to be incomplete.  If the submission is Complete, County will notify A/E 
and County’s technical review process will begin. 

 
If the submission is not Complete, County will notify A/E, who shall perform such 
professional services as are required to complete the Basic Services and resubmit it to 
County. This process shall be repeated until a submission is Complete. 
 

13.1.3 Acceptance.   
County will review the completed Basic Services for compliance with this Agreement.  If 
necessary, the completed Basic Services will be returned to A/E, who shall perform any 
required Basic Services and resubmit to County. This process shall be repeated until the 
Basic Services are Accepted. "Acceptance" or “Accepted” shall mean that in County’s 
reasonable opinion, substantial compliance with the requirements of this Agreement has 
been achieved. 

 
13.1.4 Final Approval.   
After Acceptance, A/E shall perform any required modifications, changes, alterations, 
corrections, redesigns, and additional work necessary to receive Final Approval by 
County.  "Final Approval" in this sense shall mean formal recognition that the Basic 
Services have been fully carried out. 

 
13.2  Revision to A/E Work Product.   
A/E shall make, without expense to County, such revisions to A/E Work Product as may be 
required to correct negligent errors or omissions so A/E Work Product meets the needs of County, 
but after the approval of A/E Work Product any revisions, additions, or other modifications made 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 11 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

at County's request which involve extra services and expenses to A/E shall entitle A/E to 
additional compensation for such extra services and expenses; provided, however, A/E hereby 
agrees to perform any necessary corrections to A/E Work Products which are found to be in 
negligent error or omission as a result of A/E’s development of A/E Work Product, at any time, 
without additional compensation.  If it is necessary, due to such error or omission by A/E, to 
revise any A/E Work Product in order to make the Project constructible, A/E shall do so without 
additional compensation.  In the event of any dispute over the classification of A/E’s Work 
Products as Complete, Accepted, or Approved under this Agreement, the decision of County 
shall be final and binding on A/E, subject to any civil remedy or determination otherwise 
available to the parties and deemed appropriate by the parties. 
 
13.3  Days.   
All references to a “day” in this Agreement shall mean a calendar day unless otherwise specified. 
 
13.4  County’s Reliance on A/E.   
A/E’s duties as set forth herein shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any 
review, evaluation, or approval by County nor shall A/E be released from any liability by 
reason of such review, evaluation or approval by County, it being understood that County, at 
all times, is ultimately relying upon A/E’s skill, ability, and knowledge in performing the Basic 
Services required hereunder. 

 
 

ARTICLE 14 
SUSPENSION 

 
Should County desire to suspend the Basic Services, but not to terminate this Agreement, then 
such suspension may be effected by County giving A/E thirty (30) calendar days’ verbal 
notification followed by written confirmation to that effect.  Such thirty (30)-day notice may be 
waived in writing by agreement and signature of both parties.  The Basic Services may be 
reinstated and resumed in full force and effect within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice 
from County to resume the Basic Services.  Such sixty (60)-day notice may be waived in writing 
by agreement and signature of both parties.  If this Agreement is suspended for more than thirty 
(30) days, A/E shall have the option of terminating this Agreement and, in the event, A/E shall be 
compensated for all Basic Services performed and reimbursable expenses incurred, provided 
such Basic Services and reimbursable expenses have been previously authorized and approved 
by County, to the effective date of suspension. 
 
County assumes no liability for Basic Services performed or costs incurred prior to the date 
authorized by County for A/E to begin Basic Services, and/or during periods when Basic Services 
are suspended, and/or subsequent to the completion date. 
 
 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 12 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

ARTICLE 15 
VIOLATION OF CONTRACT TERMS/ BREACH OF CONTRACT 

 
Violation of contract terms or breach of contract by A/E shall be grounds for termination of this 
Agreement, and any increased costs arising from A/E’s default, breach of contract, or violation of 
contract terms shall be paid by A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 16 
TERMINATION 

 
This Agreement may be terminated as set forth below. 
 
16.1 
By mutual agreement and consent, in writing, of both parties. 

 
16.2 
By County, by notice in writing to A/E, as a consequence of failure by A/E to perform the Basic 
Services set forth herein in a satisfactory manner. 

 
16.3 
By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations as set forth herein. 

 
16.4 
By County, for reasons of its own and not subject to the mutual consent of A/E, upon not less than 
thirty (30) days written notice to A/E. 

 
16.5 
By satisfactory completion of all Basic Services and obligations described herein. 
 
Should County terminate this Agreement as herein provided, no fees other than fees due and 
payable at the time of termination plus reimbursable expenses incurred shall thereafter be paid 
to A/E.  In determining the value of the Basic Services performed by A/E prior to termination, 
County shall be the sole judge.  Compensation for Basic Services at termination will be based on 
a percentage of the Basic Services completed at that time.  Should County terminate this 
Agreement under Section 16.4 above, then the amount charged during the thirty (30)-day notice 
period shall not exceed the amount charged during the preceding thirty (30) days. 
 
If A/E defaults in the performance of this Agreement or if County terminates this Agreement for 
fault on the part of A/E, then County shall give consideration to the actual costs incurred by A/E 
in performing the Basic Services to the date of default, the amount of Basic Services required 
which was satisfactorily completed to date of default, the value of the Basic Services which are 
usable to County, the cost to County of employing another firm to complete the Basic Services 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 13 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

required and the time required to do so, and other factors which affect the value to County of the 
Basic Services performed at the time of default. 
 
The termination of this Agreement and payment of an amount in settlement as prescribed above 
shall extinguish all rights, duties, and obligations of County under this Agreement. If the 
termination of this Agreement is due to the failure of A/E to fulfill its contractual obligations, then 
County may take over the Project and prosecute the Basic Services to completion.  In such case, 
A/E shall be liable to County for any additional and reasonable costs incurred by County. 
 
A/E shall be responsible for the settlement of all contractual and administrative issues arising out 
of any procurements made by A/E in support of the Basic Services under this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 17 
USE OF DOCUMENTS 

 
All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, and data or programs stored 
electronically, (hereinafter referred to as “A/E Work Products”) prepared by A/E and its 
subcontractors/ subconsultants are related exclusively to the services described in this Agreement 
and are intended to be used with respect to this Project.  However, it is expressly understood and 
agreed by and between the parties hereto that all of A/E’s designs under this Agreement 
(including but not limited to tracings, drawings, estimates, specifications, investigations, studies 
and other documents, completed or partially completed), shall be the property of County to be 
thereafter used in any lawful manner as County elects.  Any such subsequent use made of 
documents by County shall be at County’s sole risk and without liability to A/E. 

 
By execution of this Agreement and in confirmation of the fee for services to be paid under this 
Agreement, A/E hereby conveys, transfers, and assigns to County all rights under the Federal 
Copyright Act of 1976 (or any successor copyright statute), as amended, all common law 
copyrights and all other intellectual property rights acknowledged by law in the Project Designs 
and Work Product developed under this Agreement.  Copies may be retained by A/E.  A/E shall 
be liable to County for any loss or damage to any such documents while they are in the possession 
of or while being worked upon by A/E or anyone connected with A/E, including agents, 
employees, Engineers or subcontractors/ subconsultants.  All documents so lost or damaged shall 
be replaced or restored by A/E without cost to County. 
 
Upon execution of this Agreement, A/E grants to County permission to reproduce A/E’s work 
and documents for purposes of constructing, using, and maintaining the Project, provided that 
County will comply with its obligations, including prompt payment of all sums when due, under 
this Agreement. A/E shall obtain similar permission from A/E’s subcontractors/ subconsultants 
consistent with this Agreement.  If and upon the date A/E is adjudged in default of this 
Agreement, County is permitted to authorize other similarly credentialed design professionals to 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 14 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

reproduce and, where permitted by law, to make changes, corrections, or additions to the work 
and documents for the purposes of completing, using, and maintaining the Project. 

 
County shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge, or otherwise transfer any permission 
granted herein to another party without the prior written consent of A/E.  However, County shall 
be permitted to authorize the contractor, subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers to 
reproduce applicable portions of A/E Work Products appropriate to and for use in the execution 
of the Work.  Submission or distribution of A/E Work Products to meet official regulatory 
requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is permitted.  Any 
unauthorized use of A/E Work Products shall be at County's sole risk and without liability to A/E 
and its subconsultants. 

 
Prior to A/E providing to County any A/E Work Products in electronic form or County providing 
to A/E any electronic data for incorporation into A/E Work Products, County and A/E shall, by 
separate written agreement, set forth the specific conditions governing the format of such A/E 
Work Products or electronic data, including any special limitations not otherwise provided in this 
Agreement.  Any electronic files are provided by A/E for the convenience of County and use of 
them is at County’s sole risk.  In the case of any defects in electronic files or any discrepancies 
between them and any hardcopy of the same documents prepared by A/E, the hardcopy shall 
prevail.  Only printed copies of documents conveyed by A/E shall be relied upon.   

 
A/E shall have no liability for changes made to the drawings by other consultants subsequent to 
the completion of the Project.  Any such change shall be sealed by A/E making that change and 
shall be appropriately marked to reflect what was changed or modified. 
 
 

ARTICLE 18 
PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIAL 

 
A/E shall furnish and maintain, at its own expense, quarters for the performance of all Basic 
Services, and adequate and sufficient personnel and equipment to perform the Basic Services as 
required.  All employees of A/E shall have such knowledge and experience as will enable them 
to perform the duties assigned to them.  Any employee of A/E who, in the reasonable opinion of 
County, is incompetent or whose conduct becomes detrimental to the Basic Services shall 
immediately be removed from association with the Project when so instructed by County.  A/E 
certifies that it presently has adequate qualified personnel in its employment for performance of 
the Basic Services required under this Agreement, or will obtain such personnel from sources 
other than County.  A/E may not change the Project Manager without prior written consent of 
County. 
 
 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 15 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

ARTICLE 19 
SUBCONTRACTING 

 
A/E shall not assign, subcontract, or transfer any portion of the Basic Services under this 
Agreement without prior written approval from County.  All subcontracts shall include the 
provisions required in this Agreement.  No subcontract shall relieve A/E of any responsibilities 
under this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 20 
MODIFICATIONS 

 
This instrument contains the entire Agreement between the parties relating to the right herein 
granted and obligations herein assumed.  Any oral or written representations or modifications 
concerning this instrument shall be of no force and effect excepting a subsequent written 
modification signed by both parties hereto. 
 
 

ARTICLE 21 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

 
21.1  Compliance.   
A/E shall render the services hereunder in accordance with generally accepted standards 
applicable thereto and shall use that degree of care and skill commensurate with the architecture 
and engineering professions, and in recognition of such standards, A/E shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations, and 
the orders and decrees of any court, or administrative bodies or tribunals in any manner affecting 
the performance of this Agreement, including, without limitation, minimum/ maximum salary 
and wage statutes and regulations, and licensing laws and regulations.  A/E shall furnish County 
with satisfactory proof of its compliance. 
 
A/E shall further obtain all permits and licenses required in the performance of the Basic Services 
contracted for herein. 

 
21.2  Taxes.   
A/E shall pay all taxes, if any, required by law arising by virtue of the Basic Services performed 
hereunder.  County is qualified for exemption pursuant to the provisions of Section 151.309 of 
the Texas Limited Sales, Excise, and Use Tax Act. 
 
 
 
 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 16 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

ARTICLE 22 
INDEMNIFICATION 

 
A/E AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY 
HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, 
LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONABLE 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM A 
NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION, NEGLIGENCE, OR INTENTIONAL TORT COMMITTED BY A/E, A/E’S 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY UNDER CONTRACT WITH A/E INCLUDING, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, A/E’S SUBCONSULTANTS, OR ANY OTHER ENTITY OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES 
CONTROL.   
 
A/E FURTHER AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, 
LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONABLE 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM A/E’S 
FAILURE TO PAY A/E’S EMPLOYEES, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, IN 
CONNECTION WITH ANY OF THE WORK PERFORMED OR TO BE PERFORMED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 
BY A/E.   
 
A/E FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, 
LOSSES, PENALTIES, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY 
OR RESULTS FROM THE INFRINGEMENT OF ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF 
ANY PLANS, DESIGN, DRAWINGS, OR SPECIFICATIONS FURNISHED BY A/E IN THE PERFORMANCE OF 
THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
THE LIMITS OF INSURANCE REQUIRED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
SHALL NOT LIMIT A/E’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS ARTICLE 22.  THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS ARTICLE 22 SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT AND/OR 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS OR THE SUSPENSION OF THE WORK HEREUNDER.  TO THE EXTENT THAT ANY 
LIABILITIES, PENALTIES, DEMANDS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES ARE 
CAUSED IN PART BY THE ACTS OF COUNTY OR THIRD PARTIES FOR WHOM A/E IS NOT LEGALLY 
LIABLE, A/E’S OBLIGATIONS SHALL BE IN PROPORTION TO A/E’S FAULT.  THE OBLIGATIONS HEREIN 
SHALL ALSO EXTEND TO ANY ACTIONS BY COUNTY TO ENFORCE THIS INDEMNITY OBLIGATION. 
 
IN THE EVENT THAT CONTRACTORS INITIATE LITIGATION AGAINST COUNTY IN WHICH CONTRACTOR 
ALLEGES DAMAGES AS A RESULT OF ANY ACTS, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS OF A/E OR ANY OF ITS 
EMPLOYEES OR ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY A/E, 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DEFECTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS IN THE CONSTRUCTION 
DOCUMENTS OR IN THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE AGREEMENT BY A/E OR ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES 
OR ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY A/E, AND/OR 
INADEQUATE SERVICES PURSUANT TO THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE-ADMINISTRATION OF THE 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 17 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AS DEFINED AND REQUIRED BY THIS AGREEMENT, AGREEMENT 
EXHIBITS AND THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, THEN COUNTY SHALL HAVE THE 
RIGHT TO JOIN A/E AT COUNTY’S COST.  A/E SHALL ALSO HOLD COUNTY HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY 
COUNTY TO THE EXTENT THAT A/E, ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, 
SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES CONTROL, 
CAUSED SUCH DAMAGES TO CONTRACTOR, INCLUDING ANY AND ALL COSTS AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES 
INCURRED BY COUNTY IN CONNECTION WITH THE DEFENSE OF ANY CLAIMS WHERE A/E, ITS 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES 
OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES CONTROL, ARE ADJUDICATED AT FAULT. 
 
 

ARTICLE 23 
PROFESSIONAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
A/E shall be responsible for the accuracy of its Professional Services and shall promptly make 
necessary revisions or corrections to its Work Product resulting from errors, omissions, or 
negligent acts, and same shall be done without compensation.  County shall determine A/E’s 
responsibilities for all questions arising from design errors and/or omissions, subject to the 
dispute resolution provisions of Article 31.  A/E shall not be relieved of responsibility for 
subsequent correction of any such errors or omissions in its work product, or for clarification of 
any ambiguities until after the construction phase of the Project has been completed. 
 
 

ARTICLE 24 
PROFESSIONAL’S SEAL 

 
The responsible architect and engineer shall sign, seal, and date all appropriate submissions to 
County in accordance with Texas laws and the rules of the State Boards of Registration for 
Professionals. 

 
 

ARTICLE 25 
INSURANCE 

 
A/E shall comply with the following insurance requirements, at all times, during this Agreement: 
 
25.1  Coverage Limits.   
A/E, at A/E’s sole cost, shall purchase and maintain, during the entire term while this Agreement 
is in effect, the following insurance: 

 
 25.1.1 

Worker's Compensation in accordance with statutory requirements. 
 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 18 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

 25.1.2 
Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined minimum Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate. 

 
 25.1.3 

Automobile Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with 
combined minimum limits for Bodily Injury and Property Damage limits of $500,000 per 
occurrence and $1,000,000 in the aggregate. 

 
 25.1.4 

Professional Liability Errors and Omissions Insurance in the amount of $2,000,000 per 
claim. 

 
25.2 Additional Insureds; Waiver of Subrogation.   
County, its directors, officers and employees shall be added as additional insureds under policies 
listed under (2) and (3) above, and on those policies where County, its directors, officers and 
employees are additional insureds, such insurance shall be primary; and, any insurance 
maintained by County shall be excess and not contribute with it.  Such policies shall also include 
waivers of subrogation in favor of County. 
 
25.3 Premiums and Deductible.   
A/E shall be responsible for payment of premiums for all insurance coverages required under this 
Article 25.  A/E further agrees that for each claim, suit, or action made against insurance provided 
hereunder, with respect to all matters for which A/E is responsible hereunder, A/E shall be solely 
responsible for all deductibles and self-insured retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured 
retentions over $50,000 in A/E’s insurance must be declared and approved in writing by County 
in advance. 
 
25.4 Commencement of Work.   
A/E shall not commence any work under this Agreement until it has obtained all required 
insurance and such insurance has been approved by County.  As further set out below, A/E shall 
not allow any subcontractor/ subconsultant(s) to commence work to be performed in connection 
with this Agreement until all required insurance has been obtained and approved; and, such 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Approval of the insurance by County shall not 
relieve or decrease the liability of A/E hereunder. 
 
25.5 Insurance Company Rating.   
Required insurance must be written by a company approved to do business in the State or Texas 
with a financial standing of at least an A-rating, as reflected in Best’s insurance ratings or by a 
similar rating system recognized within the insurance industry at the time the policy is issued. 

 
25.6 Certification of Coverage.   
A/E shall furnish County with a certification of coverage issued by the insurer.  A/E shall not 
cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance to lapse.  In addition to any other 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 19 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

notification requires set forth hereunder, A/E shall also notify County, within twenty-four (24) 
hours of receipt, of any notices of expiration, cancellation, non-renewal, or material change in 
coverage it receives from its insurer. 

 
25.7 No Arbitration.   
It is the intention of County and agreed to and hereby acknowledged by A/E, that no provision 
of this Agreement shall be construed to require County to submit to mandatory arbitration in the 
settlement of any claim, cause of action or dispute, except as specifically required in direct 
connection with an insurance claim or threat of claim under an insurance policy required 
hereunder or as may be required by law or a court of law with jurisdiction over the provisions of 
this Agreement. 

 
25.8 Subcontractor/ Subconsultant’s Insurance.   
Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of A/E, A/E shall require each 
subcontractor/ subconsultant performing work under this Agreement (to the extent a 
subcontractor/ subconsultant is allowed by County) to maintain during the term of this 
Agreement, at the subcontractor/ subconsultant’s own expense, the same stipulated minimum 
insurance required in this Article 25 above, including the required provisions and additional 
policy conditions as shown below in this Article 25. 

 
A/E shall obtain and monitor the certificates of insurance from each subcontractor/ subconsultant 
in order to assure compliance with the insurance requirements.  A/E must retain the certificates 
of insurance for the duration of this Agreement and shall have the responsibility of enforcing 
these insurance requirements among its subcontractor/ subconsultants.  County shall be entitled, 
upon request and without expense, to receive copies of these certificates of insurance. 

 
25.9 Insurance Policy Endorsements.   
Each insurance policy shall include the following conditions by endorsement to the policy: 
 
 25.9.1 

County shall be notified thirty (30) days prior to the expiration, cancellation, nonrenewal 
or any material change in coverage, and such notice thereof shall be given to County by 
certified mail to: 

 
Williamson County Purchasing 
100 Wilco Way 
Suite P101 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

 
 25.10.1 

The policy clause “Other Insurance” shall not apply to any insurance coverage currently 
held by County, to any such future coverage, or to County’s Self-Insured Retentions of 
whatever nature. 

 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 20 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

25.10 Cost of Insurance.   
The cost of all insurance required herein to be secured and maintained by A/E shall be borne 
solely by A/E, with certificates of insurance evidencing such minimum coverage in force to be 
filed with County.  Such certificates of insurance are evidenced as Exhibit F. 

 
 

ARTICLE 26 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their 
successors, lawful assigns, and legal representatives.  A/E may not assign, sublet, or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement, in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise, without 
obtaining the prior written consent of County. 

 
 

ARTICLE 27 
SEVERABILITY 

 
In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason 
be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, then such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

 
 

ARTICLE 28 
PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED 

 
This Agreement constitutes the sole agreement of the parties hereto and supersedes any prior 
understandings or written or oral agreements between the parties respecting the subject matter 
defined herein.  This Agreement may only be amended or supplemented by mutual agreement 
of the parties hereto in writing. 

 
 

ARTICLE 29 
A/E’S ACCOUNTING RECORDS 

 
A/E agrees to maintain, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, 
detailed records identifying each individual performing services, the date or dates the services 
were performed, the applicable hourly rates, the total amount billed for each individual, and the 
total amount billed for all persons, records of reimbursable costs and expenses of other providers 
and provide such other details as may be requested by the County Auditor for verification 
purposes.  A/E agrees that County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the expiration 
of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, have access to and the right to 
examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers, and records of A/E which are 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 21 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of 
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  A/E further agrees that County shall 
have access during normal working hours to all necessary A/E facilities and shall be provided 
adequate and appropriate workspace in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this Article 29.  County shall give A/E reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 
 

 
ARTICLE 30 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
30.1 Time is of the Essence.   
A/E understands and agrees that time is of the essence and that any failure of A/E to complete 
the Basic Services within the agreed Production Schedule set out in Exhibit C may constitute a 
material breach of this Agreement.  A/E shall be fully responsible for its delays or for failures to 
use its reasonable efforts in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and A/E’s standard of 
performance as defined herein.  Where damage is caused to County due to A/E’s negligent failure 
to perform, County may accordingly withhold, to the extent of such damage, A/E’s payments 
hereunder without waiver of any of County’s additional legal rights or remedies. 
 
30.2 Force Majeure.   
Neither County nor A/E shall be deemed in violation of this Agreement if prevented from 
performing any of their obligations hereunder by reasons for which they are not responsible or 
circumstances beyond their control.  However, notice of such impediment or delay in 
performance must be timely given, and all reasonable efforts undertaken to mitigate its effects. 

 
30.3 Enforcement and Venue.   
This Agreement shall be enforceable in Georgetown, Williamson County, Texas, and if legal 
action is necessary by either party with respect to the enforcement of any or all of the terms or 
conditions herein, exclusive venue for same shall lie in Williamson County, Texas.  This 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws and court decisions 
of the State of Texas excluding, however, its choice of law rules. 

 
30.4 Standard of Performance.   
The standard of care for all professional architecture, engineering, consulting and related services 
performed or furnished by A/E and its employees under this Agreement will be the care and skill 
ordinarily used by members of A/E’s profession, practicing under the same or similar 
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. 

 
30.5 Opinion of Probable Cost.   
Any opinions of probable Project cost or probable construction cost provided by A/E are made 
on the basis of information available to A/E and on the basis of A/E’s experience and qualifications 
and represents its judgment as an experienced and qualified professional.  However, since A/E 
has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or 
over the contractor(s’) methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 22 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

conditions, A/E does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual Project or construction cost will 
not vary from opinions of probable cost A/E prepares. 

 
30.6 Opinions and Determinations.   
Where the terms of this Agreement provide for action to be based upon opinion, judgment, 
approval, review, or determination of either party hereto, such terms are not intended to be and 
shall never be construed as permitting such opinion, judgment, approval, review, or 
determination to be arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable. 

 
30.7 Reports of Accidents.   
Within twenty-four (24) hours after A/E becomes aware of the occurrence of any accident or other 
event which results in, or might result in, injury to the person or property of any third person 
(other than an employee of A/E), whether or not it results from, or involves, any action or failure 
to act by A/E or any employee or agent of A/E and which arises in any manner from the 
performance of this Agreement, A/E shall send a written report of such accident or other event to 
County, setting forth a full and concise statement of the facts pertaining thereto.  A/E shall also 
immediately send to County a copy of any summons, subpoena, notice, or other documents 
served upon A/E, its agents, employees, or representatives, or received by it or them, in 
connection with any matter before any court arising in any manner from A/E’s performance of 
work under this Agreement. 

 
30.8 Gender, Number, and Headings.   
Words of any gender used in this Agreement shall be held and construed to include any other 
gender, and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural, unless the context 
otherwise requires.  The headings and section numbers are for convenience only and shall not be 
considered in interpreting or construing this Agreement. 

 
30.9 Construction.  
Each party hereto acknowledges that it and its counsel have reviewed this Agreement and that 
the normal rules of construction are not applicable and there will be no presumption that any 
ambiguities will be resolved against the drafting party in the interpretation of this Agreement. 
 
30.10 Independent Contractor Relationship.   
Both parties hereto, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an individual capacity and 
not as agents, employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The employees or 
agents of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other 
party for any purposes whatsoever. 

 
30.11 No Waiver of Immunities.   
Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive, modify, or amend any legal defense 
available at law or in equity to County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to 
create any legal rights or claim on behalf of any third party.  County does not waive, modify, or 
alter, to any extent whatsoever, the availability of the defense of governmental immunity under 
the laws of the State of Texas and of the United States. 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 23 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

 
30.12 Texas Public Information Act.   
To the extent, if any, that any provision in this Agreement is in conflict with Texas Government 
Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no force or 
effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that County, its officers and employees 
may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard 
to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that County’s officers 
and employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any 
party hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data 
furnished to County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the 
Attorney General of the State of Texas. 

 
30.13 Governing Terms and Conditions.   
If there is an irreconcilable conflict between the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 
or any Supplemental Agreement and the terms and conditions set forth in any Exhibit, Appendix 
to this Agreement, the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement or any Supplemental 
Agreement shall control over the terms and conditions set forth in any Exhibit, Appendix to this 
Agreement. 

 
30.14 Appropriation of Funds by County.   
County believes it has sufficient funds currently available and authorized for expenditure to 
finance the costs of this Agreement. A/E understands and agrees that County’s payment of 
amounts under this Agreement is contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to continue to make payments under this Agreement. It is further understood and 
agreed by A/E that County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at the end of any 
County fiscal year if the governing body of County does not appropriate sufficient funds as 
determined by County’s budget for the fiscal year in question.  County may affect such 
termination by giving written notice of termination to A/E. 
 
 

ARTICLE 31 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 
Except as otherwise specifically set forth herein, County and A/E shall work together in good 
faith to resolve any controversy, dispute, or claim between them which arises out of or relates to 
this Agreement, whether stated in tort, contract, statute, claim for benefits, bad faith, professional 
liability or otherwise ("Claim").  If the parties are unable to resolve the Claim within thirty (30) 
days following the date in which one party sent written notice of the Claim to the other party, 
and if a party wishes to pursue the Claim, such Claim shall be addressed through non-binding 
mediation.  A single mediator engaged in the practice of law, who is knowledgeable about subject 
matter of this Agreement, shall be selected by agreement of the parties and serve as the mediator.  



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Professional Services Agreement  Page 24 of 25    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

Any mediation under this Agreement shall be conducted in Williamson County, Texas.  The 
mediator’s fees shall be borne equally between the parties.  Such non-binding mediation is a 
condition precedent to seeking redress in a court of competent jurisdiction, but this provision 
shall not preclude either party from filing a lawsuit in a court of competent jurisdiction prior to 
completing a mediation, if necessary to preserve the statute of limitations, in which case such 
lawsuit shall be stayed pending completion of the mediation process contemplated herein.  This 
provision shall survive the termination of the Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 32 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT 

 
The parties to this Agreement agree that during the performance of the services under this 
Agreement they will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 
of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The parties to this Agreement will take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such action shall 
include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.  

 
 

ARTICLE 33 
MERGER 

 
The Parties agree that this Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions of the 
understanding of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  All prior negotiations, 
discussions, correspondence and preliminary understandings between the parties and others 
relating hereto are superseded by this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 34 
PUBLIC CONTACT 

 
Contact with the news media, citizens of Williamson County or governmental agencies shall be 
the responsibility of County.  Under no circumstances shall A/E release any material or 
information developed in the performance of its services hereunder without the express written 
permission of County. 
 
 
 
 





1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

 

Exhibit A  Page 1 of 6    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P545 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 

BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 

THE FOLLOWING SCOPE OF SERVICES IS INTENDED TO BE CONSISTENT WITH THE 
AGREEMENT.  TO THE EXTENT THIS SCOPE OF SERVICES IS INCONSISTENT WITH THE 
AGREEMENT, THE AGREEMENT WILL SUPERSEDE THE SCOPE OF SERVICES AND WILL 
BE CONTROLLING. 

In consideration of the Basic Fee provided in the Agreement, A/E shall perform the following 
Basic Services, based on standard architectural and engineering practices: 

These services may include, but are not limited to structural, mechanical, plumbing, electrical, 
construction administration, and specialized studies and analysis. 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Design Criteria.  A/E shall prepare all work in accordance with the latest version of applicable 
County’s procedures, specifications, manuals, guidelines, standard drawings, and standard 
specifications. A/E shall prepare each PS&E package in a form suitable for letting through 
County’s construction contract bidding and awarding process. 

Right-of-Entry and Coordination.  A/E shall notify County and secure permission to enter 
private property to perform any surveying, environmental, engineering or geotechnical activities 
needed off County property.  In pursuance of County’s policy with the general public, A/E shall 
not commit acts which would result in damages to private property, and A/E shall make every 
effort to comply with the wishes and address the concerns of affected private property owners.  
A/E shall contact each property owner prior to any entry onto the owner’s property and shall 
request concurrence from County prior to each entry. 

A/E shall notify County and coordinate with adjacent A/Es on all controls at project interfaces.  

A/E shall prepare each exhibit necessary for approval by each utility, and other governmental or 
regulatory agency in compliance with the applicable format and guidelines required by each 
entity and as approved by County. A/E shall notify County in writing prior to beginning any 
work on any outside agency’s exhibit. 

Progress Reporting.  A/E shall submit monthly (at a minimum) a progress status e-mail to 
County’s Project Manager (PM) regardless of whether A/E is invoicing for that month. 

A/E shall prepare and maintain a design and estimated construction schedule in a format 
acceptable to County during project phases prior to the Construction Administration Phase.  A/E 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

 

Exhibit A  Page 2 of 6    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P545 
 

 

shall schedule milestone submittals per Exhibit C – Production Schedule.  Contractor shall prepare 
and maintain a construction schedule in Gantt chart format during the project Construction 
Administration Phase through the Close-out Phase.   

Within 30 days of completion of construction of the project, A/E shall deliver all electronic files in 
formats acceptable to County. 

Final payment is contingent upon County’s receipt and confirmation by County’s PM that the 
electronic files run and are formatted in accordance with the Agreement and all review comments 
are addressed. 

A/E shall prepare a letter of transmittal to accompany each document submittal to County. At a 
minimum, the letter of transmittal must include County’s project name, Agreement and Work 
Authorization numbers, as well as facility name and address. 

Coordination.  A/E shall coordinate issues through County’s PM.  County will communicate 
resolution of issues and provide A/E direction through County’s PM. 

Level of Effort.  A/E shall base the level of effort at each phase on the prior work developed in 
earlier phases without unnecessary repetition or re-study. 

Quality Assurance (QA) and Quality Control (QC).  A/E shall provide peer review at all levels.  
For each deliverable, A/E shall maintain evidence of their internal review and mark-up of that 
deliverable as preparation for submittal.  When internal mark-ups are requested by County in 
advance, County, at its sole discretion, may reject the deliverable should A/E fail to provide the 
evidence of quality control.  A/E shall clearly label each document submitted for quality assurance 
as an internal mark-up document. 

A/E shall perform QA and QC on all subconsultant products (when applicable to the project) 
prior to delivery to County.  If, during the course of reviewing a submittal, it becomes apparent 
to County that the submittal contains unreasonable errors, omissions, or inconsistencies, County 
may cease its review and immediately return the submittal for appropriate action by A/E. 

A submittal returned to A/E for this reason is not a submittal for purposes of the submission 
schedule.  Rejected submittals shall not impact overall deadline of the Project nor the review 
period allotted to County officials.  A/E shall provide an updated schedule showing interim 
submission date changes to make-up for any lost time.  A/E shall not submit an invoice until 
County accepts the submittal as complete. 

Organization of Plan Sheets.  The PS&E package shall be complete and organized in a manner 
that is suitable for the bidding and awarding of a construction contract. 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

 

Exhibit A  Page 3 of 6    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P545 
 

 

Naming of Electronic Project Files and Organization of Design Project Folders.  A/E shall use 
succinct and understandable file names including project name, file content, date created (i.e. 
“Project Name_SD PLANS_year.month.day”).  A/E shall maintain files in an organized folder 
structure that is readily understandable to outside users to facilitate communication and 
minimize complications in project close-out. 

SCOPE OF WORK:         

Williamson County Justice Center 
405 Martin Luther King Jr. Street 
Georgetown, TX 78626 
Pretrial Services 
P545 

Provide Electrical and Mechanical Engineering for a remodel in an existing building to create 
space for a new department. 

Design services shall be conducted in phases as outlined herein.  Phases may be combined to 
expedite design process when defined in Exhibit C – Production Schedule.  Individual phases or 
groups of phases shall be authorized herein or by fully executed Supplemental Agreement. 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

 

Exhibit A  Page 4 of 6    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P545 
 

 

Phase I - SCHEMATIC DESIGN – Program, Plans, Outline Specifications and Estimate 

Upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed, A/E shall accomplish the following: 

A. Investigate site/facility and verify known existing or available utility locations. 

B. International Building Code (IBC), ASHRAE 90.1, ASHRAE 62.1, International 
Mechanical Code (IMC), National Electric Code (NEC), International Energy 
Conservation Code (IECC), and any other applicable codes and ordinances. 

C. Advise County of any changes, additions, or corrections to the preliminary 
program, plans, specifications, and budget. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase II - DESIGN DEVELOPMENT - Plans, Specifications and Estimate 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 

A. Consult freely with County concerning the principal phases of the work and 
immediately advise County of any unusual requirements or features not apparent 
during execution of the Schematic Design Phase. 

B. Develop plans and specifications, which indicate materials, construction methods 
and buildings systems. These building systems may include (but are not limited 
to) structural, mechanical, plumbing, and electrical. 

C. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase III - CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS - Plans, Specifications, and Estimate 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall proceed with the following work: 

A. Prepare complete plans, specifications, and engineering calculations (without 
professional seals) setting forth in detail the work required for the structural, 
mechanical, plumbing, and electrical work. 

B. Consult freely with County concerning the principal phases of the work 
immediately advise County of any unusual requirements or features not apparent 
during execution of the Schematic Design and Design Development Phases.   

C. Complete the PS&E for the entire Project and its component parts. The Project 
detailed cost estimate shall not exceed the project construction budget as approved 
in writing by County. 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

 

Exhibit A  Page 5 of 6    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P545 
 

 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase IV – REGULATORY REVIEW AND PERMITS - Plans, Specifications, and Permits: 

Not Applicable (Review through Williamson County) 

 

Phase V – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT BIDDING, AWARD, AND EXECUTION 

Not Applicable (Documents will be utilized s Change order for Concurrent Owner Work) 

 

Phase VI - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION - Project Observation and Inspection: 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall perform the following work: 

A. Review and submit copies of each shop drawing and submittal of materials and 
equipment to County. 

B. Conduct site visits with personnel technically qualified by education and 
experience to competently observe relevant aspects of construction. Make 
necessary observations to determine if workmanship and quality of materials 
generally conform to the plans and specifications, and that provisions of the 
contract are complied with. 

C. Reject work performed by Contractor which does not meet the requirements of the 
Construction Documents; and, order removal and replacement of such work. 

D. Accompany County on Substantial Completion Inspection with appropriate staff 
and affiliates.  Prepare a punch list of items needing correction.  After Contractor 
has performed the required corrections, notify County in writing that the contract 
has been performed in general conformance with the plans and specifications and 
is ready for Final Inspection. 

E. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 

 

Phase VII – PROJECT CLOSE-OUT – Final Inspection and Document Review: 

Upon County acceptance of previous phase, A/E shall perform the following work: 

A. Accompany County on Final Inspection to determine if construction has been 
completed in general accordance with the Contract Documents.  



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

 

Exhibit A  Page 6 of 6    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 12/2020              P545 
 

 

B. Review warranties, guarantees, bonds, equipment operating instructions, and 
similar deliverables to verify receipt, and general conformance to requirements of 
the Contract. 

C. Upon completion of construction and prior to the request for final payment, make 
changes in the original REVIT model or CAD files of the Project to show changes 
made and noted by Contractor of the work and final location of the mechanical 
service lines and outlets including outside utilities.  Develop project Record 
Construction Drawings and Specifications. 

D. Provide deliverables in accordance with County’s Design Submittal Guidelines. 



1/14/2021
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel

2,600$           100%

2,000$           77%

600$              23%

2 300$              / visit

Principal Engineer $150 /hr

The rate adjustment will be determined by multiplying the Initial Base Rates by a 
fraction, the numerator of which is the index number for most recently released index 
before each annual anniversary date of the Agreement and the denominator of which is  
the index number for thefirst month of the Agreement (the index number for the month 
in which the Agreement was originally executed).  If the products are greater than the 

FEE SCHEDULE

Phases I-VII - SCHEMATIC DESIGN through CLOSE-OUT

This schedule indicates fees by Phase of the Basic Fee:

EXHIBIT B

Individual hourly rate schedule:

Site Visits - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION

 never be less than the Initial Base Rates.

CPI Rate Adjustments:  Rates shall remain firm for the first year of the Agreement and 
such rates shall be deemed the “Initial Base Rates”.  A/E must request rate adjustments, 
in writing, at least thirty (30) days prior to each annual anniversary date of the 
Agreement and any rate changes will take effect on the first day following the prior 
year.  If A/E fails to request a CPI rate adjustment, as set forth herein, the adjustment 
will be effective thirty (30) days after County receives A/E’s written request.  No 
retroactive rate adjustments will be allowed.  All rate  adjustments and modifications 

Price adjustments will be made in accordance with changes in the U.S. Department of 
Labor Consumer Price Index (CPI-U) for All Urban Consumers, All Items, South Region 
(Base 1982-84 = 100).

shall be set forth in a written fully executed amendment.

Initial Base Rates, County will pay the greater amounts as the rates during the 
successive year until the next rate adjustment.  Rates for each successive year will 

Exhibit B
Form rev. 12/2020 Page 1 of 1

 0509-2021-1009-01
P545



 01/14/2021
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel

Agreement Execution Date 01/26/21

60% Plans, Specifications and Estimate deliverables 02/10/21

County written authorization to proceed to next phase 02/17/21

Complete Plans, Specifications and Estimate deliverables 03/04/21

County written authorization to proceed to next phase 03/11/21

N/A - Concurrent review through Williamson County 

Construction Substantial Completion 06/01/21

Record Documents deliverables 06/16/21

Agreement Termination Date 09/21/21

Phase I+II - DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

Phase III - CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

Phase VI - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION	

Phase VII - PROJECT CLOSE-OUT

Phase IV-V - N/A CONCURRENT REVIEW & BID

Standard end-of-phase review periods for County shall be (5) business days minimum.  

The above time limits may, for good cause, be extended, in writing, by County as the 
Project proceeds.

The schedule below indicates various project milestones and target dates.

PRODUCTION SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT C

A/E agrees to complete the professional design services called for in Exhibit A of

date of this Agreement.
this Agreement within Two Hundred Thirty-Eight (238) calendar days from the

Exhibit C
Form rev. 12/2020 Page 1 of 1

 0509-2021-1009-01
P545



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 1 of 7        0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P545 

EXHIBIT D 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY VENDOR REIMBURSEMENT POLICY 

The purpose of this Williamson County Vendor Reimbursement Policy (“Policy”) is to provide 
clear guidelines to vendors on Williamson County’s expectations and requirements regarding 
allowable reimbursable expenditures and required backup. The Policy will also minimize 
conflicts related to invoice payments and define non-reimbursable items. This Policy is 
considered a guideline and is not a contract. 

This Policy may be altered, deleted, or amended at any time and without prior notice to vendors, 
by action of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. Unenforceable provisions of this 
Policy, as imposed by applicable law, regulations, or judicial decisions, shall be deemed to be 
deleted. Any revisions to this Policy will be distributed to all current vendors doing business with 
County. 

1. Invoices and Affidavits 

1.1 Invoices must adequately describe the goods or services provided to County and 
include all required backup (i.e. reimbursable expenses, mileage log, timesheets, 
receipts detailing expenses incurred etc.) that is in a form acceptable to the Williamson 
County Auditor. Invoices that do not adequately describe the goods or services 
provided to County or contain backup that is not satisfactory to the Williamson 
County Auditor will be returned to vendor for revisions and the provision above 
relating to invoice errors resolved in favor of County shall control as to the required 
actions of vendor and when such invoice must be paid by County. 

1.2 In the event an invoice includes charges based upon hourly billing rates for services 
or any other rates based upon the amount of time worked by an individual or 
individuals in performing services, whether the charges are being billed directly to 
County or whether they are the basis of invoices from subcontractors for which the 
vendor seeks reimbursement from County, the charges shall be accompanied by an 
affidavit signed by an officer or principal of the vendor certifying that the work was 
performed, it was authorized by County and that all information contained in the 
invoice that is being submitted is true and correct. 

1.3 Upon County’s request, vendor must submit all bills paid affidavits wherein vendor 
must swear and affirm that vendor has paid each of its subcontractors, laborers, 
suppliers and material in full for all labor and materials provided to vendor for or in 
connection with services and work performed for County and, further, vendor must 
swear and affirm that vendor is not aware of any unpaid bills, claims, demands, or 
causes of action by any of its subcontractors, laborers, suppliers, or material for or in 
connection with the furnishing of labor or materials, or both, for services and work 
performed for County. 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 2 of 7        0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P545 

2. Travel Reimbursement 

2.1 County will only cover costs associated with travel on vendors outside a 50-mile 
radius from Williamson County, Texas. 

2.2 County will only cover costs associated with travel as documented work for County. 
If a vendor is also doing business for another client, the travel costs must be split in 
proportion to the amount of work actually performed for County and the other client. 
The only allowable travel expense will be for the specific days worked for Williamson 
County. 

2.3 No advance payments will be made to vendor for travel expenditures. The travel 
expenditure may only be reimbursed after the expenditure/trip has already occurred 
and vendor has provided the Williamson County Auditor with all necessary and 
required backup. 

2.4 Vendors must submit all travel reimbursement requests on each employee in full. 
Specifically, a travel reimbursement request must include all related travel 
reimbursement expenses relating to a particular trip for which vendor seeks 
reimbursement. Partial travel reimbursement requests will not be accepted (i.e. 
vendor shall not submit hotel and mileage one month then the next month submit 
rental car and airfare). If the travel reimbursement appears incomplete, the invoice 
will be sent back to the vendor to be submitted when all information is ready to submit 
in full. 

2.5 Reimbursement for transportation costs will be at the most reasonable means of 
transportation (i.e.: airline costs will be reimbursed for coach rate, rental car costs will 
only be reimbursed if rental car travel was most reasonable means of travel as 
compared to travel by air). 

2.6 County will not be responsible for, nor will County reimburse additional charges due 
to personal preference or personal convenience of individual traveling. 

2.7 County will not reimburse airfare costs if airfare costs were higher than costs of 
mileage reimbursement. 

2.8 Additional expenses associated with travel that is extended to save costs (i.e. Saturday 
night stay) may be reimbursed if costs of airfare would be less than the cost of 
additional expenses (lodging, meals, car rental, mileage) if the trip had not been 
extended.  Documentation satisfactory to the Williamson County Auditor will be 
required to justify expenditure. 

2.9 County will only reimburse travel expense to necessary personnel of the vendor (i.e. 
no spouse, friends, or family members). 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 3 of 7        0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P545 

2.10 Except as otherwise set forth herein, a vendor must provide a paid receipt for all 
expenses. If a receipt cannot be obtained, a written sworn statement of the expense 
from the vendor may be substituted for the receipt. 

2.11 Sales tax for meals and hotel stays are the only sales taxes that will be reimbursed. 
Sales tax on goods purchased will not be reimbursed. A sales tax exemption form is 
available from the Williamson County Auditor’s Office upon request. 

2.12 County will not pay for any late charges on reimbursable items. It is the responsibility 
of the vendor to pay the invoice first and seek reimbursement from County. 

3. Meals 

3.1 Meal reimbursements are limited to a maximum of $50.00 per day on overnight travel. 
On day travel (travel that does not require an overnight stay), meal reimbursements 
are limited to a maximum of $20.00 per day. The travel must be outside the Williamson 
County, Texas line by a 50-mile radius. 

3.2 Receipts are required on meal reimbursement amounts up to the maximum per day 
amount stated for overnight or day travel. If receipts are not presented, the vendor 
can request per diem (per diem limits refer to 3.2). However, a vendor cannot combine 
per diem and meal receipts. Only one method shall be allowed. 

3.3 Meals are reimbursable only for vendors who do not have the necessary personnel 
located within a 50-mile radius of Williamson County, Texas that are capable of 
carrying the vendor’s obligations to County. Meals will not be reimbursed to vendors 
who are located within a 50-mile radius of Williamson County, Texas. 

3.4 County will not reimburse for alcoholic beverages. 

3.5 Tips are reimbursable but must be reasonable to limitation of meal allowance 

3.6 No meals purchased for entertainment purposes will be allowed. 

3.7 Meal reimbursement must be substantiated with a hotel receipt. 

4. Lodging 

4.1 Hotel accommodations require an itemized hotel folio as a receipt. The lodging receipt 
shall include name of the motel/hotel, number of occupant(s), goods or services for 
each individual charge (room rental, food, tax, etc.) and the name of the occupant(s). 
Credit card receipts or any other form of receipt are not acceptable. 

4.2 Vendors will be reimbursed for a single room rate charge plus any applicable tax. If a 
single room is not available, the vendor must provide documentation to prove that a 
single room was not available in order to justify the expense over and above the single 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 4 of 7        0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P545 

room rate. A vendor may also be required to provide additional documentation if a 
particular room rate appears to be excessive. 

4.3 Personal telephone charges, whether local or long distance, will not be reimbursed. 

5. Airfare 

5.1 County will only reimburse up to a coach price fare for air travel. 

5.2 County will exclude any additional charges due to personal preference or personal 
convenience of the individual traveling (i.e. early bird check in, seat preference 
charges, airline upgrades, etc. will not be an allowable reimbursement) 

5.3 Air travel expenses must be supported with receipt copy of an airline ticket or an 
itinerary with actual ticket price paid. If tickets are purchased through a website, 
vendor must submit a copy of the webpage showing the ticket price if no paper ticket 
was issued. 

5.4 Cancellation and/or change flight fees may be reimbursed by County but vendor must 
provide the Williamson County Auditor with documentation in writing from a 
County department head providing authorization for the change. 

5.5 County will not reimburse vendor for tickets purchased with frequent flyer miles. 

6. Car Rental 

6.1 Vendors that must travel may rent a car at their destination when it is less expensive 
than other transportation such as taxis, airport shuttles or public transportation such 
as buses or subways. 

6.2 Cars rented must be economy or mid-size. Luxury vehicle rentals will not be 
reimbursed. Any rental costs over and above the cost of a mid-size rental will be 
adjusted. 

6.3 Vendors will be reimbursed for rental cars if the rental car cost would have been less 
than the mileage reimbursement cost (based on the distance from vendor’s point of 
origin to Williamson County, Texas) had the vendor driven vendor’s car. 

6.4 Vendors must return a car rental with appropriate fuel levels as required by rental 
agreement to avoid the car rental company from adding fuel charges. 

6.5 Rental agreement and credit card receipt must be provided to County as back up for 
the request for reimbursement. 

6.6 Insurance purchased when renting vehicle may also be reimbursed. 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 5 of 7        0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P545 

6.7 Car Rental optional extras such as GPS, roadside assistance, and administrative fees 
on Tolls will not be reimbursed. 

7. Personal Car Usage 

7.1 Personal vehicle usage will be reimbursed in an amount equal to the standard mileage 
rate allowed by the IRS. 

7.2 Per code of Federal Regulations, Title 26, Subtitle A, Chapter 1, Subchapter B, Part 
IX, Section 274(d), all expense reimbursement requests must include the following: 

7.2.1 Date 

7.2.2 Destination 

7.2.3 Purpose 

7.2.4 Name of traveler(s) 

7.2.5 Correspondence that verifies business purpose of the expense 

7.3 The mileage for a personal vehicle must document the date, location of travel to/from, 
number of miles traveled and purpose of trip. 

7.4 Mileage will be reimbursed on the basis of the most commonly used route. 

7.5 Reimbursement for mileage shall not exceed the cost of a round trip coach airfare. 

7.6 Reimbursement for mileage shall be prohibited between place of residence and usual 
place of work. 

7.7 Mileage shall be calculated from employee’s regular place of work or their residence, 
whichever is the shorter distance when traveling to a meeting or traveling to 
Williamson County, Texas for vendors who are located outside of Williamson County, 
Texas by at least a 50-mile radius. 

7.8 When more than one person travels in same vehicle, only one person may claim 
mileage reimbursement. 

7.9 Tolls, if reasonable, are reimbursable. Receipts are required for reimbursement.  If a 
receipt is not obtainable, then written documentation of expense must be submitted 
for reimbursement (administrative fees on Tolls will not be reimbursed). 

7.10 Parking fees, if reasonable are reimbursable for meetings and hotel stays. For vendors 
who contract with a third party for visitor parking at vendor’s place of business, 
Williamson County will not reimburse a vendor based on a percentage of its 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 6 of 7        0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P545 

contracted visitor parking fees. Rather, Williamson County will reimburse Vendor for 
visitor parking on an individual basis for each time a visitor uses Vendor’s visitor 
parking. Receipts are required for reimbursement. If a receipt is not obtainable, then 
written documentation of expense must be submitted for reimbursement. 

7.11 Operating and maintenance expenses as well as other personal expenses, such as 
parking tickets, traffic violations, and car repairs and collision damage are not 
reimbursable. 

8. Other Expenses 

8.1 Taxi fare, bus tickets, conference registrations, parking, etc. must have a proper 
original receipt. 

9. Repayment of Non-reimbursable Expenses 

Vendors must, upon demand, immediately repay County for all inappropriately reimbursed 
expenses whenever an audit or subsequent review of any expense reimbursement 
documentation finds that such expense was reimbursed contrary to these guidelines and this 
Policy. Williamson County reserves the right to retain any amounts that are due or that 
become due to a vendor in order to collect any inappropriately reimbursed expenses that a 
vendor was paid. 

10. Non-Reimbursable Expenses 

In addition to the non-reimbursable items set forth above in this Policy, the following is a non-
exhaustive list of expenses that will not be reimbursed by Williamson County: 

10.1 Alcoholic beverages/tobacco products 

10.2 Personal phone calls 

10.3 Laundry service 

10.4 Valet service (excludes hotel valet) 

10.5 Movie rentals 

10.6 Damage to personal items 

10.7 Flowers/plants 

10.8 Greeting cards 

10.9 Fines and/or penalties 

10.10 Entertainment, personal clothing, personal sundries, and service 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Exhibit D – Vendor Reimbursement Policy Page 7 of 7        0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021             P545 

10.11 Transportation/mileage to places of entertainment or similar personal activities 

10.12 Upgrades to airfare, hotel and/or car rental 

10.13 Airport parking above the most affordable rate available 

10.14 Excessive weight baggage fees or cost associated with more than two airline bags 

10.15 Auto repairs 

10.16 Babysitter fees, kennel costs, pet, or house-sitting fees 

10.17 Saunas, massages, or exercise facilities 

10.18 Credit card delinquency fees or service fees 

10.19 Doctor bills, prescription and other medical services 

10.20 Hand tools 

10.21 Safety Equipment (hard hats, safety vests, etc.) 

10.22 Office Supplies 

10.23 Lifetime memberships to any association 

10.24 Donations to other entities 

10.25 Any items that could be construed as campaigning 

10.26 Community outreach items exceeding $2 per item 

10.27 Technology Fees 

10.28 Sales tax on goods purchased 

Any other expenses which Williamson County deems, in its sole discretion, to be inappropriate 
or unnecessary expenditures. 



1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Exhibit E – Debarment Certification Page 1 of 2    0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

EXHIBIT E 

DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

STATE OF TEXAS    § 
      § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON   § 
 
1. I, the undersigned, being duly sworn or under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United 

States and the State of Texas, certifies that A/E and its principals: 

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible 
or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or 
agency: 

b. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had 
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense 
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public* 
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity* with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
Paragraph 1(b) of this certification; 

d. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or 
more public transactions* terminated for cause or default; and 

e. Have not been disciplined or issued a formal reprimand by any State agency for 
professional accreditation within the past three years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





1/14/2021   
CJC Pretrial Services Remodel 

Exhibit F – Certificates of Insurance Page 1 of 1       0509-2021-1009-01 
Form rev. 01/2021              P545 

EXHIBIT F 

CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE 

A/E and Subconsultant Certificates of Insurance attached: 

 

 

 

 

 



01/14/2021

Whorton Insurance Services
11200 Jollyville Rd.

Austin TX 78759-4813

Noe Moreno CIC,CLCS,ACSR
(512) 338-1191 (512) 338-1196

NoeM@whortonins.com

Charles A. Witt, DBA: K & W Engineering Solutions LLC
650 Shell Stone Trail

Georgetown TX 78628

Kinsale Insurance Company 38920

CL20121624592

A
Professional Liability

0100103511-1 12/16/2020 12/16/2021 LIMIT 2,000,000

The policy includes a notice of cancellation endorsement providing for 30 days’ advance notice if the policy is cancelled by the company other than for
nonpayment of premium, or 10 days’ notice if the policy is canceled for nonpayment of premium.

Williamson County Purchasing
100 Wilco Way
Suite P101
Georgetown TX 78626

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE
BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED
ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

1/14/2021

(512) 343-0280 6394 (512) 343-0352

30104

K&W Engineering Solutions, LLC
650 Shell Stone Trail
Georgetown, TX 78628

29394
22945

A 2,000,000

65SBAAF9WLY 4/3/2020 4/3/2021 1,000,000

10,000

2,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

1,000,000B

BA420000015586 4/4/2020 4/4/2021

1,000,000A
65SBAAF9WLY 4/3/2020 4/3/2021 1,000,000

C
0002046207 3/31/2020 3/31/2021 1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

The General Liability Policy includes a blanket automatic additional insured with a waiver of subrogation on a primary non contributory basis when required 
by written contract or agreement. 30 day notice of cancellation applies.

Williamson Country Purchasing
100 Wilco Way
Suite P101
Georgetown, TX 78626

CHARWIT-01 KFARRELL

AssuredPartners of TX, LLC DBA Capitol City Insurance
8030 N Mopac
Austin, TX 78759

Kimberly Farrell

kimberly.farrell@assuredpartners.com

Hartford Underwriters Insurance Co.
Mercury County Mutual Insurance Company
Texas Mutual Insurance Company

X

X
X

X

X
X
X

X X



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 10 18 Page 1 of 3
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED BY CONTRACT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Except as otherwise stated in this endorsement, the terms and conditions of the Policy apply.

A. The following is added to Section C. WHO IS AN INSURED:

Additional Insureds When Required By Written Contract, Written Agreement Or Permit

The person(s) or organization(s) identified in Paragraphs a. through f. below are additional insureds when you have
agreed, in a written contract or written agreement, or when required by a written permit issued by a state or
governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision that such person or organization be added as an
additional insured on your Coverage Part, provided the injury or damage occurs subsequent to the execution of the
contract or agreement, or the issuance of the permit.

A person or organization is an additional insured under this provision only for that period of time required by the
contract, agreement or permit.

However, no such person or organization is an additional insured under this provision if such person or organization is
included as an additional insured by any other endorsement issued by us and made a part of this Coverage Part.

The insurance afforded to such additional insured will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract,
agreement, or permit to provide for such additional insured.

The insurance afforded to such additional insured only applies to the extent permitted by law.

The limits of insurance that apply to additional insureds are described in Section D. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL
EXPENSES LIMITS OF INSURANCE. How this insurance applies when other insurance is available to an additional
insured is described in the Other Insurance Condition in Section E. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES
GENERAL CONDITIONS.

a. Vendors

Any person(s) or organization(s) (referred to below as vendor), but only with respect to "bodily injury" or "property
damage" arising out of "your products" which are distributed or sold in the regular course of the vendor's business
and only if this Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the
"products-completed operations hazard".

(1) The insurance afforded to the vendor is subject to the following additional exclusions:

This insurance does not apply to:

(a) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which the vendor is obligated to pay damages by reason of the
assumption of liability in a contract or agreement. This exclusion does not apply to liability for damages
that the vendor would have in the absence of the contract or agreement;

(b) Any express warranty unauthorized by you;

(c) Any physical or chemical change in the product made intentionally by the vendor;

(d) Repackaging, except when unpacked solely for the purpose of inspection, demonstration, testing, or the
substitution of parts under instructions from the manufacturer, and then repackaged in the original
container;

(e) Any failure to make such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to make
or normally undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the distribution or sale
of the products;

(f) Demonstration, installation, servicing or repair operations, except such operations performed at the
vendor's premises in connection with the sale of the product;

(g) Products which, after distribution or sale by you, have been labeled or relabeled or used as a container,
part or ingredient of any other thing or substance by or for the vendor; or



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 10 18 Page 2 of 3
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(h) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the sole negligence of the vendor for its own acts or
omissions or those of its employees or anyone else acting on its behalf. However, this exclusion does not
apply to:

(i) The exceptions contained in Paragraphs (d) or (f); or

(ii) Such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to make or normally
undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the distribution or sale of the
products.

(2) This insurance does not apply to any insured person or organization from whom you have acquired such
products, or any ingredient, part or container, entering into, accompanying or containing such products.

b. Lessors Of Equipment

(1) Any person or organization from whom you lease equipment; but only with respect to their liability for "bodily
injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your
maintenance, operation or use of equipment leased to you by such person or organization.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to any
"occurrence" which takes place after you cease to lease that equipment.

c. Lessors Of Land Or Premises

(1) Any person or organization from whom you lease land or premises, but only with respect to liability arising out
of the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of the land or premises leased to you.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to:

(a) Any "occurrence" which takes place after you cease to lease that land or be a tenant in that premises; or

(b) Structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of such person
or organization.

d. Architects, Engineers Or Surveyors

(1) Any architect, engineer, or surveyor, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or
"personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or
omissions of those acting on your behalf:

(a) In connection with your premises; or

(b) In the performance of your ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusion applies:

(a) This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury"
arising out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional services, including:

(i) The preparing, approving, or failure to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports,
surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or

(ii) Supervisory, surveying, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

This exclusion applies even if the claims allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring,
employment, training or monitoring of others by an insured, if the “bodily injury”, “property damage”, or
“personal and advertising injury” arises out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional
service.

(b) This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products-
completed operations hazard”.

e. State Or Governmental Agency Or Subdivision Or Political Subdivision Issuing Permit

(1) Any state or governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision, but only with respect to operations
performed by you or on your behalf for which the state or governmental agency or subdivision or political
subdivision has issued a permit.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to:

(a) "Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of operations performed
for the federal government, state or municipality; or



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 10 18 Page 3 of 3
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(b) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products-completed operations hazard".

f. Any Other Party

(1) Any other person or organization who is not in one of the categories or classes listed above in Paragraphs a.
through e. above, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and
advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those
acting on your behalf:

(a) In the performance of your ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf;

(b) In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you; or

(c) In connection with "your work" and included within the "products-completed operations hazard", but only
if:

(i) The written contract, written agreement or permit requires you to provide such coverage to such
additional insured; and

(ii) This Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the
"products-completed operations hazard".

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusion applies:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising
out of the rendering of, or the failure to render, any professional architectural, engineering or surveying
services, including:

(a) The preparing, approving, or failure to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports,
surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or

(b) Supervisory, surveying, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

This exclusion applies even if the claims allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring,
employment, training or monitoring of others by an insured, if the “bodily injury”, “property damage”, or
“personal and advertising injury” arises out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional service
described in Paragraphs f.(2)(a) or f.(2)(b) above.



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 18 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

If any of the other insurance does not permit contribution by equal shares, we will contribute by limits. Under
this method, each insurer’s share is based on the ratio of its applicable limit of insurance to the total
applicable limits of insurance of all insurers.

7. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us

a. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery

If the insured has rights to recover all or part of any payment, including Supplementary Payments, we have
made under this Coverage Part, those rights are transferred to us. The insured must do nothing after loss to
impair them. At our request, the insured will bring "suit" or transfer those rights to us and help us enforce
them. This condition does not apply to Medical Expenses Coverage.

b. Waiver Of Rights Of Recovery (Waiver Of Subrogation)

If the insured has waived any rights of recovery against any person or organization for all or part of any
payment, including Supplementary Payments, we have made under this Coverage Part, we also waive that
right, provided the insured waived their rights of recovery against such person or organization in a contract,
agreement or permit that was executed prior to the injury or damage.

F. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES DEFINITIONS

1. "Advertisement" means a notice that is broadcast or published to the general public or specific market segments
about your goods, products or services for the purpose of attracting customers or supporters. For the purpose of
this definition:

a. Notices that are published include material placed on the Internet or on similar electronic means of
communication; and

b. Regarding web sites, only that part of a web site that is about your goods, products or services for the
purpose of attracting customers or supporters is considered an advertisement.

2. "Advertising idea" means any idea for an "advertisement".

3. "Asbestos hazard" means an exposure or threat of exposure to the actual or alleged properties of asbestos and
includes the mere presence of asbestos in any form.

4. "Auto" means:

a. A land motor vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer designed for travel on public roads, including any attached
machinery or equipment; or

b. Any other land vehicle that is subject to a compulsory or financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle
insurance or motor vehicle registration law where it is licensed or principally garaged.

However, "auto" does not include "mobile equipment".

5. "Bodily injury" means physical:

a. Injury;

b. Sickness; or

c. Disease

sustained by a person and, if arising out of the above, mental anguish or death at any time.

6. "Coverage territory" means:

a. The United States of America (including its territories and possessions), Puerto Rico and Canada;

b. International waters or airspace, but only if the injury or damage occurs in the course of travel or
transportation between any places included in a. above;

c. All other parts of the world if the injury or damage arises out of:

(1) Goods or products made or sold by you in the territory described in a. above;

(2) The activities of a person whose home is in the territory described in a. above, but is away for a short time
on your business; or



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 17 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(2) Premises Rented To You

That is fire, lightning or explosion insurance for premises rented to you or temporarily occupied by you
with permission of the owner;

(3) Tenant Liability

That is insurance purchased by you to cover your liability as a tenant for "property damage" to premises
rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner;

(4) Aircraft, Auto Or Watercraft

If the loss arises out of the maintenance or use of aircraft, "autos" or watercraft to the extent not subject to
Exclusion g. of Section B. Exclusions.

(5) Property Damage To Borrowed Equipment Or Use Of Elevators

If the loss arises out of "property damage" to borrowed equipment or the use of elevators to the extent not
subject to Exclusion k. of Section B. Exclusions.

(6) When You Are Added As An Additional Insured To Other Insurance

That is other insurance available to you covering liability for damages arising out of the premises or
operations, or products and completed operations, for which you have been added as an additional
insured by that insurance; or

(7) When You Add Others As An Additional Insured To This Insurance

That is other insurance available to an additional insured.

However, the following provisions apply to other insurance available to any person or organization who is
an additional insured under this Coverage Part:

(a) Primary Insurance When Required By Contract

This insurance is primary if you have agreed in a written contract, written agreement or permit that
this insurance be primary. If other insurance is also primary, we will share with all that other insurance
by the method described in c. below.

(b) Primary And Non-Contributory To Other Insurance When Required By Contract

If you have agreed in a written contract, written agreement or permit that this insurance is primary and
non-contributory with the additional insured's own insurance, this insurance is primary and we will not
seek contribution from that other insurance.

Paragraphs (a) and (b) do not apply to other insurance to which the additional insured has been added as
an additional insured.

When this insurance is excess, we will have no duty under this Coverage Part to defend the insured against
any "suit" if any other insurer has a duty to defend the insured against that "suit". If no other insurer defends,
we will undertake to do so, but we will be entitled to the insured's rights against all those other insurers.

When this insurance is excess over other insurance, we will pay only our share of the amount of the loss, if
any, that exceeds the sum of:

(1) The total amount that all such other insurance would pay for the loss in the absence of this insurance;
and

(2) The total of all deductible and self-insured amounts under all that other insurance.

We will share the remaining loss, if any, with any other insurance that is not described in this Excess
Insurance provision and was not bought specifically to apply in excess of the Limits of Insurance shown in
the Declarations of this Coverage Part.

c. Method Of Sharing

If all the other insurance permits contribution by equal shares, we will follow this method also. Under this
approach, each insurer contributes equal amounts until it has paid its applicable limit of insurance or none of
the loss remains, whichever comes first.



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 13.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Fence for Williamson County Auction Yard
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a service contract between
Williamson County and Danne Cranor d/b/a Lott Fence to provide installation of a new fence at
the Williamson County Auction Yard in the not-to-exceed amount of $20,761.08 and authorizing
execution of the agreement. Funding Source is P538.

Background
This agreement is for the installation of a 700 ft. length, 6 ft. height chain link fabric and will have
3 strands of 4 point 125 gauge barbed wire at top on barb arms at the Williamson County
Auction Yard. The department received 3 quotes for this service and Lott Fence provided the
best price to the County. Department point of contact is Dwayne Gossett.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Contract and Quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 01/21/2021 10:05 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 10:24 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 01/20/2021 01:33 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 



















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 14.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Interlocal Agreement with Aqua Utilities Inc regarding reimbursement for water line relocations
Submitted For: Terron Evertson  Submitted By: Kelly Murphy,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an Interlocal Agreement with Aqua Utilities
Inc. regarding reimbursement for water line relocations associated with the County’s roadway
and drainage improvements of the South San Gabriel Ranches subdivision.

Background
The County will design and relocate some of Aqua’s water system lines and appurtenances
located within existing County right-of-way. Aqua will reimburse the County for all costs incurred
in an amount not to exceed $546,000.00.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
ILA- Aqua Utilities 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 11:20 AM
Form Started By: Kelly Murphy Started On: 01/21/2021 09:06 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 15.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Curative Ag 2
Submitted For: Bill Gravell  Submitted By: Hal Hawes, County

Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Vaccination Administration Agreement
for Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) Vaccinations between Williamson County and Curative
Medical Associates Inc.; and exempting the procurement of such services from the competitive
bidding requirements pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Discretionary Exemption
262.024(a)(2) - an item necessary to preserve the health and safety of the residents of
Williamson County.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Curative Vaccination Admin Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/20/2021 03:58 PM
Form Started By: Hal Hawes Started On: 01/20/2021 03:25 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/20/2021 



 

4827-6451-3750v.1 0116179-000001 

COVID-19 VACCINE ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

This COVID-19 Vaccine Administration Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered by and between 

Williamson County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (hereafter referred to as 

“Partner”); and Curative Medical Associates PA (hereafter referred to as “Curative”). Curative and 

Partner shall be referred to hereafter individually as a “Party”, and collectively as the “Parties” to 

this Agreement. 

I. RECITALS 

A. The purpose of this engagement is for Curative to leverage logistical expertise, mobile 

vaccination infrastructure and large-scale vaccination site management capacity to assist with 

Partner’s vaccination efforts against Novel Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19).  

B. Implementing the policies, procedures, and infrastructure for COVID-19 vaccination is a 

substantial logistical challenge that the Parties believe can be effectively addressed through public-

private partnerships. In regions across the United States, the existing public health infrastructure 

has variable capacity to implement measures needed to rapidly vaccinate their constituent 

populations. Partner has expressed an urgent need for public-private partners to provide assistance 

with the vaccination effort and to ensure ongoing capacity to respond to COVID-19 in Partner’s 

region (“Service Area”). 

C. Curative can marshal the logistics experience of its affiliates, Curative Inc. and Curative Labs 

Inc., gained from coordinating COVID-19 testing with public and private entities across the United 

States. Curative affiliates have also assisted with the delivery of the influenza vaccination, in 

support of state and federal public health goals.  

D. To achieve this, Curative (through its practitioners) has (a) become a qualified provider in state 

and county-level systems, (b) can securely report patient information directly into Immunization 

Registries in full compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 

as modified by the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009 

(“HIPAA”), and (c) has established capacity and is duly qualified to receive and warehouse 

publicly-allocated doses of COVID-19 vaccines that have received Emergency Use Authorization 

(EUA) from the FDA (collectively herein, the “COVID-19 Vaccine”), in accordance with the 

guidelines of the United States Center for Disease Control (CDC), FDA and the vaccine 

manufacturers.  

E. Under this Agreement, Curative will proceed with hiring and operating COVID-19 Vaccine 

administration teams, including pursuing partnerships with academic institutions and community 

organizations, and acquiring all equipment necessary to deliver the COVID-19 Vaccine to 

individuals in the Service Area (“Vaccine Recipients”) and in support of Partner’s plans for 

population-scale immunization against COVID-19.  

F. The Parties desire to enter into this Agreement whereby Curative shall administer the COVID-

19 Vaccine for each of the Vaccine Recipients and seek reimbursement from third-party payers, 

including the federal government programs or the Vaccine Recipient’s health insurer, including 

for uninsured individuals eligible for payment by other federal or state programs, such as the 



 

  
4827-6451-3750v.1 0116179-000001 

HRSA COVID-19 Claims Reimbursement Program administered by federal Health Resources and 

Administration (HRSA) (for purposes hereof, each, a “Payer”),  

II. TERM AND TERMINATION 

The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the Effective Date and continue for thirty (30) 

days (“Term”) and auto renew for additional Terms, unless terminated as set forth herein. Either 

Party may terminate this Agreement at any time upon ten (10) days prior written notice to the other 

Party for any reason. Termination of this Agreement shall not relieve the Parties of their reporting 

and auditing obligations and any other provisions set forth in this Agreement. 

III. DESCRIPTION OF THE COVID-19 VACCINE SERVICES 

A. CURATIVE RESPONSIBILITIES 

Curative shall perform the following duties under this Agreement (the “Services”): 

1. Work with Partner and Partner’s designees to develop a model for COVID-19 Vaccine 

administration at fixed sites and at mobile clinics to be located in Williamson County, Texas 

(collectively, “COVID-19 Vaccine Sites”). 

2. Coordinate and manage COVID-19 Vaccine Sites. 

3. Secure from each intended Vaccine Recipient (or parent or legal guardian if the intended 

Vaccine Recipient is under the age of eighteen (18) years old), a signed informed consent and 

assignment of benefits, consenting to receive the COVID-19 Vaccine, and assigning to 

Curative the right to bill and receive payment from the Vaccine Recipient’s Payer for the 

COVID-19 Vaccine.  

4. Administer the COVID-19 Vaccine in compliance with applicable state and federal laws and 

the applicable CDC, FDA and manufacturer guidelines to Vaccine Recipients identified by 

Partner (by group or otherwise). 

5. Deploy Curative’s (or its affiliate’s) software platform for scheduling COVID-19 Vaccine 

clinics and managing patient information. 

6. Curative’s communication and outreach team will work with Partner to align messaging and 

communication efforts regarding this effort.  

B. PARTNER RESPONSIBILITIES  

Partner shall perform the following duties under this Agreement:  

1. Determine and provide to Curative a prioritization hierarchy for the specific groups and 

settings to receive the COVID-19 Vaccine within the Service Area.  

2. Determine and direct Curative with respect to the allocation of doses of COVID-19 Vaccine 

for different groups/entities that will receive vaccination within the Service Area. 



 

  
4827-6451-3750v.1 0116179-000001 

3. Provide direction to Curative relating to policy, information, and procedural requirements for 

COVID-19 Vaccine Sites and COVID-19 Vaccine administration.  

4. Work with Curative to develop a model for COVID-19 Vaccine administration at COVID-19 

Vaccine Sites.  

5. Coordinate with and support Curative in administering the COVID-19 Vaccines.  

6. Maintain communications with Curative to address status or needs which arise with the 

COVID-19 Vaccine administration. 

7. Provide support with a communication plan that includes assistance in disseminating 

information to the public which may include a multi-faceted approach using social media, press 

releases, and web site communications, as well as creating and maintaining a dashboard to 

track the number of vaccines administered, sites where vaccines are available, and links to 

Curative’s online appointment system.  

IV. PAYMENT FOR COVID-19 VACCINATION 

1.  Curative will use reasonable commercial efforts to obtain from each Vaccine Recipient such 

Information and documentation required by the Vaccine Recipient’s Payer, and as may be 

reasonably necessary for Curative’s billing and collection function.  

2.  Curative shall likewise use reasonable commercial efforts to understand and meet applicable 

Payer rules, regulations, coverage limitations, contractual obligations, or other procedures 

pertaining to billing and coverage of the COVID-19 Vaccine and to obtain payment from such 

Payers. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties agree that Curative shall have no obligation to 

submit a claim for payment to any Payer if Curative reasonably determines that: (A) Curative lacks 

necessary billing information, (B) the COVID-19 Vaccine is not medically appropriate for the 

particular intended Vaccine Recipient in accordance with current accepted standards of medical 

practice and CDC guidelines or other federal and state laws and guidance, or (C) the COVID-19 

Vaccine does not otherwise satisfy the applicable Payer coverage requirements.  

3.  Any payment received by Curative from a Vaccine Recipient’s Payer for the COVID-19 

Vaccine performed for a Vaccine Recipient shall represent payment in full for all such services for 

such Vaccine Recipient.  Neither the Partner nor vaccine recipients will receive a bill for the 

balance of any unreimbursed individuals.  Curative may avail itself of any funding assistance 

through the provider relief fund: https://www.hhs.gov/coronavirus/cares-act-provider-relief-

fund/index.html. 

4.  Partner agrees to reimburse Curative operating expenses up to the not-to-exceed amount of 

$25,000.00 as reimbursement for Curative’s actual costs associated with administering the 

vaccinations under this Agreement, which such costs may include, but not be limited to Personal 

Protective Equipment (PPE), staffing, data entry, vaccine storage and other supply costs necessary 

to administer the vaccines (the “Reimbursable Costs”) as documented in writing. 

 

On or about the last day of each calendar month during the performance of the services to be 

provided under this Agreement, Curative shall invoice County for the Reimbursable Costs incurred 

about:blank
about:blank


 

  
4827-6451-3750v.1 0116179-000001 

during that month.  County’s payment for Reimbursable Costs incurred hereunder shall be 

governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.  Invoices shall be submitted to the 

Williamson County Auditor, Attn:  Finance Director, 710 Main Street, Suite 301, Georgetown, 

Texas 78626 and shall be paid by County within thirty (30) days from the date of the Williamson 

County Auditor’s receipt of the invoice.  Interest charges for any late payments shall be paid by 

County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate 

of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of County’s fiscal 

year in which the payment becomes due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to 

the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the 

first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.  In the 

event that a discrepancy arises in relation to an invoice, such as an incorrect amount on an invoice 

or a lack of documentation that is required to be attached to an invoice to evidence the amount 

claimed to be due, County shall notify Curative of the discrepancy.  Following County’s 

notification of any discrepancy as to an invoice, Curative must resolve the discrepancy and 

resubmit a corrected or revised invoice, which includes all required support documentation, to the 

Williamson County Auditor.  County shall pay the invoice within thirty (30) days from the date of 

the Williamson County Auditor’s receipt of the corrected or revised invoice.  County’s payment 

of an invoice that contains a discrepancy shall not be considered late, nor shall any interest begin 

to accrue until the thirty-first (31st) day following the Williamson County Auditor’s receipt of the 

corrected or revised invoice. 

 

V. NOTICES 

All notices hereunder shall be in writing, personally delivered, sent by certified mail, return receipt 

requested, or by confirmed email, addressed to the following persons, identified by position and 

title, designated as the responsible and authorized representative of the respective Parties for all 

communications, including required notices, related to the Agreement: 

Partner:  

Williamson County Judge 

710 Main Street, Suite 101 

Georgetown, Texas 78626 

Email:  ctyjudge@wilco.org 

Phone:  (512) 943-1550 

 

 With copy to:   Williamson County Office of Emergency Management 

    Attn:  Michael Shoe, Director/EM Coordinator 

911 Tracy Chambers Lane 

Georgetown, TX 78626 

Email: michael.shoe@wilco.org 

Phone:  (512) 864-8267 

 

Curative: 

General Counsel  

279 E. Arrow Hwy,  

San Dimas CA  

Email: ryansouder@curative.com 



 

  
4827-6451-3750v.1 0116179-000001 

Phone:  888-702-9042 

 

I. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY, INDEMNIFICATION, AND INSURANCE 

Warranty: Curative represents that all protected health information (PHI) will be encrypted and 

protected within Curative’s systems in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and 

Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) and implementing regulations and will use PHI solely for 

the Services provided for herein and in accordance with each individual’s authorization/consent 

Limitation of Liability: Except as otherwise set forth in the Agreement, Curative makes no other 

warranties, express or implied, with respect to Services and all other warranties are hereby 

disclaimed.  To the maximum extent provided by law, in no event shall either party be responsible 

for any special, indirect, consequential, exemplary damages of any kind, including loss of profits 

and/or indirect economic damages whatsoever, costs of cover,  and regardless of whether such 

damages arise from claims based upon contract, negligence, tort or other 

 

Indemnity:  Curative acknowledges and agrees that under the Constitution and the laws of the 

State of Texas, Partner cannot enter into an agreement whereby Partner agrees to indemnify or 

hold harmless any other party, including but not limited to Curative; therefore, all references of 

any kind to County indemnifying, holding or saving harmless any other party, including but not 

limited to Curative, for any reason whatsoever are hereby deemed void and deleted.   

 

IN NO EVENT SHALL ANY PROVISION IN THIS Agreement BE CONSTRUED AS A 

WAIVER OF STATUTORY IMMUNITY PROVIDED TO CURATIVE UNDER THE PREP 

ACT See 85Fed. Reg. 15,198 (March 17, 2020); see also Pub. L. No. 109-148, Public Health 

Service Act § 319F-3, 42 U.S.C. § 247d-6d and 42 U.S.C. § 247d-6e.   

 

Furthermore, nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal 

defense available at law or in equity to Partner, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, 

nor to create any legal rights or claim on behalf of any third party.  Partner does not waive, modify, 

or alter to any extent whatsoever the availability of the defense of governmental immunity under 

the laws of the State of Texas and of the United States. 

 

Insurance:  Curative shall be responsible for providing disability, workers’ compensation, 

professional liability or other insurance as well as licenses and permits usual or necessary for 

performing the services under this Agreement. Curative agrees to maintain professional liability 

and commercial general liability insurance to cover its Services provided hereunder in the 

minimum amounts of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per claim and Two Million Dollars 

($2,000,000) annual aggregate. Curative agrees to name Williamson County, Texas as an 

additional insured under this coverage and furnish upon request with a current and valid certificate 

of insurance from Curative’s insurance carrier verifying the nature and amounts of coverage and 

Curative agrees to keep and maintain such insurance coverage in full force and effect during the 

term of this Agreement.   

 

Partner hereby certifies that it is a political subdivision of the State of Texas; and, since claims 

against Partner are subject to the liability and damage limitations of the Texas Tort Claims Act, 

Partner has chosen to self-insure rather than to obtain insurance coverage for its residual liability. 



 

  
4827-6451-3750v.1 0116179-000001 

Partner’s full faith and credit, therefore, stands behind any lawful claims against it, its officials, 

employees, or agents. 

 

II. CONFIDENTIALITY  

 

(a) Confidential Information: Curative and Partner acknowledge that they may gain access to 

the confidential business information of the other and/or its affiliates in the course of performing 

their obligations under this Agreement. Except as required by law or legal process, Curative and 

Partner each agrees that it will hold in confidence, safeguard, and not use (except as required by 

those employees, officers, directors, or consultants, acting pursuant to this Agreement or as 

required by law or legal process) or disclose, disseminate or make available to third parties, except 

the Partner’s affiliates, information related to proprietary research techniques and technology, 

types of supplies, pricing for supplies, patient information (including but not limited to, social 

security numbers, addresses, insurance information, results, and diagnosis information), and any 

other confidential information of the disclosing party and/or its affiliates at the time of disclosure 

(together “Confidential Information”). Curative and Partner each agrees to treat such Confidential 

Information it receives from or on behalf of the other with the same degree of care that it treats its 

own proprietary information, but with no less than a reasonable degree of care. 

 

(b) Exceptions to Confidential Information: Notwithstanding subsection (a) above, 

information shall not be deemed Confidential Information if it (i) is or becomes generally known 

to the public through no unlawful act of the recipient; (ii) was known to the recipient at the time of 

disclosure; (iii) is disclosed with the prior written approval of the disclosing party; (iv) was 

independently developed by the recipient without any use of the disclosing party’s Confidential 

Information; (v) becomes known to the recipient from a source other than the dis- closing party 

without breach of this Agreement and otherwise not in violation of the dis- closing party’s rights; 

or (vi) is required to be disclosed in accordance with law or court order. 

 

(c) Return of Confidential Information: Each party shall promptly return or destroy all 

Confidential Information of the other party it holds in written form and all copies of it, in any for- 

mat, upon the other party’s written demand or the expiration or termination of this Agreement, 

except for Confidential Information that may be incorporated in any information that the recipient 

is required to maintain by law to verify the work that it performed, which may be retained by the 

recipient subject to the restrictions contained in this Section. For the avoidance of doubt, retention 

of electronic back-up and archival copies of Confidential Information maintained pursuant to 

regular data archiving and record retention policies and practices shall not be deemed to be a 

violation of this Agreement. 

 

(d) Confidential Health Information. The Parties acknowledge that, in the performance of the 

Services under this Agreement, they may have access to certain sensitive or private information 

related to the health or well-being of an individual or individuals (“Confidential Health 



 

  
4827-6451-3750v.1 0116179-000001 

Information”) which is stored by or accessible to the other Party. Each of the Parties agrees to: (i) 

use or disclose the Confidential Health Information only as such Party is required to use or disclose 

such information in connection with the matters referred to in this Agreement; (ii) safeguard such 

information to the same extent as it does its own Confidential Health Information and proprietary 

information; (iii) limit the making of any copies, extracts or reproductions of Confidential Health 

Information to those occasions which are necessary to carry out the duties under this Agreement 

and safeguard the copies, extracts or reproductions made of such information; (iv) not use such 

information after termination of this Agreement for any reason unless otherwise agreed; and (v) 

access only the Confidential Health Information which is necessary to perform the duties under 

this Agreement. 

 

(e) HIPAA/Protected Health Information. Except as required by law to report certain data 

pertaining to the COVID-19 Vaccines. In the event that any PHI within the meaning of HIPAA 

is received by Curative, Curative shall comply with all applicable requirements under HIPAA to 

safeguard such PHI and prevent the use or disclosure of such PHI other than as provided for 

under this Agreement. Each of the Parties will, and will cause their respective personnel to, 

comply with its own applicable obligations under HIPAA and other guidelines, policies and 

regulations pertaining to using patient samples and PHI. 

 

III. RECORDS MAINTENANCE  

Curative shall maintain accurate and complete records of its activities and operations and, if legally 

required, with reasonable advance notice from Partner, during Curative’s normal business hours, 

allow Partner access to examine or audit these activities and operations. These records shall be 

maintained by Curative and made available to Partner during the term of this Agreement and for a 

period of not less than three years thereafter. If an audit of Curative is conducted by a Federal or 

State Auditor, Curative shall provide a copy of the report to Partner within thirty days.  

IV. RECORDS INSPECTION 

If applicable to Curative and required by law, in accordance with State or Federal law and pursuant 

to this Agreement, at any time with reasonable advance notice to Curative, during normal business 

hours and as often as either the Partner, its designees, the Federal or State government may deem 

necessary, Curative must make available for examination all of its records with respect to all 

matters covered by this Agreement. The Partner, or its designees, or the Federal or State 

government each have the authority to audit, examine and make excerpts or transcripts from 

records and other data covered by this Agreement. Curative agrees to provide any reports requested 

by the Partner or Partner regarding performance of this Agreement.  

V. MISCELLANEOUS 

Assignment: Without the prior written consent of the other Party hereto, which consent shall not 

be unreasonably withheld, neither Party may assign any of its rights or obligations hereunder. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, either Party may assign its rights or 

obligations hereunder in the entirety (i) to its parent or any subsidiary or successor corporation 

without prior written consent and (ii) in connection with a merger, reorganization, consolidation, 



 

  
4827-6451-3750v.1 0116179-000001 

change of control, or sale of all or substantially all of the assets to which this Agreement pertains; 

provided, however, that nothing contained herein shall release the assigning Party from its 

obligations hereunder. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement inures to the benefit of, and is 

binding upon, the successors and assigns of the Parties hereto. 

Entire Agreement: This Agreement, including Exhibits, contains the entire understanding between 

Partner and Curative and supersedes any and all prior agreements, understandings, and 

arrangements between them relating to the subject matter hereof. No amendment, change, 

modification or alteration of the terms and conditions hereof shall be binding unless in writing and 

signed by the Parties to be bound. 

Choice of Law: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 

of the State of Texas.  

Waiver: The failure of either Party to this Agreement to exercise or enforce any right conferred 

upon it hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any such right nor operate to bar the 

exercise or performance thereof at any time or times thereafter, nor shall a waiver of any right 

hereunder at any given time be deemed a waiver thereof for any other time. 

Severability: It is the intention of the Parties that the provisions of this Agreement shall be 

enforceable to the fullest extent permissible under applicable laws, and that the invalidity or 

unenforceability of any provisions under such laws will not render unenforceable, or impair, the 

remainder of the Agreement. If any provisions hereof are deemed invalid or unenforceable, either 

in whole or in part, this Agreement will be deemed amended to modify, or delete, as necessary, 

the offending provisions and to alter the bounds thereof in order to render it valid and enforceable. 

Non-Exclusive Arrangement: Curative acknowledges that this is a non-exclusive arrangement and 

that this Agreement places no restrictions on Partner’s ability to use other providers and that 

Partner does not guarantee any minimum volume of Vaccine Recipients for Services under this 

Agreement. 

Relationship of the Parties: Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as creating a 

joint venture, partnership, or employment relationship between the Parties. Neither Party is an 

agent of the other and neither Party has any authority whatsoever to bind the other Party, by 

contract or otherwise. 

Force Majeure: Either Party shall be excused from non-performance or delay in performance to 

the extent that such non-performance or delay in performance arises out of causes beyond the 

control and without the fault or negligence of the non-performing Party. Such cases include, but 

are not limited to, acts of God, the public enemy or terrorism, laws or acts of any government in 

either its sovereign or contractual capacity, fires, floods, epidemics, pandemics (including COVID-

19), strikes or freight embargo. Written notice of a Party’s failure or delay in performance due to 

force majeure must be given to the other Party no later than five (5) business days following the 

force majeure event commencing, which notice shall describe the force majeure event and the 

actions taken to minimize the impact thereof.  

Section Headings: Section headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only 

and shall not affect, in any way, the meaning and interpretation of this Agreement. 



 

  
4827-6451-3750v.1 0116179-000001 

Execution in Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in one or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute the same 

instrument. 

Third Parties. Nothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, is intended to confer any 

rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any person other than the Parties to it.  

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement to be effective as of 

the date of the last party’s execution below (“Effective Date”). 

PARTNER:  

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

By:  _________________________ 

Name:________________________ 

Position:   As Presiding Officer of the  

      Williamson County Commissioners Court 

Date: ____________ ____, 20____ 

 

 

 

CURATIVE: 

 

CURATIVE MEDICAL ASSOCIATES PA 

By:  _________________________ 

 Name:________________________ 

Position:   _____________________ 

Date: ____________ ____, 20____ 

 

 

 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 17.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Juvenile Services Grant Application Permission Request
Submitted By: Denise Carlson, Juvenile Services
Department: Juvenile Services
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an approval for Juvenile Services to apply for
a grant through the Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) to provide contract
services to youths.

Background
Juvenile Services is requesting approval to apply for a $25,000.00 grant from the Capital Area
Council of Governments (CAPCOG) to provide contracted services and programs for youth(s).
 There is no matching funds required from the County for this grant.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Capcog grant 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 10:58 AM
Form Started By: Denise Carlson Started On: 01/21/2021 10:35 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 



ttuiasosopo
Stamp

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
$25,000

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
The entire $25,000 will go towards contractual services to 
support the purpose project. 

ttuiasosopo
Stamp

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
RESET mentoring offer  similar items as this program  however they are 
not available for use. WCJS is currently partnering with RESET mentoring on providing 
mentoring services for youth in our residential treatment center CORE.

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
To my knowledge there is no other program in the county such as this. 

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
1:1 Mentoring, Creative Labs and Arts Tables and Academy of Awesome classes where
 volunteers in the community allow students to explore their gifts and passions through 
classes that support a youth's SPARKS such as guitar lessons, photography, film,
sports, theater arts etc. 

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
8. All personnel will be provided and paid by Catalyst Collective organization. 

ttuiasosopo
Stamp



ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
WCJS will partner with Catalyst Collective, who is the administrator of the program and
will be facilitating the program through the life of the grant. Catalyst Collective will provide
staffing for the program. This program will not create the need for more personnel. 


ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
Round Rock, TX

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
12 months

ttuiasosopo
Stamp

ttuiasosopo
Stamp

ttuiasosopo
Stamp

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
No. 

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
Funds raised by Catalyst Collective (fundraisers and donations). 

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
None



ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
None

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
None

ttuiasosopo
Typewritten Text
None. This program will serve to help divert youth from the Juvenile Justice system. 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 18.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Resolution authorizing the District Attorney to apply for a grant
Submitted By: Grace Frias, District Attorney
Department: District Attorney
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Resolution authorizing the District Attorney to
submit an application to the Office of the Governor, Public Safety Office (PSO) for a Violence Against Women
Justice and Training Program, FY2022 Project, committing to provide all applicable matching funds, designating
the District Attorney as the official authorized to apply for the grant, and designating the Williamson County Judge,
with approval of the Williamson County Commissioner’s Court, as the official authorized to accept, reject, alter, or
terminate the grant, and providing assurance that, in the event of loss or misuse of grant funds Williamson County
will return all funds to PSO.

Background
The purpose of the grant is to fund projects that promote a coordinated, multi-disciplinary approach to improve the
justice system’s response to violent crimes against women, including domestic violence, sexual assault, dating
violence, and stalking.  The District Attorney’s proposes to fund a prosecutor position to establish a
Special Victims Unit.

In 2018, the District Attorney received a position for a prosecutor, and in 2019 an investigator
position was added, to assist with quality intake of special victim crimes.  Special victim crimes
include physical and sexual abuse of children, adult sexual assault (intimate partner) and family
violence.   Within one year the number of child abuse cases brought to our office more than
doubled.

In addition to the general backlog of all types of cases resulting from the pandemic, the
incidents of special victim crimes in over the last ten months has dramatically increased.  As a
result of schools closing and children spending an increased amount of time on the internet,
sexual offenses against children increased from 68 cases to 87, and other criminal offenses
against children increased from 158 to 164, compared to the same time in 2019. our numbers at
the District Attorney’s Office have demonstrated a 28% increase in child sexual abuse cases
during the months of March through December 2020, verses that same time period in 2019. 

The statistics are not better for adult special victims.  Hope Alliance, Williamson County’s Crisis
Center, has reported a 45% increase in sexual assault reports between October and December
2020, over those same months in 2019.  The District Attorney has seen a 17% increase in adult
sexual assault cases during this same time period.  Although it is common for there to be a lag
time of several months between a report and a case being filed, it is reasonable to expect a
further increase in the number of sexual assault cases resulting from the increase in reports. 

The District Attorney’s Special Victim Unit (SVU) will model vertical prosecution of special victim
crimes, meaning that the SVU prosecutor will handle the cases from intake through final
disposition.  The proposed project includes hiring a prosecutor who will specialize in handling
cases involving violence against women and intimate partner violence. The prosecutor will also:
facilitate community outreach, education, and awareness to promote crime prevention and early



facilitate community outreach, education, and awareness to promote crime prevention and early
intervention efforts; provide training to many different entities including the District Attorney’s
Office, law enforcement, Department of Family and Protective Services, advocacy groups and
other members of the public; attend meetings and participate in case reviews with community
stakeholders to encourage community collaboration; partner with law enforcement agencies at
the beginning of the investigation and then prosecute the case in the courtroom thereby serving
a dual purpose of educating law enforcement as well as other prosecutors.

Adult sexual assault cases have historically been under reported, under investigated and under
prosecuted.  This project would assist in turning the tide by providing training to law
enforcement so they may build up their investigations. The prosecutor would work with law
enforcement in preparing the case for filing.  Then, the prosecutor would handle each case
thereby being a consistent person in the sexual assault survivor’s journey through the criminal
justice system.  The goal of this type of vertical prosecution is to serve the victims of sexually
violent offenses and the research supports this type of vertical prosecution as a best practice.

Special victim crimes are extremely time and resource intensive.  Once the SVU prosecutor is
in place to handle adult special victim crimes, the existing intake prosecutor will have more time
and resources to possibly allow for vertical prosecution of crimes against children.  Establishing
the SVU is an important next step in equipping the District Attorney with the resources
necessary to do justice by professional investigation and prosecution of special victim crimes.
Thank you for considering this request.
Attachments:
   Grants Management Request Questionnaire
   Grant Funding Announcement

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
VAWA Grant Announcement 
Grant Management Request Questionnaire 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 10:45 AM
Form Started By: Grace Frias Started On: 01/21/2021 10:26 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 



Office of the Governor, Public Safety Office 
Criminal Justice Division 
Funding Announcement: Violence Against 
Women Justice and Training Program, FY2022 

Purpose 
The purpose of this announcement is to solicit applications for projects that promote a coordinated, 
multi-disciplinary approach to improve the justice system’s response to violent crimes against women, 
including domestic violence, sexual assault, dating violence, and stalking. 

Available Funding 
Federal funding is authorized for these projects under the Violence Against Women Act of 2013 Pub. L. 
No. 113-4 (VAWA 2013).  VAWA funds are made available through a Congressional appropriation to the 
U.S. Department of Justice, Office on Violence Against Women. All awards are subject to the availability 
of appropriated federal funds and any modifications or additional requirements that may be imposed by 
law. 

Eligible Organizations 
Applications may be submitted by state agencies, public and private non-profit institutions of higher 
education, independent school districts, Native American tribes, councils of governments, non-profit 
corporations (including hospitals and faith-based organizations) and units of local government, which 
are defined as a non-statewide governmental body with the authority to establish a budget and impose 
taxes (includes hospital districts). Other local governmental agencies should apply through an associated 
unit of local government.  

Applicants seeking to provide direct services to victims of crime are not eligible under this solicitation 
and should apply under the General Victim Assistance Program Funding Announcement. 

Application Process 
Applicants must access the PSO’s eGrants grant management website at https://eGrants.gov.texas.gov 
to register and apply for funding.  For more instructions and information, see eGrants User Guide to 
Creating an Application, available here. 

Applicants are required to submit fully developed and detailed grant budgets at the time of 
application, PSO will not accept placeholder applications in lieu of a well written and detailed grant 
application.  

 

 

 

 

Key Dates 
Action Date 
Funding Announcement Release 12/14/2020 

https://egrants.gov.texas.gov/
https://egrants.gov.texas.gov/fundopp.aspx?name=eGrants_Guide_to_Creating_an_Application_12.2020.pdf&type=2
https://egrants.gov.texas.gov/fundopp.aspx?name=eGrants_Guide_to_Creating_an_Application_12.2020.pdf&type=2


Online System Opening Date 12/14/2020 
Final Date to Submit and Certify an Application 2/11/2021 at 5:00pm CST 
Earliest Project Start Date 09/01/2020 

Project Period 
Projects must start on or after 09/01/2021 and end on or before 09/30/2022. 

Funding Levels 
Minimum:  $5,000 

Maximum:  No Maximum 

Match Requirement:  25% of the total project 

Standards 
Grantees must comply with standards applicable to this fund source cited in the State Uniform Grant 
Management Standards (UGMS), Federal Uniform Grant Guidance, and all statutes, requirements, and 
guidelines applicable to this funding. 
Eligible Activities and Costs 
The following list of eligible and ineligible activities and costs apply generally to all projects under this 
announcement: 

1. Training law enforcement officers, judges, other court personnel, and prosecutors to more 
effectively identify and respond to violent crimes against women, including the crimes of 
sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking; 

2. Developing, training, or expanding units of law enforcement officers, judges, other court 
personnel, and prosecutors specifically targeting violent crimes against women, including the 
crimes of sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking; 

3. Developing and implementing more effective police, court, and prosecution policies, 
protocols, orders, and services specifically devoted to preventing, identifying, and responding 
to violent crimes against women, including the crimes of sexual assault, domestic violence, 
dating violence, and stalking, as well as the appropriate treatment of victims; 

4. Developing, installing, or expanding data collection and communication systems, including 
computerized systems, linking police, prosecutors, and courts or for the purpose of 
identifying, classifying, and tracking arrests, protection orders, violations of protection 
orders, prosecutions, and convictions for violent crimes against women, including the crimes 
of sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking; 

5. Supporting formal and informal statewide, multidisciplinary efforts, to the extent not 
supported by state funds, to coordinate the response of state law enforcement agencies, 
prosecutors, courts, victim services agencies, and other state agencies and departments, to 
violent crimes against women, including the crimes of sexual assault, domestic violence, 
dating violence, and stalking; 

6. Training of sexual assault forensic medical personnel examiners in the collection and 
preservation of evidence, analysis, prevention, and providing expert testimony and 
treatment of trauma related to sexual assault; 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/grant-management/
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl


7. Developing, enlarging, or strengthening programs to assist law enforcement, prosecutors, 
courts, and others to address the needs and circumstances of older and disabled women who 
are victims of sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking, including 
recognizing, investigating, and prosecuting instances of such violence or assault and targeting 
outreach and support, counseling, and other victim services to such older and disabled 
individuals; 

8. Developing and promoting state or local policies that enhance best practices for responding 
to sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking; 

9. Developing, implementing, or enhancing Sexual Assault Response Teams, or other similar 
coordinated community responses to sexual assault;  

10. Developing and strengthening policies, protocols, best practices, and training for law 
enforcement agencies and prosecutors relating to the investigation and prosecution of sexual 
assault cases and the appropriate treatment of victims.; 

11. Identifying and conducting inventories of backlogs of sexual assault evidence collection kits 
and developing protocols and policies for responding to and addressing such backlogs, 
including protocols and policies for notifying and involving victims; 

Program-Specific Requirements 
Legal Assistance for Victims (LAV) Certification:  

All VAWA applicants must certify that they meet the following federal statutory requirements in regards 
to the provision of legal advocacy: 

(1) Any person providing legal assistance through a program funded under this VAWA Program  

(a) has demonstrated expertise in providing legal assistance to victims of domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault or stalking in the targeted population; or  

(b) is partnered with an entity or person that has demonstrated expertise described in 
subparagraph (A) and has completed or will complete training in connection with domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking and related legal issues, including training on 
evidence-based risk factors for domestic and dating violence homicide.  

(2) Any training program conducted in satisfaction of the requirement of paragraph (1) has been or will 
be developed with input from and in collaboration with a state, local, territorial, or tribal domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking victim service provider or coalition, as well as 
appropriate tribal, State, territorial, and local law enforcement officials.  

(3) Any person or organization providing legal assistance through a program funded under this Program 
has informed and will continue to inform state, local, or tribal domestic violence, dating violence or 
sexual assault programs and coalitions, as well as appropriate State and local law enforcement officials 
of their work.  

(4) The grantee's organizational policies do not require mediation or counseling involving offenders and 
victims physically together, in cases where sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, or child 
sexual abuse is an issue. 

 



 

Eligibility Requirements 
1. Entities receiving funds from PSO must be located in a county that has an average of 90% or 

above on both adult and juvenile dispositions entered into the computerized criminal history 
database maintained by the Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) as directed in the Texas 
Code of Criminal Procedure, Chapter 66. The disposition completeness percentage is defined as 
the percentage of arrest charges a county reports to DPS for which a disposition has been 
subsequently reported and entered into the computerized criminal history system. 

Beginning January 1, 2021, counties applying for grant awards from the Office of the Governor 
must commit that the county will report at least 90 percent of convictions and other dispositions 
within five business days to the Criminal Justice Information System at the Department of Public 
Safety. 

2. Eligible applicants operating a law enforcement agency must be current on reporting complete 
UCR data and the Texas specific reporting mandated by 411.042 TGC, to the Texas Department of 
Public Safety (DPS) for inclusion in the annual Crime in Texas (CIT) publication. To be considered 
eligible for funding, applicants must have submitted a full twelve months of accurate data to DPS 
for the most recent calendar year by the deadline(s) established by DPS.  Due to the importance 
of timely reporting, applicants are required to submit complete and accurate UCR data, as well as 
the Texas-mandated reporting, on a no less than monthly basis and respond promptly to 
requests from DPS related to the data submitted.  Note: UCR is transitioning from summary 
reporting to NIBRS only in 2021.  Applicants are encouraged to transition to NIBRS as soon as 
possible in order to maintain their grant eligibility. 

3. Local units of government, including cities, counties and other general purpose political subdivisions, 
as appropriate, and institutions of higher education that operate a law enforcement agency, must 
comply with all aspects of the programs and procedures utilized by the U.S. Department of 
Homeland Security (“DHS”) to: (1) notify DHS of all information requested by DHS related to illegal 
aliens in Agency’s custody; and (2) detain such illegal aliens in accordance with requests by DHS. 
Additionally, counties and municipalities may NOT have in effect, purport to have in effect, or make 
themselves subject to or bound by, any law, rule, policy, or practice (written or unwritten) that 
would: (1) require or authorize the public disclosure of federal law enforcement information in 
order to conceal, harbor, or shield from detection fugitives from justice or aliens illegally in the 
United States; or (2) impede federal officers from exercising authority under 8 U.S.C. § 1226(a), § 
1226(c), § 1231(a), § 1357(a), § 1366(1), or § 1366(3). Lastly, eligible applicants must comply with all 
provisions, policies, and penalties found in Chapter 752, Subchapter C of the Texas Government 
Code. 
 
Each local unit of government, and institution of higher education that operates a law enforcement 
agency, must download, complete and then upload into eGrants the CEO/Law Enforcement 
Certifications and Assurances Form certifying compliance with federal and state immigration 
enforcement requirements. This Form is required for each application submitted to OOG and is 
active until August 31, 2022 or the end of the grant period, whichever is later. 

4. Eligible applicants must have a DUNS (Data Universal Numbering System) number assigned to its 
agency (to request a DUNS number, go to https://fedgov.dnb.com/webform). 

5. Eligible applicants must be registered in the federal System for Award Management (SAM) 
database located at https://www.sam.gov/. 

https://egrants.gov.texas.gov/fundopp.aspx?name=CEO-LE_Cert-Assurances_Form-Blank.pdf&type=2
https://egrants.gov.texas.gov/fundopp.aspx?name=CEO-LE_Cert-Assurances_Form-Blank.pdf&type=2
https://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
https://www.sam.gov/


Failure to comply with program eligibility requirements may cause funds to be withheld and/or 
suspension or termination of grant funds. 

Prohibitions 
Grant funds may not be used to support the unallowable costs listed in the Guide to Grants or any of the 
following unallowable costs: 

1. Construction, renovation, or remodeling;  

2. Medical services other than forensic medical examinations and prophylaxis;  

3. Law enforcement equipment that is standard department issue; 

4. Processing DNA evidence; 

5. Victim-offender meetings that serve to replace (or as a part of) criminal justice proceedings; 

6. Services to incarcerated individuals, including re-entry rehabilitative services related to the 
crime for which they are incarcerated; 

7. Medical training; 

8. Cash payments to victims, gift cards, or fuel vouchers; 

9. Creation of a voucher program where victims are directly given vouchers for such services as 
housing or counseling; 

10. Leasing or purchasing vehicles; 

11. Legal defense services for perpetrators of violence against women; 

12. Criminal defense work, including for women who assault, kill, or otherwise injure their abusers; 

13. Liability insurance on buildings; 

14. Nonessential maintenance on buildings, including minor renovations, lawn care, landscaping, 
painting, plumbing and HVAC repair; 

15. Reimbursement to crime victims for expenses incurred as a result of a crime, such as insurance 
deductibles, replacement of stolen property, funeral expenses, lost wages, and medical bills; 

16. Services for programs that primarily focus on children and/or men; 

17. Activities exclusively related to violence prevention, such as media campaigns to educate the 
general public about violence against women, public awareness, and community education 
campaigns are also prohibited; 

18. Prosecution of child sexual abuse when the victim is now an adult; 

19. Relocation expenses for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking such as moving 
household goods to a new location in another state or acquiring furniture or housing in a new 
location; 

20. Development or presentation of a domestic violence, sexual assault, dating violence, or stalking 
curriculum for primary or secondary schools (educating students from an existing curriculum 
would also be prohibited); 

21. Activities that may compromise victim safety; and 

22. Any other prohibition imposed by federal, state or local law or regulation. 

https://egrants.gov.texas.gov/fundopp.aspx?name=2020%20Guide_to_Grants.pdf&type=2


Selection Process 
Application Screening: The Office of the Governor will screen all applications to ensure that they meet 
the requirements included in the funding announcement. Applications that meet those requirements 
will move forward to the merit review phase. 

Merit Review: – Local Projects: Projects with a local impact will be reviewed by a panel appointed by 
the local Council of Governments using their own criteria. The merit review panels will assess the 
applications for quality and rank by priority, and then report their findings to the Office of the Governor. 
Applicants must contact their applicable regional Council of Governments (COG). Each of Texas’ 24 COGs 
holds its own application planning workshops, workgroups, and/or subcommittees and facilitates 
application prioritization for certain programs within its region. Failure to comply with regional 
requirements imposed by the COG may render an application ineligible. 

Merit Review – Statewide Projects: The Office of the Governor will review applications to understand 
the overall demand for the program and for significant variations in costs per item. After this review, the 
Office of the Governor will determine if all eligible applications can be funded based on funds available, 
if there are cost-effectiveness benefits to normalizing or setting limits on the range of costs, and if other 
fair-share cuts may allow for broader distribution and a higher number of projects while still remaining 
effective. 

Final Decisions – All Projects: The Office of the Governor will consider rankings along with other factors 
and make all final funding decisions. Other factors may include cost effectiveness, overall funds 
availability, PSO or state government priorities and strategies, legislative directives, need, geographic 
distribution, balance of focuses and approaches, or other relevant factors. 

PSO may not fund all applications or may only award part of the amount requested. In the event that 
funding requests exceed available funds, PSO may revise projects to address a more limited focus. 

Contact Information 
For more information, contact the eGrants help desk at eGrants@gov.texas.gov or (512) 463-1919. 

 

mailto:eGrants@gov.texas.gov


Grant Title/Project Name: Assistant District Attorney, Special Victims Unit

Department: District Attorney’s Office

Requestor: Shawn Dick

Contact Email: Shawn.Dick@wilco.org

Contact Phone Number: 512-943-1234

Start Date: 9/1/2021

End Date: 9/30/2022

Please select request category: Personnel

Describe the purpose of the grant in detail to
include all requirements.

 The purpose of this grant position is to provide an additional prosecutor to
 our Special Victims Unit that will focus on vertical prosecution of sexual

 assault cases. Vertical prosecution involves handling a case from the
 investigative phase (in partnership with our law enforcement agencies)

 through disposition of the case. Vertical prosecution for sexual assaults is
 widely recognized as the best practice for handling these cases. It allows
 for better victim support, specialized case handling and an overall higher
 rate of successful prosecution for these violent offenses.

Select the type of grant your department is
applying for:

Federal

What is the amount of the grant? $136,670.50

Please provide a breakdown of the total cost
above.

 Salary $95,000; Insurance $10,128; Benefits $21,099.50; Membership
 dues $900; Supplies $6,543; Training $3,000

Is there a match requirement? Yes

What is the source of the match?  Williamson County
 

Does the grant cover the cost of the request
100%?

No

If not, how much is left unpaid? $34,167.63

What is the plan to obtain grants/funds for the
remaining amount?

 We will request that Williamson County cover the unpaid portion.

List other similar assets in the County and/or
region and if they are available for use?

How is this asset request different from any
similar assets currently in the County and/or
region?

What types of events/purpose would this asset be
used for that cannot be accomplished with a
current County asset?

How often do these events occur?

Identify the number of personnel required to
operate this asset and/or be available for the
function where it is to be used? How much time is
required of those personnel? What is the cost of
the personnel?

Where will the asset be stored?

What is the useful life of the asset?

Will a replacement be requested from general
funds when useful life has been exhausted?

Will other agencies be billed for the use of this
asset (e.g. vendors paid, employee worked hours
and paid, inventory costs etc.)?



Does this asset require insurance coverage?

If yes, what is the estimate of asset insurance
coverage?

Will this asset require on-going maintenance?
Please describe the maintenance required along
with an estimate for these costs.

How will this asset be funded when the grant
ends?

What is the impact if the grant is not received?

New Personnel position is: Full Time

Where will this position office? Special Victims Unit, District Attorney's Office

Who will this position report to? Chief of Child Abuse and Sex Crimes

What tasks will this position perform? Include the
five primary functions and the percentage of time
spent to be spent on each function.

 Assist law enforcement with ongoing investigations (25%), review sexual
 assault cases sent to the D.A.'s Office (25%), law enforcement training

 (15%), victim contact (15%), and prepare for and conduct criminal trials
 (20%).

Will this position take over tasks from current
County employee?

Yes

If yes, please explain the impact to current
employee.

 Not only will the position alleviate approximately 25% of the workload from
the current Child Abuse and Sex Crimes intake prosecutor, it will allow for
vertical prosecution of special victim cases.  

 
How will this position be funded when the grant
ends?

 We will continue to seek grant funding, but should we not receive grant
 funds, we would request that Williamson County assume the cost of the
 position.

Does this position or a similar position currently
exist within the department?

No

If “yes” how many of these similar positions exist

Describe any alternatives considered to achieve
desired outcome in lieu of a position (i.e.
equipment, software, technology or change in
business practice).

 N/A

Describe how workload will be accomplished/re-
allocated should grant not be approved.

 Currently, our Child Abuse and Sex Crimes prosecutor handles all physical
 abuse of children, sexual abuse of children, sexual assaults of adults, and

 related felony family violence cases only at the intake/ investigations part of
 the prosecution process. This prosecutor also represents our office at all of
 the related monthly meetings, including, but not limited to, the

 Multidisciplinary Team meeting with the Children's Advocacy Center, the
 Child Fatality Review Team meeting, the Sexual Assault Response Team
 meeting with Hope Alliance, and the Human Trafficking Care Coordination
 meeting. Additionally, the current Child Abuse and Sex Crimes prosecutor
 assists all Trial Division prosecutors with trial preparation and holds law

 enforcement trainings throughout the year. If this grant position is not
 funded, there will not be vertical prosecution on any special victim cases in

 the District Attorney's Office, and the Child Abuse and Sex Crimes
 prosecutor will maintain the above-listed duties.

List other similar items in the County and/or
region and if they available for use?

How is this item request different from any similar
assets currently in the County and/or region?

What types of events/purpose would this item be
used for that cannot be accomplished with a
current County asset?

Identify the number of personnel required to
operate this item and/or be available for the



function where it is to be used?

Please explain how this item will create the need
for more or less personnel (or mark n/a for no
change)?

Where will the item be stored?

What is the useful life of the item?

Will other agencies be billed for the use of this
item (e.g. vendors paid, employee worked hours
and paid, inventory costs etc.)?

Does this item require insurance coverage?

Will this item require any form of licensing?

Will this item require on-going maintenance?
Please describe the maintenance required along
with an estimate for these costs?

How will this item be funded when the grant
ends?

What is the overall budgetary impact? (i.e.
revenue generation, expense reduction, etc.)

N/A

Please identify any additional equipment
needed/required (now or in the future) should the
grant/asset is awarded.

N/A

What is the cost and frequency to
maintain/update the additional equipment?

N/A

What is the impact of this grant application on
other internal/county departments?

 N/A

If yes, what is the estimate of that license fee?

If yes, what is the estimate of insurance
coverage?

Will a replacement be requested from general
funds when useful life has been exhausted? (OR)

If yes, how much is the match amount? 25%

ID 67

Version 1.0

Attachments False

Created 1/21/2021 8:37 AM

Created By Jamie Felicia

Modified 1/21/2021 8:37 AM

Modified By Jamie Felicia



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 19.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Legislation for the establishment of a new District Court and a new County Court at Law
Submitted By: Ronald Morgan, All District Courts
Department: All District Courts
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Resolution to request legislation for the
establishment of a new District Court and a new County Court at Law for Williamson County,
Texas.

Background
There are currently 5 District Courts and 4 County Courts at Law serving Williamson County. 
An analysis of court workload, which is driven in part by the growth Williamson County has been
experiencing, indicates a need for at least one additional District Court and one additional
County Court at Law to support the administration of justice.  The District Judges and County
Court at Law Judges jointly present this request to the Commissioners Court to authorize a
Resolution requesting and supporting legislation for the establishment of such courts.  The
proposed resolution and an analysis of the need and the impact of this request is attached to
this agenda item.

The District and County Court at Law Judges will be submitting this item for the Commissioners
Court Agenda for two successive weeks in the event that the Court is not prepared to vote on
the request at the first meeting.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Proposed Resolution Supporting New Courts 
Court Workload Analysis 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 08:26 AM
Form Started By: Ronald Morgan Started On: 01/20/2021 10:31 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 



State of Texas  
County of Williamson  

Know all men by these presents:  
 

That on the ____ day of ________________ 2021 the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, 
Texas met in duly called session at the Williamson County Courthouse, 710 Main Street, Georgetown, 
Texas, with the following members present:  
 
    Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge  
    Terry Cook, Commissioner Precinct One  
    Cynthia P. Long, Commissioner Precinct Two  
    Valerie Covey, Commissioner Precinct Three  
    Russ Boles, Commissioner Precinct Four  
 
And at said meeting, among other business, the Court considered the request of the Judges of the 
District and County Courts at Law to support legislation requesting an additional District Court and 
an additional County Court at Law for Williamson County as follows:  
 
WHEREAS, The Commissioners Court has considered the workload of the District Courts and the 
County Courts at Law in Williamson County; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Commissioners Court agrees that “justice delayed is justice denied” and the 
availability of judicial capacity is critical to enhancing the efficiency of the justice system in Williamson 
County; and  
  
WHEREAS, The Commissioners Court appreciates the diligent work of the judiciary in developing 
a proposal that will increase judicial capacity finds in a fiscally responsible manner.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Commissioners Court supports a request for 
legislation to establish a new District Court and a new County Court at Law for Williamson County, 
and calls on the 87th Texas Legislature to give favorable consideration to such legislation when filed. 
 
Signed the _________ day of ____________________________ 2021 
 

 
 

_______________________________________ 
Bill Gravell Jr., – County Judge 

 



 
 

 
 

Court Workload Assessment 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY DISTRICT AND COUNTY COURTS AT LAW 

  



Contents 
Introduction & Executive Summary ..................................................................................................... 2 

Williamson County Growth Trends ..................................................................................................... 2 

Population Growth ............................................................................................................................ 2 

District Court Workload ................................................................................................................... 3 

County Court at Law Workload ........................................................................................................ 4 

Current Court Assignments .................................................................................................................. 6 

Current District Court Assignments ................................................................................................. 6 

Current County Court Assignments ................................................................................................. 6 

Docket Impact of a Proposed New Court’s Jurisdiction ...................................................................... 7 

Infrastructure Needs ............................................................................................................................. 7 

Infrastructure Needs Resulting from a New District Court ............................................................. 7 

Infrastructure Needs Resulting from a New County Court at Law ................................................. 7 

Staffing Needs ........................................................................................................................................ 7 

Staffing to Support a New District Court ......................................................................................... 8 

Staffing to Support a New County Court at Law .............................................................................. 8 

Court Cost .............................................................................................................................................. 9 

Estimated Cost Range for New District Court ,  ............................................................................... 9 

Estimated Cost Range for New County Court at Law , ,  .................................................................. 9 

Comparator Jurisdictions ..................................................................................................................... 10 

District Court Comparisons ............................................................................................................. 10 

County Court at Law Comparisons ................................................................................................. 10 

Appendices ........................................................................................................................................... 11 

Appendix 1:  OCA District Court Workload Study .......................................................................... 11 

Appendix 2:  OCA County Court at Law Workload Study ............................................................. 12 

Appendix 3:  Potential Statutory Language for Creation of a New District Court......................... 13 

Appendix 4:  Potential Statutory Language for Creation of a New County Court at Law ............. 13 

Appendix 5:  Detailed Estimate for New District Court Cost ......................................................... 14 

Appendix 6:  Detailed Estimate for New County Court at Law Cost ............................................. 15 



PAGE 2 

Introduction & Executive Summary 
The Judges of the District Courts (DC) and County Courts at Law (CCL) have been carefully 
monitoring the workload of their courts.  They take seriously their obligation to provide timely, 
efficient access to justice to the people of Williamson County.  Anecdotal evidence has led to the 
concern that the DC and CCL workload is growing beyond the capacity of the available judicial 
resources, which has compelled the Judges to assess the current state of available resources. 

Court workload is driven by several factors.  The primary factor is the number of filings the court 
receives, and that datapoint is impacted significantly by size of the population served by the Court.  
A larger population, logically, results in a larger number of disputes that are submitted to the courts 
(an increase in filings).  An increase in filings without a corresponding increase in available judicial 
resources results in a reduction in the number of cases disposed of each year and lengthens the 
period of time between case filing and case disposition. 

The DC and CCL judges have researched the data regarding the current workload of their respective 
courts, utilizing data provided by the Office of Court Administration.  The result of this analysis is 
that, in order to keep up with the 2019 workload level (given the COVID-19 pandemic, 2020 is 
considered non-representative) the District Courts need at least 1.3 additional judgeships, and the 
County Courts at Law likely need 2 additional judgeships.  Accordingly, in the interest of balancing 
efficiency with financial responsibility, it is recommended that one (1) District Court and one 
(1) County Court at Law be requested at this time in the 2021 Legislative Session. 

Williamson County Growth Trends 

POPULATION GROWTH 

Between April 2010 and July 2019, Williamson County population grew from 422,504 to 590,551 
(est.). 1  This represents an increase of 39.8%.  2020 data is pending the completion of the decennial 
census. 

From 2020 to 2030, Williamson County’s population is estimated to grow to over 830,000.2  This 
growth represents an increase of roughly 30%. 

 
1 Source:  US Census Bureau.  “Quick Facts – Williamson County, Texas” 2019 
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/williamsoncountytexas,US/PST045219.  Last 
accessed 1/10/21. 
2 Source: Austin Business Journal.  “Big changes in store for Williamson County” 2020 
https://www.bizjournals.com/austin/news/2019/12/12/big-changes-in-store-for-williamson-
county.html  

https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/williamsoncountytexas,US/PST045219
https://www.bizjournals.com/austin/news/2019/12/12/big-changes-in-store-for-williamson-county.html
https://www.bizjournals.com/austin/news/2019/12/12/big-changes-in-store-for-williamson-county.html


PAGE 3 

DISTRICT COURT WORKLOAD 
Filing Analysis 

The Office of Court Administration (“OCA”) completed a Caseload Study of the District Courts on 
2/14/20.  The study breaks down the District Court workload by case type between State FY 2015-
2019.  In summary, the study reflects a 20% increase in filings in that period.   

At the same time as the OCA study identified an increase in case filings, it also shows that case 
dispositions have increased by 34% in the studied period, reflecting the efforts of the judiciary to 
keep up with the filing increase.  Those efforts have made an impact but given the size of the filing 
increase, the average District Court Clearance Rate between State FY15-19 is 93%, meaning that the 
number of cases filed exceeds the number disposed by an average of 7% per year.  

 

The full OCA study is found at Appendix 1. 

Weighted Caseload Analysis 

The OCA completed a weighted caseload analysis which indicates the need for judicial resources 
based on the Court’s workload.  The weighted caseload analysis for District Courts reflects a 
need for 1.3 judicial FTEs.  Accordingly, we recommend a request for 1 additional District 
Court. 

 



PAGE 4 

The Impact of Associate Judges 

The chart above takes into account Associate Judge/Magistrate Judge Resources.  It reflects the 
contributions of the Williamson County Magistrates to the District Court workload at 0.25 FTE.  
The principal focus of the Magistrates is to provide for 7 day/week coverage of Magistration and 
after hours warrant consideration.  They provide limited support to the District Courts in 
supporting specialty dockets.  OCA data also reflects the contribution of the IV-D Associate Judge 
at 0.2 FTE.  The IV-D Associate Judge manages a Child Support docket in a 7 County3 region, 
including Williamson County.     

Caveat Regarding Juvenile Data 

In reviewing the data provided by OCA, the District Judges have identified an issue with their data 
collection related to Juvenile matters that results from the manner in which Williamson County 
tracks Juvenile cases.  Specifically, the vast majority of Juvenile matters are filed through “Chamber 
Files” which are not reflected on the OCA report.  “Chamber Files” are a feature of the manner in 
which files are managed in Williamson County, but the cases still require the exercise of judicial 
activity just as do filed cases.  Because of this, we believe that the Estimated Need chart under-
counts the Juvenile workload.  We are currently working to resolve this with the OCA.   

Summary of District Court Judicial Needs 

The OCA Data supports the need for a minimum of 1.3 additional judgeships for the Williamson 
County District Courts.  The use of the term “a minimum of” is a result of the concern with the 
juvenile data expressed above.  It our belief regarding the under-counting of juvenile cases is 
accurate, then the workload is, in fact, higher than what OCA has reflected and the need for 
judgeships is higher as well. 

COUNTY COURT AT LAW WORKLOAD 
Filing Analysis 

The OCA completed a Caseload Study of the District Courts on 2/14/20.  The study breaks down 
the County Court at Law workload by case type between State FY 2015-2019.  In summary, the 
study finds that filings in this timeframe are flat (with no overall increase or decrease when 
all case-types are considered).   

 

  

 
3 Office of Court Administration.  2019.  “Child Support Courts.”  
https://www.txcourts.gov/media/1445380/new-childsupportcourts_aug2019-11x17.pdf.  Last 
accessed 1/10/21. 

https://www.txcourts.gov/media/1445380/new-childsupportcourts_aug2019-11x17.pdf


PAGE 5 

The full OCA study is found at Appendix 2. 

While the OCA workload study accurately indicates that overall case filings across all categories are 
“flat”, that is primarily driven by the fact that criminal filings are down by roughly 15%.  It is 
important to note that this is the only case category in the County Courts at Law in which case 
filings were down between State FY 2015-2019.  As indicated below, Family filings showed no 
change, and the remaining categories saw increase.   

 

The change in filings in the Probate, Guardianship, and Mental Health categories merits special 
discussion here.  Cases in those categories are handled by a single County Court-at-Law Judge alone, 
who also hears other Civil cases.  The increase in Probate and Guardianship cases may be attributed 
to the normal increase that accompanies a population increase; the enormous increase Mental 
Health filings may be attributed to the opening of two psychiatric hospitals in Williamson County.  
Prior to the opening of the two hospitals in Williamson County, mental health cases were previously 
diverted to Travis County, where the Statutory Probate Court handled the legal issues related to 
hospitalization.  The opening of these two hospitals has resulted in more mental illness-related 
cases being heard in Williamson County. 

Weighted Caseload Analysis 

In 2020, the OCA was scheduled to develop a weighted caseload analysis for County Courts at Law.  
Similar to the District Courts, this would indicate the need for judicial resources based on the 
County Courts at Law’s workload.  As a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic, OCA has not been able 
to complete this analysis, and we are, therefore, unable to present an estimated need based on a 
weighted caseload study that applies to all County Court at Law cases.   

In conversations with the OCA, we requested that they apply the District Court weighting to Civil, 
and Family (including CPS) cases, as the conduct of those cases is generally the same in the District 
Courts as in the County Courts at Law.  Based solely on the Civil, Family, and CPS workload, the 
OCA weighted caseload analysis ordinarily used for District Courts reflects a need for a total of 3.4 
judicial FTEs.   



PAGE 6 

 

Adjustment to Account for Criminal & Probate/MH Workloads 

In order to provide a more complete picture, and based on current County Court at Law workloads, 
we have estimated that the criminal docket results in a need for 1.5 Judges and the Probate/MH 
results in a need for .75 FT Judge, both of which are reflected in red in the chart above.  With these 
conservative estimates used to create a more accurate picture, it is likely that the weighted 
caseload analysis would reflect a need for 1.3 additional Judicial FTEs.  Accordingly, we 
recommend a request for 1 additional County Court at Law. 

Current Court Assignments 

CURRENT DISTRICT COURT ASSIGNMENTS 
26th District Court Civil and Criminal cases 
277th District Court Criminal and Juvenile cases 
368th District Court Civil and Criminal cases 
395th District Court Civil and Family (including CPS) cases 
425th District Court Civil and Family (including CPS) cases 

The newest District Court was established the 79th Texas Legislature (2005).4 

CURRENT COUNTY COURT ASSIGNMENTS 
County Court at Law #1 Civil, Criminal and Family (including CPS) cases 
County Court at Law #2 Civil and Criminal Civil cases 
County Court at Law #3 Criminal and Family cases 
County Court at Law #4 Civil, Family, Guardianship, Probate, and Mental Health cases 

The newest County Court at Law was established by the 79th Texas Legislature (2005).5 

 
4 Tx. Gov’t Code 24.569 
5 Tx. Gov’t Code 25.2481 



PAGE 7 

Docket Impact of a Proposed New Court’s Jurisdiction 
The primary intended impact of a proposed new court is to add judicial resources to enhance the 
speed within which cases are considered.  The first decision to be made is what case types each 
proposed new court will hear.   

A new court will allow cases to be re-distributed from existing courts, which will positively impact 
the size of the dockets of those courts and allow judges to address cases sooner, without impact on 
the attention that they pay to those cases.   

Infrastructure Needs 
We are continuing to collaborate with the Facilities Department to ensure appropriate space for 
the proposed new courts and estimate related costs. 

INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS RESULTING FROM A NEW DISTRICT COURT 

The Courtroom for this New District Court is slated for construction in FY21.  Chambers for a Judge, 
and a Jury Room would need to be constructed with related technology. 

INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS RESULTING FROM A NEW COUNTY COURT AT LAW 

The Courtroom, Chambers, and Jury Room on the 2nd Floor which are currently used for the IV-D 
(Child Support) Court, could be used for a new County Court at Law.  This would require the build-
out and relocation of the current IV-D Court and Chambers. 

Staffing Needs 
The level of staffing depends on the jurisdiction of the particular court.  These staffing levels have 
been acquired from the respective offices indicated on the chart. 6 

 

 

[THIS AREA INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]  

 
6 WCSO has indicated that, regardless of the type of Court, they need 2 Bailiffs, 1 Transportation Officer, and .5 Court 
Liaisons per Court.  This number is reflected on the chart should the request be for Criminal Courts.  The Judiciary has 
the utmost respect for the vital role that the Sheriff’s Office plays in protecting the Courts and supporting our 
operations.  Our focus is on requesting a court focused on Civil and Family needs, and in doing this, we believe that a 
request for 1 Bailiff per Court would be more appropriate, and is reflected on the chart under Civil & Family Courts. 



PAGE 8 

STAFFING TO SUPPORT A NEW DISTRICT COURT 
  Civil & Family Court 

Non-CPS 
Criminal Court 

Court Judicial Officer 1 FTE (State-funded, County 
Supplement) 

1 FTE (State-funded, County 
Supplement) 

Court Reporter 1 FTE 1 FTE 
Court Administrator 1 FTE 1 FTE 

District Clerk Court Clerk 1 FTE 1 FTE 
District Attorney Prosecutor ---  3 FTE 

Investigator --- 1 FTE 
Legal Assistant --- 1 FTE 
Discovery Clerk --- 1 FTE 
Victim Assist. Coord. --- 1 FTE 

County Attorney CPS Prosecutor ---  ---  
Investigator --- --- 
Legal Assistant --- --- 
Evidence Technician --- --- 

Sheriff’s Office Bailiff 1 FTE 2 FTE 
Transportation Officer --- 1 FTE 
Court Liaison --- .5 FTE 

Total FTE Need depending on Court Type 5 FTE 14.5 FTE 

STAFFING TO SUPPORT A NEW COUNTY COURT AT LAW 
  Civil & Family Court 

Non-CPS 
Criminal, Civil, & Family Court 
Including CPS,  Protective Order 

& Mental Health Cases 
Court Judicial Officer 1 FTE  1 FTE  

Court Reporter 1 FTE 1 FTE 
Court Administrator 1 FTE 1 FTE 
Admin. Asst. 1 FTE 1 FTE 

County Clerk  --- --- 
County Attorney Prosecutors --- 3 FTE 

CPS Prosecutor  1 FTE 
Protective Order 
Prosecutor 

 1 FTE 

Mental Health Prosecutor  1 FTE 
Investigator --- 1 FTE 
Legal Assistant --- 5 FTE 
Evidence Tech --- 2 FTE 
Victim Advocate --- 1 FTE 

Sheriff’s Office Bailiff 1 FTE 2 FTE 
Transportation Officer --- 1 FTE 
Court Liaison --- .5 FTE 

Total FTE Need depending on Court Type 5 FTE 22.5 FTE 



PAGE 9 

Court Cost 

ESTIMATED COST RANGE FOR NEW DISTRICT COURT 7, 8 

The courts have consulted with the other justice system stakeholders to identify potential needs 
that would result from establishment of a new District Court.  Based on their feedback, and in 
consultation with the Budget Office and Human Resources, we have determined that, for a new 
District Court, the startup costs for the first year, not including facilities, would range between 
$447,096.76-$1,732,413.21.  Ongoing (second-year) costs would range between $408,575.94-
$1,517,776.36.  Details may be found below. 

Year 1 Cost Range (Start-up) Year 2 Cost Range 
Low Estimate High Estimate Low Estimate High Estimate 
$447,096.76 $1,732,413.21 $408,575.94 $1,517,776.36 
Court FTE:  3 
SO FTE:  1 
DC FTE:  1 

Court FTE:  3 
SO FTE:  3.5 
DC FTE:  1 
DA FTE:  7 (if 
Criminal) 

Court FTE:  3 
SO FTE:  1 
DC FTE:  1 

Court FTE:  3 
SO FTE:  3.5 
DC FTE:  1 
DA FTE:  7 (if 
Criminal) 

ESTIMATED COST RANGE FOR NEW COUNTY COURT AT LAW 9, 10, 11 

The courts have consulted with the other justice system stakeholders to identify potential needs 
that would result from establishment of a new County Court at Law.  Based on their feedback, and 
in consultation with the Budget Office and Human Resources, we have determined that, for a new 
County Court at Law, the startup costs for the first year, not including facilities, would range 
between $563,994.59-$2,117,932.64.  Ongoing (second-year) costs would range between 
$534,512.930-$1,966,352.01.  Details may be found below. 

Year 1 Cost Range (Start-up) Year 2 Cost Range 
Low Estimate High Estimate Low Estimate High Estimate 
$563,994.59 $2,117,932.64 $534, 512.93 $1,966,352.01 
Court FTE:  4 
SO FTE:  1 

Court FTE:  4 
SO FTE:  3.5 
CA FTE:  15  
(if Criminal, 
CPS, MH & 
PO) 

Court FTE:  4 
SO FTE:  1 

Court FTE:  4 
SO FTE:  3.5 
CA FTE:  15  
(if Criminal, 
CPS, MH, & 
PO) 
 

 
7 Id. 
8 Figures from Budget Office, full Budget Estimate at Appendix 5. 
9 Supra note 6.. 
10 The County Clerk has indicated no additional staff need.  However, funds for supply increases have been included in 
the estimated costs at the recommendation of the Budget Office. 
11 Figures from Budget Office, full Budget Estimate at Appendix 6. 



PAGE 10 

Comparator Jurisdictions 
Williamson County tends to compare favorably by population with Cameron, & Montgomery 
Counties.   It would be beneficial to consider the number of Judicial Officers each of these counties 
have, in comparison with Williamson County, in an effort to serve a like-sized population. 

DISTRICT COURT COMPARISONS12 
        
County Pop. # of 

District 
Courts 

New 
Civil 
Case 
Filings 

New 
Family 
Case 
Filings 

New 
Criminal 
Case 
Filings 

New 
Juv. 
Case 
Filings 

Total New 
Filings 

Montgomery 605,391 8 4,438 5,101 6,771 -- 16,310 
Williamson 590,551 5 2,867 2,923 3,096 202 9,088 
Cameron 423,163 7 &  

1 Multi 
County 

4,064 6,896 3,391 486 14,837 

 

COUNTY COURT AT LAW COMPARISONS13 
         
County Pop # of 

CCLs 
New 
Civil 
Case 
Filing
s 

New 
Family 
Case 
Filings 

New 
Crimin
al Case 
Filings 

New 
Juv. 
Case 
Filings 

New 
Prob. 
Guard. 
& MH 
Filings 

Total New 
Filings 

Montgomery 607,391 5 2,089 3,006 9,389 320 2,347 17,151 
Williamson 590,551 4 2,661 3,040 6,626 -- 1,688 14,015 
Cameron 423,163 5 1,842 -- 4,408 -- 938 7,188 

 
12 Figures from Tx. Office of Court Administration 
13 Id. 



PAGE 11 

Appendices 

APPENDIX 1:  OCA DISTRICT COURT WORKLOAD STUDY 

 

 

  



PAGE 12 

APPENDIX 2:  OCA COUNTY COURT AT LAW WORKLOAD STUDY 



PAGE 13 

APPENDIX 3:  POTENTIAL STATUTORY LANGUAGE FOR CREATION OF A NEW 
DISTRICT COURT 

Modeled after the statute authorizing the 425th District Court. 

Tex. Gov’t Code Sec. 24.XXX. XXXth JUDICIAL DISTRICT (WILLIAMSON COUNTY).  
The 5XXth Judicial District is composed of Williamson County.  Added by Acts 2021, 87th 
Leg., ch. XXXX, Sec. X, eff. January 1, 2023 

The XXXth Judicial District is composed of Williamson County. 

APPENDIX 4:  POTENTIAL STATUTORY LANGUAGE FOR CREATION OF A NEW 
COUNTY COURT AT LAW 

Modeled after the statute authorizing County Court at Law No. 4 

Sec. 24.2481 WILLIAMSON COUNTY.  Williamson County has the following statutory 
county courts: 

(1) County Court at Law No. 1 of Williamson County 
(2) County Court at Law No. 2 of Williamson County 
(3) County Court at Law No. 3 of Williamson County 
(4) County Court at Law No. 4 of Williamson County 
(5) County Court at Law No. 5 of Williamson County 

 

 



PAGE 14 

APPENDIX 5:  DETAILED ESTIMATE FOR NEW DISTRICT COURT COST 



PAGE 15 

APPENDIX 6:  DETAILED ESTIMATE FOR NEW COUNTY COURT AT LAW COST 

 

 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 20.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Park Donation BA Rev 01.26.21
Submitted For: Melanie Denny  Submitted By: Melanie Denny, County

Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to
acknowledge additional revenues for Park Donations.

Background
Donation includes $1,923.00 in donations for firewood and other general park donations from
various patrons.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.367403 Park Donations $1,923.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/19/2021 12:57 PM
Form Started By: Melanie Denny Started On: 01/11/2021 09:42 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/19/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 21.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Park Donation BA Exp 01.26.21
Submitted For: Melanie Denny  Submitted By: Melanie Denny, County

Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to
acknowledge additional expenditures for Park Donations.

Background
Donation includes $1,923.00 in donations for firewood and other general park donations from
various patrons.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0510.003670 Use of Donations $1,923.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/19/2021 12:57 PM
Form Started By: Melanie Denny Started On: 01/11/2021 09:43 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/19/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 22.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

4A
Submitted For: Rebecca Clemons  Submitted By: Rebecca Clemons,

Human Resources
Department: Human Resources
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving position classifications for Salary
Study Cycle 4A.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
4a.positions 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/17/2021 11:20 AM
Form Started By: Rebecca Clemons Started On: 01/15/2021 12:47 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/17/2021 



Total Departments - 9

Total Position Classifications - 70

Total Positions - 107

911 Communications

Position Grade Min Max Number of Positions

Office Admin 911 B.22 $39,554.05 $59,331.07 1

Building Maintenance

Position Grade Min Max Number of Positions

General Maint Tech I B.18 $32,473.21 $48,709.81 3

HVAC Tech I B.18 $32,473.21 $48,709.81 1

Jail Maint Tech I B.18 $32,473.21 $48,709.81 1

Jail Maintenance Tech I B.18 $32,473.21 $48,709.81 1

General Maint Tech II B.19 $34,126.47 $51,189.70 2

Jail Maintenance Tech II B.19 $34,126.47 $51,189.70 2

Access Control Tech II B.20 $35,841.78 $53,762.67 2

HVAC Tech II B.20 $35,841.78 $53,762.67 3

Office Adm Bldg B.22 $39,554.05 $59,331.07 1

Operations III B.22 $39,554.05 $59,331.07 1

HVAC Tech III B.23 $41,581.50 $62,372.26 1

Jail Maint Supervisor B.23 $41,581.50 $62,372.26 1

Jail Maint Supervisor I B.23 $41,581.50 $62,372.26 1

Access Control Spvr I B.24 $43,671.81 $65,507.72 1

Electrician Journeyman I B.24 $43,671.81 $65,507.72 1

Sr Office Admin II B.26 $48,226.35 $72,339.53 1

Contract Coordinator I B.27 $50,690.59 $76,035.89 1

HVAC Supervisor I B.28 $53,279.74 $79,919.61 1

Project Manager II B.28 $53,279.74 $79,919.61 1

Asst Facilities Director B.30 $58,832.50 $88,248.75 1

Master Electrician B.31 $61,795.58 $92,693.37 1

Asst Facilities Director II B.32 $64,946.42 $97,419.63 1

Projects Manager IV B.33 $68,221.37 $102,332.06 1

Project Manager V B.34 $71,684.36 $107,526.53 1

Sr Director of Facilities EX.1 $55,642.58 $195,827.39 1

Emergency Medical Services

Position Grade Min Max Number of Positions

PT EMS Clerk B.15 $28,012.28 $42,018.42 1

EMS Warehouse Associate B.18 $32,473.21 $48,709.81 1

Asst Office Administrator B.20 $35,841.78 $53,762.67 1

Captain, EMS Support B.32 $64,946.42 $97,419.63 1

EMS Administrative Manager B.33 $68,221.37 $102,332.06 1

Emergency Services

Position Grade Min Max Number of Positions

Asst Office Administrator B.20 $35,841.78 $53,762.67 1

Office Admin III B.29 $55,993.80 $83,990.70 1

SALARY STUDY 4A |Williamson County Human Resources

PROPOSED POSITION CLASSIFICATIONS

Page 1 of 2



Fleet Services

Position Grade Min Max Number of Positions

Warehouse Asst I B.16 $29,415.98 $44,123.98 1

Paint & Body Tech I B.20 $35,841.78 $53,762.67 1

Inventory Coordinator I B.21 $37,650.97 $56,476.46 1

Inventory Coord II B.22 $39,554.05 $59,331.07 1

Service Technician III B.22 $39,554.05 $59,331.07 5

Service Technician IV B.23 $41,581.50 $62,372.26 4

Inventory Manager B.24 $43,671.81 $65,507.72 1

Service Trainer B.25 $45,886.76 $68,830.14 1

Doc Control Spec II B.26 $48,226.35 $72,339.53 1

Shop Supervisor B.27 $50,690.59 $76,035.89 1

Dir Fleet Svcs Div I B.28 $53,279.74 $79,919.61 1

Mobile Outreach

Position Grade Min Max Number of Positions

SR Office Administrator B.25 $45,886.76 $68,830.14 1

On-Site Sewage Facilities

Position Grade Min Max Number of Positions

Admin Tech III B.20 $35,841.78 $53,762.67 2

Inspector B.21 $37,650.97 $56,476.46 1

Sanitarian I B.23 $41,581.50 $62,372.26 1

Sanitarian II B.24 $43,671.81 $65,507.72 2

Sanitarian III B.25 $45,886.76 $68,830.14 2

Sr Environmental Engineer B.40 $96,329.13 $144,493.69 1

Parks/Conservation Fund

Position Grade Min Max Number of Positions

Expo Maintenance Tech B.15 $28,012.28 $42,018.42 1

Parks Maintenance Tech (FT & PT) B.15 $28,012.28 $42,018.42 13

Tech 1 B.15 $28,012.28 $42,018.42 2

Irrigation Tech B.16 $29,415.98 $44,123.98 1

Office Spec Parks B.17 $30,911.71 $46,367.57 1

Office Specialist (FT & PT) B.17 $30,911.71 $46,367.57 4

Park Manager B.18 $32,473.21 $48,709.81 3

Parks Shop & Safety Tech B.18 $32,473.21 $48,709.81 1

Trail / Preserve Steward B.18 $32,473.21 $48,709.81 2

Events Coordinator B.22 $39,554.05 $59,331.07 1

Office Manager B.22 $39,554.05 $59,331.07 2

Senior Office Manager B.23 $41,581.50 $62,372.26 1

Asst Operations Manager B.26 $48,226.35 $72,339.53 1

Parks Supt B.27 $50,690.59 $76,035.89 1

Environmental Prgm Coord B.29 $55,993.80 $83,990.70 1

Parks Asst Dir B.30 $58,832.50 $88,248.75 1

General Manager - Expo B.33 $68,221.37 $102,332.06 1

Sr Dir Parks and Venues EX.1 $55,642.58 $195,827.39 1

Radio Communication System

Position Grade Min Max Number of Positions

Office Admin RCS B.22 $39,554.05 $59,331.07 1

Page 2 of 2



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 23.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Williamson County Benefits Committee Member Terms
Submitted For: Rebecca Clemons  Submitted By: Shelley Loughrey,

Human Resources
Department: Human Resources
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action, as recommended by the Benefits Committee to
re-appoint Terron Evertson, County Engineer of the Road and Bridge Department, new
appointments for both James Carmona, Assistant Chief of the Sheriff's Office, and Mike
Knipstein, Director of Emergency Medical Services to serve as a voting member on the
Williamson County Benefits Committee.

Background
These recommendations will now complete the seven voting members for the Benefit
Committee.

1. James Carmona’s term will conclude on 12/31/22, at which time he may request to extend to
a new three-year term.
2. Mike Knipstein’s term will conclude on 12/31/22, at which time he may request to extend to a
new three-year term.
3. Terron Evertson has requested to renew his term, for the three-year period concluding on
12/31/23.

The Benefit Committee has approved these recommendations made by the Selection
Committee at the January 20, 2021, Benefit Committee Meeting and is now recommending
Commissioners Court Approval of these appointments.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Williamson County Benefits Committee Terms 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 09:48 AM
Form Started By: Shelley Loughrey Started On: 01/21/2021 09:26 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 



 

Benefit Committee Terms – 1-26-2021 Revised Page 1 
 

Williamson County Benefits Committee Member Terms 

 

Term Non-Expiring  County Judge 

Term Non-Expiring Commissioner  

Term Expires - December 31, 2023 John Pelczar 

Term Expires - December 31, 2023 Terron Evertson 

Term Expires - December 31, 2022 James Carmona 

Term Expires - December 31, 2022 Cathy Mendoza 

Term Expires - December 31, 2022 Mike Knipstein  



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 24.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Reclassification of Animal Control Officer
Submitted For: Mike Gleason  Submitted By: Starla Hall, Sheriff
Department: Sheriff
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reclassification of vacant Animal
Control Spec. Pcn#1239.001100 to Animal Control Supervisor proposed Grade B.26 and allow
funding for reclassification from positions in Departments 560.001100 and 570.001100.

Background
The Sheriff's Office respectfully request for consideration the reclassification of the vacant
Animal Control Spec. position to a supervisor position in order for the current ACOs to have a
more direct non sworn supervisor whose duties will be the following:

1.  Review and approve reports and assigned paperwork.
2.  Completes written employee evaluations and performance plans as needed.
3.  Plans, coordinates and facilitates unit training and equipment as needed to meet goals.
4.  Coordinates with other departmental personnel to ensure exchange of information and
mission is being met.
5.  Investigates and takes appropriate enforcement action for violations of County wide animal
cruelty laws and animal regulatory laws.
6.  Responsible for planning, coordinating and scheduling the enforcement of animal control
laws and regulation.
7.  Manages employee schedules to include daily, court, vacation, sick and training.

Current vacant Animal Control Spec. Pcn#1239.01100, B.17 budget salary is $30,911.71.
Proposing to align with similar supervisory positions for pay grade B.26. We would like to
request a proposed salary of $53,048.99 ($48,226.35 base + 10%).

The Sheriff's Office respectfully request that Pcn#1395.001100 (560), Pcn#0320.001100 (570)
and Pcn#0338.001100 (570) salary budget amounts be reduced by $22,137.28 to fund this
reclassification.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Animal Control Supv. job description 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date



County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 09:39 AM
Form Started By: Starla Hall Started On: 01/20/2021 01:01 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 



Williamson County Job Description 
     

Dept:   
 

Job Title:  Animal Control Supervisor FLSA:  Exempt Pay Grade:  B.26 Effective Date: 1.2021 

 

Page 1 of 3 
 

JOB SUMMARY: 
•   Responsible for planning, coordinating and scheduling the enforcement of animal control laws and regulation 
using independent judgement to work with the public on the apprehension of stray, diseased or dangerous 
animals. 
•   Ensure the safety of both citizens and animals with the knowledge and enforcement of rabies control, animal 
welfare, shelter operation and citizen’s welfare regulations in regard to animal control 
•  Investigates and takes appropriate enforcement action for violations of County wide animal cruelty laws and 
animal regulatory laws, ranging from infractions to felonies  
•  Exercises direct supervision over assigned staff 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES: 

• Ensures public safety by enforcing Chapter 826, of the Texas Health and Safety Code.  
• Supervises and assists Animal Control staff in field operations; ensure appropriate actions are taken in 

animal control incidents 
• Comprehends, interprets, enforces, and applies state and local laws and regulations relating to animal 

control and humane treatment of animals. 
• Captures, handles, restrains, confines and transports animals using methods, techniques, and/or 

special equipment, including tranquilizing firearm. 
• Prepares work schedule and assigns duties for employees as well as approves time off requests. 
• Utilizes tact, self-restraint, judgment, and strategy in dealing with a wide variety of people, both friendly 

and hostile, in the enforcement of animal control and anti-cruelty laws.. 
• Investigates complaints of animals roaming, nuisances, cruelty, dog bites, and/or other violations of 

animal control laws and ordinances for Williamson County. 
• Issues citations for violations of animal control laws and ordinances, and testifies in court hearings. 
• Prepares detailed reports including creating records of investigations conducted, gathering 

evidence/information, and ensuring that all documentation meets the standard for potential use in court. 
• Removes and disposes of deceased animals. 
• Euthanizes suffering animals, as necessary, with understanding and compassion. 
• Maintains County vehicles and animal control equipment. 
• Maintains sufficient inventory through the purchase of supplies and equipment. 
• Responds to and assists law enforcement with requests to help with evictions, animal impounds, 

neglected, mistreated, and abandoned animals. 
• Reviews and approves reports and assigned paperwork. 
• Completes written employee evaluations and performance plans as needed. 
• Plans, coordinates and facilitates unit training and equipment as needed to meet goals. 
• Coordinates with other departmental personnel to ensure exchange of information and mission is being 

met. 
• Manages employee schedules to include daily, court, vacation, sick and training. 
• Complies with departmental and countywide policies and procedures. 
• Performs related special projects as assigned. 
• The physical demands and environmental factors listed below, as well as regular attendance, are also 

essential functions for this position. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS:   

• The work is regularly active with periods of heavy exertion, and is performed in field settings, outside in 
varying inclement weather conditions; including extreme heat, cold and wet conditions. 

• Exert physical effort to restrain animals for a substantial period of time. 



Williamson County Job Description 
     

Dept:   
 

Job Title:  Animal Control Supervisor FLSA:  Exempt Pay Grade:  B.26 Effective Date: 1.2021 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 

• Work regularly requires ability to stand, walk, use hands to finger, handle, feel or operate objects, tools 
or controls; and reach with hands and arms. 

• Occasionally required to sit, climb or balance, stoop, kneel, crouch, or crawl, talk, hear and smell. 
• Wears a utility belt that may weigh up to 10 pounds, occasionally lift and/or move more than 50 pounds. 
• Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision, distance vision, and peripheral vision; 

and the ability to adjust focus. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS:   

• Work is predominantly performed outdoors, driving and in animal shelter environments in varying 
temperatures; exposure to excessive noise (such as barking dogs); aggressive and/or dangerous 
animals; animal waste and dead animals; dust, chemicals from cleaning agents/disinfectants; and 
sewage and zoonotic diseases. 

• Frequent contact with other County employees, law enforcement agencies, judges, attorneys, courts 
and the general public. 

• Williamson County has adopted a Tobacco-Free Workplace policy. This policy prohibits smoking or use 
of any tobacco product on Williamson County premises.  

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:  
• High school graduate or equivalent. 
• Five (5) years of experience in animal control or related field. 
• Two (2) years of supervisory experience or related equivalent. 
• Have pre-rabies exposure series or to obtain the series within three (3) months of hire. 
• Animal Control Basic Certification and euthanasia certification through the Texas Department of Health 

and Human Services or must obtain within (6) months of hire. 
• Current/valid driver’s license. 
• Must maintain a satisfactory Motor Vehicle Record. 

 
 
EMPLOYMENT TESTING:  
Employment is contingent on passing post-offer, pre-employment drug testing, motor vehicle report  and 
extensive criminal background investigation. 
 
PREFERRED REQUIREMENTS:   

• Previous experience handling and caring for domestic animals in a kennel facility, veterinary clinic, 
animal hospital, or explaining rules and regulations to the public in an animal related environment or 
public service capacity. 

 
IRREGULAR HOURS:   

• Works irregular shifts, weekends and holidays. Subject to standby, callback and reassignment to any 
animal shelter as needed. 

• Essential Personnel for Emergency Situations; at the discretion of the Department Director. 
 
ORGANIZATION RELATIONSHIPS: 

• Reports directly to the Sergeant or higher rankings as directed 
• Direct Reports- Animal Control Officers  
• Number of Direct Reports- 4 

 
 



Williamson County Job Description 
     

Dept:   
 

Job Title:  Animal Control Supervisor FLSA:  Exempt Pay Grade:  B.26 Effective Date: 1.2021 

 

Page 3 of 3 
 

FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA) STATUS:   
• Exempt (Salary) 

 
SIGNATURES—REVIEW AND COMMENT: 
 
I have reviewed this job analysis and its attachments and find it to be an accurate description of 
the demands of this job. 

 
______________________________

Signature of Employee 

     
_________________

Date 

Lieutenant 
 

______________________________
Signature of Supervisor 

_________________
Date 

Commander 
 

______________________________
Signature of Division Director 

_________________
Date 

Assistant Chief 
 

______________________________
Signature of Department Head 

_________________
Date 

 
 
 
COMMENTS: 
The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work being 
performed by individuals assigned to this job. They are not intended to be an exhaustive list of all 
responsibilities, duties, and skills required of personnel so classified in this position. This job 
description is subject to change as the needs and requirements of the job change. 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 25.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

DOI Projects and Issues
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Vicky Edwards,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Receive updates on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/16/2020 01:28 PM
Form Started By: Vicky Edwards Started On: 12/16/2020 01:15 PM
Final Approval Date: 12/16/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 26.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

FY21 Corridor Budget
Submitted By: Tomika Lynce, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the allocation of $11.15 (6.15M
from General Fund budget and $5M from the Road & Bridge Budget) for the Transportation
Corridor Program and the planning of the Ronald Reagan Corridor. The funds will be allocated
into the following projects; $8.15M to P457 (LTP ROW), $600K to P385 (FM 2243 to SH 29),
$600K to P386 (FM 3405 to RM 2338), $800K to P387 (RM 2338 to SH 195) and $1M being
allocated to P388 (SH 195 to IH 35).

Background
A memo from HNTB is attached.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
FY21 Corridor Budget 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 11:01 AM
Form Started By: Tomika Lynce Started On: 01/21/2021 09:06 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 



HNTB Corporation 101 E Old Settlers Blvd Telephone (512) 744-9082 
Engineers  Architects  Planners Suite 100 www.hntb.com 
 Round Rock, TX 78664  
   
 

Ms. Tomika Lynce 

Williamson County Auditor’s Office 
Historic County Courthouse 
710 Main Street, Ste. 301  
Georgetown, TX 78626 
 
 
 

January 19, 2021 
 

 
Re:        FY 2021 Transportation Corridor Budgets  
 
 

 
Dear Ms. Lynce, 
 
Based on Commissioners Court action to fund a total of $11.15M for the Transportation Corridor 
Program ($6.15M from the General Fund budget and $5.0 million form the Road & Bridge budget), please 
find summarized below the FY21 allocation to identified corridors and the ROW preservation program. 
 
Commissioners Court General Fund: 

• Create new P#’s for Planning of Ronald Reagan Corridor (RM2243 to IH35) 
o RM 2243 to SH 29       $   600,000.00 
o FM 3405 to RM 2338       $   600,000.00 
o RM 2338 to SH 195       $   800,000.00 
o SH 195 to IH 35        $1,000,000.00 

• P457 LTP Right-of-Way (ROW)       $3,150,000.00 
Subtotal $6,150,000.00 

 
Road & Bridge: 

• P457 LTP Right-of-Way (ROW)       $5,000,000.00 
 
 

If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
Thank you. 
 
 
 
Michael J. Weaver  
 
 
Cc: Pam Navarrette, Williamson County Auditor’s Office 
 Robert B. Daigh, P.E., Williamson County Senior Director of Infrastructure 
 J. Terron Evertson, P.E., Williamson County Engineer 



Page 2 of 2 

 Charlie Crossfield, Sheets & Crossfield, LP 
 Christen Eschberger, P.E., HNTB 
 Kate Wilder, P.E., HNTB 
 Marie Walters, HNTB 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 27.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Interlocal Agreement
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an Interlocal Agreement with the City of
Georgetown Regarding the City/County Participation in the Design, Construction and
Maintenance of Ronald Reagan Blvd. Intersection Improvements.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Ronald Reagan ILA 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 11:14 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 01/21/2021 10:58 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 





















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 28.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Executive Session
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.072
Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a
detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with third person.)
A.    Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
   Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of property owned
by third parties
    a)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop. 
    b)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 176 at RM 2243
    c)    Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 278
    d)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
    e)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for Seward Junction SE and SW Loop. 
    f)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for SH 29 @ DB Wood.
    g)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 366. 
    h)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for N. Mays.
    i)     Discuss Somerset Road Districts No. 3 & 4 reimbursements for acquisition &
construction of Reagan Blvd.
    j)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 111.
    k)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for Corridor H
    l)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for future SH 29 corridor. 
    m)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for the expansion of Ronald Reagan at IH 35.
    n)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor C.
    o)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor F.
    p)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor D.
    q)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for SE Loop/Corridor A. 
    r)     Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Reagan extension.
    s)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for the Brushy Creek Trail Project. 
    t)     Discuss the acquisition of real property in conjunction with WCCF for potential
parkland/bird habitat.
    u)    Discuss the acquisition of drainage/detention easements for real property North of
WMCO Juvenile Detention Center
    v)    Discuss the acquisition of the MKT Right of Way
    B.    Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
   Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property owned by
the County
    a)    Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and interests.
    b)    Potential governmental uses for 8th Street downtown parking lot 
    c)    Discuss possible uses of property owned by Williamson County on Main St. between 3rd



and 4th Streets. (formerly occupied by WCCHD)
    d)    Discuss property usage at Longhorn Junction
    e)    Discuss the sale of excess ROW at San Gabriel Parkway and Mel Mathis Ave. 
    f)     Discuss county owned property located at Ed Schmidt Boulevard Hutto, Texas
C.    Consider intervention in lawsuit regarding de-listing of Bone Cave harvestman. 
D.    Discuss the possible placement of agricultural-related monuments at the Williamson
County Exposition Center with the participation of third parties.
E.    Discuss the Williamson County Reimbursement Agreement for Construction of San Gabriel
Blvd. and New Hope Road with the City of Leander and TIRZ #1

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 11:19 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 01/21/2021 11:12 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 29.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Economic Development
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government
Code, Section 551.087:
    a)    Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
    b)    Wolf Lakes
    c)    Flint Hill Resources-Taylor Fuel Storage Terminal on CR 366
    d)    Project Deliver
    e)    Project Advantage
    f)     Project Cedar
    g)    Project Expansion
    h)    Project Arcos
    i)     Project Woods
    j)     Project Co-Op
    k)    Project Liberty
    l)     Project Long Haul
    m)   Project Bon Jovi
    n)    Project Crystal
    o)    Project Link
    p)    Project Winston

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 01/21/2021 11:21 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 01/21/2021 11:12 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/21/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 32.        
Meeting Date: 01/26/2021  

Resolution
Submitted For: Bill Gravell  Submitted By: Andrea Schiele, County

Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Resolution to adopt and support the Texas
Opioid Abatement Fund Council and Settlement Allocation Term Sheet.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Resolution 
Texas Term Sheet 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. (Originator) Andrea Schiele 01/14/2021 09:41 AM
Form Started By: Andrea Schiele Started On: 01/14/2021 09:31 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/14/2021 



 

 1 

RESOLUTION 

STATE OF TEXAS  

COUNTY OF  WILLIAMSON 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, at a regular meeting of the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, 

Texas, held on the,    26th day of January, 2021, on motion made by 

___________________________Commissioner of  Precinct ________and seconded by 

______________________ Commissioner of Precinct __, the following Resolution was adopted: 

 

WHEREAS, Williamson County obtained information indicating that certain drug companies and 

their corporate affiliates, parents, subsidiaries, and such other defendants as may be added to the 

litigation (collectively, "Defendants") have engaged in fraudulent and/or reckless marketing and/or 

distribution of opioids that have resulted in addictions and overdoses; and 

 

WHEREAS, these actions, conduct and misconduct have resulted in significant financial costs to 

the County; and 

 

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2020, the State of Texas, through the Office of the Attorney General, and 

a negotiation group for Texas political subdivisions entered into an Agreement entitled Texas 

Opioid Abatement Fund Council and Settlement Allocation Term Sheet (hereafter, the Texas Term 

Sheet) approving the allocation of any and all opioid settlement funds within the State of Texas. 

The Texas Term Sheet is attached hereto as Exhibit “1”; and  

 

WHEREAS, Special Counsel and the State of Texas have recommended that the Williamson 

County Commissioners Court support the adoption and approval the Texas Term Sheet in its 

entirety. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the Commissioners Court of Williamson 

County: 

 

1. Support the adoption and approval the Texas Term Sheet in its entirety; and 



 

 2 

  

2. Finds as follows: 

 

 

a. There is a substantial need for repayment of opioid-related expenditures and 

payment to abate opioid-related harms in and about Williamson County; and 

 

b. The County Commissioners Court supports in its entirety the STATE OF TEXAS 

AND TEXAS POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS’ OPIOID ABATEMENT FUND COUNCIL AND 

SETTLEMENT ALLOCATION TERM SHEET. The County Commissioners Court understands 

that the purpose of this Texas Term Sheet is to permit collaboration between the State of Texas 

and Political Subdivisions to explore and potentially effectuate resolution of the Opioid Litigation 

against Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants as defined therein. We also understand that an 

additional purpose is to create an effective means of distributing any potential settlement funds 

obtained under this Texas Term Sheet between the State of Texas and Political Subdivisions in a 

manner and means that would promote an effective and meaningful use of the funds in abating the 

opioid epidemic in this County and throughout Texas. 

 

DONE IN OPEN COURT on this the 26th day of January, 2021. 

       

_______________________ 

Valerie Covey 

District 3 

_______________________ 

Russ Boles 

District 4 

 

_______________________ 

Bill Gravell  

County Judge 

 

_______________________ 

Terry Cook 

District 1 

 

_______________________ 

Cynthia Long 

District 2 

 

   



 

 1 

TEXAS OPIOID ABATEMENT FUND COUNCIL AND  
SETTLEMENT ALLOCATION TERM SHEET 

 

WHEREAS, the people of the State of Texas and its communities have been harmed 

through the National and Statewide epidemic caused by licit and illicit opioid use 

and distribution within the State of Texas; and now,  

WHEREAS, the State of Texas, though its elected representatives and counsel, 

including the Honorable Ken Paxton, Attorney General of the State of Texas, and 

certain Political Subdivisions, through their elected representatives and counsel, are 

separately engaged in litigation seeking to hold those entities in the supply chain 

accountable for the damage caused; and now,  

WHEREAS, the State of Texas, through its Attorney General and its Political 

Subdivisions, share a common desire to abate and alleviate the impacts of the 

epidemic throughout the State of Texas; and now, 

THEREFORE, the State of Texas and its Political Subdivisions, subject to 

compleWing foUmal docXmenWV effecWXaWing Whe PaUWieV¶ agUeemenWV, enWeU inWo WhiV 

SWaWe of Te[aV and Te[aV PoliWical SXbdiYiVionV¶ Opioid Abatement Fund Council 

and Settlement Allocation Term Sheet (Texas Term Sheet) relating to the allocation 

and use of the proceeds of any Settlements as described.  

A. Definitions  

 As used in this Texas Term Sheet:  



 

 2 

1. ³The SWaWe´ Vhall mean Whe SWaWe of Texas acting through its Attorney 

General.  

2. ³Political Subdivision(V)´ Vhall mean any Texas municipality and county. 

3. ³The PaUWieV´ Vhall mean Whe SWaWe of Texas, the Political Subdivisions, and 

Whe PlainWiffV¶ Steering Committee and Liaison Counsel (PSC) in the Texas 

Opioid MDL, In Re: Texas Opioid Litigation, MDL No. 2018-63587, in 

the 152d District Court of Harris County, Texas.  

4. ³LiWigaWing PoliWical SXbdiYiVion´ meanV a Political Subdivision that filed 

suit in the state courts of the State of Texas prior to the Execution Date of 

this Agreement, whether or not such case was transferred to Texas Opioid 

MDL, or removed to federal court. 

5. ³NaWional FXnd´ Vhall mean an\ naWional fund established for the benefit 

of the Texas Political Subdivisions.  In no event shall any National Fund 

be used to create federal jurisdiction, equitable or otherwise, over the 

Texas Political Subdivisions or those similarly situated state-court litigants 

who are included in the state coalition, nor shall the National Fund require 

participating in a class action or signing a participation agreement as part 

of the criteria for participating in the National Fund.   

6. ³NegoWiaWing CommiWWee´ Vhall mean a three-member group comprising 

four representatives for each of (1) the State; (2) the PSC; and (3) Te[aV¶ 



 

 3 

Political Subdivisions (collecWiYel\, ³MembeUV´). The SWaWe Vhall be 

represented by the Texas Attorney General or his designees. The PSC shall 

be represented by attorneys Mikal Watts, Jeffrey Simon, Dara Hegar, Dan 

Downey, or their designees. Te[aV¶ PoliWical SXbdiYiVionV shall be 

represented by Clay Jenkins (Dallas County Judge), TeUUence O¶RoXUke 

(Special Assistant County Attorney, Harris County), Nelson Wolff (Bexar 

County Judge), and Nathaniel Moran (Smith County Judge) or their 

designees. 

7. ³SeWWlemenW´ Vhall mean Whe negoWiaWed UeVolXWion of legal oU eTXiWable 

claims against a Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant that includes the 

State and Political Subdivisions.  

8. ³Opioid FXndV´ Vhall mean moneWaU\ amoXnWV obWained WhUoXgh a 

Settlement as defined in this Texas Term Sheet.  

8. ³AppUoYed PXUpoVe(V)´ Vhall mean those uses identified in Exhibit A 

hereto.  

9. ³PhaUmaceXWical SXppl\ Chain´ Vhall mean Whe pUoceVV and channelV 

through which opioids or opioids products are manufactured, marketed, 

promoted, distributed, or dispensed.  



 

 4 

10. ³PhaUmaceXWical SXppl\ Chain PaUWicipanW´ Vhall mean any entity that 

engages in or has engaged in the manufacture, marketing, promotion, 

distribution, or dispensing of an opioid analgesic.  

11.  ³Te[aV Opioid CoXncil´ Vhall mean Whe CoXncil deVcUibed in E[hibiW A 

hereto, which has the purpose of ensuring the funds recovered by Texas 

(through the joint actions of the Attorney General and the Texas Political 

Subdivisions) are allocated fairly and spent to remediate the opioid crisis 

in Texas, using efficient and cost-effective methods that are directed to the 

hardest hit regions in Texas while also ensuring that all Texans benefit 

from prevention and recovery efforts.   

B. Allocation of Settlement Proceeds  

1. All Opioid Funds distributed in Texas shall be divided with 15% going to 

Political Subdivisions (³Subdivision ShaUe´), 70% to the Texas Opioid 

Abatement Fund through the Texas Opioid Council (Texas Abatement 

Fund Share) identified and described on Exhibits A and C hereto, and 15% 

to the Office of the Texas Attorney General as Counsel for the State of 

Texas (³SWaWe ShaUe´). Out of the Texas Opioid Abatement Fund, 

reasonable expenses up to 1% shall be paid to the Texas Comptroller for 

the administration of the Texas Opioid Council pursuant to the Opioid 



 

 5 

Abatement Fund (Texas Settlement) Opioid Council Agreement, Exhibit 

A hereto. 

2. The Subdivisions Share shall be allocated in accordance with the division 

of proceeds on Exhibit B hereto. 

3. The Texas Abatement Fund Share shall be allocated to the Opioid Council 

to be apportioned in accordance with the guidelines of Exhibit A, and 

Exhibit C hereto.  

4. In the event a Subdivision merges, dissolves, or ceases to exist, the 

allocation percentage for that Subdivision shall be redistributed as directed 

by the settlement document, and if not specified, equitably based on the 

composition of the successor Subdivision. If a Subdivision for any reason 

is excluded from a specific settlement, the allocation percentage for that 

Subdivision shall be redistributed as directed by the settlement document, 

and if not specified, equitably among the participating Subdivisions.  

5. Funds obtained from parties unrelated to the Litigation, via grant, bequest, 

gift or the like, separate and distinct from the Litigation, may be directed 

to the Texas Opioid Council and disbursed as set forth below.  

6. The Subdivision share shall be initially deposited and paid in cash directly 

to the Subdivision under the authority and guidance of the Texas MDL 

Court, who shall direct any Settlement funds to be held in trust in a 



 

 6 

segregated account to benefit the Subdivisions and to be promptly 

distributed as set forth herein and in accordance with Exhibit B.  

7. Nothing in this Texas Term Sheet should alter or change any Subdivision¶V 

rights to pursue its own claim. Rather, the intent of this Texas Term Sheet 

is to join all parties to disburse settlement proceeds from one or more 

defendants to all parties participating in that settlement within Texas.  

8. Opioid Funds from the Texas Abatement Fund Share shall be directed to 

the Texas Opioid Council and used in accordance with the guidelines as 

set out on Exhibit A hereto, and the Texas Abatement Fund Share shall be 

distributed to the Texas Opioid Council under the authority and guidance 

of the Texas MDL Court, consistent with Exhibits A and C, and the by-

laws of the Texas Opioid Council documents and disbursed as set forth 

therein, including without limitation all abatement funds and the 1% 

holdback for expenses. 

9. The State of Texas and the Political Subdivisions understand and   

acknowledge that additional steps may need to be undertaken to assist the 

Texas Opioid Council in its mission, at a predictable level of funding, 

regardless of external factors.  

C. Payment of Counsel and Litigation Expenses  



 

 7 

1. Any Master Settlement Agreement settlement will govern the payment of 

fees and litigation expenses to the Parties. The Parties agree to direct 

control of any Texas Political SXbdiYiVion feeV and e[penVeV Wo Whe ³Te[aV 

Opioid Fee and E[penVe FXnd,´ Zhich Vhall be allocaWed and diVWUibXWed 

by the Texas MDL Court, In re: Texas Opioid Litigation, MDL No. 2018-

63587, in the 152nd District Court of Harris County, Texas, and with the 

intent to compensate all counsel for Texas Political Subdivisions who have 

not chosen to otherwise seek compensation for fees and expenses from any 

federal MDL common benefit fund.  

2. The Parties agree that no portion of the State of Texas 15% allocation 

share from any settlement shall be administered through the National 

Fund, the Texas MDL Court, or Texas Opioid Fee and Expense Fund, 

but shall be directed for payment to the State of Texas by the State of 

Texas. 

3. The State of Texas and the Texas Political Subdivisions, and their 

respective attorneys, agree that all fees ± whether contingent, hourly, 

fixed or otherwise ± owed by the Texas Political Subdivisions shall be 

paid out of the National Fund or as otherwise provided for herein to the 

Texas Opioid Fee and Expense Fund to be distributed by the 152nd 



 

 8 

District Court of Harris County, Texas pursuant to its past and future 

orders.  

4. From any opioid-related settlements with McKesson, Cardinal Health, 

ABDC, and Johnson & Johnson, and for any future opioid-related 

settlements negotiated, in whole or in part, by the Negotiating 

Committee with any other Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant, 

the funds to be deposited in the Texas Opioid Fee and Expense Fund 

shall be 9.3925% of the combined Texas Political Subdivision and 

Texas Abatement Fund  portions of each payment (annual or otherwise) 

to the State of Texas for that settlement, plus expenses from the 

National Fund, and shall be sought by Texas Political Subdivision 

Counsel initially through the National Fund.   The Texas Political 

Subdivisions¶ percentage share of fees and expenses from the National 

Fund shall be directed to the Texas Opioid Fee and Expense Fund in 

the Texas MDL, as soon as is practical, for allocation and distribution 

in accordance with the guidelines herein. 

5. If the National Fund share to the Texas Political Subdivisions is 

insufficient to cover the guaranteed 9.3925%, plus expenses from the 

National Fund, per subsection 4, immediately supra, or if payment from 

the National Fund is not received within 12  months after the date the 



 

 9 

first payment is made by the Defendants pursuant to the settlement, then 

the Texas Political Subdivisions shall recover up to 12.5% of the Texas 

Political Subdivision Share to make up any difference. 

6. If the National Fund and the Texas Political Subdivision share are 

insufficient to cover the guaranteed 9.3925%, plus expenses from the 

National Fund, or if payment from the National Fund is not received 

within 12 months after the date the first payment is made by the 

Defendants pursuant to the settlement, then the Texas Political 

Subdivisions shall recover up to 8.75%  of the Abatement Fund Share 

to make up any difference.  In no event shall the Texas Political 

Subdivision share exceed 9.3925% of the combined Texas Political 

Subdivision and Texas Abatement Fund portions of any settlement, 

plus expenses from the National Fund.  In the event that any payment 

is received from the National Fund such that the total amount in fees 

and expenses exceeds 9.3925%, the Texas Political Subdivisions shall 

return any amounts received greater than 9.3925% of the combined 

Texas Political Subdivision and Texas Abatement Fund portions to 

those respective Funds. 



 

 10 

7. For each settlement utilizing a National Fund, the Texas Political 

Subdivisions need only make one attempt at seeking fees and expenses 

there.  

8. The total amount of the Texas Opioid Fee and Expense Fund shall be 

reduced proportionally, according to the agreed upon allocation of the 

Texas Subdivision Fund, for any Texas litigating Political Subdivision 

that (1) fails to enter the settlement; and (2) was filed in Texas state 

court, and was transferred to the Texas MDL (or removed before or 

during transfer to the Texas MDL) as of the execution date of this 

Agreement.  

D. The Texas Opioid Council and Texas Abatement Fund   

The Texas Opioid Council and Texas Abatement Fund is described in detail 

at Exhibit A, incorporated herein by reference.  

E. Settlement Negotiations  

1. The State and Negotiating Committee agree to inform each other in 

advance of any negotiations relating to a Texas-only settlement with a 

Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant that includes both the State and 

its Political Subdivisions and shall provide each other the opportunity to 

participate in all such negotiations. Any Texas-only Settlement agreed to 

with the State and Negotiating Committee shall be subject to the approval 



 

 11 

of a majority of litigating Political Subdivisions. The Parties further agree 

to keep each other reasonably informed of all other global settlement 

negotiations with Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants and to include 

the Negotiating Committee or designees.  Neither this provision, nor any 

other, shall be construed to state or imply that either the State or the 

Negotiating Committee is unauthorized to engage in settlement 

negotiations with Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants without prior 

consent or contemporaneous participation of the other, or that either party 

is entitled to participate as an active or direct participant in settlement 

negotiations with the other.  RaWheU, Zhile Whe SWaWe¶V and NegoWiaWion 

CommiWWee¶V effoUWV Wo achieYe ZoUWhZhile VeWWlemenWV aUe Wo be 

collaborative, incremental stages need not be so. 

2. Any Master Settlement Agreement (MSA) shall be subject to the approval 

and jurisdiction of the Texas MDL Court.  

3. As this is a Texas-specific effort, the Committee shall be Chaired by the 

Attorney General. However, the Attorney General, or his designees, shall 

endeavor to coordinate any publicity or other efforts to speak publicly with 

the other Committee Members.  

4. The State of Texas, the Texas MDL Plaintiff¶s Steering Committee 

representatives, or the Political Subdivision representatives may withdraw 



 

 12 

from coordinated Settlement discussions detailed in this Section upon 10 

business da\V¶ ZUiWWen noWice Wo Whe Uemaining CommiWWee MembeUV and 

counsel for any affected Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant. The 

withdrawal of any Member releases the remaining Committee Members 

from the restrictions and obligations in this Section.  

5. The obligaWionV in WhiV SecWion Vhall noW affecW an\ PaUW\¶V UighW Wo pUoceed 

with trial or, within 30 days of the date upon which a trial involving that 

PaUW\¶V claimV againVW a Vpecific PhaUmaceXWical SXppl\ Chain PaUWicipanW 

is scheduled to begin, reach a case specific resolution with that particular 

Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant. 

F. Amendments 

The Parties agree to make such amendments as necessary to implement the 

intent of this agreement. 

Acknowledgment of Agreement 

 We, the undersigned, have participated in the drafting of the above Texas 

Term Sheet, including consideration based on comments solicited from Political 

Subdivisions. This document has been collaboratively drafted to maintain all 

individual claims while allowing the State and its Political Subdivisions to cooperate 

in exploring all possible means of resolution. Nothing in this agreement binds any 

party to any specific outcome. Any resolution under this document will require 



 

 13 

acceptance by the State of Texas and a majority of the Litigating Political 

Subdivisions. 

 We, the undersigned, hereby accept the STATE OF TEXAS AND TEXAS 

POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS¶ OPIOID ABATEMENT FUND COUNCIL AND 

SETTLEMENT ALLOCATION TERM SHEET. We understand that the purpose of 

this Texas Term Sheet is to permit collaboration between the State of Texas and 

Political Subdivisions to explore and potentially effectuate earlier resolution of the 

Opioid Litigation against Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants. We also 

understand that an additional purpose is to create an effective means of distributing 

any potential settlement funds obtained under this Texas Term Sheet between the 

State of Texas and Political Subdivisions in a manner and means that would promote 

an effective and meaningful use of the funds in abating the opioid epidemic 

throughout Texas.   

 

 



��



�
�

EXHIBIT�A�



 

1 
 

Opioid Abatement Fund (Texas) Settlement 

Opioid Council 

As part of the settlement agreement and upon its execution, the parties will form the Texas Opioid 
Council (Council) to establish the framework that ensures the funds recovered by Texas (through 
the joint actions of the Attorney General and the VWaWe¶V political subdivisions) are allocated fairly 
and spent to remediate the opioid crisis in Texas, using efficient and cost-effective methods that 
are directed to the hardest hit regions in Texas while also ensuring that all Texans benefit from 
prevention and recovery efforts.  

I. Structure 

The Council will be responsible for the processes and procedures governing the spending of the 
funds held in the Texas Abatement Fund, which will be approximately 70% of all funds obtained 
through settlement and/or litigation of the claims asserted by the State and its subdivisions in the 
investigations and litigation related to the manufacturing, marketing, distribution, and sale of 
opioids and related pharmaceuticals. 

Money paid into the abatement fund will be held by an independent administrator, who shall be 
responsible for the ministerial task of releasing funds solely as authorized below by the Council, 
and accounting for all payments to and from the fund. 

The Council will be formed when a court of competent jurisdiction enters an order settling the 
matter, including any order of a bankruptcy court. The Council¶V members must be appointed 
within sixty (60) days of the date the order is entered. 

A. Membership 

The Council shall be comprised of the following thirteen (13) members: 

1. Statewide Members. 

Six members appointed by the Governor and Attorney General WR UeSUeVeQW Whe SWaWe¶V 
interest in opioid abatement. The statewide members are appointed as follows: 

a. The Governor shall appoint three (3) members who are licensed health 
professionals with significant experience in opioid interventions; 

b. The Attorney General shall appoint three (3) members who are licensed 
professionals with significant experience in opioid incidences; and 

c. The Governor will appoint the Chair of the Council as a non-voting member.  
The Chair may only cast a vote in the event there is a tie of the membership. 
 

2. Regional Members.  

Six (6) members appointed by the SWaWe¶V SROiWicaO subdivisions to represent their 
designated Te[aV HeaOWh aQd HXPaQ SeUYiceV CRPPiVViRQ ³HHSC´ Regional Healthcare 



 

2 
 

Partnership (Regions) to ensure dedicated regional, urban, and rural representation on the 
Council. The regional appointees must be from either academia or the medical profession 
with significant experience in opioid interventions. The regional members are appointed as 
follows: 

a. One member representing Regions 9 and 10 (Dallas Ft-Worth); 
b. One member representing Region 3 (Houston); 
c. One member representing Regions 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 19 (West Texas); 
d. One member representing Regions 6, 7, 8, 16 (Austin-San Antonio); 
e. One member representing Regions 1, 2, 17, 18 (East Texas); and 
f. One member representing Regions 4, 5, 20 (South Texas). 

 
B. Terms 

All members of the Council are appointed to serve staggered two-year terms, with the terms of 
members expiring February 1 of each year. A member may serve no more than two consecutive 
terms, for a total of four consecutive years. For the first term, four (4) members (two (2) statewide 
and two (2) for the subdivisions) will serve a three-year term. A vacancy on the Council shall be 
filled for the unexpired term in the same manner as the original appointment. The Governor will 
appoint the Chair of the Council who will not vote on Council business unless there is a tie vote, 
and the subdivisions will appoint a Vice-Chair voting member from one of the regional members.  

C. Governance 
 
1. Administration 

 
The Council is attached administratively to the Comptroller.  The Council is an 
independent, quasi-governmental agency because it is responsible for the statewide 
distribution of the abatement settlement funds.  The Council is exempt from the following 
statutes: 
 

a. Chapter 316 of the Government Code (Appropriations); 
b. Chapter 322 of the Government Code (Legislative Budget Board); 
c. Chapter 325 of the Government Code (Sunset); 
d. Chapter 783 of the Government Code (Uniform Grants and Contract 

Management); 
e. Chapter 2001 of the Government Code (Administrative Procedure); 
f. Chapter 2052 of the Government Code (State Agency Reports and Publications); 
g. Chapter 2261 of the Government Code (State Contracting Standards and 

Oversight);  
h. Chapter 2262 of the Government Code (Statewide Contract Management); 



 

3 
 

i. Chapter 262 of the Local Government Code (Purchasing and Contracting 
Authority of Counties); and 

j. Chapter 271 of the Local Government Code (Purchasing and Contracting 
Authority of Municipalities, Counties, and Certain Other Local Governments). 

 
2. Transparency 
 
The Council will abide by state laws relating to open meetings and public information, 
including Chapters 551 and 552 of the Texas Government Code.  

i. The Council shall hold at least four regular meetings each year. The Council may 
hold additional meetings on the request of the Chair or on the written request of 
three members of the council. All meetings shall be open to the public, and public 
notice of meetings shall be given as required by state law. 

ii. The Council may convene in a closed, non-public meeting: 
a. If the Commission must discuss: 

1. Negotiation of contract awards; and 
2. Matters specifically exempted from disclosure by federal and 

state statutes. 
b. All minutes and documents of a closed meeting shall remain under seal, 

subject to release only order of a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 

3. Authority 
 
The Council does not have rulemaking authority.  The terms of each Judgment, Master 
Settlement Agreement, or any Bankruptcy Settlement for Texas control the authority of 
the Council and the Council may not stray outside the bounds of the authority and power 
vested by such settlements. Should the Council require legal assistance in determining 
their authority, the Council may direct the executive director to seek legal advice from the 
Attorney General to clarify the issue. 
 

D. Operation and Expenses 

The independent administrator will set aside up to one (1) percent of the settlement funds for the 
administration of the Council for reasonable costs and expenses of operating the foregoing duties, 
including educational activities.  

1. Executive Director 

The Comptroller will employ the executive director of the Council and other personnel as 
necessary to administer the duties of the Council and carry out the functions of the Council.  
The executive director must have at least 10 years of experience in government or public 
administration and is classified as a Director V/B30 XQdeU Whe SWaWe AXdiWRU¶V SWaWe 
Classification.   The Comptroller will pay the salaries of the Council employees from the 



 

4 
 

one (1) percent of the settlement funds set aside for the administration of the Council. The 
Comptroller will request funds from the Texas Abatement Fund Point of Contact.  

2. Travel Reimbursement 

A person appointed to the Council is entitled to reimbursement for the travel expenses 
incurred in attending Council duties.  A member of the Council may be reimbursed for 
actual expenses for meals, lodging, transportation, and incidental expenses in accordance 
with travel rates set by the federal General Services Administration. 

 
II. Duties/Roles 

It is the duty of the Council to determine and approve the opioid abatement strategies and funding 
awards.   

A. Approved Abatement Strategies 

The Council will develop the approved Texas list of abatement strategies based on but not limited 
to the existing national list of opioid abatement strategies (see attached Appendix A) for 
implementing the Texas Abatement Fund.  

1. The Council shall only approve strategies which are evidence-informed strategies. 
2. The Texas list of abatement strategies must be approved by majority vote.  The majority 

vote must include a majority from both sides of the statewide members and regional 
members in order to be approved, e.g., at least four (4) of six (6) members on each side.  

 
B. Texas Abatement Fund Point of Contact   

The Council will determine a single point of contact called the Abatement Fund Point of Contact 
(POC) to be established as the sole entity authorized to receive requests for funds and approve 
expenditures in Texas and order the release of funds from the Texas Abatement Fund by the 
independent administrator.  The POC may be an independent third party selected by the Council 
with expertise in banking or financial management.  The POC will manage the Opioid Council 
Bank Account (Account).  Upon a vote, the Council will direct the POC to contact the independent 
administrator to release funds to the Account.  The Account is outside the State Treasury and not 
managed by any state or local officials. The POC is responsible for payments to the qualified 
entities selected by the Council for abatement fund awards.  The POC will submit a monthly 
financial statement on the Account to the Council. 

C. Auditor 

An independent auditor appointed by the Council will perform an audit on the Account on an 
annual basis and report its findings, if any, to the Council. 

 
D. Funding Allocation 



 

5 
 

The Council is the sole decision-maker on the funding allocation process of the abatement funds. 
The Council will develop the application and award process based on the parameters outlined 
below.  An entity seeking funds from the Council must apply for funds; no funds will be awarded 
without an application. The executive director and personnel may assist the Council in gathering 
and compiling the applications for consideration; however, the Council members are the sole 
decision-makers of awards and funding determination.  The Council will use the following 
processes to award funds:  

1. Statewide Funds. The Council will consider, adopt and approve the allocation 
methodology attached as Exhibit C, based upon population health data and prevalence 
of opioid incidences, at the CounciO¶V iQiWiaO PeeWiQg. Adoption of such methodology 
will allow each Region to customize the approved abatement strategies to fit its 
communities¶ needs. The statewide regional funds will account for seventy-five (75) 
percent of the total overall funds, less the one (1) percent administrative expense 
described herein. 
 

2. Targeted Funds. Each Region shall reserve  twenty-five (25) percent of the overall 
funds, for targeted interventions in the specific Region as identified by opioid incidence 
data. The Council must approve on an annual basis the uses for the targeted  abatement 
strategies and applications available to every Region, including education and outreach 
programs. Each Region without approved uses for the targeted funds from the Council, 
based upon a greater percentage of opioid incidents compared to its population, is 
subject to transfer of all or a portion of the targeted funds for that Region for uses based 
XSRQ aOO RegiRQV¶ targeted funding needs as approved by the Council on an annual basis.  
 

3. Annual Allocation. Statewide regional funds and targeted funds will be allocated on an 
annual basis.  If a Region lapses its funds, the funds will be reallocated based on all 
RegiRQV¶ fXQdiQg QeedV. 
 

E. Appeal Process 

The Council will establish an appeal process to permit the applicants for funding (state or 
subdivisions) to challenge decisions by the Council-designated point of contact on requests for 
funds or expenditures.  

1. To challenge a decision by the designated point of contact, the State or a subdivision 
must file an appeal with the Council within thirty (30) days of the decision. The Council 
then has thirty (30) days to consider and rule on the appeal.   

2. If the Council denies the appeal, the party may file an appeal with the state district court 
of record where the final opioid judgment or Master Settlement Agreement is filed. The 
Texas Rules of Civil Procedure and Rules of Evidence will govern these proceedings. 
The Council may request representation from the Attorney General in these proceedings. 



 

6 
 

In making its determination, the state district court shall apply the same clear error 
standards contained herein that the Council must follow when rendering its decision.  

3. The state district court will make the final decision and the decision is not appealable.  
4. Challenges will be limited and subject to penalty if abused.  
5. AWWRUQe\V¶ feeV and costs are not recoverable in these appeals.  

 

F. Education   

The Council may determine that a percentage of the funds in the Abatement Fund from the targeted 
funds be used to develop an education and outreach program to provide materials on the 
consequences of opioid drug use, prevention and interventions. Any material developed will 
include online resources and toolkits for communities.  



 
 

APPENDIX A 



	

	 1	

O P I O I D   A B A T E M E N T   S T R A T E G I E S 
 
 

 

PART ONE:  TREATMENT 
 

 
 

A. TREAT OPIOID USE DISORDER (OUD) 
 

1. Expand availability of treatment for Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) and any co-
occurring Substance Use Disorder or Mental Health (SUD/MH) issues, including 
all forms of Medication-Assisted Treatment (MAT) approved by the U.S. Food 
and Drug Administration. 

 
2. Support and reimburse services that include the full American Society of 

Addiction Medicine (ASAM) continuum of care for OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH issues, including but not limited to: 

a. Medication-Assisted Treatment (MAT); 

b. Recruiting MAT Providers and Training; 

c. Abstinence-based treatment; 

d. Treatment, recovery, or other services provided by states, subdivisions, 
community health centers; non-for-profit providers; or for-profit 
providers; or 

e. Treatment by providers that focus on OUD treatment as well as 
treatment by providers that offer OUD treatment along with treatment 
for other SUD/MH issues; 

f. Recovery high schools 
 

3. Expand telehealth to increase access to treatment for OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH issues, including MAT, as well as counseling, psychiatric support, and 
other treatment and recovery support services. 

 
4. “Support	the	establishment	of	the	hub-and-spoke	model	of	OUD	treatment	in	

all	counties	where	possible,	and	across	county	lines	where	necessary.”	
 

5. Improve oversight of Opioid Treatment Programs (OTPs) to assure evidence-
informed, promising, or emerging practices such as adequate methadone dosing. 

 
6. Support mobile intervention, treatment, and recovery services, offered by 

qualified professionals, for persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
issues or persons who have experienced an opioid overdose. 

 



	

	 2	

7. Treatment of mental health trauma issues resulting from the traumatic 
experiences of the opioid user (e.g., violence, sexual assault, human trafficking, 
or adverse childhood experiences) and family members (e.g., surviving family 
members after an overdose or overdose fatality), and training of health care 
personnel to identify and address such mental health trauma. 

 
8. Support detoxification (detox) services for persons with OUD and any co-

occurring SUD/MH issues, including medical detox, referral to treatment, or 
connections to other services or supports. 

 
9. Training on MAT for health care providers, students, or other supporting 

professionals, such as peer recovery coaches or recovery outreach specialists. 
 

10. Support workforce development for addiction professionals who work with 
persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH issues. 

 
11. Fellowships for addiction medicine specialists for direct patient care, instructors, 

and clinical research for treatments. 
 

12. Scholarships and supports for certified addiction counselors and other mental 
and behavioral health providers involved in addressing OUD any co-occurring 
SUD/MH issues, including but not limited to training, scholarships, fellowships, 
loan repayment programs, or other incentives for providers to work in rural or 
underserved areas. 

 
13. Provide training for clinicians to obtain a waiver under the federal Drug 

Addiction Treatment Act of 2000 (DATA 2000) to prescribe MAT for OUD, and 
provide technical assistance and professional support to clinicians who have 
obtained a DATA 2000 waiver. 

 
14. Dissemination of web-based training curricula, such as the American Academy of 

Addiction Psychiatry’s Provider Clinical Support Service-Opioids web-based 
training curriculum and motivational interviewing. 

 
15. Development and dissemination of new curricula, such as the American 

Academy of Addiction Psychiatry’s Provider Clinical Support Service for 
Medication-Assisted Treatment. 
 

16. Support State or local learning collaboratives so that physicians involved in the 
care and treatment of those with OUD are kept abreast of the latest 
developments in evidence-based treatment. 
 

17. Support State or local drop-in centers where those with OUD may go to seek 
assistance with recovery when they are ready to begin the process. 
 



	

	 3	

18. Support creation of teams in hospitals and emergency rooms to work with those 
with OUD and direct them to appropriate facilities for evidence-based treatment 
of OUD, including MAT. 

 
B. SUPPORT PEOPLE IN TREATMENT AND RECOVERY 

 
1. Provide the full continuum of care of recovery services for OUD and any co-

occurring SUD/MH issues, including supportive housing, residential treatment, 
medical detox services, peer support services and counseling, community 
navigators, case management, and connections to community-based services. 

 
2. Provide counseling, peer-support, recovery case management and residential 

treatment with access to medications for those who need it to persons with OUD 
and any co-occurring SUD/MH issues. 
 

3. Provide access to housing for people with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
issues, including supportive housing, housing assistance programs, or training for 
housing providers.   

 
4. Provide community support services to assist in deinstitutionalizing persons with 

OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH issues 
 

5. Support or expand peer-recovery centers, which may include support groups, 
social events, computer access, or other services for persons with OUD and any 
co-occurring SUD/MH issues. 

 
6. Provide or support transportation to treatment or recovery programs or services 

for persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH issues. 
 

7. Provide employment training or educational services for persons in treatment 
for or recovery from OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH issues. 

 
8. Identify successful recovery programs such as physician, pilot, and college 

recovery programs, and provide support and technical assistance to increase the 
number and capacity of high-quality programs to help those in recovery. 
 

9. Engage non-profits, the faith community, and community coalitions to support 
people in treatment and recovery and to support family members in their efforts 
to manage the opioid user in the family. 

 
10. Training and development of procedures for government staff to appropriately 

interact and provide social and other services to current and recovering opioid 
users, including reducing stigma. 

 
11. Support stigma reduction efforts regarding treatment and support for persons 

with OUD, including reducing the stigma on effective treatment. 



	

	 4	

 
C. CONNECT PEOPLE WHO NEED HELP TO THE HELP THEY NEED (CONNECTIONS TO CARE) 

 
1. Ensure that health care providers are screening for OUD and other risk factors 

and know how to appropriately counsel and treat (or refer if necessary) a patient 
for OUD treatment. 

 
2. Fund Screening, Brief Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT) programs 

and appropriate training for all health care providers  to identify those with 
potential problems in order to reduce the transition from use to disorders. 

 
3. Provide training and long-term implementation of SBIRT in key systems (health, 

schools, colleges, criminal justice, and probation), with a focus on youth and 
young adults when transition from misuse to opioid disorder is common. 

 
4. Purchase automated versions of SBIRT and support ongoing costs of the 

technology. 
 

5. Training for emergency room personnel treating opioid overdose patients on 
post-discharge planning, including community referrals for MAT, recovery case 
management or support services. 
 

6. Support hospital programs that transition persons with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH issues, or persons who have experienced an opioid overdose, 
into community treatment or recovery services through a bridge clinic or similar 
approach. 
 

7. Support crisis stabilization centers that serve as an alternative to hospital 
emergency departments for persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
issues or persons that have experienced an opioid overdose. 

 
8. Support the work of Emergency Medical Systems, including peer support 

specialists, to connect individuals to treatment or other appropriate services 
following an opioid overdose or other opioid-related adverse event. 

 
9. Provide funding for peer support specialists or recovery coaches in emergency 

departments, detox facilities, recovery centers, recovery housing, or similar 
settings; offer services, supports, or connections to care to persons with OUD 
and any co-occurring SUD/MH issues or to persons who have experienced an 
opioid overdose. 

 
10. Provide funding for peer navigators, recovery coaches, care coordinators, or care 

managers that offer assistance to persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH issues or to persons who have experienced on opioid overdose. 

 



	

	 5	

11. Create or support school-based contacts that parents can engage with to seek 
immediate treatment services for their child; and support prevention, 
intervention, treatment, and recovery programs focused on young people. 

 
12. Develop and support best practices on addressing OUD in the workplace. 

 
13. Support assistance programs for health care providers with OUD. 

 
14. Engage non-profits and the faith community as a system to support outreach for 

treatment. 
 

15. Support centralized call centers that provide information and connections to 
appropriate services and supports for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH issues.   

 
16. Develop or support a National Treatment Availability Clearinghouse – a 

multistate/nationally accessible database whereby health care providers can list 
locations for currently available in-patient and out-patient OUD treatment 
services that are accessible on a real-time basis by persons who seek treatment.  

 
D. ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF CRIMINAL-JUSTICE-INVOLVED PERSONS AND RURAL COUNTY 

UNATTENDED DEATHS 
 

1. Address the needs of persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH issues 
who are involved or are at risk of becoming involved in the criminal justice 
system. 
 

2. Support pre-arrest or pre-arraignment diversion and deflection strategies for 
persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH issues, including established 
strategies such as: 

a. Self-referral strategies such as the Angel Programs or the Police Assisted 
Addiction Recovery Initiative (PAARI); 

b. Active outreach strategies such as the Drug Abuse Response Team (DART) 
model; 

c. “Naloxone Plus” strategies, which work to ensure that individuals who 
have received naloxone to reverse the effects of an overdose are then 
linked to treatment programs or other appropriate services; 

d. Officer prevention strategies, such as the Law Enforcement Assisted 
Diversion (LEAD) model; or 

e. Officer intervention strategies. 
 

3.  Support pre-trial services that connect individuals with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH issues to evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, and 
related services. 



	

	 6	

 
4. Implementing or supporting pilot programs for the voluntary testing of 

individuals who enter local (city or county) criminal justice facilities, and for 
those identified with OUD, offer induction of evidence-based treatment, 
including MAT. 
 

5. Support treatment and recovery courts for persons with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH issues, but only if they provide referrals to evidence-informed 
treatment, including MAT. 

  
6. Provide evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, recovery support, harm 

reduction, or other appropriate services to individuals with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH issues who are incarcerated in jail or prison. 
 

7. Provide evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, recovery support, harm 
reduction, or other appropriate services to individuals with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH issues who are leaving jail or prison have recently left jail or 
prison, are on probation or parole, are under community corrections 
supervision, or are in re-entry programs or facilities. 
 

8. Support critical time interventions (CTI), particularly for individuals living with 
dual-diagnosis OUD/serious mental illness, and services for individuals who face 
immediate risks and service needs and risks upon release from correctional 
settings. 
 

9. Provide training on best practices for addressing the needs of criminal-justice-
involved persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH issues to law 
enforcement, correctional, or judicial personnel or to providers of treatment, 
recovery, harm reduction, case management, or other services offered in 
connection with any of the strategies described in this section; 

 
10. Provide training to Justices of the Peace on unattended deaths involving drug 

use and reimbursement of transfer to and costs or expenses of a Medical 
Examiner to enhance better death understanding, statistics and recording on 
overdose involved deaths. 

 
E. ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF PREGNANT OR PARENTING WOMEN AND THEIR FAMILIES, 

INCLUDING BABIES WITH NEONATAL ABSTINENCE SYNDROME 
 

1. Support evidence-informed, promising, or emerging treatment, including MAT, 
recovery services and supports, and prevention services for pregnant women – 
or women who could become pregnant – who have OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH issues. 

 
2. Fund Screening, Brief Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT) programs 

and training for all health care providers  to identify women with potential opioid 



	

	 7	

use disorder so that they might be given the option of referral to a proper 
treatment program.  
 

3. Training for obstetricians or other healthcare personnel that work with pregnant 
women and their families regarding treatment of OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH issues. 
 

4. Other measures to address Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome, including 
prevention, education, and treatment of OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
issues.   
 

5. Provide training to health care providers that work with pregnant or parenting 
women on best practices for compliance with federal requirements that children 
born with Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome get referred to appropriate services 
and receive a plan of safe care. 
 

6. Child and family support for parenting women with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH issues. 
 

7. Enhanced family supports and childcare services for parents with OUD and any 
co-occurring SUD/MH issues. 

 
8. Provide enhanced support for children and family members suffering trauma as 

a result of addiction in the family; and offer trauma-informed behavioral health 
treatment for adverse childhood events. 

 
9. Offer home-based wrap-around services to persons with OUD and any co-

occurring SUD/MH issues, including but not limited to parent skills training. 
 

10. Support for Children’s Services – Fund additional positions and services, 
including supportive housing and other residential services, relating to children 
being removed from the home and/or placed in foster care due to custodial 
opioid use. 
 

11. Provision of education and psychosocial support services to children born with 
Neonatal Abstinance Syndrome. 
 

12. Support family and baby reunification in recovery housing. 
 
 

 

PART TWO:  PREVENTION 
 

 
 



	

	 8	

F. PREVENT OVER-PRESCRIBING AND ENSURE APPROPRIATE PRESCRIBING AND 
DISPENSING OF OPIOIDS 
 

1. Trainingand continuing education of health care providers regarding safe and 
responsible opioid prescribing, dosing, and tapering patients off opioids. 

 
2. Academic counter-detailing to educate prescribers on appropriate opioid 

prescribing. 
 

3. Continuing Medical Education (CME) on appropriate prescribing of opioids. 
 

4. Support for non-opioid pain treatment alternatives, including training providers 
to offer or refer to multi-modal, evidence-informed treatment of pain. 

 
5. Support enhancements or improvements to Prescription Drug Monitoring 

Programs (PDMPs), including but not limited to improvements that: 

a. Increase the number of prescribers using PDMPs; 

b. Improve point-of-care decision-making by increasing the quantity, 
quality, or format of data available to prescribers using PDMPs, by 
improving the interface that prescribers use to access PDMP data, or 
both; or 

c. Enable states to use PDMP data in support of surveillance or intervention 
strategies. 

 
6. Development and implementation of a national PDMP – Fund development of a 

multistate/national PDMP that permits information sharing while providing 
appropriate safeguards on sharing of private health information, including but 
not limited to: 

a. Integration of PDMP data with electronic health records, overdose 
episodes, and decision support tools for health care providers relating to 
OUD. 

b. Ensuring PDMPs incorporate available overdose/naloxone deployment 
data, including the United States Department of Transportation’s 
Emergency Medical Technician overdose database. 

 
7. Increase electronic prescribing to prevent diversion or forgery 

 
8. Educate Dispensers on appropriate opioid dispensing. 

 
9.  Develop and train physicians on algorithm for proper evidence-based 

pain management. 
 



	

	 9	

10.  Fund State or local hotline so health care providers with questions 

regarding proper pain management or opioid prescribing can call and have an 

expert answer their questions. 

 

11. Support for health information systems consistent with State regulations. 

 

G. PREVENT MISUSE OF OPIOIDS 
 

1. Corrective advertising or affirmative public education campaigns. 

 

2. Public education relating to drug disposal. 

 

3. Drug take-back disposal or destruction programs. 

 

4. Fund community anti-drug coalitions that engage in drug prevention efforts. 

 

5. Support community coalitions in implementing evidence-informed prevention, 

such as reduced social access and physical access, stigma reduction – including 

staffing, educational campaigns, support for people in treatment or recovery, or 

training of coalitions in evidence-informed implementation, including the 

Strategic Prevention Framework developed by the U.S. Substance Abuse and 

Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA). 

 

6. Engage non-profits and faith community as a system to support prevention. 

 

7. School and community education programs and campaigns for students, 

families, school employees, school athletic programs, parent-teacher and 

student associations, and others. 

 

8. School-based or youth-focused programs or strategies that have demonstrated 

effectiveness in preventing drug misuse and seem likely to be effective in 

preventing the uptake and use of opioids. 

 

9. Support evidence-informed programs or curricula to address mental health 

needs of young people who may be at risk of misusing opioids or other drugs, 

including emotional modulation and resilience skills. 

 

10. Support greater access to mental health services and supports for young people, 

including services and supports provided by school nurses or other school staff, 

to address mental health needs in young people that (when not properly 

addressed) increase the risk of opioid or other drug misuse. 

 

11. Support local law enforcement task forces aimed at disrupting and eliminating 

the manufacturers and distributers of illegal opioids. 

 
H. PREVENT OVERDOSE DEATHS AND OTHER HARMS (HARM REDUCTION) 



	

	 10	

 
1. Increase availability and distribution of naloxone and other drugs that treat 

overdoses for first responders, overdose patients, opioid users, families and 
friends of opioid users, schools, community navigators and outreach workers, 
drug offenders upon release from jail/prison, or other members of the general 
public. 

 
2. Public health entities provide free naloxone and training to anyone in the 

community. 
 

3. Training and education regarding naloxone and other drugs that treat overdoses 
for first responders, overdose patients, patients taking opioids, families, schools, 
and other members of the general public. 
 

4. Enable school nurses and other school staff to respond to opioid overdoses, and 
provide them with naloxone, training, and support. 

 
5. Expand, improve, or develop data tracking software and applications for 

overdoses/naloxone revivals. 
 

6. Public education relating to emergency responses to overdoses. 
 

7. Public education relating to immunity and Good Samaritan laws. 
 

8. Educate first responders regarding the existence and operation of immunity and 
Good Samaritan laws. 

 
9. Syringe service programs and other evidence-informed programs to reduce 

harms associated with intravenous drug use, including supplies, staffing, space, 
peer support services, referrals to treatment, connections to care, and the full 
range of harm reduction and treatment services provided by these programs. 
 

10. Expand access to testing and treatment for infectious diseases such as HIV and 
Hepatitis C resulting from intravenous opioid use. 
 

11. Support mobile units that offer or provide referrals to harm reduction services, 
treatment, recovery supports, health care, or other appropriate services to 
persons that use opioids or persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
issues. 

 
12. Provide training in harm reduction strategies to health care providers, students, 

peer recovery coaches, recovery outreach specialists, or other professionals that 
provide care to persons who use opioids or persons with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH issues. 

 
 



	

	 11	

 

PART THREE:  OTHER STRATEGIES 
 

 
 

I. FIRST RESPONDERS 
 

1. Law enforcement expenditures relating to the opioid epidemic. 
 

2. Educate first responders regarding appropriate practices and precautions when 
dealing with fentanyl or other drugs. 

 
J. LEADERSHIP, PLANNING AND COORDINATION 

 
1. Community regional planning to identify goals for reducing harms related to the 

opioid epidemic, to identify areas and populations with the greatest needs for 
treatment intervention services, or to support other strategies to abate the 
opioid epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy list. 

 
2. A government dashboard to track key opioid-related indicators and supports as 

identified through collaborative community processes. 
 

3. Invest in infrastructure or staffing at government and not-for-profit agencies to 
support collaborative, cross-system coordination with the purpose of preventing 
overprescribing, opioid misuse, or opioid overdoses, treating those with OUD 
and any co-occurring SUD/MH issues, supporting them in treatment or recovery, 
connecting them to care, or implementing other strategies to abate the opioid 
epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy list. 

 
K. TRAINING 

 
1. Provide funding for staff training or networking programs and services to 

improve the capability of government, community, and not-for-profit entities to 
abate the opioid crisis. 

 
2. Support infrastructure and staffing for collaborative cross-system coordination 

to prevent opioid misuse, prevent overdoses, and treat those with OUD and any 
co-occurring SUD/MH issues, or implement other strategies to abate the opioid 
epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy list (e.g., health care, 
primary care, pharmacies, PDMPs, etc.); 

 
3. Medical Provider education; 

 
4. Media Campaigns 

 
L. RESEARCH 



	

	 12	

 
1. Support opioid abatement research, including but not limited to: 

a. Monitoring, surveillance, and evaluation of programs and strategies 
described in this opioid abatement strategy list. 

b. Research non-opioid treatment of chronic pain. 

c. Research on improved service delivery for modalities such as SBIRT that 
demonstrate promising but mixed results in populations vulnerable to 
opioid use disorders. 

d. Research on novel harm reduction and prevention efforts such as the 
provision of fentanyl test strips. 

e. Research on innovative supply-side enforcement efforts such as 
improved detection of mail-based delivery of synthetic opioids. 

f. Expanded research on swift/certain/fair models to reduce and deter 
opioid misuse within criminal justice populations that build upon 
promising approaches used to address other substances (e.g. Hawaii 
HOPE and Dakota 24/7). 

g. Research on expanded modalities such as prescription methadone that 
can expand access to MAT; 

h. Research on the effectiveness of Recovery High Schools and other 
educational interventions; 

i. Research to track abatement progress in urban and rural areas. 

 

M. MISCELLANEOUS 

 

1. It is the intent of the Parties to the Texas Term Sheet in adopting the 
Abatement Strategies herein that the Council be guided by the allocation 
methodology in Exhibit C to the Texas Term Sheet in approving Regional 
strategies and that the Council consider the proportional share of the 
individual members in each Region when allocating the funds for approved 
abatement strategies within each Region. 
 

2. It is the intent of the Parties to the Texas Term Sheet in adopting the 
Abatement Strategies herein that the Opioid Council have the flexibility to 
add, change or alter the Abatement Strategies herein as necessary to fulfill 
the intent that opioid abatement strategies best meet the needs of the 
Regions, subdivisions and intent of this document.  

 



�
�

EXHIBIT�B�



Exhibit B: Municipal Area Allocations: 15% of Total ($150 million) 
(County numbers refer to distribution to the county governments after payment to cities within 

county borders has been made. Minimum distribution to each county is $1000.)  
Municipal Area Allocation Municipal Area Allocation 
Abbott $688 Lakeport $463 
Abernathy $110 Lakeside $4,474 
Abilene $563,818 Lakeside City $222 
Ackerly $21 Lakeview $427 
Addison $58,094 Lakeway $31,657 
Adrian $181 Lakewood Village $557 
Agua Dulce $43 Lamar County $141,598 
Alamo $22,121 Lamb County $50,681 
Alamo Heights $28,198 Lamesa $29,656 
Alba $3,196 Lampasas $28,211 
Albany $180 Lampasas County $42,818 
Aledo $331 Lancaster $90,653 
Alice $71,291 Laredo $763,174 
Allen $315,081 Latexo $124 
Alma $1,107 Lavaca County $45,973 
Alpine $29,686 Lavon $7,435 
Alto $3,767 Lawn $58 
Alton $11,540 League City $302,418 
Alvarado $29,029 Leakey $256 
Alvin $113,962 Leander $88,641 
Alvord $358 Leary $797 
Amarillo $987,661 Lee County $30,457 
Ames $5,571 Lefors $159 
Amherst $22 Leon County $67,393 
Anahuac $542 Leon Valley $23,258 
Anderson $19 Leona $883 
Anderson County $268,763 Leonard $8,505 
Andrews $18,983 Leroy $176 
Andrews County $37,606 Levelland $46,848 
Angelina County $229,956 Lewisville $382,094 
Angleton $62,791 Lexington $2,318 
Angus $331 Liberty $72,343 
Anna $9,075 Liberty County $531,212 
Annetta $5,956 Liberty Hill $2,780 
Annetta North $34 Limestone County $135,684 

(Table continues on multiple pages below) 



   Page 2 

Annetta South $602 Lincoln Park $677 
Annona $738 Lindale $24,202 
Anson $5,134 Linden $3,661 
Anthony $4,514 Lindsay $1,228 
Anton $444 Lipan $44 
Appleby $1,551 Lipscomb County $10,132 
Aquilla $208 Little Elm $69,326 
Aransas County $266,512 Little River-Academy $798 
Aransas Pass $57,813 Littlefield $7,678 
Archer City $10,554 Live Oak $32,740 
Archer County $45,534 Live Oak County $39,716 
Arcola $7,290 Liverpool $1,435 
Argyle $11,406 Livingston $73,165 
Arlington $735,803 Llano $23,121 
Armstrong County $974 Llano County $115,647 
Arp $2,009 Lockhart $49,050 
Asherton $112 Lockney $3,301 
Aspermont $9 Log Cabin $1,960 
Atascosa County $176,903 Lometa $1,176 
Athens $105,942 Lone Oak $1,705 
Atlanta $30,995 Lone Star $8,283 
Aubrey $15,141 Longview $482,254 
Aurora $1,849 Loraine $188 
Austin County $76,030 Lorena $3,390 
Austin $4,877,716 Lorenzo $11,358 
Austwell $109 Los Fresnos $11,185 
Avery $138 Los Indios $159 
Avinger $1,115 Los Ybanez $0 
Azle $32,213 Lott $1,516 
Bailey $950 Lovelady $249 
Bailey County $15,377 Loving County $1,000 
Bailey's Prairie $5,604 Lowry Crossing $783 
Baird $2,802 Lubbock $319,867 
Balch Springs $27,358 Lubbock County $1,379,719 
Balcones Heights $23,811 Lucas $5,266 
Ballinger $9,172 Lueders $508 
Balmorhea $63 Lufkin $281,592 
Bandera $2,893 Luling $29,421 
Bandera County $86,815 Lumberton $36,609 
Bangs $3,050 Lyford $3,071 



   Page 3 

Bardwell $362 Lynn County $6,275 
Barry $200 Lytle $7,223 
Barstow $61 Mabank $19,443 
Bartlett $3,374 Madison County $49,492 
Bartonville $8,887 Madisonville $11,458 
Bastrop $46,320 Magnolia $26,031 
Bastrop County $343,960 Malakoff $12,614 
Bay City $57,912 Malone $439 
Baylor County $29,832 Manor $12,499 
Bayou Vista $6,240 Mansfield $150,788 
Bayside $242 Manvel $12,305 
Baytown $216,066 Marble Falls $37,039 
Bayview $41 Marfa $65 
Beach City $12,505 Marietta $338 
Bear Creek $906 Marion $275 
Beasley $130 Marion County $54,728 
Beaumont $683,010 Marlin $21,634 
Beckville $1,247 Marquez $1,322 
Bedford $94,314 Marshall $108,371 
Bedias $3,475 Mart $928 
Bee Cave $12,863 Martin County $10,862 
Bee County $97,844 Martindale $2,437 
Beeville $24,027 Mason $777 
Bell County $650,748 Mason County $3,134 
Bellaire $41,264 Matador $1,203 
Bellevue $56 Matagorda County $135,239 
Bellmead $14,487 Mathis $15,720 
Bells $1,891 Maud $423 
Bellville $7,488 Maverick County $115,919 
Belton $72,680 Maypearl $986 
Benavides $152 McAllen $364,424 
Benbrook $43,919 McCamey $542 
Benjamin $951 McGregor $9,155 
Berryville $14,379 McKinney $450,383 
Bertram $182 McLean $14 
Beverly Hills $4,336 McLendon-Chisholm $411 
Bevil Oaks $549 Mcculloch County $20,021 
Bexar County $7,007,152 Mclennan County $529,641 
Big Lake $547 Mcmullen County $1,000 
Big Sandy $4,579 Meadow $1,121 



   Page 4 

Big Spring $189,928 Meadowlakes $905 
Big Wells $236 Meadows Place $18,148 
Bishop $8,213 Medina County $48,355 
Bishop Hills $323 Megargel $611 
Blackwell $31 Melissa $15,381 
Blanco $6,191 Melvin $345 
Blanco County $49,223 Memphis $7,203 
Blanket $147 Menard $991 
Bloomburg $1,010 Menard County $14,717 
Blooming Grove $352 Mercedes $21,441 
Blossom $198 Meridian $3,546 
Blue Mound $2,888 Merkel $10,117 
Blue Ridge $1,345 Mertens $239 
Blum $1,622 Mertzon $29 
Boerne $45,576 Mesquite $310,709 
Bogata $3,649 Mexia $21,096 
Bonham $100,909 Miami $455 
Bonney $2,510 Midland County $279,927 
Booker $1,036 Midland $521,849 
Borden County $1,000 Midlothian $95,799 
Borger $69,680 Midway $78 
Bosque County $71,073 Milam County $97,386 
Bovina $173 Milano $904 
Bowie $83,620 Mildred $286 
Bowie County $233,190 Miles $93 
Boyd $6,953 Milford $6,177 
Brackettville $8 Miller's Cove $97 
Brady $27,480 Millican $417 
Brazoria $11,537 Mills County $19,931 
Brazoria County $1,021,090 Millsap $34 
Brazos Bend $462 Mineola $48,719 
Brazos Country $902 Mineral Wells $92,061 
Brazos County $342,087 Mingus $189 
Breckenridge $23,976 Mission $124,768 
Bremond $5,554 Missouri City $209,633 
Brenham $54,750 Mitchell County $20,850 
Brewster County $60,087 Mobeetie $52 
Briarcliff $572 Mobile City $2,034 
Briaroaks $57 Monahans $5,849 
Bridge City $80,756 Mont Belvieu $19,669 



   Page 5 

Bridgeport $33,301 Montague County $94,796 
Briscoe County $977 Montgomery $1,884 
Broaddus $31 Montgomery County $2,700,911 
Bronte $99 Moody $828 
Brooks County $20,710 Moore County $40,627 
Brookshire $6,406 Moore Station $772 
Brookside Village $1,110 Moran $50 
Brown County $193,417 Morgan $605 
Browndell $152 Morgan's Point $3,105 
Brownfield $14,452 Morgan's Point Resort $8,024 
Brownsboro $3,176 Morris County $53,328 
Brownsville $425,057 Morton $167 
Brownwood $166,572 Motley County $3,344 
Bruceville-Eddy $1,692 Moulton $999 
Bryan $246,897 Mount Calm $605 
Bryson $1,228 Mount Enterprise $1,832 
Buckholts $1,113 Mount Pleasant $65,684 
Buda $10,784 Mount Vernon $6,049 
Buffalo $11,866 Mountain City $1,548 
Buffalo Gap $88 Muenster $4,656 
Buffalo Springs $188 Muleshoe $4,910 
Bullard $7,487 Mullin $384 
Bulverde $14,436 Munday $2,047 
Bunker Hill Village $472 Murchison $2,302 
Burkburnett $37,844 Murphy $51,893 
Burke $1,114 Mustang $7 
Burleson County $70,244 Mustang Ridge $2,462 
Burleson $151,779 Nacogdoches $205,992 
Burnet $33,345 Nacogdoches County $198,583 
Burnet County $189,829 Naples $4,224 
Burton $937 Nash $7,999 
Byers $77 Nassau Bay $11,247 
Bynum $380 Natalia $625 
Cactus $4,779 Navarro $334 
Caddo Mills $43 Navarro County $103,513 
Caldwell $18,245 Navasota $37,676 
Caldwell County $86,413 Nazareth $124 
Calhoun County $127,926 Nederland $44,585 
Callahan County $12,894 Needville $10,341 
Callisburg $101 Nevada $237 



   Page 6 

Calvert $772 New Berlin $4 
Cameron $11,091 New Boston $6,953 
Cameron County $537,026 New Braunfels $307,313 
Camp County $28,851 New Chapel Hill $288 
Camp Wood $422 New Deal $338 
Campbell $1,116 New Fairview $2,334 
Canadian $1,090 New Home $9 
Caney City $2,005 New Hope $1,024 
Canton $56,734 New London $4,129 
Canyon $26,251 New Summerfield $442 
Carbon $620 New Waverly $2,562 
Carl's Corner $48 Newark $520 
Carmine $385 Newcastle $914 
Carrizo Springs $1,671 Newton $6,102 
Carrollton $310,255 Newton County $158,006 
Carson County $29,493 Neylandville $163 
Carthage $18,927 Niederwald $16 
Cashion Community $322 Nixon $2,283 
Cass County $93,155 Nocona $16,536 
Castle Hills $12,780 Nolan County $50,262 
Castro County $4,420 Nolanville $4,247 
Castroville $4,525 Nome $391 
Cedar Hill $70,127 Noonday $226 
Cedar Park $185,567 Nordheim $697 
Celeste $1,280 Normangee $6,192 
Celina $18,283 North Cleveland $105 
Center $58,838 North Richland Hills $146,419 
Centerville $385 Northlake $8,905 
Chambers County $153,188 Novice $76 
Chandler $17,364 Nueces County $1,367,932 
Channing $2 O'Brien $76 
Charlotte $4,257 O'Donnell $27 
Cherokee County $156,612 Oak Grove $2,769 
Chester $1,174 Oak Leaf $612 
Chico $2,928 Oak Point $9,011 
Childress $37,916 Oak Ridge $358 
Childress County $50,582 Oak Ridge North $33,512 
Chillicothe $172 Oak Valley $7 
China $522 Oakwood $148 
China Grove $598 Ochiltree County $15,476 



   Page 7 

Chireno $1,568 Odem $7,420 
Christine $354 Odessa $559,163 
Cibolo $13,690 Oglesby $29 
Cisco $7,218 Old River-Winfree $21,653 
Clarendon $114 Oldham County $10,318 
Clarksville $20,891 Olmos Park $9,801 
Clarksville City $54 Olney $6,088 
Claude $26 Olton $1,197 
Clay County $72,050 Omaha $4,185 
Clear Lake Shores $6,682 Onalaska $31,654 
Cleburne $228,184 Opdyke West $479 
Cleveland $96,897 Orange $311,339 
Clifton $9,939 Orange County $689,818 
Clint $375 Orange Grove $1,677 
Clute $51,350 Orchard $867 
Clyde $17,287 Ore City $6,806 
Coahoma $2,291 Overton $7,900 
Cochran County $3,389 Ovilla $13,391 
Cockrell Hill $512 Oyster Creek $9,633 
Coffee City $1,087 Paducah $125 
Coke County $5,522 Paint Rock $141 
Coldspring $447 Palacios $14,036 
Coleman $5,442 Palestine $178,009 
Coleman County $4,164 Palisades $240 
College Station $258,147 Palm Valley $1,918 
Colleyville $46,049 Palmer $12,666 
Collin County $1,266,721 Palmhurst $4,660 
Collingsworth County $19,234 Palmview $7,577 
Collinsville $1,831 Palo Pinto County $124,621 
Colmesneil $2,211 Pampa $67,227 
Colorado City $8,405 Panhandle $9,536 
Colorado County $49,084 Panola County $80,699 
Columbus $6,867 Panorama Village $1,292 
Comal County $396,142 Pantego $12,898 
Comanche $16,503 Paradise $52 
Comanche County $50,964 Paris $201,180 
Combes $1,710 Parker $10,307 
Combine $1,892 Parker County $476,254 
Commerce $33,869 Parmer County $15,866 
Como $415 Pasadena $356,536 



   Page 8 

Concho County $3,859 Pattison $1,148 
Conroe $466,671 Patton Village $9,268 
Converse $27,693 Payne Springs $1,770 
Cooke County $200,451 Pearland $333,752 
Cool $731 Pearsall $11,570 
Coolidge $243 Pecan Gap $719 
Cooper $362 Pecan Hill $229 
Coppell $86,593 Pecos $7,622 
Copper Canyon $489 Pecos County $46,997 
Copperas Cove $133,492 Pelican Bay $1,199 
Corinth $75,298 Penelope $415 
Corpus Christi $1,812,707 Penitas $312 
Corral City $143 Perryton $23,364 
Corrigan $21,318 Petersburg $1,691 
Corsicana $87,310 Petrolia $17 
Coryell County $123,659 Petronila $5 
Cottle County $875 Pflugerville $86,408 
Cottonwood $289 Pharr $144,721 
Cottonwood Shores $1,203 Pilot Point $11,613 
Cotulla $1,251 Pine Forest $3,894 
Coupland $266 Pine Island $3,141 
Cove $387 Pinehurst $32,671 
Covington $519 Pineland $4,138 
Coyote Flats $1,472 Piney Point Village $15,738 
Crandall $12,094 Pittsburg $20,526 
Crane $10,599 Plains $129 
Crane County $26,146 Plainview $60,298 
Cranfills Gap $128 Plano $1,151,608 
Crawford $383 Pleak $270 
Creedmoor $16 Pleasant Valley $308 
Cresson $1,086 Pleasanton $29,011 
Crockett $23,403 Plum Grove $258 
Crockett County $18,210 Point $1,519 
Crosby County $18,388 Point Blank $355 
Crosbyton $1,498 Point Comfort $447 
Cross Plains $4,877 Point Venture $588 
Cross Roads $244 Polk County $370,831 
Cross Timber $542 Ponder $1,282 
Crowell $6,335 Port Aransas $31,022 
Crowley $22,345 Port Arthur $367,945 



   Page 9 

Crystal City $19,412 Port Isabel $9,802 
Cuero $24,689 Port Lavaca $11,752 
Culberson County $789 Port Neches $38,849 
Cumby $5,320 Portland $76,517 
Cuney $606 Post $2,332 
Cushing $1,120 Post Oak Bend City $1,034 
Cut and Shoot $2,141 Poteet $6,767 
DISH $19 Poth $3,974 
Daingerfield $12,476 Potter County $371,701 
Daisetta $5,370 Pottsboro $12,302 
Dalhart $11,609 Powell $110 
Dallam County $21,686 Poynor $1,180 
Dallas County $8,538,291 Prairie View $7,600 
Dallas $2,999,902 Premont $3,321 
Dalworthington Gardens $6,060 Presidio $148 
Danbury $4,231 Presidio County $787 
Darrouzett $101 Primera $2,958 
Dawson $600 Princeton $19,245 
Dawson County $46,911 Progreso $8,072 
Dayton $47,122 Progreso Lakes $39 
Dayton Lakes $38 Prosper $22,770 
De Kalb $1,035 Providence Village $508 
De Leon $8,218 Putnam $14 
De Witt County $68,895 Pyote $22 
DeCordova $13,778 Quanah $207 
DeSoto $72,400 Queen City $4,837 
Deaf Smith County $34,532 Quinlan $7,304 
Dean $141 Quintana $492 
Decatur $56,669 Quitaque $8 
Deer Park $49,388 Quitman $15,619 
Del Rio $59,056 Rains County $53,190 
Dell City $15 Ralls $3,967 
Delta County $30,584 Rancho Viejo $3,836 
Denison $210,426 Randall County $278,126 
Denton $458,334 Ranger $12,186 
Denton County $1,132,298 Rankin $1,613 
Denver City $2,104 Ransom Canyon $930 
Deport $42 Ravenna $685 
Detroit $965 Raymondville $7,466 
Devers $191 Reagan County $25,215 



   Page 10 

Devine $4,354 Real County $5,073 
Diboll $25,533 Red Lick $23 
Dickens $71 Red Oak $26,843 
Dickens County $1,873 Red River County $29,306 
Dickinson $83,683 Redwater $1,058 
Dilley $2,633 Reeves County $103,350 
Dimmit County $33,294 Refugio $8,839 
Dimmitt $1,012 Refugio County $46,216 
Dodd City $1,211 Reklaw $1,136 
Dodson $447 Reno $3,791 
Domino $196 Reno $11,164 
Donley County $22,370 Retreat $52 
Donna $13,798 Rhome $12,285 
Dorchester $231 Rice $1,972 
Double Oak $4,765 Richardson $260,315 
Douglassville $574 Richland $210 
Dripping Springs $811 Richland Hills $24,438 
Driscoll $39 Richland Springs $2,234 
Dublin $14,478 Richmond $77,606 
Dumas $26,229 Richwood $12,112 
Duncanville $58,328 Riesel $1,118 
Duval County $49,109 Rio Bravo $8,548 
Eagle Lake $4,882 Rio Grande City $25,947 
Eagle Pass $56,005 Rio Hondo $3,550 
Early $14,838 Rio Vista $4,419 
Earth $242 Rising Star $1,933 
East Bernard $5,554 River Oaks $11,917 
East Mountain $2,494 Riverside $858 
East Tawakoni $2,723 Roanoke $275 
Eastland $15,896 Roaring Springs $461 
Eastland County $52,275 Robert Lee $85 
Easton $329 Roberts County $547 
Ector $1,108 Robertson County $44,642 
Ector County $480,000 Robinson $18,002 
Edcouch $4,101 Robstown $40,154 
Eden $497 Roby $428 
Edgecliff Village $2,232 Rochester $674 
Edgewood $13,154 Rockdale $20,973 
Edinburg $120,884 Rockport $54,253 
Edmonson $136 Rocksprings $25 



   Page 11 

Edna $18,194 Rockwall $114,308 
Edom $2,149 Rockwall County $168,820 
Edwards County $975 Rocky Mound $280 
El Campo $31,700 Rogers $3,818 
El Cenizo $621 Rollingwood $4,754 
El Lago $5,604 Roma $16,629 
El Paso $1,224,371 Roman Forest $8,610 
El Paso County $2,592,121 Ropesville $2,122 
Eldorado $50 Roscoe $778 
Electra $15,716 Rose City $4,012 
Elgin $26,284 Rose Hill Acres $2,311 
Elkhart $301 Rosebud $1,489 
Ellis County $315,372 Rosenberg $126,593 
Elmendorf $746 Ross $147 
Elsa $7,720 Rosser $549 
Emhouse $83 Rotan $1,493 
Emory $3,878 Round Mountain $454 
Enchanted Oaks $1,299 Round Rock $475,992 
Encinal $1,515 Round Top $140 
Ennis $81,839 Rowlett $99,963 
Erath County $102,616 Roxton $47 
Escobares $40 Royse City $23,494 
Estelline $909 Rule $800 
Euless $92,824 Runaway Bay $6,931 
Eureka $334 Runge $255 
Eustace $2,089 Runnels County $33,831 
Evant $2,068 Rusk $17,991 
Everman $7,692 Rusk County $151,390 
Fair Oaks Ranch $8,077 Sabinal $1,811 
Fairchilds $81 Sabine County $46,479 
Fairfield $1,245 Sachse $23,400 
Fairview $32,245 Sadler $925 
Falfurrias $2,221 Saginaw $31,973 
Falls City $41 Salado $3,210 
Falls County $34,522 San Angelo $536,509 
Fannin County $131,653 San Antonio $4,365,416 
Farmers Branch $94,532 San Augustine $25,182 
Farmersville $10,532 San Augustine County $37,854 
Farwell $343 San Benito $40,015 
Fate $3,473 San Diego $11,771 



   Page 12 

Fayette County $92,440 San Elizario $7,831 
Fayetteville $391 San Felipe $1,498 
Ferris $13,873 San Jacinto County $197,398 
Fisher County $5,518 San Juan $28,845 
Flatonia $5,661 San Leanna $36 
Florence $3,949 San Marcos $325,688 
Floresville $21,699 San Patricio $4,213 
Flower Mound $215,256 San Patricio County $271,916 
Floyd County $9,049 San Perlita $2,219 
Floydada $6,357 San Saba $10,057 
Foard County $5,764 San Saba County $17,562 
Follett $212 Sanctuary $17 
Forest Hill $26,132 Sandy Oaks $9,863 
Forney $80,112 Sandy Point $1,637 
Forsan $576 Sanford $308 
Fort Bend County $1,506,719 Sanger $22,237 
Fort Stockton $4,411 Sansom Park $223 
Fort Worth $2,120,790 Santa Anna $329 
Franklin $3,931 Santa Clara $87 
Franklin County $25,783 Santa Fe $33,272 
Frankston $274 Santa Rosa $2,138 
Fredericksburg $56,486 Savoy $2,349 
Freeport $72,973 Schertz $60,110 
Freer $3,271 Schleicher County $5,695 
Freestone County $50,495 Schulenburg $2,560 
Friendswood $140,330 Scotland $148 
Frio County $19,954 Scottsville $708 
Friona $2,848 Scurry $1,110 
Frisco $405,309 Scurry County $73,116 
Fritch $4,548 Seabrook $30,270 
Frost $321 Seadrift $991 
Fruitvale $2,344 Seagoville $17,106 
Fulshear $5,272 Seagraves $7,531 
Fulton $1,602 Sealy $20,637 
Gaines County $54,347 Seguin $376,538 
Gainesville $153,980 Selma $22,429 
Galena Park $13,093 Seminole $16,092 
Gallatin $1,253 Seven Oaks $3,917 
Galveston $488,187 Seven Points $7,452 
Galveston County $1,124,093 Seymour $14,218 



   Page 13 

Ganado $5,510 Shackelford County $1,288 
Garden Ridge $11,351 Shady Shores $594 
Garland $420,244 Shallowater $1,907 
Garrett $2,510 Shamrock $4,328 
Garrison $3,555 Shavano Park $3,178 
Gary City $450 Shelby County $109,925 
Garza County $8,944 Shenandoah $47,122 
Gatesville $26,994 Shepherd $147 
George West $6,207 Sherman $330,585 
Georgetown $225,896 Sherman County $7,930 
Gholson $1,505 Shiner $4,042 
Giddings $12,674 Shoreacres $958 
Gillespie County $63,191 Silsbee $66,442 
Gilmer $33,951 Silverton $14 
Gladewater $24,638 Simonton $1,906 
Glasscock County $1,000 Sinton $23,658 
Glen Rose $540 Skellytown $400 
Glenn Heights $16,593 Slaton $154 
Godley $3,115 Smiley $655 
Goldsmith $677 Smith County $758,961 
Goldthwaite $1,225 Smithville $17,009 
Goliad $3,563 Smyer $300 
Goliad County $34,660 Snook $1,422 
Golinda $100 Snyder $9,018 
Gonzales $14,882 Socorro $11,125 
Gonzales County $33,230 Somerset $1,527 
Goodlow $221 Somervell County $57,076 
Goodrich $9,643 Somerville $3,806 
Gordon $365 Sonora $7,337 
Goree $749 Sour Lake $17,856 
Gorman $3,107 South Houston $25,620 
Graford $23 South Mountain $154 
Graham $235,428 South Padre Island $30,629 
Granbury $71,735 Southlake $70,846 
Grand Prairie $445,439 Southmayd $7,096 
Grand Saline $36,413 Southside Place $885 
Grandfalls $65 Spearman $14,000 
Grandview $6,600 Splendora $7,756 
Granger $2,741 Spofford $7 
Granite Shoals $11,834 Spring Valley Village $16,404 



   Page 14 

Granjeno $43 Springlake $3 
Grapeland $7,287 Springtown $14,244 
Grapevine $129,195 Spur $427 
Gray County $65,884 St. Hedwig $111 
Grays Prairie $17 St. Jo $7,360 
Grayson County $539,083 St. Paul $21 
Greenville $203,112 Stafford $75,145 
Gregg County $243,744 Stagecoach $3,036 
Gregory $4,697 Stamford $398 
Grey Forest $474 Stanton $3,838 
Grimes County $94,878 Staples $19 
Groesbeck $5,745 Star Harbor $151 
Groom $965 Starr County $99,896 
Groves $40,752 Stephens County $35,244 
Groveton $8,827 Stephenville $83,472 
Gruver $1,166 Sterling City $62 
Guadalupe County $146,824 Sterling County $939 
Gun Barrel City $36,302 Stinnett $4,097 
Gunter $4,609 Stockdale $741 
Gustine $34 Stonewall County $1,822 
Hackberry $94 Stratford $8,378 
Hale Center $6,042 Strawn $987 
Hale County $79,150 Streetman $5 
Hall County $8,933 Sudan $32 
Hallettsville $6,895 Sugar Land $321,561 
Hallsburg $272 Sullivan City $6,121 
Hallsville $10,239 Sulphur Springs $124,603 
Haltom City $71,800 Sun Valley $4 
Hamilton $3,581 Sundown $2,592 
Hamilton County $66,357 Sunnyvale $3,248 
Hamlin $4,656 Sunray $2,571 
Hansford County $16,416 Sunrise Beach Village $2,083 
Happy $327 Sunset Valley $9,425 
Hardeman County $15,219 Surfside Beach $6,530 
Hardin $100 Sutton County $6,541 
Hardin County $379,800 Sweeny $4,503 
Harker Heights $113,681 Sweetwater $68,248 
Harlingen $165,429 Swisher County $7,251 
Harris County $14,966,202 Taft $5,861 
Harrison County $185,910 Tahoka $430 



   Page 15 

Hart $86 Talco $372 
Hartley County $786 Talty $9,124 
Haskell $10,829 Tarrant County $6,171,159 
Haskell County $22,011 Tatum $972 
Haslet $1,908 Taylor $57,945 
Hawk Cove $674 Taylor County $351,078 
Hawkins $7,932 Taylor Lake Village $412 
Hawley $931 Taylor Landing $153 
Hays $506 Teague $1,714 
Hays County $529,489 Tehuacana $12 
Hearne $16,824 Temple $280,747 
Heath $28,751 Tenaha $4,718 
Hebron $687 Terrell $148,706 
Hedley $70 Terrell County $5,737 
Hedwig Village $13,067 Terrell Hills $9,858 
Helotes $15,790 Terry County $25,423 
Hemphill $8,035 Texarkana $192,094 
Hemphill County $14,394 Texas City $298,702 
Hempstead $21,240 Texhoma $156 
Henderson $59,966 Texline $865 
Henderson County $327,965 The Colony $114,297 
Henrietta $2,720 The Hills $1,004 
Hereford $20,423 Thompsons $1,897 
Hewitt $19,776 Thorndale $1,595 
Hickory Creek $16,510 Thornton $270 
Hico $5,534 Thorntonville $87 
Hidalgo $26,621 Thrall $825 
Hidalgo County $1,253,103 Three Rivers $4,669 
Hideaway $922 Throckmorton $29 
Higgins $43 Throckmorton County $5,695 
Highland Haven $320 Tiki Island $2,178 
Highland Park $43,383 Timbercreek Canyon $369 
Highland Village $50,315 Timpson $12,642 
Hill Country Village $6,485 Tioga $2,390 
Hill County $127,477 Tira $185 
Hillcrest $5,345 Titus County $70,611 
Hillsboro $46,609 Toco $4 
Hilshire Village $859 Todd Mission $1,680 
Hitchcock $28,796 Tolar $2,369 
Hockley County $46,407 Tom Bean $2,293 



   Page 16 

Holiday Lakes $1,795 Tom Green County $282,427 
Holland $77 Tomball $34,620 
Holliday $5,910 Tool $14,787 
Hollywood Park $9,424 Toyah $40 
Hondo $115,288 Travis County $4,703,473 
Honey Grove $7,196 Trent $63 
Hood County $292,105 Trenton $3,089 
Hooks $2,702 Trinidad $5,859 
Hopkins County $149,518 Trinity $23,652 
Horizon City $7,520 Trinity County $105,766 
Horseshoe Bay $48,173 Trophy Club $29,370 
Houston County $78,648 Troup $7,918 
Houston $7,021,793 Troy $5,320 
Howard County $89,330 Tulia $8,911 
Howardwick $84 Turkey $737 
Howe $9,177 Tuscola $138 
Hubbard $3,635 Tye $1,766 
Hudson $6,840 Tyler $723,829 
Hudson Oaks $15,637 Tyler County $131,743 
Hudspeth County $985 Uhland $1,545 
Hughes Springs $4,442 Uncertain $185 
Humble $73,952 Union Grove $994 
Hunt County $309,851 Union Valley $666 
Hunters Creek Village $14,708 Universal City $28,428 
Huntington $8,792 University Park $50,833 
Huntsville $80,373 Upshur County $128,300 
Hurst $99,187 Upton County $8,499 
Hutchins $9,551 Uvalde $18,439 
Hutchinson County $74,630 Uvalde County $36,244 
Hutto $38,346 Val Verde County $117,815 
Huxley $738 Valentine $207 
Idalou $1,999 Valley Mills $2,228 
Impact $8 Valley View $1,824 
Indian Lake $473 Van $6,206 
Industry $604 Van Alstyne $43,749 
Ingleside on the Bay $142 Van Horn $211 
Ingleside $40,487 Van Zandt County $248,747 
Ingram $5,243 Vega $974 
Iola $3,164 Venus $9,792 
Iowa Colony $4,090 Vernon $81,337 



   Page 17 

Iowa Park $23,487 Victoria $84,598 
Iraan $56 Victoria County $520,886 
Iredell $216 Vidor $95,620 
Irion County $9,105 Vinton $622 
Irving $427,818 Volente $333 
Italy $5,349 Von Ormy $513 
Itasca $8,694 Waco $512,007 
Ivanhoe $26 Waelder $3,427 
Jacinto City $14,141 Wake Village $174 
Jack County $14,799 Walker County $184,624 
Jacksboro $23,254 Waller County $126,206 
Jackson County $37,984 Waller $11,295 
Jacksonville $80,179 Wallis $2,698 
Jamaica Beach $4,913 Walnut Springs $183 
Jarrell $2,423 Ward County $67,920 
Jasper $78,422 Warren City $66 
Jasper County $248,855 Washington County $83,727 
Jayton $63 Waskom $5,346 
Jeff Davis County $8,500 Watauga $33,216 
Jefferson $11,194 Waxahachie $152,094 
Jefferson County $756,614 Weatherford $207,872 
Jersey Village $36,347 Webb County $505,304 
Jewett $9,338 Webberville $1,280 
Jim Hogg County $12,718 Webster $53,202 
Jim Wells County $166,539 Weimar $5,830 
Joaquin $810 Weinert $234 
Johnson City $3,581 Weir $443 
Johnson County $408,692 Wellington $9,111 
Jolly $26 Wellman $383 
Jones County $22,001 Wells $1,357 
Jones Creek $5,078 Weslaco $73,949 
Jonestown $6,419 West $3,522 
Josephine $881 West Columbia $17,958 
Joshua $20,619 West Lake Hills $17,056 
Jourdanton $9,600 West Orange $42,452 
Junction $4,825 West Tawakoni $6,995 
Justin $8,575 West University Place $34,672 
Karnes City $11,632 Westbrook $43 
Karnes County $35,249 Westlake $41,540 
Katy $52,467 Weston $266 



   Page 18 

Kaufman $27,607 Weston Lakes $189 
Kaufman County $353,047 Westover Hills $4,509 
Keene $38,296 Westworth Village $7,842 
Keller $79,189 Wharton $31,700 
Kemah $28,325 Wharton County $72,887 
Kemp $6,419 Wheeler $447 
Kempner $330 Wheeler County $26,273 
Kendall County $100,643 White Deer $1,273 
Kendleton $13 White Oak $15,305 
Kenedy $676 White Settlement $23,304 
Kenedy County $1,000 Whiteface $155 
Kenefick $416 Whitehouse $29,017 
Kennard $132 Whitesboro $18,932 
Kennedale $21,024 Whitewright $7,098 
Kent County $939 Whitney $73 
Kerens $1,924 Wichita County $552,371 
Kermit $5,652 Wichita Falls $832,574 
Kerr County $218,452 Wickett $87 
Kerrville $190,357 Wilbarger County $55,124 
Kilgore $105,583 Willacy County $24,581 
Killeen $535,650 Williamson County $1,195,987 
Kimble County $20,480 Willis $24,384 
King County $1,000 Willow Park $26,737 
Kingsville $20,083 Wills Point $43,765 
Kinney County $2,142 Wilmer $426 
Kirby $8,752 Wilson $12 
Kirbyville $10,690 Wilson County $121,034 
Kirvin $2 Wimberley $724 
Kleberg County $124,109 Windcrest $12,908 
Knollwood $1,160 Windom $1,087 
Knox City $1,962 Windthorst $3,385 
Knox County $11,730 Winfield $290 
Kosse $2,468 Wink $120 
Kountze $19,716 Winkler County $61,163 
Kress $186 Winnsboro $28,791 
Krugerville $1,508 Winona $319 
Krum $9,661 Winters $6,229 
Kurten $686 Wise County $289,074 
Kyle $51,835 Wixon Valley $441 
La Feria $10,381 Wolfe City $5,466 



   Page 19 

La Grange $9,623 Wolfforth $4,022 
La Grulla $1,708 Wood County $267,048 
La Joya $8,457 Woodbranch $9,617 
La Marque $98,930 Woodcreek $358 
La Porte $91,532 Woodloch $1,012 
La Salle County $14,975 Woodsboro $1,130 
La Vernia $3,217 Woodson $122 
La Villa $572 Woodville $20,340 
La Ward $321 Woodway $25,713 
LaCoste $159 Wortham $376 
Lacy-Lakeview $11,599 Wylie $114,708 
Ladonia $2,011 Yantis $2,072 
Lago Vista $13,768 Yoakum County $34,924 
Laguna Vista $3,689 Yoakum $20,210 
Lake Bridgeport $232 Yorktown $5,447 
Lake City $2,918 Young County $44,120 
Lake Dallas $25,314 Zapata County $56,480 
Lake Jackson $75,781 Zavala County $38,147 
Lake Tanglewood $613 Zavalla $1,088 
Lake Worth $20,051     

 

 
 



�
�

EXHIBIT�C�



Exhibit C: TX Opioid Council & Health Care Region Allocations plus Administrative Costs 
70% of Total ($700 million) 

Health Care Region Allocation*: $693 million; Administrative Costs: $7 million 
Region Counties in Health Care Region Allocation 

1 
Anderson, Bowie, Camp, Cass, Cherokee, Delta, Fannin, Franklin, Freestone, Gregg, 
Harrison, Henderson, Hopkins, Houston, Hunt, Lamar, Marion, Morris, Panola, Rains, 
Red, River, Rusk, Smith, Titus, Trinity, Upshur, Van, Zandt, Wood $38,223,336 

2 Angelina, Brazoria, Galveston, Hardin, Jasper, Jefferson, Liberty, Nacogdoches, Newton, 
Orange, Polk, Sabine, San Augustine, San Jacinto, Shelby, Tyler $54,149,215 

3 Austin, Calhoun, Chambers, Colorado, Fort Bend, Harris, Matagorda, Waller, Wharton $120,965,680 

4 Aransas, Bee, Brooks, De Witt, Duval, Goliad, Gonzales, Jackson, Jim Wells, Karnes, 
Kenedy, Kleberg, Lavaca, Live Oak, Nueces, Refugio, San Patricio, Victoria $27,047,477 

5 Cameron, Hidalgo, Starr, Willacy $17,619,875 

6 Atascosa, Bandera, Bexar, Comal, Dimmit, Edwards, Frio, Gillespie, Guadalupe, Kendall, 
Kerr, Kinney, La Salle, McMullen, Medina, Real, Uvalde, Val Verde, Wilson, Zavala $68,228,047 

7 Bastrop, Caldwell, Fayette, Hays, Lee, Travis $50,489,691 
8 Bell, Blanco, Burnet, Lampasas, Llano, Milam, Mills, San Saba, Williamson $24,220,521 
9 Dallas, Kaufman $66,492,094 
10 Ellis, Erath, Hood, Johnson, Navarro, Parker, Somervell, Tarrant, Wise $65,538,414 

11 Brown, Callahan, Comanche, Eastland, Fisher, Haskell, Jones, Knox, Mitchell, Nolan, 
Palo Pinto, Shackelford, Stephens, Stonewall, Taylor $9,509,818 

12 

Armstrong, Bailey, Borden, Briscoe, Carson, Castro, Childress, Cochran, Collingsworth, 
Cottle, Crosby, Dallam, Dawson, Deaf Smith, Dickens, Donley, Floyd, Gaines, Garza, 
Gray, Hale, Hall, Hansford, Hartley, Hemphill, Hockley, Hutchinson, Kent, King, Lamb, 
Lipscomb, Lubbock, Lynn, Moore, Motley, Ochiltree, Oldham, Parmer, Potter, Randall, 
Roberts, Scurry, Sherman, Swisher, Terry, Wheeler, Yoakum $23,498,027 

13 Coke, Coleman, Concho, Crockett, Irion, Kimble, Mason, McCulloch, Menard, Pecos, 
Reagan, Runnels, Schleicher, Sterling, Sutton, Terrell, Tom Green $5,195,605 

14 Andrews, Brewster, Crane, Culberson, Ector, Glasscock, Howard, Jeff Davis, Loving, 
Martin, Midland, Presidio, Reeves, Upton, Ward, Winkler $12,124,354 

15 El Paso, Hudspeth $17,994,285 
16 Bosque, Coryell, Falls, Hamilton, Hill, Limestone, McLennan $9,452,018 
17 Brazos, Burleson, Grimes, Leon, Madison, Montgomery, Robertson, Walker, Washington $23,042,947 
18 Collin, Denton, Grayson, Rockwall $39,787,684 

19 Archer, Baylor, Clay, Cooke, Foard, Hardeman, Jack, Montague, Throckmorton, Wichita, 
Wilbarger, Young $12,665,268 

20 Jim Hogg, Maverick, Webb, Zapata $6,755,656 
 Administrative Costs $7,000,000 

* Each Region shall reserve 25% of its allocation for Targeted Funds under the guidelines of Exhibit A. 
 


	Agenda
	AI_25932_Property Tax Refunds – Over 2500 – Thru 01/20/2021
	       ATT_011321-012021 Refunds Over 2500
	AI_25924_Compensation Items
	       ATT_Position Changes
	AI_25913_Hutto Polling Place
	AI_25914_MSA Bode Technology for SO
	       ATT_Addendum and quote
	Standard County Addendum (Bode Technology) 12.10.20
	Bode Quote WALLACE 10-28-20[50906]

	AI_25923_Premier Tower Service
	       ATT_Contract and Quote
	AI_25917_Georgetown Annex Water Softener Remodel  - K&W Professional Service Agreement
	       ATT_Georgetown Annex Water Softener Remodel  - KandW Professional Service Agreement
	Gtown Annex Softener Room - PSA
	ARTICLE 1
	SCOPE OF AGREEMENT
	ARTICLE 2
	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE PROJECT DOCUMENTS
	2.1 Contract Documents.

	2.2 Existing Information.
	2.3 Project Documents.
	2.3.1
	2.3.2
	2.3.3
	2.3.4
	ARTICLE 3
	NON-COLLUSION; DEBARMENT; AND FINANCIAL INTEREST PROHIBITED
	3.1 Non-collusion.
	3.2 Debarment Certification.
	3.3 Financial Interest Prohibited.
	ARTICLE 4
	CHARACTER AND SCOPE OF SERVICES
	4.1
	4.3
	4.3.1
	4.3.2
	4.3.3
	ARTICLE 5
	TIME FOR PERFOMANCE
	5.1 Commencement.
	5.2 Duration.
	ARTICLE 6
	COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES
	6.1  Basic Fee.
	6.2  Expenses.
	ARTICLE 7
	ADDITIONAL SERVICES AND CHARGES
	ARTICLE 8
	TIME OF PAYMENT; PAYMENT AND INTEREST; AND RIGHT TO AUDIT
	8.1  Time of Payment.
	8.2  Prompt Payment Policy.
	8.2.1
	8.2.2
	8.2.3
	ARTICLE 9
	PROJECT TEAM
	ARTICLE 10
	NOTICE
	ARTICLE 11
	PROGRESS EVALUATION
	11.1
	11.2
	ARTICLE 12
	CHANGES IN COMPLETED BASIC SERVICES
	ARTICLE 13
	REVIEW PROCESS AND REVISIONS TO A/E WORK PRODUCT
	13.1 Review Process.
	13.1.1 Submittal.
	13.1.2 Completion.
	13.1.3 Acceptance.
	13.1.4 Final Approval.
	13.2  Revision to A/E Work Product.
	13.3  Days.
	13.4  County’s Reliance on A/E.
	ARTICLE 14
	SUSPENSION
	ARTICLE 15
	VIOLATION OF CONTRACT TERMS/ BREACH OF CONTRACT
	ARTICLE 16
	TERMINATION
	16.1
	16.2
	16.3
	16.4
	16.5
	ARTICLE 17
	USE OF DOCUMENTS
	ARTICLE 18
	PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIAL
	ARTICLE 19
	SUBCONTRACTING
	ARTICLE 20
	MODIFICATIONS
	ARTICLE 21
	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
	21.1  Compliance.
	21.2  Taxes.
	ARTICLE 22
	INDEMNIFICATION
	ARTICLE 23
	PROFESSIONAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	ARTICLE 24
	PROFESSIONAL’S SEAL
	ARTICLE 25
	INSURANCE
	25.1  Coverage Limits.
	25.1.1
	25.1.2
	25.1.3
	25.1.4
	25.2 Additional Insureds; Waiver of Subrogation.
	25.3 Premiums and Deductible.
	25.4 Commencement of Work.
	25.5 Insurance Company Rating.
	25.6 Certification of Coverage.
	25.7 No Arbitration.
	25.8 Subcontractor/ Subconsultant’s Insurance.
	25.9 Insurance Policy Endorsements.
	25.9.1
	25.10.1
	25.10 Cost of Insurance.
	ARTICLE 26
	SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
	ARTICLE 27
	SEVERABILITY
	ARTICLE 28
	PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED
	ARTICLE 29
	A/E’S ACCOUNTING RECORDS
	ARTICLE 30
	GENERAL PROVISIONS
	30.1 Time is of the Essence.
	30.2 Force Majeure.
	30.3 Enforcement and Venue.
	30.4 Standard of Performance.
	30.5 Opinion of Probable Cost.
	30.6 Opinions and Determinations.
	30.7 Reports of Accidents.
	30.8 Gender, Number, and Headings.
	30.9 Construction.
	30.10 Independent Contractor Relationship.
	30.11 No Waiver of Immunities.
	30.12 Texas Public Information Act.
	30.13 Governing Terms and Conditions.
	30.14 Appropriation of Funds by County.
	ARTICLE 31
	DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	ARTICLE 32
	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT
	ARTICLE 33
	MERGER
	ARTICLE 34
	PUBLIC CONTACT
	ARTICLE 35
	A/E’s REPRESENTATIONS
	ARTICLE 36
	SIGNATORY WARRANTY
	Any other expenses which Williamson County deems, in its sole discretion, to be inappropriate or unnecessary expenditures.
	EXHIBIT E
	EXHIBIT F


	Gtown Annex Softener Room - EXBT_A
	Gtown Annex Softener Room - EXBT_B
	PROPOSED

	Gtown Annex Softener Room - EXBT_C
	PROPOSED


	AI_25918_WWCHD Lobby and Janitor Remodel (P535)- K&W Professional Service Agreement
	       ATT_WWCHD Lobby and Janitor Remodel (P535P KandW PSA
	CHD Lobby & Janitor Reno - PSA
	ARTICLE 1
	SCOPE OF AGREEMENT
	ARTICLE 2
	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE PROJECT DOCUMENTS
	2.1 Contract Documents.

	2.2 Existing Information.
	2.3 Project Documents.
	2.3.1
	2.3.2
	2.3.3
	2.3.4
	ARTICLE 3
	NON-COLLUSION; DEBARMENT; AND FINANCIAL INTEREST PROHIBITED
	3.1 Non-collusion.
	3.2 Debarment Certification.
	3.3 Financial Interest Prohibited.
	ARTICLE 4
	CHARACTER AND SCOPE OF SERVICES
	4.1
	4.3
	4.3.1
	4.3.2
	4.3.3
	ARTICLE 5
	TIME FOR PERFOMANCE
	5.1 Commencement.
	5.2 Duration.
	ARTICLE 6
	COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES
	6.1  Basic Fee.
	6.2  Expenses.
	ARTICLE 7
	ADDITIONAL SERVICES AND CHARGES
	ARTICLE 8
	TIME OF PAYMENT; PAYMENT AND INTEREST; AND RIGHT TO AUDIT
	8.1  Time of Payment.
	8.2  Prompt Payment Policy.
	8.2.1
	8.2.2
	8.2.3
	ARTICLE 9
	PROJECT TEAM
	ARTICLE 10
	NOTICE
	ARTICLE 11
	PROGRESS EVALUATION
	11.1
	11.2
	ARTICLE 12
	CHANGES IN COMPLETED BASIC SERVICES
	ARTICLE 13
	REVIEW PROCESS AND REVISIONS TO A/E WORK PRODUCT
	13.1 Review Process.
	13.1.1 Submittal.
	13.1.2 Completion.
	13.1.3 Acceptance.
	13.1.4 Final Approval.
	13.2  Revision to A/E Work Product.
	13.3  Days.
	13.4  County’s Reliance on A/E.
	ARTICLE 14
	SUSPENSION
	ARTICLE 15
	VIOLATION OF CONTRACT TERMS/ BREACH OF CONTRACT
	ARTICLE 16
	TERMINATION
	16.1
	16.2
	16.3
	16.4
	16.5
	ARTICLE 17
	USE OF DOCUMENTS
	ARTICLE 18
	PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIAL
	ARTICLE 19
	SUBCONTRACTING
	ARTICLE 20
	MODIFICATIONS
	ARTICLE 21
	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
	21.1  Compliance.
	21.2  Taxes.
	ARTICLE 22
	INDEMNIFICATION
	ARTICLE 23
	PROFESSIONAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	ARTICLE 24
	PROFESSIONAL’S SEAL
	ARTICLE 25
	INSURANCE
	25.1  Coverage Limits.
	25.1.1
	25.1.2
	25.1.3
	25.1.4
	25.2 Additional Insureds; Waiver of Subrogation.
	25.3 Premiums and Deductible.
	25.4 Commencement of Work.
	25.5 Insurance Company Rating.
	25.6 Certification of Coverage.
	25.7 No Arbitration.
	25.8 Subcontractor/ Subconsultant’s Insurance.
	25.9 Insurance Policy Endorsements.
	25.9.1
	25.10.1
	25.10 Cost of Insurance.
	ARTICLE 26
	SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
	ARTICLE 27
	SEVERABILITY
	ARTICLE 28
	PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED
	ARTICLE 29
	A/E’S ACCOUNTING RECORDS
	ARTICLE 30
	GENERAL PROVISIONS
	30.1 Time is of the Essence.
	30.2 Force Majeure.
	30.3 Enforcement and Venue.
	30.4 Standard of Performance.
	30.5 Opinion of Probable Cost.
	30.6 Opinions and Determinations.
	30.7 Reports of Accidents.
	30.8 Gender, Number, and Headings.
	30.9 Construction.
	30.10 Independent Contractor Relationship.
	30.11 No Waiver of Immunities.
	30.12 Texas Public Information Act.
	30.13 Governing Terms and Conditions.
	30.14 Appropriation of Funds by County.
	ARTICLE 31
	DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	ARTICLE 32
	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT
	ARTICLE 33
	MERGER
	ARTICLE 34
	PUBLIC CONTACT
	ARTICLE 35
	A/E’s REPRESENTATIONS
	ARTICLE 36
	SIGNATORY WARRANTY
	Any other expenses which Williamson County deems, in its sole discretion, to be inappropriate or unnecessary expenditures.
	EXHIBIT E
	EXHIBIT F


	CHD Lobby & Janitor Reno - EXBT_A
	CHD Lobby & Janitor Reno - EXBT_B
	PROPOSED

	CHD Lobby & Janitor Reno - EXBT_C
	PROPOSED


	AI_25919_Juvenile Justice Center Recreational Shed Restroom Addition (P528) K&W Professional Service Agreement
	       ATT_JJC Recreation Shed Restroom Addition (P528) KandW  PSA
	JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add - PSA
	ARTICLE 1
	SCOPE OF AGREEMENT
	ARTICLE 2
	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE PROJECT DOCUMENTS
	2.1 Contract Documents.

	2.2 Existing Information.
	2.3 Project Documents.
	2.3.1
	2.3.2
	2.3.3
	2.3.4
	ARTICLE 3
	NON-COLLUSION; DEBARMENT; AND FINANCIAL INTEREST PROHIBITED
	3.1 Non-collusion.
	3.2 Debarment Certification.
	3.3 Financial Interest Prohibited.
	ARTICLE 4
	CHARACTER AND SCOPE OF SERVICES
	4.1
	4.3
	4.3.1
	4.3.2
	4.3.3
	ARTICLE 5
	TIME FOR PERFOMANCE
	5.1 Commencement.
	5.2 Duration.
	ARTICLE 6
	COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES
	6.1  Basic Fee.
	6.2  Expenses.
	ARTICLE 7
	ADDITIONAL SERVICES AND CHARGES
	ARTICLE 8
	TIME OF PAYMENT; PAYMENT AND INTEREST; AND RIGHT TO AUDIT
	8.1  Time of Payment.
	8.2  Prompt Payment Policy.
	8.2.1
	8.2.2
	8.2.3
	ARTICLE 9
	PROJECT TEAM
	ARTICLE 10
	NOTICE
	ARTICLE 11
	PROGRESS EVALUATION
	11.1
	11.2
	ARTICLE 12
	CHANGES IN COMPLETED BASIC SERVICES
	ARTICLE 13
	REVIEW PROCESS AND REVISIONS TO A/E WORK PRODUCT
	13.1 Review Process.
	13.1.1 Submittal.
	13.1.2 Completion.
	13.1.3 Acceptance.
	13.1.4 Final Approval.
	13.2  Revision to A/E Work Product.
	13.3  Days.
	13.4  County’s Reliance on A/E.
	ARTICLE 14
	SUSPENSION
	ARTICLE 15
	VIOLATION OF CONTRACT TERMS/ BREACH OF CONTRACT
	ARTICLE 16
	TERMINATION
	16.1
	16.2
	16.3
	16.4
	16.5
	ARTICLE 17
	USE OF DOCUMENTS
	ARTICLE 18
	PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIAL
	ARTICLE 19
	SUBCONTRACTING
	ARTICLE 20
	MODIFICATIONS
	ARTICLE 21
	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
	21.1  Compliance.
	21.2  Taxes.
	ARTICLE 22
	INDEMNIFICATION
	ARTICLE 23
	PROFESSIONAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	ARTICLE 24
	PROFESSIONAL’S SEAL
	ARTICLE 25
	INSURANCE
	25.1  Coverage Limits.
	25.1.1
	25.1.2
	25.1.3
	25.1.4
	25.2 Additional Insureds; Waiver of Subrogation.
	25.3 Premiums and Deductible.
	25.4 Commencement of Work.
	25.5 Insurance Company Rating.
	25.6 Certification of Coverage.
	25.7 No Arbitration.
	25.8 Subcontractor/ Subconsultant’s Insurance.
	25.9 Insurance Policy Endorsements.
	25.9.1
	25.10.1
	25.10 Cost of Insurance.
	ARTICLE 26
	SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
	ARTICLE 27
	SEVERABILITY
	ARTICLE 28
	PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED
	ARTICLE 29
	A/E’S ACCOUNTING RECORDS
	ARTICLE 30
	GENERAL PROVISIONS
	30.1 Time is of the Essence.
	30.2 Force Majeure.
	30.3 Enforcement and Venue.
	30.4 Standard of Performance.
	30.5 Opinion of Probable Cost.
	30.6 Opinions and Determinations.
	30.7 Reports of Accidents.
	30.8 Gender, Number, and Headings.
	30.9 Construction.
	30.10 Independent Contractor Relationship.
	30.11 No Waiver of Immunities.
	30.12 Texas Public Information Act.
	30.13 Governing Terms and Conditions.
	30.14 Appropriation of Funds by County.
	ARTICLE 31
	DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	ARTICLE 32
	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT
	ARTICLE 33
	MERGER
	ARTICLE 34
	PUBLIC CONTACT
	ARTICLE 35
	A/E’s REPRESENTATIONS
	ARTICLE 36
	SIGNATORY WARRANTY
	Any other expenses which Williamson County deems, in its sole discretion, to be inappropriate or unnecessary expenditures.
	EXHIBIT E
	EXHIBIT F


	JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add - EXBT_A
	JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add - EXBT_B
	PROPOSED

	JJC Rec Shed Restroom Add - EXBT_C
	PROPOSED


	AI_25920_Williamson County CJC Pretrial Service Remodel (P545)  - K&W Professional Service Agreement
	       ATT_CJC Pretrial Service Remodel (P545) KandW PSA
	Pretrial Services Reno - PSA
	ARTICLE 1
	SCOPE OF AGREEMENT
	ARTICLE 2
	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE PROJECT DOCUMENTS
	2.1 Contract Documents.

	2.2 Existing Information.
	2.3 Project Documents.
	2.3.1
	2.3.2
	2.3.3
	2.3.4
	ARTICLE 3
	NON-COLLUSION; DEBARMENT; AND FINANCIAL INTEREST PROHIBITED
	3.1 Non-collusion.
	3.2 Debarment Certification.
	3.3 Financial Interest Prohibited.
	ARTICLE 4
	CHARACTER AND SCOPE OF SERVICES
	4.1
	4.3
	4.3.1
	4.3.2
	4.3.3
	ARTICLE 5
	TIME FOR PERFOMANCE
	5.1 Commencement.
	5.2 Duration.
	ARTICLE 6
	COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES
	6.1  Basic Fee.
	6.2  Expenses.
	ARTICLE 7
	ADDITIONAL SERVICES AND CHARGES
	ARTICLE 8
	TIME OF PAYMENT; PAYMENT AND INTEREST; AND RIGHT TO AUDIT
	8.1  Time of Payment.
	8.2  Prompt Payment Policy.
	8.2.1
	8.2.2
	8.2.3
	ARTICLE 9
	PROJECT TEAM
	ARTICLE 10
	NOTICE
	ARTICLE 11
	PROGRESS EVALUATION
	11.1
	11.2
	ARTICLE 12
	CHANGES IN COMPLETED BASIC SERVICES
	ARTICLE 13
	REVIEW PROCESS AND REVISIONS TO A/E WORK PRODUCT
	13.1 Review Process.
	13.1.1 Submittal.
	13.1.2 Completion.
	13.1.3 Acceptance.
	13.1.4 Final Approval.
	13.2  Revision to A/E Work Product.
	13.3  Days.
	13.4  County’s Reliance on A/E.
	ARTICLE 14
	SUSPENSION
	ARTICLE 15
	VIOLATION OF CONTRACT TERMS/ BREACH OF CONTRACT
	ARTICLE 16
	TERMINATION
	16.1
	16.2
	16.3
	16.4
	16.5
	ARTICLE 17
	USE OF DOCUMENTS
	ARTICLE 18
	PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIAL
	ARTICLE 19
	SUBCONTRACTING
	ARTICLE 20
	MODIFICATIONS
	ARTICLE 21
	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
	21.1  Compliance.
	21.2  Taxes.
	ARTICLE 22
	INDEMNIFICATION
	ARTICLE 23
	PROFESSIONAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	ARTICLE 24
	PROFESSIONAL’S SEAL
	ARTICLE 25
	INSURANCE
	25.1  Coverage Limits.
	25.1.1
	25.1.2
	25.1.3
	25.1.4
	25.2 Additional Insureds; Waiver of Subrogation.
	25.3 Premiums and Deductible.
	25.4 Commencement of Work.
	25.5 Insurance Company Rating.
	25.6 Certification of Coverage.
	25.7 No Arbitration.
	25.8 Subcontractor/ Subconsultant’s Insurance.
	25.9 Insurance Policy Endorsements.
	25.9.1
	25.10.1
	25.10 Cost of Insurance.
	ARTICLE 26
	SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
	ARTICLE 27
	SEVERABILITY
	ARTICLE 28
	PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED
	ARTICLE 29
	A/E’S ACCOUNTING RECORDS
	ARTICLE 30
	GENERAL PROVISIONS
	30.1 Time is of the Essence.
	30.2 Force Majeure.
	30.3 Enforcement and Venue.
	30.4 Standard of Performance.
	30.5 Opinion of Probable Cost.
	30.6 Opinions and Determinations.
	30.7 Reports of Accidents.
	30.8 Gender, Number, and Headings.
	30.9 Construction.
	30.10 Independent Contractor Relationship.
	30.11 No Waiver of Immunities.
	30.12 Texas Public Information Act.
	30.13 Governing Terms and Conditions.
	30.14 Appropriation of Funds by County.
	ARTICLE 31
	DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	ARTICLE 32
	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT
	ARTICLE 33
	MERGER
	ARTICLE 34
	PUBLIC CONTACT
	ARTICLE 35
	A/E’s REPRESENTATIONS
	ARTICLE 36
	SIGNATORY WARRANTY
	Any other expenses which Williamson County deems, in its sole discretion, to be inappropriate or unnecessary expenditures.
	EXHIBIT E
	EXHIBIT F


	Pretrial Services Reno - EXBT_A
	Pretrial Services Reno - EXBT_B
	PROPOSED

	Pretrial Services Reno - EXBT_C
	PROPOSED

	Pretrial Services Reno - EXBT_B.pdf
	PROPOSED

	Pretrial Services Reno - EXBT_B.pdf
	PROPOSED

	Pretrial Services Reno - PSA.pdf
	ARTICLE 1
	SCOPE OF AGREEMENT
	ARTICLE 2
	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE PROJECT DOCUMENTS
	2.1 Contract Documents.

	2.2 Existing Information.
	2.3 Project Documents.
	2.3.1
	2.3.2
	2.3.3
	2.3.4
	ARTICLE 3
	NON-COLLUSION; DEBARMENT; AND FINANCIAL INTEREST PROHIBITED
	3.1 Non-collusion.
	3.2 Debarment Certification.
	3.3 Financial Interest Prohibited.
	ARTICLE 4
	CHARACTER AND SCOPE OF SERVICES
	4.1
	4.3
	4.3.1
	4.3.2
	4.3.3
	ARTICLE 5
	TIME FOR PERFOMANCE
	5.1 Commencement.
	5.2 Duration.
	ARTICLE 6
	COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES
	6.1  Basic Fee.
	6.2  Expenses.
	ARTICLE 7
	ADDITIONAL SERVICES AND CHARGES
	ARTICLE 8
	TIME OF PAYMENT; PAYMENT AND INTEREST; AND RIGHT TO AUDIT
	8.1  Time of Payment.
	8.2  Prompt Payment Policy.
	8.2.1
	8.2.2
	8.2.3
	ARTICLE 9
	PROJECT TEAM
	ARTICLE 10
	NOTICE
	ARTICLE 11
	PROGRESS EVALUATION
	11.1
	11.2
	ARTICLE 12
	CHANGES IN COMPLETED BASIC SERVICES
	ARTICLE 13
	REVIEW PROCESS AND REVISIONS TO A/E WORK PRODUCT
	13.1 Review Process.
	13.1.1 Submittal.
	13.1.2 Completion.
	13.1.3 Acceptance.
	13.1.4 Final Approval.
	13.2  Revision to A/E Work Product.
	13.3  Days.
	13.4  County’s Reliance on A/E.
	ARTICLE 14
	SUSPENSION
	ARTICLE 15
	VIOLATION OF CONTRACT TERMS/ BREACH OF CONTRACT
	ARTICLE 16
	TERMINATION
	16.1
	16.2
	16.3
	16.4
	16.5
	ARTICLE 17
	USE OF DOCUMENTS
	ARTICLE 18
	PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIAL
	ARTICLE 19
	SUBCONTRACTING
	ARTICLE 20
	MODIFICATIONS
	ARTICLE 21
	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
	21.1  Compliance.
	21.2  Taxes.
	ARTICLE 22
	INDEMNIFICATION
	ARTICLE 23
	PROFESSIONAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	ARTICLE 24
	PROFESSIONAL’S SEAL
	ARTICLE 25
	INSURANCE
	25.1  Coverage Limits.
	25.1.1
	25.1.2
	25.1.3
	25.1.4
	25.2 Additional Insureds; Waiver of Subrogation.
	25.3 Premiums and Deductible.
	25.4 Commencement of Work.
	25.5 Insurance Company Rating.
	25.6 Certification of Coverage.
	25.7 No Arbitration.
	25.8 Subcontractor/ Subconsultant’s Insurance.
	25.9 Insurance Policy Endorsements.
	25.9.1
	25.10.1
	25.10 Cost of Insurance.
	ARTICLE 26
	SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
	ARTICLE 27
	SEVERABILITY
	ARTICLE 28
	PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED
	ARTICLE 29
	A/E’S ACCOUNTING RECORDS
	ARTICLE 30
	GENERAL PROVISIONS
	30.1 Time is of the Essence.
	30.2 Force Majeure.
	30.3 Enforcement and Venue.
	30.4 Standard of Performance.
	30.5 Opinion of Probable Cost.
	30.6 Opinions and Determinations.
	30.7 Reports of Accidents.
	30.8 Gender, Number, and Headings.
	30.9 Construction.
	30.10 Independent Contractor Relationship.
	30.11 No Waiver of Immunities.
	30.12 Texas Public Information Act.
	30.13 Governing Terms and Conditions.
	30.14 Appropriation of Funds by County.
	ARTICLE 31
	DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	ARTICLE 32
	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT
	ARTICLE 33
	MERGER
	ARTICLE 34
	PUBLIC CONTACT
	ARTICLE 35
	A/E’s REPRESENTATIONS
	ARTICLE 36
	SIGNATORY WARRANTY
	Any other expenses which Williamson County deems, in its sole discretion, to be inappropriate or unnecessary expenditures.
	EXHIBIT E
	EXHIBIT F


	Pretrial Services Reno - EXBT_C.pdf
	PROPOSED


	AI_25921_Fence for Williamson County Auction Yard
	       ATT_Contract and Quote
	AI_25927_Interlocal Agreement with Aqua Utilities Inc regarding reimbursement for water line relocations
	       ATT_ILA- Aqua Utilities
	AI_25922_Curative Ag 2
	       ATT_Curative Vaccination Admin Agreement
	AI_25931_Juvenile Services Grant Application Permission Request
	       ATT_Capcog grant
	AI_25930_Resolution authorizing the District Attorney to apply for a grant
	       ATT_VAWA Grant Announcement
	Purpose
	The purpose of this announcement is to solicit applications for projects that promote a coordinated, multi-disciplinary approach to improve the justice system’s response to violent crimes against women, including domestic violence, sexual assault, dat...
	Available Funding
	Eligible Organizations
	Application Process
	Key Dates
	Project Period
	Projects must start on or after 09/01/2021 and end on or before 09/30/2022.
	Funding Levels
	Standards
	Eligible Activities and Costs
	Program-Specific Requirements
	Eligibility Requirements
	Prohibitions
	Selection Process
	Contact Information


	       ATT_Grant Management Request Questionnaire
	AI_25925_Legislation for the establishment of a new District Court and a new County Court at Law
	       ATT_Proposed Resolution Supporting New Courts
	       ATT_Court Workload Analysis
	Introduction & Executive Summary
	Williamson County Growth Trends
	Population Growth
	District Court Workload
	Filing Analysis
	Weighted Caseload Analysis
	The Impact of Associate Judges
	Caveat Regarding Juvenile Data
	Summary of District Court Judicial Needs

	County Court at Law Workload
	Filing Analysis
	Weighted Caseload Analysis
	Adjustment to Account for Criminal & Probate/MH Workloads


	Current Court Assignments
	Current District Court Assignments
	Current County Court Assignments

	Docket Impact of a Proposed New Court’s Jurisdiction
	Infrastructure Needs
	Infrastructure Needs Resulting from a New District Court
	Infrastructure Needs Resulting from a New County Court at Law

	Staffing Needs
	Staffing to Support a New District Court
	Staffing to Support a New County Court at Law

	Court Cost
	Estimated Cost Range for New District Court 6F , 7F
	Estimated Cost Range for New County Court at Law 8F , 9F , 10F

	Comparator Jurisdictions
	District Court Comparisons11F
	County Court at Law Comparisons12F

	Appendices
	Appendix 1:  OCA District Court Workload Study
	Appendix 2:  OCA County Court at Law Workload Study
	Appendix 3:  Potential Statutory Language for Creation of a New District Court
	Appendix 4:  Potential Statutory Language for Creation of a New County Court at Law
	Appendix 5:  Detailed Estimate for New District Court Cost
	Appendix 6:  Detailed Estimate for New County Court at Law Cost


	AI_25860_Park Donation BA Rev 01.26.21
	AI_25861_Park Donation BA Exp 01.26.21
	AI_25912_4A
	       ATT_4a.positions
	AI_25929_Williamson County Benefits Committee Member Terms
	       ATT_Williamson County Benefits Committee Terms
	AI_25915_Reclassification of Animal Control Officer
	       ATT_Animal Control Supv. job description
	AI_25757_DOI Projects and Issues
	AI_25928_FY21 Corridor Budget
	       ATT_FY21 Corridor Budget
	AI_25933_Interlocal Agreement
	       ATT_Ronald Reagan ILA
	AI_25934_Executive Session
	AI_25935_Economic Development
	AI_25894_Resolution
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Texas Term Sheet
	---




